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RELX Group is a global provider of information and
analytics for professional and business customers
across industries.

We help scientists make new discoveries, lawyers
win cases, doctors save lives and insurance
companies offer customers lower prices. We save
taxpayers and consumers money by preventing fraud
and help executives forge commercial relationships
with their clients.

In short, we enable our customers to make better
decisions, get better results and be more productive.

RELXPLCisalondon listed holding company which owns 52.9% of RELX Group.
RELXNVisan Amsterdam listed holding company which owns 47.1% of RELX Group.

Forward-looking statements

The Reportsand Financial Statements 2017 contains forward-looking statements within the meaning of Section 27A of the US Securities Act of 1933, asamended, and Section 21E
of the US Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended. These statements are subjecttoa number of risks and uncertainties that could cause actual results or outcomes to
differ materially from those currently being anticipated. The terms “outlook”, “estimate”, “project”, “plan”, “intend”, “expect”, “should be”, “will be”, “believe”, “trends” and
similar expressionsidentify forward-looking statements. Factors which may cause future outcomes to differ from those foreseen in forward-looking statementsinclude,
butare not limited to: currentand future economic, politicaland market forces; changesin lawand legalinterpretations affectingthe RELX Group intellectual property rights;
regulatoryand other changesregarding the collection, transfer or use of third party content and data; demand for the RELX Group products and services; competitive factors
intheindustriesinwhichthe RELX Group operates; compromises of our data security systems and interruptions in our information technology systems; legislative, fiscal,
taxand regulatory developments and political risks; exchange rate fluctuations; and other risks referenced from time to time in the filings of RELXPLC and RELX N.V. with
the US Securities and Exchange Commission.
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2017 Financial highlights

Underlying revenue up 4%

Underlying adjusted operating profit up 6%

Adjusted EPS up 12% to 81.0p (72.2p); up 5% to €0.923 (€0.880); up 7% constant currency

Reported EPS 82.2p (56.3p) for RELX PLC; €0.936 (€0.687) for RELX NV

Full-year dividend up 10% to 39.4p for RELX PLC and up 6% to €0.448 for RELX NV

Strong financial position and cash flow; leverage 2.2x EBITDA pensions and lease adjusted
(1.9x unadjusted)

RELX Group
REVENUE ADJUSTED OPERATING PROFIT
£m €m £m €m
Underlying growth +4% Underlying growth +6%
8,412 8,385 2,579 2,604
6,895 7,355 2114 2,284
2016 2017 2016 2017 2016 2017 2016 2017
Parent companies
RELX PLC RELX NV
Adjusted EPS Dividend Adjusted EPS Dividend
pence pence € €
Growth +12% Growth +10% Growth +5% Growth +6%
. 0.923
70, 810 0.880
35.95 39.4 0.423 0.448
2016 2017 2016 2017 2016 2017 2016 2017

RELXGroup encompasses RELXPLC, RELXNV, RELX Group plcandits subsidiaries, associates and jointventures. The corporate structure is set out on page 71.

RELXGroup usesadjusted and underlying figures as additional performance measures. Adjusted figures primarily exclude the amortisation of acquired intangible assets and
otheritemsrelated toacquisitions and disposals, and the associated deferred tax movements. In 2017, we have excluded the exceptional tax creditarisingas a result of the US Tax
Cutsand JobsAct. Reconciliations between the reported and adjusted figures are set out on page 186. Underlying growth rates are calculated at constant currencies, and exclude
theresults of acquisitions and disposals made in both the yearand prioryear and of assets held for sale. Underlying revenue growth rates also exclude the effects of exhibition
cycling. Constantcurrency growth ratesare based on 2016 full-year average and hedge exchange rates.
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Chairman’s statement

Sir Anthony Habgood
Chairman

We achieved good underlying
revenue growthin 2017, and
continued to generate underlying
adjusted operating profit growth
ahead of revenue growth. We are
proposing a set of measures that
will further simplify our corporate
structure into a single parent
company.

RELX Group continued to execute well on its strategic priorities
aimed atachieving more predictable revenues, a higher growth
profileand improving returns. As a result, growth of underlying
revenues was again +4%. Underlying adjusted operating profits
grew +6%, as we continued to grow revenues ahead of costs.

Adjusted earnings per share in constant currencies grew +7%.
Adjusted EPS expressed in sterlingwas 81.0p (+12%) orin euros
€0.923 (+5%). Reported earnings per share expressed in sterling
was 82.2p (56.3p) and expressedin euros was €0.936 (€0.687).
The difference in growth rates between the sterlingand euro EPS
reflects the movementin exchange rates.

Dividends

We are proposing a full year dividend increase of 10% to 39.4p
for RELXPLCand 6% to €0.448 for RELXNV. The differencein
growth rates between the two dividends reflects movement
inthe sterling/euro exchange rate since the payments a year
earlier. The long-term dividend policy is unchanged.

Balance sheet

With the majority of our debts dollar denominated, net debt was
£4.7bn/€5.3bn on 31 December 2017, compared with £4.7bn/€5.5bn
lastyear, with the difference between the sterlingand euroincreases
reflecting movements in exchange rates. Net debt/EBITDAon a
pensions and lease adjusted basis for 2017 was 2.2x, the same level

aslastyear, and, onan unadjusted basis was 1.9x, compared with
1.8x lastyear. Adjusted cash flow conversion was 96%, compared
with 95%in 2016, with capital expenditure at 5% of revenues.

Share buybacks

In 2017, we deployed £700m on share buybacks. In 2018, we intend
todeployatotal of £700m. By February, £100m of this year’s total
had already been completed, leaving a further £600m to be
deployed during the year.

The Boards

We continue to refresh the Boards. In September 2017, we welcomed
Suzanne Wood to the boards asanon-executive director. Suzanneis
Group Finance Director at Ashtead Group plcand brings extensive
board experience on both sides of the Atlantic.In 2018, Adrian Hennah
willbecome Chairman of the Audit Committees, replacing Benvander
Veer,whowill have been onthe Boards for nine yearsin September
2018and has been Chairman of the Audit Committees since 2010.

Parent company structure

We are proposing a set of measures that will further simplify our
corporate structure intoa single parent company. We believe this
isanatural nextstep for RELX Group, removing complexity and
increasing transparency. The changes will be cost and profit neutral
onanongoing basis and will notimpact the economicinterests of any
shareholder. RELXNV shareholders will receive one new RELXPLC
sharein exchange foreach RELXNV share held and will, following
the additional listing of RELXPLC shares on Euronext Amsterdam,
have the option of trading new RELXPLC shares on Euronext
Amsterdam, priced in euros, and receive dividend paymentsin
euros. RELXPLC will continue to have a premium listing on the
London Stock Exchange and we will be applying foran additional
listing of RELXPLC on Euronext Amsterdam. RELXNVADRs will be
converted one-for-one to RELXPLC ADRs which will continue to be
listed onthe New York Stock Exchange. There will be no changesto
the locations, activities or staffing levels of RELX Group or its four
businessareas. The simplificationis subject to the approval of both
RELXPLCand RELXNVshareholders. We expectacirculartobe
senttoshareholdersinQ22018, withimplementationin Q32018.

Corporate responsibility

We prioritise excellence in corporate governance across RELX
Group.In 2017, we advanced a more structured approach to
compliance training for employeesin higher-risk roles and
locations by creating aresource library with presentations on
competition law, anti-bribery, anti-harassment, trade sanctions
and fostering a culture of compliance. Over 2,400 colleagues
received advanced in-person compliance training.

Diversityandinclusion remain critical to our business to ensure we
reflectthe diversity of our customersand communities. Over 44%
of non-executive directors on the Board are women. Inthe year, we
expanded our womenin technology mentor pilot to include mentees
inthe USand Chinaaswellasthe UK, and developed a new mentor
programme for high potential women.

We focus on our unique contributions to society, such as fostering
communities, applying our expertise, and using our convening
power, to address key challenges across our market sectors.

We discuss our efforts to avoid human trafficking and slavery in
ourdirectemploymentand our supply chainin our Modern Slavery
Act Statement, approved by the Board, and available on the RELX
Group homepage.

Anthony Habgood
Chairman
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Chief Executive Officer’s report

Erik Engstrom

Chief Executive Officer

Our number one priorityis
the organic development of
increasingly sophisticated
information-based analytics
and decision tools that deliver

enhanced value to our customers.

UNDERLYING REVENUE GROWTH

Strategicdirection

Our numberone strategic priority is the organic development
of increasingly sophisticated information-based analytics and
decision tools that deliver enhanced value to professionaland
business customers across the industries that we serve.

Ourgoalistohelp our customers make better decisions, get better
results and be more productive. We do this by leveraging a deep
understanding of our customers to create innovative solutions
which combine content and data with analytics and technology

in global platforms. These solutions often account for about 1%
of our customers’total cost base but can have a significantand
positive impact on the economics of the remaining 99%.

We aim to build leading positions in long-term global growth
markets and leverage our skills, assets and resources across
RELX Group, both to build solutions for our customers and to
pursue cost efficiencies.

We are systematically migrating all of our information solutions
across RELX Group towards highervalue-add decision tools,
adding broader datasets, embedding more sophisticated analytics
and leveraging more powerfultechnology, primarily through
organicdevelopment.

We are transforming our core business, building out new products
and expandinginto higher growth adjacencies and geographies.
We are supplementing this organic development with selective
acquisitions of targeted data sets and analytics, and assetsin
high-growth markets that support our organic growth strategies,
and are naturaladditions to our existing businesses.

By focusing on evolving the fundamentals of our business we
believe that, overtime, we are improving our business profile

and the quality of our earnings. This is leading to more predictable
revenues through a better asset mixand geographic balance;

a higher growth profile by expanding in higher growth segments,
exiting from structurally challenged businesses and gradually
reducing the drag from print format declines; and improved returns
by focusing on organic development with strong cash generation.

UNDERLYING ADJUSTED OPERATING PROFIT GROWTH

+3%

+3%

+3%

+4%

+4%

T l

2013

2014

2015

2016

2017

0, 0,
+5% +5% +5% D i
2013 2014 2015 2016 2017




Overview Chief Executive Officer’s report

2017 progress

We achieved good underlying revenue growth in 2017, and
continued to generate underlying adjusted operating profit
growth ahead of revenue growth. The underlying growth rate
reflects good growthin electronic and face-to-face revenues
(89% of the total), and the further development of our analytics
and decision tools.

With a strong balance sheetand aninherently cash-generative
business, the strategic priority order for using our cashis
unchanged. First, toinvestin the organic development of our
businesses to drive underlying revenue growth; second to
supportourorganic growth strategy with targeted acquisitions;
third to grow dividends predictably, broadlyin line with EPS
growth; fourth to maintain our leverage ina comfortable range;
and finally use any remaining cash to buy back shares. As part
of this we bought back shares for £700min 2017, and announced
£700m in buy backs for 2018.

We continued to focus our acquisitions on select, targeted data
setsandanalytics, and assets in high growth markets that
supportourorganic growth strategies. We completed eight
acquisitions of small content, data analytics and exhibition
assets foratotal consideration of £123m, and disposed of 17
assets for atotal of £87m. Since the year end, we have entered
intoanagreementtoacquire ThreatMetrix, a leaderin the global
risk-based authentication sector, for £580m.

ADJUSTED EARNINGS PER SHARE GROWTH
Constant currency

Financial performance

Our positive financial performance continued throughout 2017,
with underlying revenue and operating profit growth across
allfour business areas. Underlying revenue growth was 4%.
Underlying operating profit growth was 6%, and adjusted
earnings per share grew 7% at constant currencies.

Key business trends in our Scientific, Technical & Medical
business remained positive, with underlying profit growth
slightly exceeding underlying revenue growth.

Underlying revenue growth remained strong across all key
segments at Risk & Business Analytics. Underlying profit
growth broadly matched underlying revenue growth.

Underlying revenue growth in Legal was in line with the prior
year with continued efficiency gains driving strong underlying
operating profit growth.

Exhibitions achieved strong underlying revenue growth, slightly
ahead of the prioryear, with underlying operating profit growth
reflecting cycling-out effects.

RETURN ON INVESTED CAPITAL

+10%
0 0
T% +8% +8% 7%

2013 2014 2015 2016 2017

12.1% 12.8% 12.7% 13.0% 13.1%

2013 2014 2015 2016 2017

MBIAIBAQ
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Corporate responsibility

In 2017, we undertook a corporate responsibility stakeholder
survey tounderstand the issues employees, customers,
investors, suppliers, peersand others feelare importantto RELX
Group. Theyidentified data privacy and security and having the
right people as having the biggest potentialimpact on RELX Group,
and RELX Group’s unique contributions - universal, sustainable
accesstoinformation, advance of science and health, protection
of society, promotion of the rule of law and access to justice and
fostering communities - as our biggestimpact on society.

We advanced corresponding objectivesin the year, including
expanding fraud prevention and progressing cyber security
awareness. We continued to tighten technology controls, and
provided training, including through employee simulations,
toreduce susceptibility to phishing attacks.

REVENUE BY FORMAT

REVENUE BY GEOGRAPHICAL MARKET

Outlook

Key businesstrendsinthe early part of 2018 are consistent with
2017,and we are confident that, by continuing to execute on our
strategy, we will deliver anotheryear of underlying growth in
revenue and in adjusted operating profit, together with growth
inadjusted earnings per share ona constant currency basis.

Erik Engstrom
Chief Executive Officer

REVENUE BY TYPE

£7,355m £7,355m

22%

1%

B Electronic
[ Face-to-face
[ Print/Other

15%

23%

£7,355m
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RELX Group business overview

RELX Group is a global provider
of information and analytics

for professional and business
customers across industries.

The Group serves customersin more than 180 countries
and has officesin about 40 countries. It employs about
30,000 people of whom almost half are in North America.

RELX Group financial summary

REPORTED FIGURES £ € Change at
2017 2016 2017 2016 constant Change
Fortheyearended31December £m £m Change €m €m Change  currencies  underlying
Revenue 7,355 6,895 +7% 8,385 8,412 0% +2% +4%
Operating profit 1,905 1,708 +12% 2,172 2,084 +4%
Profit before tax 1,734 1,473 +18% 1,977 1,797 +10%
Net profitattributable to RELXPLC
and RELX NV shareholders 1,659 1,161 1,891 1,416
Net margin 22.6% 16.8% 22.6% 16.8%
Net borrowings 4,732 4,700 5,300 5,499
ADJUSTED FIGURES £ € Change at
2017 2016 2017 2016 constant Change
Fortheyearended31December £m £m Change €m €m Change  currencies  underlying
Operating profit 2,284 2,114 +8% 2,604 2,579 +1% +3% +6%
Operating margin 31.1% 30.7% 31.1% 30.7%
Profit before tax 2,118 1,934 +10% 2,415 2,359 +2% +4%
Net profitattributable to RELXPLC
and RELX NV shareholders 1,635 1,488 +10% 1,864 1,815 +3% +5%
Net margin 22.2% 21.6% 22.2% 21.6%
Cash flow 2,192 2,016 +9% 2,500 2,460 +2% +3%
Cash flow conversion 96% 95% 96% 95%
Returnoninvested capital 13.1% 13.0% 13.1% 13.0%
RELXPLC and RELXNV
Changeat
RELXPLC RELXNV constant
2017 2016 Change 2017 2016 Change  currencies
Adjusted earnings per share 81.0p 72.2p +12% €0.923 €0.880 +5% +7%
Reported earnings pershare 82.2p 56.3p +46% €0.936 €0.687 +36%
Ordinary dividend pershare 39.4p 35.95p +10% €0.448 €0.423 +6%

RELXPLCand RELXNVare separate, publicly held entities. RELXPLC's ordinary shares are listed in Londonand New York,and RELXNV's ordinary shares are listed in
Amsterdam and New York. In New York the listings are in the form of American Depositary Shares (ADSs), evidenced by American Depositary Receipts (ADRs). RELX PLC and
RELXNVjointlyown RELX Group plc.One RELXPLC ordinary share confersan equivalenteconomicinterestto one RELXNVordinary share. RELXPLC, RELXNV, RELX Group

plcandits subsidiaries, jointventures and associates are together known as “the Group”.
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Market segments*
Segment position
Scientific, Technical & Medicalis a globalinformation analytics business that helps institutions Global #1
and professionals advance healthcare, open science, and improve performance for the benefit
of humanity.
Risk & Business Analytics provides customers with solutions and decision tools that combine Key verticals #1

publicand industry specific content with advanced technology and analytics to assist themin
evaluating and predicting risk and enhancing operational efficiency.

Legalisaleading global provider of legal, regulatory and business information and analytics that US #2
helps customersincrease productivity, improve decision-making and outcomes and advance the Outside US #1 or 2
rule of law around the world.

Exhibitions is the world’s leading events business, enhancing the power of face-to-face through data Global #1
and digitaltools at over 500 events, in 30 countries, attracting more than 7m participants.

*For additionalinformation regarding revenue from our business activities and geographical markets, see market segments section starting on page 13.

Financial summary by market segment

Revenue Adjusted operating profit

2017 Change 2017 Change

£m underlying* £m underlying*

Scientific, Technical & Medical 2,478 +2% 913 +3%

Risk & Business Analytics 2,076 +8% 759 +8%

Legal 1,692 +2% 332 +1%

Exhibitions 1,109 +6% 285 +2%
Unallocated items (5)

7,355 +4% 2,284 +6%

*RELXGroup usesadjustedand underlying figures as additional performance measures. These measures are used by management, alongside the comparable GAAP measures,
inevaluating the business performance. Adjusted figures primarily exclude the amortisation of acquired intangible assets and otheritems related to acquisitions and disposals,
andthe associated deferred tax movements. In 2017, we have excluded the exceptional tax credit arisingas aresult of the US Tax Cuts and Jobs Act. Reconciliations between the
reportedand adjustedfiguresare setouton page 186. Underlying growth rates are calculated at constant currencies, and exclude the results of allacquisitions and disposals
madeinboththeyearand prioryearand of assets held for sale. Underlying revenue growth rates also exclude exhibition cycling. Constant currency growth ratesare based on
2016 fullyearaverage and hedge exchangerates.

REVENUE ADJUSTED OPERATING PROFIT
£7,355m £2,284m
15% 12%
I Scientific, I Scientific,
Technical Technical
& Medical 15% & Medical
B Risk & W Risk &
Business Business
Analytics Analytics
23% B Legal Hl Legal
Bl Exhibitions Hl Exhibitions
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Harnessing big data
across RELX Group:
HPCC Systems

HPCC Systems (High Performance Computing Cluster) is RELX Group’s
open source big data technology. It is used to analyse structured and
unstructured data, giving our customers the information and insight they
need. Each of our market segments benefits from this technology, allowing
our customers around the world to make better decisions, get better
results and be more productive.

State of Florida fights
public benefits fraud
with LexisNexis Risk
Solutions

Florida’'s Department of Children and Families provides a

range of programmes, including food assistance to low-income
families. With nearly 93% of all Florida public assistance benefit
applications received electronically, thereisarisk for abuse

by identity fraudsters. Additionally, the state has the largest
percentage of elderly residents in the US, who are attractive “
targets for fraud schemes. The populationis also highly

transientand many do not have conventional bank accounts,
rendering mostidentity management solutions useless.

These Identity Management solutions

To combat this threat, in 2013 the state of Florida selected help us to achieve our goal, which is to
LexisNexis Risk Solutions to supportits Customer Authentication safeguard the integrity of public assistance
Program to verify food assistance applicants’ identities. When
aperson goesonline to Florida’s integrated eligibility system
to apply for benefits, the state is able to quickly authenticate the
applicant’s identity via Identity Management solutions powered Andrew McClenahan
by HPCC Systems. The applicantanswers a series of questions
thatonly the owner of the identity would be able to answer.

benefits to ensure benefits only go to
Floridians who truly are in need.

Director, Office of Public Benefits Integrity
Florida Department of Children and Families
By the end of 2013, just five months after state-wide

implementation of the Customer Authentication Program,

the state estimated it had saved nearly $15m by preventing

fraud and improving efficiencies, and received the Governor’s \J/\L\J/
Savings Award. Since then, the total cost avoidance associated

with the programme is over $840m in taxpayer benefits not @

issued due to suspected fraud. Thatamountstoa 194to 1 return
oninvestment.

$840m+

more than $840m saved

by the state of Florida since
2013 using LexisNexis Risk
Solutions technology
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Cook County, Illinois
and LexisNexis Risk
Solutions

Residential property tax fraud, also called homestead exemption
fraud, occursin US counties when taxpayers wrongly receive
residential property tax breaks on homes they don't livein as
their primary residence or receive tax exemptions for which they
otherwise don't qualify, such as those for senior citizens.

This type of fraud costs US counties millions each year, which has

asignificantimpact on funding for public services, including schools,

public safety and other local needs. In the state of Illinois, the Cook
CountyAssessor’s Office needed an investigative tool to help detect
these fraudulent taxfilings, soitimplemented the LexisNexis
Homestead Exemption Fraud Detection Solution. Powered by
HPCC Systems, the solution examines the homestead exemption
filings of the county’s more than 1.4m residential properties to
ensure compliance with State of Illinois tax laws. Over the last
fouryears LexisNexis Risk Solutions has helped the county bill
more than $47 million in lost revenue.

$'6

With recovered revenue returned directly
to school districts and other community
taxing bodies, the program has already
had a huge impact. And, this is not a
one-time recovery of revenue; the savings
continue because erroneous exemptions
remain eliminated from future years.

The solution is helping us recover millions
of dollars for taxpayers at a time when
Cook County schools and municipalities
struggle with budget issues. We respect
honest taxpayers while continuing our
commitment to aggressively detect and
pursue tax cheats.

JosephBerrios
Cook County Assessor

$47m+

more than $47m billed by
Cook County using LexisNexis
Risk Solutions technology
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Scientific, Technical & Medical

We help researchers make new discoveries, collaborate with
their colleagues and give them the knowledge they need to
find funding. We help governments and universities evaluate
andimprove their research strategies. We help doctors save
lives, providing insight for physicians to find the right clinical
answers and we supportnurses and other healthcare
professionals throughout their careers. Our goalis to expand
the boundaries of knowledge for the benefit of humanity.

We enhance the quality of research output by organising
the review, editing and dissemination of 17% of the world’s
scientificarticles

ScienceDirect, the world’s largest database of
peer-reviewed primary scientificand medical research,
has 14m monthly unique visitors

Scopusisthe leading abstract and citation database
of research literature, with over 70m publications and
1.4bn citation records from 5,000 publishers

SciValoffersinsights into the research performance
of over 9,000 research institutions

ClinicalKey, the flagship clinical reference platform,
isaccessed by more than 4,400 institutions

Elsevierjournals have at some point featured articles
by 173 of 174 science and economics Nobel prize winners
since 2000

Scientific, Technical & Medicalis a globalinformation analytics
business that helpsinstitutions and professionals advance
healthcare, open science, and improve performance for the
benefit of humanity.

Elsevieris headquartered in Amsterdam, with further principal
operationsin Boston, New York, Philadelphia, St. Louis and
Berkeleyin North America, London, Oxford, Frankfurt, Munich,
Madrid and Parisin Europe, Bejing, Chennai, Delhi, Singapore and
Tokyo in Asia Pacificand Rio de Janeiroin South America. It has
7,500 employees and serves customersin over 180 countries.

Revenues forthe yearended 31 December 2017 were £2,478m,
compared with £2,320min 2016 and £2,070m in 2015. In 2017,
42% of revenue by geographical market was derived from North
America, 25% from Europe and the remaining 33% from the
rest of the world. Subscription sales generated 72% of revenue,
transactional sales 26% and advertising 2%.

Elsevier servesthe needs of scientific, technicaland medical
markets by organising the review, editing and disseminating of
primary research, reference and professional education content,
aswellas by providing arange of database and decision tools.

Elsevier's customers are scientists, academic institutions,
research leaders and administrators, medicalresearchers,
doctors, nurses, allied health professionals and students, as well
as hospitals, research institutions, healthinsurers, managed
healthcare organisations, research-intensive corporations and
governments. All these customers rely on Elsevier to provide
high-quality content and critical information for making scientific
and medical decisions and create innovative tools to help focus
research strategies, increase research effectiveness, improve
medical outcomes, and enhance the efficiency of healthcare and
healthcare education.

Inthe primary research market during 2017, 1.6m research
paperswere submitted to Elsevier. More than 20,000 editors
managed the peer review and selection of these papers, resulting
inthe publication of over 430,000 articlesin about 2,500 journals,
many of which are the foremost publications in their fieldand a
primary point of reference for new research. This content was
accessed by about 14m unique visitors on average per month, with
over 900m full-text article downloads last year. In 2017, Elsevier
launched 26 new subscription and open access journals, including
Materials Today Physics, Joule from Cell Press and The Lancet
Planetary Health.

ScienceDirect, the world’s largest database of peer-reviewed
primary scientificand medical research, hosts over 15m pieces
of contentand 38,000 e-books. Flagship journalsinclude Cell
and The Lancet family of titles.

Elsevierisalsoagloballeaderin scientific, technical and
medical reference markets, providing authoritative and current
professionalreference content. Flagship titles include works
such as Gray's Anatomy, Nelson's Pediatrics and Netter’s Atlas
of Human Anatomy.
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Foracademicand corporate researchers, significant products
include Scopus, Reaxys and Knovel. Scopus, the leading abstract
and citation database of peer-reviewed literature with over 70m
publications from more than 22,500 active journals and 5,000
international publishers, allows researchers to track, analyse
andvisualise the world’s research output. Reaxys enables the
shortest path to chemistry research answers, supporting the
early stages of drug developmentin the pharmaceuticalindustry,
exploratory chemistry researchinacademia, and product
developmentinindustries such as chemicals and oil & gas.
Knovelisadecision supporttool for engineers that helps them

to selectthe right materials, a mission-critical use casein
productdevelopmentacross chemicals, oil & gas and other
engineering-focused industries.

Elsevierservesacademicand governmentresearchadministrators
through its Research Intelligence suite of products. Leveraging
bibliometric data from Scopus and other data types such as patent
citations and usage data, SciValis a decision tool that helps
institutions to establish, execute and evaluate research strategies.
Pureisanenterprise research management solution that
aggregatesanorganisation’s research information from
numerous internaland external sources into a single platform
and ensures the data that drives strategic decisionsis trusted,
comprehensive and accessible in one place. Our Analytical
Servicesteam provides accurate, unbiased analysis on research
performance by combining high-quality data sources with
technicaland research metrics expertise. Expert LookUpisan
online tool that helps funding bodies find the best peerreviewers
forevaluating grantapplications.

Scopus

Elsevier's flagship clinical reference platform, ClinicalKey,
provides physicians, nurses, and pharmacists with access to
leading Elsevierand third-party reference and evidence-based
medical contentin asingle, fully integrated site. ClinicalKey
isgrowing well, andis currently accessed by more than

4,400 institutions.

In medical education, Elsevier serves students of medicine,
nursing and allied health professionsinanumber of formats
including electronic books and electronic solutions. For example,
Sherpath, an adaptive teaching and learning solution for nursing
and health education, provided highly focused, personalised

and adaptive learning paths for over 33,000 users at over 400
institutionsin 2017.

Forhealthcare professionals, Elsevier develops products to
deliver patient-specific solutions at the point of care toimprove
patient outcomes. Its clinical solutionsinclude Interactive Patient
Education, which provides patient education and discharge
information, and Care Planning, which provides a data-driven
framework to supportnursesin undertaking procedures.

Arezzo, an active clinical decision support engine integrated
with clinical care systems, matches evidence-based guidelines
with patient and disease information and dynamically evaluates
best-practice treatment options.

Scival

FLSEVIER

The leading abstractand citation database of
peer-reviewed literature features tools to track,
analyse andvisualise scholarly research

Ready-to-use tools to analyse the world of
research, and establish, execute and evaluate
the best strategies for research organisations

ScienceDirect

Cell

THE LANCET

Theworld’s largest database of scientific
and medical research articles

Reaxys®

Premier life sciences journal with the
highestimpact factorin biochemistry
and molecular biology

ClinicalKey’

One of theworld’s leading medicaljournals
since 1823

&N

MENDELEY

This chemical compound and reaction
synthesis database enables the shortest path
tochemistryresearch answers, supporting
drugdiscovery, chemical R&D and education

Combines leading reference and evidence-
based medical contentintoits fully integrated
clinicalinsightengine specialised for doctors,
nurses, or pharmacists

Aninnovative research managementand
social collaboration platform
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In every market, Elsevieris applying advanced machine learning
(ML) and natural language processing (NLP) techniques to help
researchers, engineersand clinicians perform their work better.
Forexample, inresearch, NLP and ML techniques classify scientific
contentand organise it thematically, enabling the users to get
fasteraccesstorelevantresults and related scientific topics.

In parallel, advanced information extraction and NLP techniques
are applied to extractthe mostimportant information for scientific
conceptsin concise summaries. Elsevier also applies advanced
ML techniques that detect trending topics per domain, helping
researchersdecide where to focus their research. Coupled with
the automated profiling and extraction of funding body information
from scientific articles, this process supports the whole
researcher journey; from planning, to execution and funding.

In health, Elsevier uses machine learning to enable clinicians
tosearch for bothimages and text, improving the success rates
intheretrieval of the right content with sufficient associated
sources. This helps health professionals perform their work
better, get the latest high quality information on best practices
and state-of-the-art care, and save more human lives.

Market opportunities

Scientific, technicaland medicalinformation markets have good
long-term growth characteristics. The importance of research
and development to economic performance and competitive
positioning is well understood by governments, academic
institutions and corporations. Thisis reflected in the long-term
growthinresearch and development spendingand in the number
of researchers worldwide. Growth in health markets is driven
by ageing populationsin developed markets, rising prosperity
in developing markets and the increasing focus onimproving
medical outcomes and efficiency. Given that a significant
proportion of scientific research and healthcareis funded
directly orindirectly by governments, spendingis influenced

by governmental budgetary considerations. The commitment
toresearchand health provision does, however, remain high,
evenin more difficult budgetary environments.

REVENUE BY FORMAT

REVENUE BY GEOGRAPHICAL MARKET

Strategic priorities

Elsevier's strategic goalis to lead the wayin providing information
solutions that advance science, technology and health. To achieve
this, Elsevier creates solutions that reflect deep insightinto the
way its users work and the outcomes they are seeking to achieve;
strives for excellence in content, service and execution; constantly
adapts and revitalises its products, business models and
technology; and leveragesits institutional skills, assets and
resources to promote innovation and efficiency.

Elsevier's strategic priorities are to: continue toincrease
contentvolume and quality; expand content coverage, building
outintegrated solutions and decision tools combining Elsevier,
third-party and customer data; increase content utility, using
“Smart Content” to enable new e-solutions; combine content
with analytics and technology, focused on measurably improving
productivity and outcomes for customers; and continue to drive
operational efficiency and effectiveness.

Inthe primary research market, Elsevier aims to grow volume
through newjournallaunches, expansion of author-pays journals
and growth from emerging markets; enhance quality by building
onour premium brands; and add value to core platforms by
implementing new capabilities such asadvanced recommendations
on ScienceDirectand social collaboration through Mendeley.

Inclinical reference markets, priorities are to expand content
coverage and ensure consistentand seamless linking of content
assetsacross products.

Business model, distribution channels and competition
Science and medical researchis principally disseminated on
apaid subscription basis to the research facilities of academic
institutions, governments and corporationsand, in the case

of medicaland healthcare journals, toindividual practitioners
and medical society members. For the past decade content
has been provided free or atvery low costin over 100 countries
and territoriesin the developing world through Research4Life,
a United Nations partnership initiative. Foranumber of journals,
advertising and promotionalincome represents asmall
proportion of revenues, predominantly from pharmaceutical
companiesin healthcare titles.

REVENUE BY TYPE

£2,478m £2,478m
Print 19%
Rest of
world
33%

Electronic
81%
Europe 25%

Advertising

£2,478m
2%

Transactional

26%
North

America
42%

Subscription
72%
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Overthe past 15years, alternative models for the dissemination of
research have emerged. While it is expected that paid subscription
willremain the primary distribution model, Elsevier has long
investedin alternative business models to address the needs of
customersandresearchers. Openaccess journals are one such
example.In 2017, we published over 27,000 open access articles,
adouble-digit growth on the previous year, making us the second
largest openaccess publisherinthe world. Over 1,890 of
Elsevier's journals now offer the option of funding publication
anddistribution viaa sponsored article fee.

Next to subscription and open access journals, Elsevier has also
invested in other models to address the needs of the research
community. SSRN for example is an open-accessonline preprint
community where researchers post early-stage research, prior
to publicationinacademicjournals. Mendeley data enables
researchersto make their research data publicly available by
providing an open research data repository. Bepress, which
joined Elsevierin 2017, helps academic libraries showcase and

2017 financial performance

share theirinstitutions’ researchviainstitutional repositories
for greatestimpact.

Electronic products, such as ScienceDirect, Scopus and ClinicalKey,
are generally sold direct to customers through a dedicated sales
force that has offices around the world. Subscription agents
sometimes facilitate the sales and administrative process for
remaining print sales. Reference and educational content is sold
directly toinstitutions and individuals and accessed on Elsevier
platforms. Sometimesitis still sold in printed book form through
retailers, wholesalers ordirectly toend users.

Competition within science and medical reference content
isgenerally on a title-by-title and product-by-product basis.
Competitionin research and reference products is typically

with learned societies and professionalinformation providers,
such as Springer Nature, Clarivate Analytics and Wolters Kluwer.
Decision tools face similar competition, as well as from software
companies and internal solutions developed by customers.

2017 2016 Underlying Acquisitions/ Currency Total

£m £m growth disposals effects growth

Revenue 2,478 2,320 +2% 0% +5% +7%
Adjusted operating profit 9213 853 +3% -1% +5% +7%

Key business trends remained positive in 2017, with underlying
profit growth slightly exceeding underlying revenue growth.

Underlying revenue growth was +2%. The difference between the
reportedand underlying growth rates primarily reflects the impact
of exchange rate movements and portfolio changes, including the
acquisitions of Plum Analytics and bepress, and the disposal of
certain international pharma promotion assets.

Underlying adjusted operating profit growth of +3% was slightly
ahead of revenue growth, with an underlying margin improvement
offset by portfolio effects.

Electronic revenues saw continued good growth, partially offset
by further printdeclines. In primary research we continued to
enhance customervalue by providing broader content sets across
ourresearch offering, increasing the sophistication of our

REVENUE

analytics, and evolving our technology platforms. Databases &
tools continued to drive growth across market segments through
the launch of enhanced functionality and content development.

Print books, which now represent around 10% of divisional
revenues, saw continued sales declines with return rates at
historical levels, following higher than average returnrates in the
prioryear. The decline in print pharma promotion revenues, which
represent less than 5% of the divisional total, returned to historical
rates of decline after a stronger prioryear.

2018 outlook

Our customerenvironment remains largely unchanged. Overall
we expectanotheryear of modest underlying revenue growth, with
underlying operating profit growth continuing to exceed underlying
revenue growth.

ADJUSTED OPERATING PROFIT

£m

Underlying growth +2%
2‘320 2,478

2016 2017

£m
Underlying growth +3%
853 213

2016 2017
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SciVal is a very powerful tool for us as it allows
individual researchers and academic leaders to
evaluate their place in the world and put their
performance story in their own hands. As we
continue to grow as a university, the ability to

track our progress using SciVal presents exciting | \
opportunities for our institution. - | \

L__‘
NS

Keith Webster
Dean of University Libraries, L‘. l-“" “
Carnegie Mellon University i e

author profiles from
Carnegie Mellon
University are listed
in SciVal
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nlace In the wo

e Mellon

University evaluate its

"ld

Founded in 1900, Carnegie Mellon University (CMU]) is a global research
university known for its world-class, interdisciplinary programmes in
arts, business, computing, engineering, humanities, policy and science.
CMU is based in Pittsburgh, Pennsylvania and has over 13,900 students
representing 109 countries with 1,391 faculty from 42 countries.

Given the focus of interdisciplinary research at CMU, it is
particularly critical for the university to provide individual faculty
members with an understanding of the impact of their research
and how it compares with competitorinstitutions. SciVal has
proved to be a powerful tool to demonstrate not just output but
alsointerdisciplinary impact. By using SciVal's sophisticated
analytics, CMU is able to showcase and curate university research
outputaswellas help researchers toidentify the best places

to publish their research, manage theirinformation products,
find potential funding sources and collaborate with external
academics. The university’s strategic direction will focus on

the evolving scholarly record and a recognition thata scholar’s
contribution to their field is not solely in the form of traditional
research output. CMU hopes to work with SciVal to understand
this transition and how researchers might best showcase their
workin the global scholarly record.

Keith Webster of Carnegie Mellon University

About SciVal

SciVal offers quick, easy access to the
research performance of over 9,000
research institutions. This easy-to-use
research and analysis solution has
unparalleled power and flexibility. It
enables customerstovisualise research
performance, benchmark relative to
peers, develop collaborative partnerships
and analyse research trends. Using
advanced data analytics super-computer
technology, SciVal allows users to instantly
process an enormous amount of
information to generate powerful data
visualisationsin seconds. SciValis
powered by the Scopus database which
coversrecords fromover 22,500 active
journals of 5,000 publishers worldwide and
isthe data source of choice forworld class
ranking and assessment exercises. RELX
Group’'s HPCC Systems big data technology
provides the SciValanalysis “engine’.
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Risk & Business Analytics

We use the power of data and advanced analytics to help our
customers make better, timelier decisions. Ourinnovative
solutions enable organisations to manage risks like identity
theft, fraud, money laundering and terrorism, and prevent
financial crimes, and insurance and government benefit
scams. We help those without traditional credit histories
obtain access to funds, assistagencies to find uncollected
revenue, and research ways to improve business outcomes for
healthcare companies. We also work with law enforcement to
solve crimes. We advise farmers with their efforts in precision
agriculture and work with airlines toimprove their operations
and services for passengers. We help customersin the
petrochemicals, energy and fertiliser industries to make
bettertradingand planning decisions. By bringing clarity
toinformation, we ultimately help make communities safer,
insurance rates more accurate, commerce more transparent,
business decisions easier and processes more efficient.

= LexisNexis Risk Solutions maintains over 78bn records

= Since 2013, the Florida Department of Children and Families
has used ouridentity management solutions to prevent food
stamp fraud, achieving a total cost avoidance of over $840m
in taxpayer benefits notissued due to suspected fraud

= LexisNexis Risk Solutions performs over 100m identity
verification checks and over 100bn customer and
transaction screening requests annually, supporting
industries such as banking, fintech and e-commerce

= LexisNexis Risk Solutions works with more than 75%
of Fortune 500 companies, eight out of 10 of the world’s
top banks and 95 out of the top 100 personal lines
insurance companies

= Accuity has information on 22,000 banks and 95 of
theworld’s largest 100 banks use its data

= FlightGlobalanalyses 2.5bn travel segments everyyear
worth about $385bn and tracks 100,000 commercial
flights daily, or more than 35m ayear

Business overview

Risk & Business Analytics provides customers with solutions and
decision tools that combine publicand industry specific content
with advanced technology and analytics to assist them in evaluating
and predicting risk and enhancing operational efficiency.

Risk & Business Analytics is headquartered in Alpharetta
(Georgial, with further principal operations in Florida, Illinois
and Ohioin North America, Londonand Amsterdam in Europe
and Shanghaiin Asia Pacific. It has 8,100 employees and serves
customersin more than 170 countries.

Revenues fortheyearended 31 December 2017 were £2,076m,
compared with £1,906min 2016 and £1,601m in 2015. In 2017,
80% of revenue came from North America, 15% from Europe
and the remaining 5% from the rest of the world. Subscription
sales generated 35% of revenues, transactional sales 63%
and advertising 2%.

The businessis organised around market-facing industry/sector
groups: Insurance Solutions, Business Services, Government
Solutions, Health Care Solutions, aswell as Data Services
(including banking, energy and chemicals, aviation, agriculture
and human resources).

Insurance Solutions, the largest segment, provides comprehensive
data, analytics and decision tools for personal, commercialand
lifeinsurance carriersinthe UStoimprove critical aspects of their
business. Information solutions, including the most comprehensive
US personal loss history database, C.L.U.E., helpinsurersassess
risks and provide importantinputs to pricingand underwriting
insurance policies. Additional key products include LexisNexis

Data Prefill, which provides information on customers directly into
theinsurance workstream and LexisNexis Current Carrier, which
identifiesinsurance coverage details and any lapsesin coverage.

Inthe US, we are focused on delivering innovative decision tools
through a single point of access withinaninsurer’sinfrastructure.
LexisNexis Active Insights, our solution for active risk management,
connects proprietary linking algorithms with vast amounts of
datato proactively informinsurers of key events impacting their
policyholders. We are advancing our strategy to drive more
consistency and efficiencyin claims through our solution suite,
Claims Compass. Our Risk Classifier solution, which uses public
and motorvehicle records and predictive modelling, is used

by more than 20% of the top 50 life insurers to better understand
risk and improve underwriting efficiency.

We continue to make progress outside the US. In the UK,
contributory solutions including No Claims Discount module,
which automates verification of claims history, and new offering
Policy Insights, a predictor of motor claims loss, are being
integrated into the LexisNexis Informed Quotes platform to
deliver datainreal-time into the quoting process of aninsurance
transaction. In China, the Genilex joint venture is delivering key
vehicle datatoautoinsurersandis looking toadd more analytics
solutions. InIndia, our Intelligence Exchange contributory
platformand Risk Insights solution are used by life insurers to
predict, betterassess and manage risk within the underwriting
and claims management processes.
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Business Services provides organisations with state-of-the-art
risk management, including: financial crime compliance, fraud
and identity management, consumer and business credit risk
assessment, and collections. These include solutions for
watch-list screening, due diligence, identify verification and
authentication, credit scoring and skip tracing. Our big data
technology (HPCC Systems), vast alternative data repository
and analytic linking capabilities provide valuable information
and analytics thatare used to help solve complex globalissues,
like financialinclusion and financial transparency.

Theinvestments we made in business risk over the past fewyears
continue to bear fruit with the launch of additional productsin
2017.We brought to market the latest version of our Business
Instant ID offering and broadened data coverage in our business
risk suite. The launch of our Risk Defense Platform has proven
successfulwith the delivery of holistic fraud prevention solutions
for large enterprise customers. Global expansion continues to
accelerate Business Services growth with increasing adoption

of our products by leading and innovative global companies.

InJanuary 2018, RELX Group announced it had agreed to acquire
ThreatMetrix, aleaderin the global risk-based authentication
sector, headquartered in San Jose, California. ThreatMetrix's
technologyanalyses connections among devices, locations,
anonymised identity information and threatintelligence, and
combines this data with behaviouralanalytics to identify high-risk
digital behaviourandtransactionsinreal time.

ﬁ' LexisNexis®

RISK SOLUTIONS

FlightGlobal

Government Solutions providesidentity intelligence to US
federal, state and local law enforcement and government
agencies to help solve criminal cases and identify fraud, waste
and abusein government programmes. In addition to providing
identity theft solutions for taxagencies to help ensure legitimate
taxpayersreceive tax refunds, the group began providing business
intelligence solutions allowing government agencies to find
additional fraud and property tax.

The Public Safety Data Exchange ([PSDEX] is a contributory
database of more than 1,300 law enforcement agencies. The
PSDEX compiles data from law enforcement agencies across
the USto help them solve crimes, identify threats and anticipate
future threats. Itisalso linked to public records data and served
backtoagenciestoaccelerate criminalinvestigations through
key solutions, such as Accurint Virtual Crime Center.

Inthe healthcare sector, Government Solutions gained momentum
in educating government healthcare agencies on the value of using
robust, accurate dataand analytics to identify relationships and
patternsamong healthcare providers, pharmacies and patients

to pinpointillegal distribution of opioids. Government Solutions
continued to grow its contributory database footprintin the health,
human services; taxand revenue; and public safety markets.

Health Care Solutions utilises socioeconomic, consumer,
provider and medical claims data to deliver leading identity,
fraud, compliance and health risk analytics solutions across key
stages of healthcare to enable intelligent decision-making for
payers, providers, life sciences organisations and pharmacies.
In 2017, we enhanced our LexisNexis Socioeconomic Health
Score and Attributes to patients” health risk based on their
socioeconomic profile.

*ICIS

LexisNexis Active Insights

Dataandanalytics for the global commercial
aviationandtravelindustry

VerifyHCP

Global provider of news, price benchmarks,
dataandresearchtothe energy, chemical
and fertiliserindustries

World Compliance

Anactiverisk management solution that
providestimelyalerts of recent changes
occurringinthe household to helpinsurers
enhance customer relationships with
betterservice

Claims Compass

The VerifyHCP solution provides a proven
approach to help payers keep their provider
directories currentandimprove compliance
with US state and federal regulations

¢

The most comprehensive collection of watch
listsintheindustry, including sanctions,
enforcements, politically exposed persons
(PEPs), state-owned enterprises (SOE],
adverse mediaand special collections

Risk Defense Platform

Dataanalytics suite with LexisNexis Claims
Datafill, LexisNexis Police Records through
Claims Compass, LexisNexis Claims Medical
Discoveryand LexisNexis Claims Analyzer
thatimproves the claims process from first
notice of loss, triage, investigation and
resolution through recovery

Innovative solutions for payments and compliance
professionals, from comprehensive dataand
software to manage risk and compliance, to
flexible tools to optimise payments pathways

Accurint® Virtual Crime Center

Policing platform used for analytics, crime
analysis andinvestigations linking public
records to national law enforcement data
foracomplete picture acrossjurisdictions

Aninnovative fraud prevention and identity
management platform that seamlessly
deliversthe broadest of solutionsincluding the
latestin machine learning that adapts to ever-
changing fraud schemes, simplifying efforts
todetectand prevent risks associated with the
merging of digitaland physicalidentities
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Data Services include: Accuity, a provider of services and
solutions to the banking and corporate sectors focused on
payment efficiency, Know Your Customer (KYC), Anti-Money
Laundering (AML] and compliance; ICIS, an information and
data servicein chemicals, energy andfertilisers; XpertHR, an
online service providing regulatory guidance, best practices and
tools forhumanresource professionals; Nextens, a provider of
tools and services for tax professionals; FlightGlobal, a leading
provider of data and analytics for the global commercial aviation
and travelindustry; Proagrica, a provider of software, connectivity
solutions, data, analytics and media streams for the global
agriculture sector; and EG, which delivers a mix of high-quality
data, decision tools and high-value news and information to the
UK’s commercialreal estate market.

In 2017, we continued to reshape our portfolio, exiting areas not
core toour strategy. Anumber of media titlesand brands were
divested, including New Scientist, Personnel Today, Community
Careand Landleven.

Market opportunities

We operate in markets with strong long-term growth in demand
for high-quality advanced analytics based on industry information
andinsight, including: insurance underwriting transactions;
insurance acquisition, retention and claims handling; healthcare,
taxand public benefits fraud; financial crime compliance; business
risk; fraud and identity solutions; due diligence requirements
surrounding customer enrolment; security and privacy
considerations; and data and advanced analytics for the banking,
energyand chemicals, humanresources and aviation sectors.

Inthe insurance segment, growth is supported by increasing
transactionalactivity in the auto, property and life insurance
markets and the increasing adoption by insurance carriers

of more sophisticated dataand analytics in the prospecting,
underwriting and claims evaluation processes, to assess
underwriting risk, increase competitiveness and improve
operating cost efficiency. Transactional activity is driven by
growthininsurance quoting and policy switching, as consumers
seek better policy terms.

REVENUE BY FORMAT

REVENUE BY GEOGRAPHICAL MARKET

This activity is stimulated by competitionamonginsurance
companies, high levels of carrier advertisingand rising levels
of internet quoting and policy binding. As aresult, we continue
to expand our services to make it easier for the consumerto
transactwithaninsurerthroughoutthe insurance process.

Anumber of factors support growth in banking and financial
services markets, including cross-border payments and

trade finance levels. Escalating anti-money laundering fines,
high-profile anti-bribery and corruption cases, growth through
consumerand business credit expansion, increased fraud losses
and heightened regulatory scrutinyimpact growth opportunities
foruswith all entities, including financialinstitutions, e-commerce,
retail, communications, mobile and media companies. Therise
infintech and alternative lending also positively influences our
trajectory. In collections, demand is driven mainly by the elevated
levels of consumer debtand the prospect of recovering that debt.

Growth in government marketsis driven by the increasing
demand for our contributory solutions to combat criminal activity,
fraud and tax evasion. The level and timing of demand in this
marketisinfluenced by government funding and revenue
considerations. In healthcare, there are numerous growth drivers
foridentity and fraud analytic solutions including the expansion

of compliance requirements driven by new regulations.

Growthin the global energy and chemicals marketsis driven
byincreasingtrade and demand for more sophisticated
information solutions. Aviation information markets are being
drivenbyincreasesinair trafficandinthe number of aircraft
transactions. Growth inagriculture marketsis beingdriven
by adoption of technology and data solutions plus increasing
supply chain connectivity.

REVENUE BY TYPE

£2,076m

Face-to-face
2%

Print 3% £2.076m 59%

Europe
15%

Electronic
95%

Rest of world

Advertising
2%

£2,076m

Subscription
35%

North
America

80%

Transactional
63%
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Strategic priorities

Our strategicgoalisto help businesses and governments achieve
better outcomes with information and decision supportin their
individual markets through better understanding of the risks
and opportunities associated with individuals, other businesses,
transactions and regulations. By providing the highest quality
industry dataand decision tools, we assist customersin
understanding their markets and managing risks efficiently

and cost effectively. To achieve this, we are focused on:
delivering innovative new products; expanding the range of risk
management solutions across adjacent markets; addressing
international opportunitiesin selected markets to meet

local needs; further growing our data services businesses;

and continuing to strengthen our content, technology and
analytical capabilities.

2017 financial performance

Business model, distribution channels and competition

Our products are for the most part sold directly, typically on
asubscription or transactional basis. Pricing is predominantly
onatransactional basis forinsurance carriers and corporations,
and primarily on a subscription basis for government entities.

Intheinsurance sector, our competitor Verisk sells data and
analytics solutions toinsurance carriers but largely addresses
differentactivities to ours. Principal competitors in Business
Servicesand government segments include Thomson Reuters
and major credit bureaus, whichin many cases address different
activitiesinthese segments as well.

Data Services competeswith anumber of information
providers onaservice and title-by-title basis including: Platts,
Thomson Reutersand IHS aswell as many niche and privately
owned competitors.

2017 2016 Underlying Acquisitions/ Currency Total

£m £m growth disposals effects growth

Revenue 2,076 1,906 +8% -4% +5% +9%
Adjusted operating profit 759 686 +8% -2% +5% +1%

Underlying revenue growth remained strong across all key
segmentsin 2017. Underlying profit growth broadly matched
underlying revenue growth.

Underlying revenue growth was +8%. The difference between
the reported and underlying growth rates primarily reflects

the impact of exchange rate movements and portfolio changes
including the disposal of New Scientist and other magazines,
and the sale of our majority stake ina propertytitle servicesjoint
venture to our partner.

Underlying adjusted operating profit growth broadly matched
underlying revenue growth as we continued to pursue our
organic development strategy. The margin improvement reflects
a positive effect from portfolio changes.

InInsurance we continued to drive growth through enhanced
analytics, the extension of datasets, and by further expansion

REVENUE

inadjacentverticals. The US market environment returned to
historicaltrendsinthe fourth quarter, having been not quite as
favourable earlierintheyear. The internationalinitiatives
continued to progress well.

In Business Services, further development of analytics that help
our customers to detectand prevent fraud and to manage risk
across the financialand corporate sectors continued to drive
growth, in a positive US and international market environment.

Growth inthe governmentand healthcare segmentswas driven by
continued development of sophisticated analytics, and other Data
Services continued to drive growth through organic development.

2018 outlook

The fundamental growth drivers of Risk & Business Analytics
remain strong, and we expect underlying operating profit growth
to continue to broadly match underlying revenue growth.

ADJUSTED OPERATING PROFIT

£m

Underlying growth +8%
1906 2076

2016 2017

£m

Underlying growth +8%

686 759

2016 2017
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LexisNexis Risk Classifier:
helping people protect their
family’s financial future

Legal & General Americais awholly owned subsidiary of Legal & General
Group Plc, the London-based company which has been in business for
over 180years, helping people protect against unforeseen circumstances
in their lives and save for a better financial future.

Troy Thompson of Legal & General Americaand team

Legal & General America has beenin business for over 68years

and has more than 1Tm current customers. In 2016 alone, the insurer
helped over 94,000 families obtain life insurance, with a combined
coverage of more than $55bn. In the event of a tragedy, life insurance
proceeds can help pay the bills, continue a business, finance future
needsincluding children’s education or pay for funeral costs.

Traditionally, the time to process fully underwritten life insurance
policies averages 30 days and includes an invasive medical
examination. However the expectations, needs and purchasing
habits of today’s consumers have changed. As a result, many
consumers drop out of the application process. Legal & General
Americaunderstood this and wanted to meet those needs.

Theinsurerselected LexisNexis Risk Solutions and its Fair Credit
Reporting Act (FCRA) governed advanced risk assessment solution,
LexisNexis Risk Classifier, to help individuals obtain life insurance

more easily, quickly and underwritten at a fairvalue. The underwriter

can now price policies in a matter of hours rather than days and
attract more customers, limit their reviews to more complex cases
thatrequire theirvaluable expertise and lower underwriting
expenses by properly classifying applications up front and avoiding
more costly and invasive procedures.

About LexisNexis Risk Classifier
Using RELX Group’s HPCC Systems
super-computing power, LexisNexis
Risk Classifierassesses a proposed
insured’s risk profile and distills
itintoa numeric score. Improving
the underwritingand consumer
experience, the Risk Classifier score
isdeliveredinrealtime without the
need foraninvasive medical
examination or blood and urine tests.
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Our mission is to protect people and ultimately
close the life insurance gap. The number of un-
insured and under-insured families is staggering.
We want our customers to be satisfied, and we
want to be able to offer life insurance simply.

By speeding up the process, LexisNexis Risk
Classifier appeals to consumers of all ages and
increased our output.

Troy Thompson
SeniorVice Presidentand Chief Actuary,
Legal & General America

30

from 30 days to hours
- reducing the time it
takes to underwrite a

life insurance policy
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66

Rolls-Royce’s business is about service, and
keeping aircraft flying with our engines on
them. To do that successfully, we want to avoid
surprises for customers while managing costs.
We wanted an experienced partner to help
further develop our data collection capabilities.
We needed a completely autonomous data set
and the independence of FlightGlobal's data was
the attraction. At Rolls-Royce, we are keen to
pioneer novel uses of data, and we are delighted
this is an industry first.

Nick Ward
Head of Solution Management,
Digital OEM Solutions, Rolls-Royce

14,000

number of Rolls-Royce
civil aero engines in
service around the world
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FlightGlobal:

helping to keep jet
| aero engines flying

Rolls-Royce, which has its Civil Aerospace headquarters in Derby
inthe UK, is aworld-leaderin engineering and propulsion systems.
Its aero engines power the fleets of more than 250 airlines and
thousands of individual business jet operators.

Rolls-Royce makes most of its aerospace revenues from
providing aftermarket services. Knowing how its engines
are performingas close toreal time as possibleisvital so
it can supportits customers speedily and efficiently.

Like othersintheindustry, Rolls-Royce has relied on one
satellite- orairband radio-based digital datalink called
the Aircraft Communications Addressing and Reporting
System (ACARS] to report data on its engines. However,
asaservicesinnovator Rolls-Royce has continued to look
forimprovements in reliability and efficiency.

FlightGlobal's Tracked Utilisation solution generates data
peraircraft equipped with Rolls-Royce engines within
three days of each tracked flight, meaning the company
cannowrelyonanindependent record of its customers’
experience thatidentifies any gaps in ACARS. Tracked
Utilisation also allows the company to release
highly-skilled staff to focus on their core jobs - solving
problems and creating value for customers. Rolls-Royce
isthefirstinthe industryto deploy Tracked Utilisation
and, following a successfultrial period, has beenrolling
outthe productduring 2017.

Nick Ward of Rolls-Royce

About FlightGlobal

FlightGlobalis anindustry-leading data provider

with one of the world’s most comprehensive data
storesonvirtually every aspect of the global air
transportindustry. Thatincludes deep data on over
28,000 aircraftinthe world airline fleet, the schedule
plans for 900 airlines and live tracking of 100,000 daily
flights. Linking these datasets is a data integration
challenge but generates significant value.
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Legal

We help lawyers win cases, manage their work more
efficiently, serve their clients better and grow their practices.
We assist corporationsin better understanding their markets
and preventing briberyand corruption within their supply
chains. We partner with leading global associations and
customers to help collect evidence against war criminals

and provide tools to combat human trafficking. We endeavour
toadvance the rule of law across the world.

= The LexisNexis legaland news database contains 81bn
documents and records

= 1.5mnewlegaldocuments are added daily to the database
from 54,000 sources, generating 20bn connections. In all,
20m legaldocuments are processed daily

= Nexisnewsand business contentincludes 40,000 premium
sourcesin 30 languages, covering more than 150 countries.
It has dataincluding 320m company profiles with a content
archive that dates back 40years

= The LexisNexis database includes more than 220m court
dockets and documents, 110m patent documents, 1.9m
State Trial Ordersand 1.2m Jury verdict and settlement
documents

= LexisNexisis committed to advancing the rule of law
through operations and solutions that provide transparency
into the lawin more than 130 countries

Business overview

Legalisaleadingglobal provider of legal, regulatoryand business
informationandanalytics that helps customersincrease productivity,
improve decision-making and outcomes and advance the rule of law
around theworld.

LexisNexis Legal & Professionalis headquarteredin New York
and has further principal operationsin Ohio, North Carolina
and Toronto in North America, Londonand Parisin Europe,
and citiesin several other countriesin Africa and Asia Pacific.
Ithas 10,600 employees worldwide and serves customersin
more than 130 countries.

Revenues fortheyearended 31 December 2017 were £1,692m,
compared with £1,622min 2016 and £1,443min 2015. By
geographical market, 68% of revenue in 2017 was derived
from North America, 20% from Europe and the remaining 12%
fromtherestof the world. In 2017, 77% of revenue came from
subscription salesand 23% from transactional sales.

LexisNexis Legal & Professionalis organised in market-facing
groups. These are supported by global shared services
organisations providing platform and product development,
operationaland distribution services, and other support
functions.

In North America, electronic reference, decision tools and
analytics help legaland business professionals make better
informed decisionsin the practice of law and in managing their
businesses. The flagship product for legal research and analytics
is Lexis Advance, which provides statutes and case law together
with analysis and expert commentaries from secondary sources
such as Matthew Bender. In addition, Lexis Advance includes the
leading citation service, Shepard’s, which advises on the continuing
relevance of case law precedents. In North America, we also
provide customers with news and business information, ranging
from daily news to company filings, public records information,
legalanalytics tools, practical guidance and efficiency solutions.
LexisNexis also partners with law schools to provide services to
students as part of their training.

In 2017, LexisNexis continued to release new versions of Lexis
Advance, aninnovative web and mobile application designed to
transform how legal professionals conduct research and use
analytics and data to drive decision-making. Built on the New
Lexisadvanced technology platform, Lexis Advance allows
customers within legaland professional organisations to find
relevantinformation more easily and efficiently, helping to drive
better outcomes. Future releases will continue to expand content
and add new innovative analytical tools extensively using machine
learning and natural language processing. LexisNexis employs
lawyers and trained editors with professional legal backgrounds
who review, annotate and update its legal content to help ensure
each documentinthe collectionis currentand comprehensive.
This domain expertise combined with Artificial Intelligence and
RELXGroup’s bigdata HPCC Systems technology enables
LexisNexis to update its entire legal collection fasterand more
efficiently than before, while alsoidentifying and linking content,
enabling customers to identify previously undiscovered
relationships between documents.
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New analytical tools and content sets are regularly introduced

on Lexis Advance. For example, in 2017 LexisNexis released

Lexis Answers, which leverages advanced natural language
processing technologies to deliver concise and authoritative
answerstousers’ questions alongside comprehensive search
results. In 2017 LexisNexis also continued to make enhancements
to Lexis Practice Advisor by integrating Lexis Search Advantage,
atoolthatenriches searchandanalytics across firm documents
and LexisNexis content, and launching aredesigned user
interface with improved browsing capabilities.

LexisNexis continues to expand the reach of its analytical decision
tools. Forinstance, in 2017 Lex Machina, a legal analytics tool
providing actionable insights about judges, lawyers, parties and
cases, expanded its practice area coverage to include Commercial,
Employment, and Bankruptcy Litigation. In 2017, LexisNexis also
acquired Ravel Law, a legalresearch, analytics and visualisation
platform that mines published case opinions, providing a wealth
of information that helps litigators quickly uncover new insights
and build specificarguments for use in court. The acquisition will
expand the LexisNexis Legal Analytics suite of products through
fullintegration of Ravel Law's judicial analytics, data visualisation
technology and unique case law PDF content from the Harvard
Law Libraryinto Lexis Litigation Profile Suite and Lexis Advance.
These tools complement the Lex Machina analytics solution

and strengthen the LexisNexis position as a leaderin the legal
analytics space.

In Canada, LexisNexis released new versions of Lexis Advance
Quicklaw with significant contentand functionality enhancements,
including improved search and browsing and point-in-time and
aggregated views of legislation. LexisNexis Canada also released
The Lawyer’s Daily, the first online-only daily legal news service
inthe market, and continued to build out Lexis Practice Advisor
Canadawith additional modules, tools and content.

LexisNexis also supplies Business of Law Software Solutions
tolaw firmsand corporate legal departments. These solutions
include practice management solutions, including time and
billing systems, case management, cost recovery and document
management services.

@E’ LexisNexis Lexis*PSL

Ininternational markets outside North America, LexisNexis
serves legal, corporate, government, accounting and academic
marketsin Europe, Africaand Asia Pacific with localand
international legal, regulatory and business information.

The most significant of these businesses are in the UK, France,
Australiaand South Africa.

LexisNexis focuses on providing customers with leading
collections of contentand innovative online solutions to help
legaland business professionals make better decisions
more efficiently.

Inthe UK, LexisNexis is aleading legalinformation provider
offeringan unrivalled collection of primary and secondary
legislation, case law, expert commentary, practical guidance
and currentawareness. Its extensive portfolio includes a number
of leading brands: Halsbury’s, Butterworths, Tolley, MLex and
Jordan Publishing. Jordan Publishing's market-leading content
offeringincludes flagship titles such as Family Court Practice,
Family Law Reports and Gore-Browne on Companies.

In 2017, LexisNexis UK continued to build on its LexisPSL practical
guidance product suite by launching new sector specific content
modulesin Technology, Media and Telecommunications (TMT),
Financial Services, and Risk and Compliance. LexisNexis UK
continued to expand LexisPSL functionality,improving search
performance by further optimising practice note content retrieval.
Contract productivity and proof reading tool, LexisDraft has
become firmly embedded inthe UK legal services market.

MLex continues to break market-moving news and has become
aregularly cited source for mainstream news outlets. Tolley, the
LexisNexis taxintelligence suite, continued to expandits reach

in 2017, with TolleyGuidance expanding its presence across
multiple customer segments.

MLex Machina

LexisNexis UK legal practical guidance service

LAW 360

Provides Legal Analytics to companies and
law firms, enabling them to craft successful
strategies, win cases and close business

Matthew Bender®

New resource that offers guidance to help
attorneys handle transactional matters

more efficiently and effectively business day

Lexis Advance Shepard'’s |

Leading legalnews provider covering the
entire spectrum of practice areas every single

Criticalanalysis, checklists, forms and
practice guides authored by industry experts
coveringover 50 major practice areas

Mlex

New online legalresearch tool that
transforms the way legal professionals
conductresearch

LexisLibrary

Premier citations service

Amediaorganisation providing exclusive
marketinsight, analysisand commentary
onregulatory risk

LexisNexis UK flagship legal online product
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In France, LexisNexisis aleading online provider of information
to lawyers, notaries and courts. JurisClasseur and other leading
authoritative content such as JurisData are provided through
multiple formats. These content sources have been combined
with new contentand innovative decision tools to develop practical
guidance and practice management solutions. LexisNexis
France’s main offeringis Lexis360, which combines legal
information, practical contentand results from the web. In 2017,
LexisNexis launched a Lexis360 version adapted for Austria.

In 2017, LexisNexis France integrated the first predictive analytics
indemnity calculation toolin France on Lexis360 and launched
Lexis Actu, areal-time legal news service.

In South Africa, LexisNexis launched Lexis Assure, a compliance
planning solution. Inthe Middle East, LexisNexis launched a news
mobile app to enrich Lexis Middle East Law.

Inthe Asia Pacificregion, LexisNexis continued to focus on
providing authoritative local online content embedded in decision
tools for legal professionals. As of 2017, Lexis Advance has
launchedin Australiaand New Zealand, enabling improved
analytics, datavisualisation and user experience. Lexis Advance
will continue to roll outin Asia Pacific with launches in Hong Kong,
Singapore and Malaysia to commence in 2018.n 2017, Lexis China
launched a new big data solution to improve citation processing
speed and LexisNexis was recognised by the Australian Centre
for Corporate Social Responsibility as one of the Top 10 socially
responsible companiesin Australia, due to LexisNexis’s
commitment to the Rule of Law.

Market opportunities

Longer-term growthin legaland regulatory markets worldwide
isdriven by increasing levels of legislation, regulation, regulatory
complexity and litigation, and an increasing number of lawyers.
Additional market opportunities are presented by the increasing
demand for online information solutions, legalanalytics and other
solutions as well as practice management tools thatimprove the
quality and productivity of research, deliver better legal outcomes
and improve business performance. Notwithstanding this, legal
activityand legalinformation markets are alsoinfluenced by
economic conditions and corporate activity, as has been seen with

the continued subdued environmentin North America and Europe.

REVENUE BY FORMAT

REVENUE BY GEOGRAPHICAL MARKET

Strategic priorities

LexisNexis Legal & Professional’s strategic goalis to enable
better legal outcomes and be the leading provider of productivity-
enhancing information, analytics and information-based decision
toolsinits market. To achieve this, LexisNexis is focused on
introducing next-generation products and solutions on the global
New Lexis platform and infrastructure; leveraging New Lexis
globally to continue to drive print-to-electronic migration and
long-terminternational growth; and upgrading operational
infrastructure, improving process efficiency and gradually
improving margins.

Inthe US, LexisNexisis focused on the continuing development
of legalresearch and practice solutions that help lawyers make
data-driven decisions. Over the comingyears, progressive
productintroductions, based on the New Lexis platform and
powered by big data HPCC Systems technology, will combine
advanced technologies, enriched contentand sophisticated
analytics to enable LexisNexis customers to make data-driven
legaldecisions and drive better outcomes for their organisations
andclients.

Outside the US, LexisNexis is focused on growing online services
and developing further high-quality actionable contentand
decisiontools, including the continuous development of practical
guidance and practice managementapplications. In 2018,
LexisNexis will continue to expand the New Lexis platform
globally. Additionally, LexisNexis is focusing on the expansion

of its activities in emerging markets.

Business model, distribution channels and competition
LexisNexis Legal & Professional products and services are
generally sold directly to law firms and to corporate, government,
accountingand academic customers on a paid subscription basis,
with subscriptions with law firms often under multi-year contracts.

Principal competitors for LexisNexis in US legal markets

are Westlaw (Thomson Reuters), CCH (Wolters Kluwer) and
Bloomberg. In news and business information key competitors
are Bloomberg and Factiva (News Corporation).

Significantinternational competitors include Thomson Reuters,
Wolters Kluwer and Factiva.

REVENUE BY TYPE

£1,692m

Print
17%

£1,692m

Europe
20%

Electronic
83%

Rest of world
12%

£1,692m

Transactional
23%

North
America Subscription
68% 7%
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2017 2016 Underlying Acquisitions/ Currency Total

£m £m growth disposals effects growth

Revenue 1,692 1,622 +2% -3% +5% +4%

Adjusted operating profit 332 3N +11% -10% +6% +7%

Underlying revenue growthin 2017 wasin line with the prior
year, with continued efficiency gains driving strong underlying
operating profit growth.

Underlying revenue growth was +2%. The difference between

the reported and underlying growth rates reflects the impact of
exchange rate movements and portfolio changesincluding the
acquisition of Ravel Law, the disposal of several printand services

assets, and the final exit from the Martindale Hubbelljoint venture.

Underlying adjusted operating profit growth was +11%. The
increase in operating profit margin reflects ongoing organic
processimprovementand decommissioning of systems which,
together with currency movements, more than offseta lower
profit contribution fromjointventures and other portfolio effects.

REVENUE

Electronicrevenues saw continued growth, partially offset by
printdeclines. The roll-out of new platform releases across our
US and international markets continued, with broader datasets
and the continued expansion of early stage legal analytics.

The usage migration of US legal customers onto Lexis Advance
is now substantially complete.

US and European markets remained stable. Other international
markets continued to grow well.

2018 outlook

Trends in our major customer markets are unchanged, continuing
to limit the scope for underlying revenue growth. We expect
underlying profit growth to remain strong.

ADJUSTED OPERATING PROFIT

£m
Underlying growth +2%
1,622 1,692

2016 2017

£m

Underlying growth +11%
N 332

2016 2017
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In the competitive field of patent litigation,
having access to the data and the analytics
that Lex Machina provides is what you need
to make strategic recommendations to clients
and make well-informed decisions. In today’s
legal environment, using analytics tools like
Lex Machina is table stakes to be competitive.

Dr Christian Mammen
Partner,Hogan Lovells

less than 60 minutes
to build a solid picture
of a new case using
Lex Machina’s analytics
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Lex Machina:

Hogan Lovellsis an Am Law 100 global firm operating on six continents.
Its San Francisco office uses LexisNexis’ Lex Machina Legal Analytics
platform to mine millions of pages of legal information to help lawyers
make data-driven decisions, stay competitive and make better strategic
client recommendations.

Dr Christian Mammen of Hogan Lovells

Hogan Lovells San Francisco office advises clients on

how to manage intellectual property litigation, among Lex Machinais a big data solution that mines
other practice areas. Its lawyers use Lex Machina’s Legal vastamounts of legal data and extracts key
Analytics to mine litigation data, revealing insights about information, which companies and law
judges, lawyers, parties and the subjects of the cases firms use towin business and win cases.
themselves that have never before been available. Lex Machina scans data from more than
The technology enables them to quickly discover and 32m Federal US Docket entries, then uses
communicate meaningful patternsin the data, and Artificial Intelligence tools such as Natural
make more effective recommendations to their clients. Language Processingand Machine

Learningto clean, tagand structure that
data. Theresultsare presented using
advanced visualisation technology. Lex
Machinaiinitially focused on intellectual
property law, andisin the process of rolling
out Legal Analytics for the rest of the law.
New practice areas include antitrust,
securities, commercial, employmentand
bankruptcy law.
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Exhibitions

We help match customers with the right solution. Our events
enable customers to learn about a market, source products
and complete transactions, generating billions of dollars of
revenues for the economic development of local markets and
national economies around the world.

= Morethan 500 events areinthe Reed Exhibitions portfolio

= 43industrysectorsare servedin 30 countries across
the globe

= Eachyearwe hostaround 130,000 exhibitors attracting
more than 7m participants

= Ourdigital productsincrease the value of our events to
participants, enabling them to make new contacts and
meet face-to-face todo business.In 2017, 200 events
offered matchmaking and the vast majority of customers
using the matchmaking service reported highervalue
and satisfaction

Business overview

Exhibitionsis the world's leading events business, enhancing the
power of face-to-face through data and digital tools at over 500
events, in 30 countries, attracting more than 7m participants.

Reed Exhibitionsis a global business, headquarteredin London
and has further principal offices in Paris, Vienna, Moscow,
Norwalk (Connecticut), Mexico City, S3o Paulo, Abu Dhabi,
Beijing, Tokyo and Sydney. Reed Exhibitions has 4,000 employees
worldwide, and its portfolio of events serves 43 industry sectors
in 30 countries.

Revenues fortheyearended 31 December 2017 were £1,109m
compared with £1,047min 2016 and £857m in 2015.1n 2017, 21%
of Reed Exhibitions’ revenue came from North America, 39%
from Europe and the remaining 40% from the rest of the world
onan event location basis.

Reed Exhibitions organises market-leading events which are
relevanttoindustry needs, where participants from around the
world meetface-to-facetodobusiness, to network and to learn.
Its events encompass awide range of sectors. They include
construction, cosmetics, electronics, energy and alternative
energy, engineering, entertainment, gifts and jewellery,
healthcare, hospitality, interior design, logistics, manufacturing,
pharmaceuticals, real estate, recreation, security and safety,
transportandtravel.

Market opportunities

Growth inthe exhibitions marketis influenced both by business-
to-business marketing spend and by business investment.
Historically, these have been driven by levels of corporate
profitability, whichin turn has followed overall growth in gross
domestic product. Emerging markets and higher growth sectors
provide additional opportunities. Reed Exhibitions’ broad
geographical footprintallows it to effectively and efficiently
capture growth opportunities globally as they emerge.

As some events are held otherthan annually, growth inany one
yearis affected by the cycle of non-annual exhibitions.
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Strategicpriorities

Reed Exhibitions’ strategic goalis to deliver measurably higher
value and improved outcomes toits customers. Itis achieving
this by being the best at understanding and responding to those
customers’ needs and business objectives and the changing
markets it serves.

Reed Exhibitions delivers a platform for industry communities
to conduct business, to network and to learn through arange
of market-leading eventsin all major geographic markets and
higher growth sectors, enabling exhibitors to targetand reach
new customers quickly and cost effectively.

Organic growth will be achieved by continuing to generate greater
customervalue through combining the best of face-to-face with
dataand decision tools, launching new events, and by leveraging
its global network and technology platforms for fasterand more
agile development and deployment of innovation. Reed Exhibitions
isalsoactively shapingits portfolio through a combination of
strategic partnerships and acquisitions in faster growing sectors
and geographies, as well as by withdrawing from markets and
industries with lower long-term growth prospects.

Reed Exhibitions is committed to continuously improving
customer solutions and experience by developing global
technology platforms based onindustry databases, digital tools
and analytics. By providing avariety of services, including its
integrated web platform, the company continues todrive up
customer satisfaction by proactively putting the right buyers
and sellers togetheronthe eventfloor. Increasingly, digitaland
multichannel services such as active matchmaking are becoming
anormal part of the customer expectation and product offering,
enhancing the value delivered through attendance at the event.
Using customerinsights, Reed Exhibitions has developed an
innovative product offering that underpins the value proposition
for exhibitors by broadening their optionsin terms of the type
and location of stand they take and the channels through which
they can address potential buyers.

INTERNATIONAL SECURITY
‘CONFERENCE & EXPOSITION

In 2017 Reed Exhibitions launched 36 new events. These included
many events which delivered on the strategy of taking sector
expertise, customer relationships and leading brands from one
market and extending them into new geographies using local
operational capability.

Strong brands and value propositionsin long established areas
continued to be expanded into new geographic markets such
as Oceanology Internationalin the USA.

Reed Exhibitionsis active in developing exhibition markets
with launchesin Mexico, Brazil, South Korea, South Africa,
UAE, Indonesiaand China.

Emerging high potential sectors were served through innovative
and highly curated launches such as Esports Barand MIPIM
Property Tech Summit.

Reed Exhibitions Japan continued its successful launch
programme, with 14 launches in multiple segments and locations.

Afterthe successful 2016 launch of ComplexCon the fashion
portfolio Agenda continued to reflect the changing nature of the
fashionindustry by launching the direct-to-consumer Agenda
Festival.

The POP culture portfolio continued its successful run of launches
with new eventsin South Korea (Comic Con Seoul) and by serving
new sub-sectors such as table top gaming through the PAX
Unplugged launch.

Anumber of acquisitions and investments were completed during
2017. Theseincluded MCM Comic Coninthe UK, Café Seoulin
South Korea and three fitness shows in Australia.

EME
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MIPIM: The world’s property market

ISC West: International security conference

Emerald City Comic Con: A premier comic
book and pop culture convention

Z,wtm

LONDON

AUTOMOTIVE
WORLD epstit

Manufacturing World

World Travel Market: Premier global event
forthetravelindustry

B | RETAIL
BUSINESS
TECHNOLOGY
EXPO 2017

Automotive World: Japan’s largest show
foradvanced automotive technologies

) interCHARM
2017

Manufacturing World Nagoya: Central Japan’s
manufacturing industry trade event

BATIMA

Building & remodeling solutions

PARC DES EXPOSITIONS
PARIS NORD P~

VILLEPINTE ==

06-+10NOV &

Retail Business Technology Expo:
Aleading event for the retailindustry

InterCHARM: International perfumeryand
cosmetics exhibition

Batimat France: Aleadinginternational
trade fair for the building industry
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Business model, distribution channels and competition

Over 70% of Reed Exhibitions’ revenue is derived from exhibitor
fees, with the balance primarily consisting of admission charges,
conference fees, sponsorship feesand online and offline
advertising. Exhibition space is sold directly or through local
agents where applicable. Reed Exhibitions often works in
collaborationwith trade associations, which use the events to
promote access for members to domestic and export markets,
and with governments, for which events can provide important
supportto stimulate foreign investmentand promote regional
and nationalenterprise. Increasingly, Reed Exhibitions is offering
visitors and exhibitors the opportunity tointeract before and after

the showthrough the use of digital tools such as online directories,

matchmaking and mobile apps.

Reed Exhibitionsis the global market leaderinafragmented
industry, holding less than a 10% global market share. Other
international exhibition organisers include UBM, Informa and
some of the larger German Messen, including Messe Frankfurt,
Messe Diisseldorfand Messe Munich. Competition also comes
fromindustrytrade associations and convention centre and
exhibition hall owners.

REVENUE BY FORMAT REVENUE BY GEOGRAPHICAL MARKET EVENTS REVENUE BY SOURCE
£1,109m Electronic £1,109m North £1,109m
4% America

Rest of
world
40%

Face-to-face
96%

21%

Other 28%

Europe
39% Exhibition

fees 72%
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2017 2016 Underlying Acquisitions/ Currency Total

£m £m growth disposals effects growth

Revenue 1,109 1,047 +6% +1% +5% +6%

Adjusted operating profit 285 269 +2% -1% +5% +6%

Underlying revenue growth rates exclude exhibition cycling effects.

Exhibitions achieved strong underlying revenue growthin 2017,
aslightaccelerationfrom the prioryear, with underlying
operating profit growth reflecting cycling-out effects.

Underlying revenue growth was +6%. After portfolio changes and
six percentage points of cycling-out effects, constant currency
revenue growth was +1%. The difference between the reported
and constant currency growth rates reflects the impact of
exchange rate movements and portfolio changes, including the
acquisition of MCM Comic Con (UK], Cafe Seoul (South Korea) and
Fitness (Australia), and the disposal of a number of small events.

Underlying adjusted operating profit growth was +2% reflecting
cycling-out effects.

REVENUE

We continued to pursue organic growth opportunities, launching
36 new events, and piloting several data analytics opportunities.

Overallgrowth remained good in Europe and strongin Japan and
China. The US continued to see differentiated growth rates by
industry sector. Revenuesin Brazil continued to reflect the
generalweakness of the wider economy. Most other markets
continued to grow strongly.

2018 outlook

We expectunderlying revenue growth trends to continue.

In 2018 we expect cycling-in effectsto increase the reported
revenue growth rate by four to five percentage points.

ADJUSTED OPERATING PROFIT

£m
Underlying growth +6%
1,047 1,109

2016 2017

£m
Underlying growth +2%
269 285

2016 2017
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INTERPHEX:
a catalyst for business
growth and innovation

SKAN, headquartered in Switzerland, is the global market leader in
barrierisolation technology used for aseptic drug manufacturing in the
pharmaceutical industry. The company has built its success on product
innovation and isolator customisation. SKAN’s guiding principle is
‘Together, Always One Step Ahead', a philosophy it has applied to increasing
business advantage during its 14-year partnership with INTERPHEX.

SKAN established its US subsidiaryin 2002 and
exhibited at INTERPHEXin New York for the first time
in 2003. Today, SKAN US sales and services account
fornearly 40% of SKAN global revenues, and
INTERPHEXis SKAN's premier eventin North
America, providing a vital platform for product
demonstration, new business generation and
customer outreach. In 2017, SKAN launched its newly
patented NANOX catalyst technology which helps to
achieve breakdown and removal of hydrogen peroxide
more efficiently. INTERPHEX 2017 generated over

200 sales leads for SKAN, with many high quality sales
leads requiringimmediate follow up. The company
alsodelivered atechnical presentationat INTERPHEX
Live whichwas filmed and made available online. This
video has gone on to generate over 1,000 on-demand
views, extending SKAN's partnership with INTERPHEX
beyond the event.

About INTERPHEX

International Pharmaceutical Expo (INTERPHEX) y - {
is North America’s leading event dedicated to “'I \
pharmaceutical, biotechnology and device innovation, "-
technology and knowledge, from development -
through to commercialisation. Located in New York, '&

itbrings more than 10,500 global industry | A ¥
professionals and 530+ leading suppliers together \ ‘"_E
eachyear. It provides a unique combination of — —
exhibition, technical conference, workshops,

partnering opportunities, networking events and 4 9
awards, designed to drive quality, productivity and
cost efficiency inanincreasingly competitive global
market. In 2017 the event supported more than 20
North American and worldwide technology launches.

Larry Cabeceiras of SKAN
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INTERPHE){
LIVE

The volume of sales leads generated at our
booth, and the overall networking opportunities
available to us during INTERPHEX, far exceeds
all the other US events SKAN attends on an
annual basis.

President, SKAN US

Larry Cabeceiras \

= /\

10,500 &l

industry professionals
from 49 countries attended
INTERPHEX in 2017

\W¢
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Corporate
Responsibility

The Corporate Responsibility Report is
anintegral part of our Annual Reports

and Financial Statements. This section
highlights progress on our 2017 corporate
responsibility objectives. The full 2017
Corporate Responsibility Report is available
atwww.relx.com/go/CRReport
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Corporate responsibility

We define corporate responsibility

[CR) as the way we do business
and our efforts toincrease our
positive impact and reduce
any negative impact. It ensures
good management of risks and
opportunities, helps us attract
and retain the best people and
strengthens our corporate
reputation.

It means performing to the highest commercial and ethical
standards and channelling our knowledge and strengths, as
global leadersinourindustries, to make a difference to society.

We regularly survey key stakeholders, including in 2017,
shareholders, employees, governments and communities
where we operate, to help us identify our material corporate
responsibilityissues and to setand test our CR objectives.

The Board of Directors, senior managementand our Corporate
Responsibility Forum oversee CR objectives and performance.

We concentrate on the contributions we make as a business
and on good management of the material areas that affect
all companies:

1. Ourunique contributions
2. Governance
3. People

4. Customers

5. Community

6. Supply chain
7. Environment

We are committed to the United Nations ([UN] Global Compact
towhichwe areasignatoryand are dedicated to advancing the
UN’s Sustainable Development Goals (SDGs) by 2030.

1. Our unique contributions

We make a positive impact on society through our knowledge,
resources and skills, including:

= universalsustainable accesstoinformation
= advancing of science and health

= protection of society

= promotion of the rule of law and justice

= fosteringcommunities

Scientific, Technical & Medical

Elsevier, theworld’s leading provider of scientific, technical
and medicalinformation, plays animportantroleinadvancing
human welfare and economic progress through its science and
health information, which spursinnovation and enables critical
decision-making. To broadenaccesstoits content, Elsevier
supports programmes where resources are often scarce.
Amongthemis Researché4Life, a partnership with UN agencies
and approximately 200 publishers; we provide core and
cutting-edge scientific information to researchersin 100
developing countries. As afounding partner and the leading
contributor, Elsevier provides over a quarter of the material
available in Research4Life, encompassing approximately 3,000
Elsevierjournalsand 20,000 e-books. In 2017, there were 2.4m
Research4lLife article downloads from ScienceDirect.

Intheyear, we expanded Research without Borders which pairs our
colleagues’ research expertise with the needs of the African health
science community. Working with the African Journal Partnership
Program, Elsevier contributed 20 volunteers for a total of 48 weeks
to help Africanjournals boost their researchimpact through the
Elsevier Foundation’s Research without Borders programme.
According to Dr. Lucinda Manda-Taylor, Editor-in-Chief of the
Malawi Medical Journalwho worked with Cynthia Clark, Director
of Digital Journals at Elsevier, “l cannot stress enough how helpful
itwas to have avolunteer Elsevier publisher for the Malawi Medical
Journal. It helped the editorial team implement some key tasks that
willimprove our digital connection with the outside world through
interactions on our website and social media pages.”

Risk & Business Analytics

Risk & Business Analytics’ tools and resources help law
enforcement keep communities safe and help protect society

by detecting and preventing fraud across arange of business
sectorsand atthe US federal, state and local government levels.
Forexample, since 2015, the city of Stockton, California’s police
department has been using LexisNexis Accurint Crime Analysis
predictive analytics to help reduce violent gun crime.

Intheyear, colleagues at Accuity, which provides comprehensive
data and software to support financial processing risk and
compliance, collaborated with policy makers on the European
Union’s 5th Anti-Money Laundering Directive, to halt money
laundering and terrorist financing.

We developed the ADAM programme more than 17 years ago to
help the National Centre for Missing & Exploited Childrenin the
US find missing children. ADAM distributes missing child alert
posters to law enforcement, hospitals, libraries and businesses
within specific geographic search areas. The system was expanded
toallowindividuals toreceive analertviaemailwhenachildis
reported missing near to them. In 2017, 14 children were found
through ADAM, bringing the total number of children recovered to
177 since the start of the programme in 2000. We also worked with
Amber Alert Europe and Portsmouth University to scope a training
course for UK police forces and otheragencies involved in missing
cases suchassocial services, schools and health professionals.

In2017, Proagrica, dedicated to feeding the world sustainably
throughits contentand solutions, launched Future Farming, to
help farmersuse local, nationaland international field, crop and
other datato make better farming decisions.
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RELX Group SDG
Resource Centre:

Informing the world

l

In 2017, we launched the free

RELX Group SDG Resource Centre
(sdgresources.relx.com) to advance
awareness, understanding and
implementation of the 17 UN Sustainable
Development Goals (SDGs) which aim

to end poverty, protect the planet, and
ensure prosperity for all people by 2030.

Toilluminate the SDGs, the site provides leading edge articles,
reports, tools, events, videos and legal practical guidance
fromacross RELX Group. It also features content from partners,
the United Nations Global Compact and the United Nations
Development Programme.

It contains unique research from Elsevier on the state of science
underpinning the SDGs; Risk and Business Analytics content
from Proagrica that combines data and analysis to improve
agriculturalyields and ensure sustainable land use; the Rule

of Law Impact Tracker developed by LexisNexis Legal &
Professionaland the World Justice Project; and information

on shows like Reed Exhibitions” World Future Energy Summit
focused on affordable, clean energy and World Travel Market
dedicated to sustainable tourism.

The SDG Resource Centreis also fostering rich discussion about
SDG solutions through our Mendeley reference management
and online social networking platform.

G0

What we do impacts the world. Our products
and services shed light on some of the most
pressing global issues. The RELX Group SDG
Resource Centre will aid researchers and the
public by giving them access to critical content
that informs understanding about the SDGs.

Erik Engstrom
CEO, RELX Group

)

77,000

sources in the RELX
Group SDG Resource
Centre’'s SDG News
Tracker for up to the
minute news on the SDGs
from around the world
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1. Our unique contributions (continued)

During 2017, RBI continued to supportthe Tech Talent Charter,
committed to increasing the ratio of women and under-represented
groupsintechnology. RBlwomenintechnology, who comprise 26%
of the business unit’s UK technology workforce (17% national
average), held a Tech Day for girls from local schools.

Legal

LexisNexis Legal & Professional promotes the rule of lawand
accesstojustice throughits products and services. During 2017,
we collaborated with the Republic of Fiji to consolidate the
country’s laws and make them publicly available for the first time.

We assisted the United Nations Global Compact (UNGC) and other
UN agencies to promote business engagement on the rule of law
throughout the year, including by supporting the documentation
of land rights in Myanmar. In the year, we launched the Rule of Law
Café, in partnership with the UNGC Network UK, giving peersand
members of the legal community an opportunity to share their
effortstoadvance therule of law. In 2017, LexisNexis Legal &
Professional received Freedom House’s Corporate Leadership
Award forits work to advance the rule of law.

Exhibitions
Reed Exhibitions” events strengthen communities and support
our CRfocus areas.

Eachyear, World Travel Market (WTM), Reed Exhibitions’ flagship
show for the traveland tourismindustry, holds World Responsible
Tourism Day, whichincludes the Responsible Tourism awards.
Inrecognition of the 2017 International Year of Sustainable
Tourism for Development, leaders were chosen for how they
aredemonstratingimpactand their alignment with one or more
of the SDGs. Winnersincluded Village Ways, India, named best
for poverty reductionand Chobe Game Lodge, Botswana, named
bestforcarbonreduction.In 2017, WTMalso held aroundtable at
the UKHouse of Lords, hosted by Baroness Morris of Bolton, with
leadersintourism and other fields to discuss tangible ways of
addressing child trafficking and tourism and orphanage tourism.

Alsoin 2017, more than 1,700 science and marine technology
professionals from 46 countries attended Reed Exhibitions’
inaugural Oceanology International North America conference
and exhibition in San Diego. Among conference topics was
sustainable port managementand environmental protection.

Across RELX Group

In2017, we launched the free RELX Group SDG Resource Centre
www.sdgresources.relx.com to advance awareness,
understanding and implementation of the 17 SDGs to end poverty,
protectthe planet, and ensure prosperity for all people by 2030.
The site features articles, tools, news, events, networking and
originalresearch, including in 2017, a review of education and
sustainable development (SDG 4) with citable statistics on
scholarly output, impactand collaboration.

2017 marked the seventh year of the RELX Group Environmental
Challenge, focused on providing improved and sustainable
access towaterand sanitationwhereitis presently at risk.

The $50,000 first prize winner, eWATER, uses leading-edge

mobile and contactless payment technology for accountable
revenue collection and data management to sustain urbanand
ruralwater systems throughout the developing world. They will
use the prizetoinstall 60 eWATERtaps and to repair three large
solar pumped water systems, benefiting over 8,000 people inthe
Upper Riverand Lower River of The Gambia.

2017 OBJECTIVES Achievement

Advance of science .
and health: expand
“Research Without
Borders™ to build
editorial skills through
journal mentoring and

20 Elsevierresearch experts spent
acombined 48 weeks training
African health journalteamsin
DRC, Ethiopia, Ghana, Kenya,
Malawi, Mali, Rwanda and Uganda

Additional training heldin

training Amsterdam for editors from Mali
Medical Journaland the DRC’s
Annales Africaines de Medecine

Protection of society: = ADAM programme platform

extended to allow individuals to
receive missing child email alerts;
14 children found through ADAM

help broaden reach of
ADAM programme; new
training programme on

missing people for UK Supporting new missing child

law enforcement e
cases training course for UK
policing

Promotion of the rule = Micro-site created on SDG

Resource Centre for Global
Alliance on Reporting Progress on
Just, Peacefuland Inclusive
Societies as arepository to aid
member state reporting on SDG16

of lawand access to
justice:assist UNGC in
embedding Business for
the Rule of Lawand work
with UN Development
Programme and
Member States to
supportreporting
progressonSDGs

= Created Businessforthe Rule of
Law Café in partnership with
UNGC Network UK with
participation from customers,
peers, academiaand colleagues
to share information on going
beyond legal minimums to
advance the rule of law

Fosteringcommunities: = Largestresponsible tourism

World Travel Market programme at WTM London to
(WTM] to convene travel date with 27 sessions, including
industry roundtable two focused onincreasing

for collaborationon
responsible tourism key
challenges, including
anti- trafficking
initiatives

awareness of modern slavery,
trafficking, human rights and
orphanage tourism

= Roundtable at House of Lords with
leadersin tourismand other fields
to discuss tangible ways of
addressing child trafficking and
tourism and orphanage tourism

"RELX Group'SDG Resource Centre
launched at Inspiration Day
drawing 100+ attendees

Universal, sustainable =
accesstoinformation:
launch free access SDG

Resource Centre = Nearly 10,000 unique visitors

by year-end; 34% of visitors via
organic search
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2018 OBJECTIVES

= Advance and make publicly available, research on the state
of science underpinning the SDGs

= Partnerwith the National Centre for Missing and Exploited
Children to expand ADAM programme email alerts to US
consumers; advance training course for UK policing on
missing cases

= Rollout RELX Group Rule of Law Cafes across multiple
jurisdictions
= Advance sustainability contentacross show portfolios

= Newfunctionality for SDG Resource Centre including
integration of UN and other partner content

OUR 2030 VISION
Use our products and expertise to advance the SDGs, among them:
= SDG 3: Good health and well-being

= SDG 4: Quality education

= SDG 10: Reduced inequalities

= SDG 13: Climate action

= SDG 16: Peace, justice and strong institutions

Enrichthe SDG Resource Centre to ensure essential content,
tools and events onthe SDGs are freely available to all.

2. Governance

Our Code of Ethics and Business Conduct (the Code) is
disseminated to every employee and sets the standards for our
corporate and individual conduct. Among other topics, the Code
continues to address fair competition, anti-bribery, conflicts of
interest, employment practices, data protection and appropriate
use of company property and information. It also encourages
reporting of violations - with an anonymous reporting option -
and prohibits retaliation against anyone who believes and reports
a potentialviolation of the Code or law.

The Code incorporatesthe principles of the UNGC and stresses
our commitment to humanrights. Inaccordance withthe UN's
Guiding Principles on Business and Human Rights, we have
considered where and how we operate and have concluded that
thereis low humanrights risk in our direct employment activities
(for more information on human rights see “Supply chain” on
page 49).1n 2017, we updated our Modern Slavery Act Statement
which highlights how we are working internally, through our
supply chainand externally with partners to address the risk

of slaveryand human trafficking.

We maintain a comprehensive set of compliance policies and
proceduresinsupportof the Code. These are reviewed at least
annually to ensure they remain current and effective. They help us
comply with the lawand conduct our businessinan open, honest,
ethicaland principled way. Inthe case of our anti-bribery efforts,
they comprise part of our adequate procedures for compliance
with applicable laws.

Employees receive mandatory training onthe Code - both new hires
andatregularintervalsforallemployees-inordertomaintaina
respectfulworkplace, prevent briberyand protect personaland
company data. Mandatory periodic training covers key Code topics
indepth, such as competition law and records management, which
is supplemented by in-person training for higher-risk roles.

In 2017, we took a number of steps to further enhance and embed
our culture of compliance across RELX Group, including reorganising
the RELX Group Compliance function around globally recognised
compliance principles and creating a central compliance team
devoted to training, communications and investigationsand a
second team devoted to risk assessmentand monitoring; increasing
the number of employees devoted to compliance and increasing
collaborationamong RELX Group compliance committees.

Reports of violations of the Code or related policies are promptly
investigated, with careful tracking and monitoring of violations
and related mitigation and remediation efforts by Compliance
teams across the business. In 2017, we continued training of
investigators who handle employee relations and financial
misconduct matters.

We remained diligentin our ongoing efforts to ensure compliance
with applicable briberyand sanctions laws and to mitigate bribery
risks. We continue to monitor and assess the implementation of our
anti-bribery requirements, including developing detailed, risk-based
internal policies and procedures for key compliance-related business
processes and functions; conducting periodic risk assessments;
establishing giftand entertainment limits; and enforcing clear
rulesondoing business with Government officials. In addition,
intermediary relationships and acquisition targets are specifically
evaluated for risk using third-party questionnaires, references

and detailed electronic searches. Similarly, inthe area of sanctions
compliance, we refreshed ourinternal policies and guidance to
comportwith changesinapplicable regulations, implemented
“Know Your Customer” tools to enhance customer screening efforts,
and enhanced quality assurance reviews and risk assessments.

In 2017, we expanded fraud prevention and cyber security
awareness efforts and continued to tighten related controls
through mandatory training Group-wide, with risk-based
information security presentations for finance and HR teams
across the business and employees in Manila and Chennai.
We alsobeganrolling out a PhishMe button integrated into our
email client to allow employees to make animmediate report,
and provided a Group-wide phishing simulation.

Asasignatorytothe UNGC and its principles, encompassing
labour, environment, anti-corruption and humanrights, we
demonstrated leadership by becominga LEAD company, taking
partintheir SDG Action Platforms, including the Blueprint for SDG
Leadership. We alsoservedinthe yearonthe Board of the UNGC
UK Network and spoke on panels at their Making Global Goals
Local Business conference in New Delhiand the Leaders Summit
during the UN General Assembly in New York, when Teresa
Jennings of LexisNexis Legal & Professional was named an SDG
Pioneerfor her effortstoadvance the rule of law. UNGC peers
judged our Communication on Progress, required of signatories
annually, to have attained Advanced Level. We were also active
inthe Dutch UNGC network.

In2017,the RELX Group global business paid £449min corporate
taxes. We are aresponsible corporate taxpayer and conduct

our tax affairs to ensure compliance with all laws and relevant
regulationsinthe countriesinwhich we operate. Taxis animportant
issue for our stakeholders and society at large. We have set out
ourapproach totaxinourglobal tax strategy. Thisincorporates
our Tax Principles along with additional disclosures around where
we pay taxes and our broader contribution to society. Thisis made
publicly available on our website (www.relx.com/go/TaxPrinciples).
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2. Governance (continued)

Inaddition, the RELX Tax team continued to engage with
policymakers and specialinterest groups on all sides of the debate
to provide practical experience on how companies interact with
tax laws and to suggest ways such laws can advance governments’
policy objectives.

The Statement of Investment Principles for the UK pension
scheme indicates that the extent to which social, environmental
orethicalissues may have a financialimpact on the portfolio,
oradetrimental effect on the strength of the employer covenant,
istakeninto accountwhen making investment decisions.
CRissuesarerelevantto otherinvestment decisions we make.
Among our sustainable investments is Agworld, afarm
management software platformthat allows farmers, agronomists
and farm contractors to capture, manage and share on-farm data
and recommendations toimprove the sustainability of land and
betteryields.

2017 OBJECTIVES Achievement

Expand fraud prevention =
and cybersecurity
awareness effortsand
continue to tighten

related controls

Continued programme of
technology controls, training,
reporting and investigations, with
employee simulations to reduce
susceptibility to phishing attacks

= Lessthan 4% susceptible ona
benchmark simulation (industry
average 21%)

More structured .
approach to compliance
training foremployees
inhigherrisk roles and
locations across the

Group

Established resource library
containing 35 presentations
encompassing competition law
anti-bribery, culture of
compliance, harassment, trade
sanctions and management

= Morethan 2,400 employees
received advanced in-person
compliance training conducted by
RELX Compliance in collaboration
with business unit leads

Tax Principlés refreshed and
incorporated into tax strategy
published on RELX Group website

Broaden awareness "
of RELX Tax
Principlesin external
communications, with
internaltraining for
relevant staff

= Briefings for key internal
stakeholders; roll-out of interactive
training underway

2018 OBJECTIVES

= Expand corporate securityincidentresponse preparedness
using a combination of technology, awareness training and
simulations

= Establish risk mitigation framework for monitoring
operational effectiveness of key internal compliance controls

= Engagementonrule of tax law

OUR 2030 VISION

Undertake consistentactions that reinforce excellence in
corporate governance, data privacy and security, and compliance
with allapplicable legislation and our principles and policies

3. People

Our people are our strength. Our workforce of about 30,000 people
is 51% female and 49% male, with an average length of service of
nineyears. There were 43% female and 57% male managers, and
29% female and 71% male senior operational managers.

Female Male
Board of Directors b 36% 7 64%
Senlorope:atlonal 93 299 223 1%
rnanagers L S
Allemployees** 15,850 : 51% : 15150 : 49%

* Senioroperationalmanagers are defined as those managers uptoand
including threereporting linesfromthe CEO
** Full-time equivalent

Atyear-end 2017, women made up more than 35% of the members
ofthe RELXBoards. The two Executive Directors on the Boards
are male. The Nominations Committee considers the knowledge,
experience and background of individual Board directors.

Our Diversity and Inclusion [D&I) Statement articulates our
commitmentto a diverse workforce and an environment that
respectsindividuals and their contributions, regardless of gender,
race or other characteristics. Our D&I Strategyis focused on
translating the Statement into practicalaction. Among its
commitments is maintaining a D&l Advisory Group composed of a
senior business and HR leader from each business unit, supported
by abroader D&l Working Group. We encourage more than 35
Employee Resource Groups [ERGs) across the Group, such as
women'’s forums and pride groups, to facilitate support,
mentoring and community involvement.

In 2017, we expanded our women in technology mentoring
programme for mid-career womenintechnologyacross our four
business units to participantsinthe US aswell as the UK. All
mentorsareinternal, and 44% of mentors are womenin technology.
Awebinar series for participants showcases the tech career
journeys of seniorwomen, including members of the RELX Group
Boards, and is made available to allemployees. Based on the
success of ourwomen in technology mentoring, in the year,

we launched a mentoring programme for high potential women.

RELX Groupis asignatory tothe Women’s Empowerment
Principles (WEPs],a UNGC and UN Women initiative to help
companies empower women and promote gender equality.
Intheyear, we tested a WEPs benchmarking tool to understand
gaps betweenthe principles and our performance.

Elsevier has attained the first level of the EDGE gender equality
certification, whichinvolved employee surveys across eight
countries, an external review of policies and procedures and gender
pay benchmarking. An EDGE focus areais flexible workingand in
2017, we mapped our flexible working policies across the business
asthefirststepincreatinga RELX Group flexible working policy.
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We comply with allemployee-related reporting requirements.
From 2018, this willinclude the new UK requirement to publish
our UK gender pay gap data.

In 2017, we conducted pulse surveys across the business to hear
from employees about howwe are doing to make RELX Groupa
great place towork.

Our employees have the right to a healthy and safe workplace,
asoutlinedin our Global Health and Safety Policy. We concentrate
on areas of greatest risk for example, warehouses, events and
exhibitions. As a primarily office-based company, we also focus
onmanual handling, slips, trips and falls. To reduce our severity
rate (lost days per 200,000 hours worked), we conduct risk
assessmentsand work with a third party in the US to assign
anurse case manager toeach complexorsevere claim. There
were 17 losttime reportable casesin the year.

Inthe US, where we have the largest concentration of employees,
the CareConnectand REACH programmes promote workplace
well-being through health screenings, online assessments,
stress awareness trainingand smoking cessation courses, with
financialincentives for participation.

Ourannual Fit2Win global well-being competition encourages
employees to establish fitness teams to compete for cash prizes
for charities of their choice. Across the Group, 106 teams took
partandran, walked, cycled and swam a total of 93,457 miles
(150,405 km), towin $1,000 for the charity of their choice.

Dedicated health and well-being programmes are now available
to more than 19,000 employees around the world, equating to over
60% of our employees. We also maintain a network of more than
90 Wellness Champions. We introduced a workplace well-being
award scheme which allows all employees, in partnership with
their local Wellbeing Champion, to submit a proposal fora
wellbeinginitiative at their location. The proposals are judged
with the winning proposals granted funding.

2017 OBJECTIVES Achievement

Scalewomenin = Newcohortof 27 mid-career

technology mentoring women intech mentees and

programme; mentor pilot 27 tech mentors from US, UK

for high-potential women and China (16 mentors/mentees
in2017)

= Mentoring programme for
high-potential women
co-sponsored by two senior
female leaders: RELX Group
GlobalHR Director and Reed
Exhibitions’ EMEA President

Enhance flexibleworking = Mapping of flexible working

policies policiesacrossall business units
tounderstand policies and
trackingin place

= Flexible working case studies
highlighted on globalintranet

Introduce aworkplace = 60applicationsreceived for
well-beingaward scheme wellness project funding

= Reviewby RELX Group Wellness
Champions

2018 OBJECTIVES

= ConductaGlobal Employee Opinion Survey including
questionson culture, ethics and well-being

= Update D&l Strategy including launch of D&l progress
indicators

= Externalpartnership toraise awareness of mental health
across RELX Group

OUR 2030 VISION

Respect the humanrights of allour employees, with a focus
ontalentdevelopment, diversity and inclusion and well-being,
toensure a high-performing and satisfied workforce.
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Gender:

In the Global Research

Landscape

In 2017, Elsevier released Gender in the Global Research Landscape, providing
insight and guidance on gender research and policy for governments, funders and
institutions worldwide. It covers 20 years, 12 geographies and 27 subject areas.

Thereportuncovers progress between 1996 and 2000, among
the 12 countries and regions studied, only Portugal had awomen

researcher population greater than 40%; by the period 2011-2015,

there were nine countries and regions with 40% or more.

The study leverages the power of Elsevier’'s Scopus citation
database and SciValresearch performance tool,among other
sources, including input from the World Intellectual Property
Organization. It shows the global share of women inventors listed
in patent applications increased between 1996-2000 (10%) and
2011-2015 (14%), yet women remain strongly underrepresented
across allintellectual property comparators. The reportis
available for free download worldwide.

CHAPTER 2

Download Genderinthe Global Research Landscape at elsevier.com/genderreport

GO

Gender in a Global Research Landscape brings
empirical insight to gender disparity. It is data
that can be used by those - including researchers
and policy makers - working on issues critical

to science.

Dr. Holly J. Falk-Krzesinski
Vice President, Research Intelligence, Global
Strategic Networks, Elsevier

@

N
25%

less than 25% of
researchers in physical
sciences are women




Business review Corporate Responsibility

49

4. Customers

In 2017, we surveyed approximately 450,000 customers through
Net Promoter Score [measuring customer advocacy) and
business dashboard programmes. This allows us to deepen
ourunderstanding of customer needs and drives improvements.
Results are reviewed by the CEO and senior operational managers
and communicated to staff. To aid colleagues, during the year our
CRasaSales ToolWorking Group produced shortvideos on the
competitive advantage of our CR focus, with role plays showcasing
how to engage customers on CRissues, helping build deeper
relationships through discussion of shared values.

Our 2017 CR Forum Stakeholder Session, Truth and Trust and
Reliable Content, engaged members of our CR Forum, Editorial
Policy Working Group employees, peers and sector stakeholders
forapractical discussion on this keyissue for RELX Group.
Participant Charlie Beckett, founding director of POLIS, the
think-tank for research and debate ininternational journalism
and society atthe London School of Economics noted, "itis entirely
the responsibility of anybody who produces information, not just
journalists, but governments and corporations, to make their
informationintelligible, accessible and critically accountable.”
The eventwas simulcast for employees and made available for
download onthe RELX Group globalintranet.

We advanced our Quality First Principles (QFPs) in the year to
include more areas of the business including supplier management
and customer support.In 2017, we applied for a Philippines Quality
Award which involved demonstrating excellence in managing and
delivering quality throughout the business.

We are committed toimproving access to our products and services
forallusers, regardless of physicalability. Our Accessibility Policy
aims to lead the industryin providing accessibility solutions to
customers, with products thatare operable, understandable and
robust. In 2017, members of the Accessibility Working Group logged
over 200 accessibility projects and Elsevier’s Global Books Digital
Archive fulfilled more than 5,000 disability requests, 77% of them
through AccessText.org, a service we helped establish.

Intheyear, toimprove our reporting on compliance with customer
accessibility requests, we refined our accessibility review toolkit
toinclude product scorecards with ratings on process maturity,
fix lists, customerinquiries and revenue at stake.

2017 OBJECTIVES Achievement

Pursue Philippine = Application submitted; PQAsite
Quality Award (PQA) as visit following; decisionin 2018
ademonstration of drive

for quality excellence

Createrole playsufor o
sales staff showing CR
asaSalesToolinaction =

CRasaSales Toolvideo featuring
colleaguesacross RELX Group

Created CRat RELX Group desk
drop; guidance to sales colleagues
on fostering CR dialogue with
customers

Improve reporting .
on compliance with
customer accessibility
requests

New accessibility report breaks
down customer Voluntary Product
Accessibility Template (VPAT),
showing alignmentwith each
criteria of Section 508 Standards of
the US Workforce Rehabilitation Act

2018 OBJECTIVES
= RELXGroup Editorial Policy update and training

= NewCRasaSales Tool curriculum: Customers and the SDGs

= Introduce RELX Group Accessibility awards to recognise
exceptional employee efforts to advance accessibility

OUR 2030 VISION

Increase our customer base across our four business units
through provision of critical products, services and events,
with active listeningand engagement, and a focus on editorial
and quality standards and accessibility.

5. Community

RE Cares, our global community programme, supports employee
volunteering and giving that makes a positive impact on society.

In addition to localinitiatives of importance to employees, the
programme’s core focus is on education for disadvantaged young
people thatadvances one or more of our unique contributions as
abusiness. Staff have up to two days’ paid leave peryear for their
own community work. We donated £3.4min cash (including
through matching gifts) and the equivalent of £9.2min products,
services and staff time in 2017. 45% of employees were engaged
involunteering through RE Cares and we reached more than
24,000disadvantaged young people through time, in-kind and
cash donations. In 2017, we increased skills-based volunteering,
asdefinedas "applying business knowledge and expertise to
benefitcommunities”. For example, colleagues at Risk & Business
Analytics built the Global Business Coalition for Education’s Rapid
Education Action (REACT) database to record private sector
educational contributions and assets that can be deployed quickly
inan emergency.
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5. Community (continued)

Anetwork of over 220 RE Cares Champions ensures the vibrancy
of our community engagement. In 2017, 72% of our offices across
theworld had an RE Cares Champion.

Each September, we hold RE Cares Month to celebrate our
community commitment. During the Month, we raised funds
($96,700 to date) to help global fundraising partner, SOS Children’s
Villages, enable girls working in dangerous conditions in
Yamoussoukro, Ivory Coast to pursue an education. We held our
annualglobalbook drive, yielding over 6,600 books for local and
developingworld readers, and announced the winners of the
seventh Recognising Those Who Care Awards to highlight the
exceptional contributions to RE Cares of ten individuals and four
RE Caresteams. Individual winners from across the business
travelledto our office in Durban, South Africa towork with several
local charities with a focus on anti-human trafficking, including
survivor rehabilitation. The trip has been led since its inception

by senior leader Youngsuk “YS” Chi, Director of Corporate Affairs.

2017 OBJECTIVES Achievement

Ensure at least 60% of = 72% of offices have an RE Cares

offices have an RE Cares Champion

Champion = Expansiontonew locations
including Russia, South Korea,
Taiwan and the UAE

Increase skills-based = Six percentage pointincrease

volunteering = 34% of RE Cares Champions

organised at least one skills-
basedvolunteer eventvs. 28%
in2016

2018 OBJECTIVES

= Foster development of youth employability skills

= Researchimpact of RE Cares on staff retention

OUR 2030 VISION

Use our unique contributions to advance education for
disadvantaged young people, tracking the impact on our
communities near and far.

6.Supply chain

We require our suppliers to meet the high standards we set for
ourselves. Our Supplier Code of Conduct stipulates adherence to
alllaws and best practice inareas such as human rights, labour
and the environment. Through our Socially Responsible Supplier
(SRS) database, in 2017 we tracked 344 key suppliers and those
located in high-risk countries as designated by our Supplier Risk
Toolincorporating eightindicators, including human trafficking
information from the US State Departmentand Environmental
Performance Index results produced by Yale University and

partners. The tracking list changesyear-on-year based on the
number of suppliers we do business with who meet the required
criteria. We ended 2017 with 91% of suppliers on the SRS tracking
listas signatories to the Supplier Code vs.89%in 2016. We have
embedded signing the Supplier Code into our sourcing process
asacriterion for doing business with us, and have an additional
2,624 suppliers not onthe SRS tracking list who have signed the
Supplier Code.

Specialist supply chain auditors, Intertek, undertook 83 external
audits of suppliers as part of their comprehensive Workplace
Conditions Assessment and Corrective and Preventative Actions
programme. Any incidence of non-compliance identified in the
audit processtriggersa corrective action plan agreed with the
supplier, with remediation required on allissues.

The roll-out of our US Supplier Diversity programme continued
in 2017 with efforts to improve the mix of diverse suppliers.

Our focus was on minority, woman, and veteran-owned
businessesandin 2017, resultinginan 8% increasein spend
with suppliersinthese categories. Overall, 11.4% of total US
spend was with diverse suppliers.

2017 OBJECTIVES Achievement

Increase number of = 91%ontracking listversus 89%
suppliersas Code in2016
signatories

Continue using Corrective =
and Preventative Actions
toolto ensure continuous
improvementin audit

83 audits completed

results
Continue to advance US = Minority, woman, and veteran-
Supplier Diversity and owned spendincreased by 8%

Inclusion programme = Spendwith diverse suppliers

was 11.4% of total US spend

2018 OBJECTIVES

= Increase number of suppliers as Code signatories

= Continue using audits to ensure continuous improvement
insupplier performance and compliance

= Continuetoadvance the US Supplier Diversity and Inclusion
programme

OUR 2030 VISION

Reduce supply chain risks related to human rights, labour,

the environment and anti-bribery by ensuring adherence to
our Supplier Code of Conduct through training, auditing and
remediation; drive supply chain innovation, quality and
efficiencies through a strong and diverse network of suppliers.
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7. Environment

Our environmentaltargets, reflecting ourimpact, with

input from stakeholders, can be found along with full
performance datain the 2017 Corporate Responsibility Report
atwww.relx.com/go/CRReport. Targets are science-based,
and include a commitment to certify 50% of the business
againstthe IS0 14001 environmental management system
standard by 2020. In 2017, we purchased 72% of our electricity
fromrenewable energy and Renewable Energy Certificates.
We attained A-,in CDP’s Climate Change programme.

Our Environmental Champions network, employee-led Green
Teams and networks such as the Publishers’ Database for
Responsible Environmental Paper Sourcing provide significant
insightinto managing our environmentalimpacts. Our
Environmental Standards programme sets benchmark
performance and inspires green competition between offices.

In 2017, 37 sites (36% of key locations) achieved five or more
standards and attained green status. On World Environment Day,
the Chief Financial Officer wrote to all staff to share these results
andtorecognise the achievements of Green Heroes from across
the Group chosen by peers for their environmental efforts.
Inaddition, Green Teams submitted environmental engagement
ideasandwinnersreceived funding to carry out their plans.

We have a positive environmentalimpact through our
environmental products and services, which spread good
practice, encourage debate and aid researchersand decision
makers. The most recentresults from the independent Market
Analysis System show that our share of citations in environmental
sciencerepresented 40% of the total market, and 65% in energy
and fuels. Thewinner of Elsevier’'s 2017 Green and Sustainable
Chemistry Challenge was Dr. Dénis Pires de Lima from the
Federal University of Mato Grosso do Sulin Brazil for his project
using natural waste from locally sourced cashew nuts and castor
oilto produce environmentally friendly insecticides against
mosquitoes carrying Zika and Dengue fever, a sustainable
alternative to conventional toxic insecticides.

2017 OBJECTIVES Achievement

35% of locationstoachieve = 36% of locations achieved five

five ormore new Group or more standards
Environmental Standards
Purchase renewable = Achieved through purchase of

electricity equalto 70% European greentariff, green-e
of Global consumption certified USRECs and Gold Power

MBIAIBAQ

Achieve IS0 14001 = Achieved at three additional
Environmental locationsinthe UKand US,
Management System total coverage of the ISO 14001
certification at three certified systemis now 19%

additional locations by headcount

2018 OBJECTIVES
= Purchaserenewable electricity equal to 80% of global
consumption

= 40% of locations to achieve five or more new Group
Environmental Standards

= Achieve ISO 14001 certification at an additional three
locations

OUR 2030 VISION

Meet long-range environmental targets that will contribute to
keeping global average climate warming to below two degrees
Celsius and help others do so through our environmental
contentand services.

2017 ENVIRONMENTAL PERFORMANCE

Absolute performance Intensityratio
2017 variance 2016 2017 variance 2016
Scope 1(direct 8,231 3% 7,966 112 3% 1.16
emissions|tCOze .
Scope?2 84,590 -8% 91,913 11.50 -14% 13.33

(location-based
emissions] tCOze
Scope 2
(market-based

emissions)tCOse

21,831 -32% 32,153 297 -36% 466

Total energy 186,228  -5% 195556 25.32  -11% 28.36
(MWh)

Water(m®) 344,918 2% 337,889 4690 4% 49.00
Waste sent to 24% 0 %pts 24%  0.22 -12% 0.25
landfill (%)* .
Production 36,484  21% 46128 496  -26% 6.69
paper (t)

* Intensity metric shows tonnes of waste sent to landfill/ £m revenue
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7. Environment (continued)

ENVIRONMENTAL TARGETS

2017

Focusarea Targets 2020 performance

Climate change Reduce Scope 1and 2 location based carbon emissions by 40% againsta 2010 baseline -42%

Energy Reduce energyand fuel consumption by 30% againsta 2010 baseline -32%

Purchase renewable electricity equi\'/‘é'[é‘r'i't‘to 100% of RELX Group's global electricity cor‘éﬂﬁwﬁption 72%

Waste Decrease total waste generated at reporting locations by 40% againsta 2010 baseline -47%

90% of waste from reporting locationsto be diverted from landfill 87%

Productio'ﬁ”b‘éb‘ér* 100% of RELX Group production papers, graded in PREPS, to be rated as ‘known and 100%
responsible sources’

Environmental  Achieve ISO 14001 certification for 50% of the business by 2020 19%

Management
System

* Allpaperwe gradedin 2017 - 90% of total production stock - was graded 3 or 5 stars (known and responsible sources).

We have reported onall emission sources required under the Companies Act 2006 (Strategic Reportand Directors’ Report) Regulations 2013. We have included
emissions fromall operating companies within the Group.

We have used the GHG Protocol Corporate Accounting and Reporting Standard (revised edition) and the data has been assured by anindependent third party, EY.
Details on methodology and the assurance statement can be viewed in the 2017 Corporate Responsibility Report at www.relx.com/go/CRReport.

2017 investor and other recognition

£ £
oY

INCDP

E ‘E"ﬁEEN

>

POWER
—— DISCLOSURE INSIGHT ACTION "WPARTNER FTSE4Good
Constituent of the Ethibel CDP EPA Green Power Leader FTSE4Good Index
Sustainability Index - Climate programme score: A-  -Top 100 Includedin

Includedin
- Excellence Europe
- Excellence Global

- Forestprogramme score: A-
- Water programme score: B

=

-FTSE4Good Global Index
-FTSE4Good UK Index
-FTSE4Good Europe Index

EURONEXT
RE 100 vigee S
) imi> isoni s ]
RE100 EuronextVigeo 1S0 14001 STOXX Global ESG
-member -UK20 -Benelux20  -certified LeadersIndices
—-Eurozone 120 -Europe 120 -included
P i, CRRA
@m W sustainability SEAL b ’

‘r CRReportingAwards 1/
ECPlIndices SEAL award for Business Oekom Corporate Corporate Responsibility
-included Sustainability Responsibility Rating Reporting Awards 17

-2017winner for
Organisational Impact

- Prime status

@ The full2017 Corporate Responsibility Reportis available at www.relx.com/go/crreport

-Top 10 Best Corporate
Responsibility Report

-Top 10 Best Carbon
Reporting
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Chief Financial Officer’s report

Nick Luff
Chief Financial Officer

In 2017 we maintained the trends
in financial performance seen

in 2016. Underlying revenue and
adjusted operating profit growth
were 4% and 6% respectively.

The capital structure of the Group
continues to be managed to
increase long-term shareholder
value whilst maintaining
appropriate leverage. Our balance
sheet remains strong, with Return
on Invested Capital of 13.1%.

Revenue

Underlying growth of revenue was 4%, with all four market
segments contributing to underlying growth. The underlying
growth rate reflects good growth in electronic and face-to-face
revenues, partially offset by continued print revenue declines.

Reported revenue, including the effects of exhibition cycling,
portfolio changesand currency movements, was £7,355m
(2016: £6,895m), up 7%.

Exhibition cycling effects reduced revenue growth by 1%, and
the netimpact of acquisitions and disposals reduced revenue
growth by 1%. The impact of currency movements was to
increase revenue by 5%, principally due to the US dollar and
euro being strongeragainst sterling on average during 2017.

Profit

Underlying adjusted operating profit grew ahead of revenue at 6%,
reflecting the benefit of tight cost control across the Group.

Totaladjusted operating profit, including the impact of
acquisitions and disposals and currency effects, was £2,284m
(2016: £2,114m), up 8%.

Acquisitions and disposals decreased adjusted operating profit

by 3%. Currency effectsincreased adjusted operating profit by 5%,
in line with the impact on revenue.

Underlying operating cost growth was 2%, reflecting investment
in globaltechnology platforms and the launch of new products
and services, partly offset by continued process innovation.
Actions continue to be taken across our businesses toimprove
cost-efficiency. Total operating costs, including the impact of
acquisitions, disposals and currency effects, increased by 6%.

The overall adjusted operating margin of 31.1% was 0.4 percentage
points higher thanin the prioryear. Onan underlying basis,
including cycling effects, the marginimproved by 0.7 percentage
points. Acquisitions and disposals reduced the margin by 0.4
percentage pointsand currency effects increased the margin

by 0.1 percentage points.

Reported operating profit, afteramortisation of acquired
intangible assets and acquisition-related costs, was £1,905m
(2016:£1,708m).

REVENUE ADJUSTED OPERATING PROFIT
£m £m
6,895 7,355 2114 2,284
6,035 5.773 5,971 1749 1,739 1,822
2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017
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Change
2017 2016 atconstant Change
£m £m Change  currencies  underlying
Reported figures
Revenue 7,355 6,895 7% 2% 4%
Operating profit 1,905 1,708 12%
Profit before tax 1,734 1,473 18%
Net profit attributable to RELXPLC and RELX NV shareholders 1,659 1,161 43%
Net margin 22.6% 16.8%
Net borrowings 4,732 4,700
Earnings pershare 82.2p 56.3p 46%
Adjusted figures
Operating profit 2,284 2,114 8% 3% 6%
Operating margin 31.1% 30.7%
Profit before tax 2,118 1,934 10%
Net profit attributable to RELXPLC and RELX NV shareholders 1,635 1,488 10%
Net margin 22.2% 21.6%
Cash flow 2,192 2,016 9%
Cash flow conversion 96% 95%
Returnoninvested capital 13.1% 13.0%
Earnings pershare 81.0p 72.2p 12% 7%

RELXGroup uses adjusted and underlying figures as additional performance measures. Adjusted figures primarily exclude the amortisation of acquired intangible assets and
otheritemsrelated toacquisitions and disposals, and the associated deferred tax movements. In 2017, we have excluded the exceptional tax credit arising as a result of the US
Tax Cutsand Jobs Act. Reconciliations between the reported and adjusted figures are set out on page 186. Underlying growth rates are calculated at constant currencies, and
exclude theresults ofallacquisitionsand disposals made in both the yearand prioryearand of assets held for sale. Underlying revenue growth rates also exclude the effects
of exhibition cycling. Constant currency growth rates are based on 2016 full-year average and hedge exchange rates.

The amortisation chargeinrespect of acquired intangible assets,
including the share of amortisationinjoint ventures, decreased
to £314m (2016: £346m), primarily reflecting certain assets
becoming fully amortised, partially offset by currency effects and
acquisitions. Acquisition-related costs were £56m (2016: £51m).

Adjusted interestexpense, excluding the net pension financing
charge of £15m (2016: £14m) and including finance income in
jointventures of £1m (2016: £1m), was £166m (2016: £180m).
The decrease primarily reflects a lower average interest rate
on borrowings, partly offset by currency translation effects.

Reported net finance costs were £182m (2016: £195m).

Net pre-tax disposal gainswere £11m (2016: £40m loss] arising
largely fromthe sale of Risk & Business Analytics businesses
and revaluation of investments held. These gains are offset by
anassociated tax charge of £16m (2016: £34m credit).

Adjusted profit before tax was £2,118m (2016: £1,934m), up 10%.
The reported profit before taxwas £1,734m (2016: £1,473m).

ADJUSTED OPERATING PROFIT MARGIN

The adjusted effective tax rate on adjusted profit before tax was
22.5%, 0.2 percentage points lower than the prioryear rate of
22.7%.The adjusted effective tax rate excludes movementsin
deferred taxation assets and liabilities related to goodwill and
acquiredintangible assets, butincludes the benefit of tax
amortisation where available on those items. Adjusted operating
profits and taxation are grossed up for the equity share of taxes
injointventures. The application of tax law and practice is subject
tosome uncertaintyand amounts are provided in respect of this.
Discussions with tax authorities relating to cross-border
transactions and other matters are ongoing. Although the
outcome of openitems cannot be predicted, no significantimpact
on profitability is expected.

ADJUSTED CASH FLOW CONVERSION

290%  301%  30.5%  30.7%  31.1%

2013 2014 2015 2016 2017

97% 96% 94% 95% 96%

2013 2014 2015 2016 2017
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The reported tax charge was £67m (2016: £304m). The decrease
inthe tax chargeis due tothe US Tax Cuts and Jobs Act, which
includes areductionin the federal corporate tax rate from 35% to
21% from January 2018. Consequently, the Group has measured
its US deferred tax assets and liabilities at the end of the reporting
period ata combined tax rate (including state taxes) of 26%. This
resulted in the recognition of an exceptional tax credit of £346m
intheincome statement.

The adjusted net profit attributable to RELXPLC and RELXNV
shareholders of £1,635m (2016: £1,488m) was up 10%. Adjusted

Payments made in respect of acquisition-related costs amounted
to£42m (2016: £40m).

Free cash flow before dividends was £1,544m (2016: £1,414m).
Ordinarydividends paid to shareholders in the year, being the 2016
finaland 2017 interim dividends, amounted to £762m (2016: £683m).
Free cash flow after dividends was £782m (2016: £731m).

RECONCILIATION OF CASH GENERATED FROM OPERATIONS
TO ADJUSTED CASH FLOW

YEAR TO 31 DECEMBER 2017 2016
earnings per share were up 12% at 81.0p (2016: 72.2p) when £m £m
expressed?n sterlingand 5% at €0.923 [2016:€0.880].when Cash generated from operations 2,445 2.236
expr?ssedln euros..At constantrates of exchange, adjusted Dividends received from joint ventures 38 m
earnings per shareincreased by 7%. Purchases of property, plant and
The reported net profit attributable to RELX PLC and RELX NV equipment (51) (51)
shareholders was £1,659m (2016: £1,161m). Expenditure oninternally developed

intangible assets (303) (282)
Paymentsin relation to acquisition-
Cash flows related costs/other 62 68
Proceeds from disposals of property,
Adjusted cash flowwas £2,192m (2016: £2,016m), up 9% plantand equipment 1 1
compared with the prioryearand up 3% at constant currencies. Adtd """" hfl """""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""" 2192 """""" 2016
The rate of conversion of adjusted operating profit to adjusted Justed cashow ’ !
cash flowwas 96% (2016: 95%).
FREE CASH FLOW
CONVERSION OF ADJUSTED OPERATING PROFIT INTO CASH YEAR TO 31 DECEMBER 2017 2016
YEAR TO 31 DECEMBER 2017 2016 - . L
£m £m Adjusted cash flow 2,192 2,016
Adjusted operating profit 2,284 2,114 Intere§t paid (net) (148) (152)
Capital expenditure (354) (333) Taxpaid i (472) (423)
Depreciation and amortisation of internally Acquisition-relatedcosts* 28 @)
developedintangible assets 272 257  Freecashflowbefore dividends 1,544 1,414
Working capital and other items (10) (22)  Ordinarydividends (762) (683)
Adjusted cash flow 2,192 2,016  Freecashflowpostdividends 782 731
Cash flow conversion 96% 95%

Capital expenditure was £354m (2016: £333m), including

£303m (2016: £282m) in respect of capitalised development costs.
Thisreflects sustained investmentin new products and related
infrastructure acrossthe business. Depreciation and the
amortisation of internally developed intangible assets was
£272m (2016: £257m). Capital expenditure was 4.8% of revenue
(2016:4.8%). Depreciation and amortisation was 3.7% of revenue
(2016:3.7%).

Tax paid, excluding tax relief on acquisition-related costs and
ondisposals, of £472m (2016: £423m]) increased as a result of
improved profits and movements in exchange rates. Interest
paid was £148m (2016: £152m).

*Including cash taxrelief.

Total consideration on acquisitions completedin the year
was £123m (2016: £338m). Cash spent on acquisitions was
£141m (2016: £367m), including deferred consideration of
£13m (2016: £24m) on past acquisitions and spend onventure
capitalinvestments of £10m (2016: £6m).

Total consideration for the disposal of non-strategic assetsin 2017
was £87m (2016: £16m). Net cash inflow after timing differences and
separation and transaction costs was £34m (2016: £13m outflow).

Sharerepurchases by RELXPLC and RELXNVin 2017 were
£700m (2016: £700m), with a further £100m repurchasedin 2018
asat 14 February. Inaddition, the Employee Benefit Trust
purchased shares of RELXPLC and RELX NV to meet future
obligationsinrespect of share based remuneration totalling
£39m (2016: £29m). Proceeds from the exercise of share options
were £32m (2016: £23m).
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RECONCILIATION OF NET DEBT YEAR-ON-YEAR

YEAR TO 31 DECEMBER 2017 2016
£m £m

Netdebtat 1 January (4,700) (3,782)
Free cash flow postdividends 782 731
Net disposal proceeds/(payments) 34 (13)
Acquisition cash spend (141) (367)
Share repurchases (700) (700)
Purchase of shares by the Employee

Benefit Trust (39) (29)
Other* - (31)
Currencytranslation 32 (509)
Movementinnetdebt (32) (918)
Net debt at 31 December (4,732) (4,700)

*Cashtaxreliefondisposals, distributions to non-controllinginterests, pension
deficit payments, finance leases and share option exercise proceeds.

Funding

Debt
Gross borrowings at31 December 2017 amounted to £4,886m
(2016: £4,843m). The fairvalue of related derivative net assets

Liquidity

The Group has a $2.0bn committed bank facility, maturing in

July 2020, which provides security of funding for short-term debt.
At 31 December 2017, this facility was undrawn. In March 2017,
€1.0bnintotal of euro denominated fixed rate term debt was
issued with coupons of 0.375% and 1.000% and maturities of
fouryearsand sevenyears, respectively. The Group hasample
liquidity and access to debt capital markets, providing the ability
torepayorrefinance borrowings as they mature and to fund
ongoing requirements.

Invested capital and returns

Net capital employed was £8,016m at 31 December 2017 (2016:
£8,484m), areduction of £468m. The carrying value of goodwill
and acquiredintangible assets decreased by £888m, reflecting
the weakening of the dollar against sterling from the beginning to
the end of 2017, partly offset by acquisitions. An amount of £56m
was capitalisedin theyearinrespect of acquired intangible assets
and £77m was recorded as goodwill.

SUMMARY BALANCE SHEET

AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2017 2016
was £43m (2016: net liabilities of £19m). Cash and cash equivalents £m £m
totalled E111m[2016:£162m].|n aggregate, these give the net Goodwilland acquired intangible assets* 8,023 8,911
borrowings figure of £4,732m (2016: £4,700m). Internally developed intangible assets* 1,136 1,085
The effective interest rate on gross borrowings was 3.2%in 2017, Property, plantand equipment*and
0.6 percentage points lower than the prioryear, reflecting the investments 452 481
benefit of refinancing historical bonds that had higher rates of Netassets held for sale - 1
interest. Asat 31 December 2017, gross borrowings had aweighted ~ Netpension obligations (328) (636)
average life remaining of 4.6 years and atotal of 44% of themwere ~ Working capital (1,267) (1,358)
atfixed rates, after taking into account interest rate derivatives. Net capital employed 8,016 8,484
The ratio of net debt to 12-month trailing EBITDA (adjusted *Net of accumulated depreciation and amortisation.
earnings before interest, tax, depreciation and amortisation)
was 1.9x(2016: 1.8x), calculated in US dollars. Incorporating the
capitalisation of operating leases and the net pension deficit, in
line with the approach taken by credit rating agencies, the ratio
was 2.2x(2016:2.2x).

RELX GROUP TERM DEBT MATURITIES AT 31 DECEMBER 2017 RETURN ON INVESTED CAPITAL
$m
9 12.8% 7% 13.0% 13.1%
993 i 12.1% o 127%
806 819
661 o 601
282 50 B
7

2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 2024 2025 2026 2027 »2027 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017

Term debt translated at 31 December 2017 exchange rates, stated at par value
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Development costs of £304m (2016: £280m] were capitalised
withininternally developed intangible assets, most notably
investmentin new products and related infrastructure in the
Legaland Scientific, Technical & Medical businesses.

Net pension obligations, i.e. pension obligations less pension
assets, decreased to £328m (2016: £636m). There was a net
deficit of £89m (2016: £393m) in respect of funded schemes,
which were on average 98% funded at the end of the year on

an IFRS basis. The lower deficit mainly reflects strong asset
performance in both the UKand the US schemes, and changes
tothe UK schemeresultingina £42m creditand a corresponding
reductionin the liability.

The post-tax return on averageinvested capitalinthe year was
13.1%(2016: 13.0%).

RETURN ON INVESTED CAPITAL

AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2017 2016

£m £m
Adjusted operating profit 2,284 2,114
Tax at effective rate (514) (480)
Effective tax rate 22.5% 22.7%
Adjusted operating profit after tax 1,770 1,634
Average invested capital* 13,501 12,538
Return oninvested capital 13.1% 13.0%

* Average of invested capital atthe beginning and the end of the year, retranslated
ataverage exchange rates fortheyear. Invested capitalis calculated as net capital
employed, adjusted toadd back accumulated amortisation, impairment of acquired
intangible assetsand goodwilland to exclude the gross up to goodwillinrespect of
deferredtax.

Reported earnings per share and dividends

2017 2016
RELXPLC £m £m Change
Reported earnings pershare 82.2p 56.3p +46%
Ordinarydividend pershare 39.4p 35.95p +10%
RELXNV €m €m Change
Reported earnings pershare €0.936 €0.687 +36%
Ordinarydividend pershare €0.448 €0.423 +6%

The reported earnings per share for RELXPLC was 82.2p (201é:
56.3p) and for RELX NV was €0.936 (2016: €0.687). The high
growthintheyearreflects theimpact of the exceptional tax credit
recognised asaresult of the US Tax Cuts and Jobs Act.

The final dividends proposed by the respective Boards are 27.7p
pershare for RELXPLC and €0.316 per share for RELXNV, 8% and
5% higherrespectively compared with the prioryear final dividends.
This gives total dividends for the year of 39.4p (2016: 35.95p) and
€0.448(2016: €0.423). The difference in growth ratesin the final
dividends reflects changesinthe euro:sterling exchange rate
since the prioryear final dividend announcement date.

Dividend cover, based on adjusted earnings per share and the total
interim and proposed final dividends for the year, is 2.1x. The
dividend policy of RELXPLC and RELXNVis, subject to currency
considerations, to grow dividends broadly in line with adjusted
earnings per share while maintaining dividend cover (being the
number of times the annual dividend is covered by the adjusted
earnings per share) of at least two times over the longer term.

During 2017, atotal of 44.5m RELXPLC and RELXNV shares were
repurchased. Total consideration for these repurchases was
£700m. Afurther 1.2m RELXPLC sharesand 1.3m RELXNV
shareswere purchased by the Employee Benefit Trust. During
2017,22.5m RELXPLC and 22m RELXNV shares held intreasury
were cancelled. Asat31 December 2017, total sharesinissue for
RELXGroup, netof shares held in treasury and shares held by the
Employee Benefit Trust, amounted to 2,004m; represented by
1,060m RELXPLC sharesand 944m RELX NV shares. Afurther
3.3mRELXPLC sharesand 2.9m RELXNV shares have been
repurchasedin 2018 as at 14 February.

Distributable reserves

Asat 31 December 2017, RELXPLC and RELXNV each had
distributable reserves of over £1.5bn (€1.7bn). In line with
respective legislation in the UKand the Netherlands, distributable
reserves are derived from the non-consolidated RELXPLC and
RELXNVbalance sheets. The consolidated Group reserves reflect
adjustments such as the amortisation of acquired intangible
assetsthatare nottakenintoaccountwhen calculating
distributable reserves.

Furtherinformation onthe distributable reserves of RELXPLC
and RELXNV can be found in the parent company financial
statements on pages 173 and 180 respectively.

Alternative performance measures

The Group uses adjusted figures, which are not defined by
generally accepted accounting principles ("GAAP”) such as IFRS.
Adjusted figures and underlying growth rates are presented as
additional performance measures used by management, as they
provide relevantinformation in assessing the Group’s performance,
position and cash flows. We believe that these measures enable
investors to more clearly track the core operational performance
of the Group, by separating outitems of income or expenditure
relating toacquisitions, disposals and capitalitems, while
providing our investors with a clear basis for assessing our ability
toraise debtandinvestin new business opportunities. In 2017, we
have excluded the exceptionaltax creditarising as a result of the
US Tax Cuts and Jobs Act from our adjusted measures.

Our management uses these financial measures, along with IFRS
financial measures, in evaluating the operating performance of
the Group asawhole and the individual business segments.
Adjusted financial measures should not be considered inisolation
from, or as a substitute for, financialinformation presentedin
compliance with IFRS. The measures may not be directly
comparable tosimilarly reported measures by other companies.
Please see page 186 for reconciliations of adjusted measures.
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Accounting policies

The consolidated financial statements are prepared in accordance
with International Financial Reporting Standards as adopted

by the European Unionand as issued by the International
Accounting Standards Board following the accounting policies
showninthe notes to the financial statements on pages 122 to 164.
The accounting policies and estimates which require the most
significant judgement relate to the valuation of goodwill and
intangible assets, the capitalisation of development costs,
taxation and accounting for defined benefit pension schemes.
Further detailis provided in the accounting policies on pages 122
and 123 and in the relevant notes to the accounts.

New accounting standards

RELX GroupwilladoptIFRS 9, 15and 16 from 1 January 2018.
For IFRS 16 thisis oneyear earlier than its mandatory adoption
date. Please see note 1to the consolidated financial statements
for further details on the impact of these new standards.

Tax principles

Taxationisanimportantissue for usand our stakeholders,
including our shareholders, governments, customers, suppliers,
employees and the broader, global communities in which we
operate. We have set out ourapproach totaxin our global tax
strategy. Thisincorporates our Tax Principles along with
additional disclosures around where we pay taxes and our broader
contribution to society. Thisis all made publicly available on our
website: (www.relx.com/go/TaxPrinciples).

We maintain an open dialogue with tax authorities, and are vigilant
in ensuring that we comply with current tax legislation. We have
clearand consistent tax policies and tax matters are dealt with by
aprofessionaltax function, supported by external advisers. We
proactively seek toagree arm’s length pricing with tax authorities
to mitigate tax risks of significant cross-border operations. We
actively engage with policy makers, tax administrators, industry
bodies and internationalinstitutions to provide informed input on
proposed tax measures, so that we and they can understand how
those proposals would affect our businesses. In addition, we
participate in consultations with the Organisation for Economic
Co-operation and Development (“OECD"), European bodies and
the United Nations.

Treasury policies

The Boards of RELXPLC, RELXNVand RELX Group plc agree
policies for managing treasuryrisks. The key policies address
security of funding requirements, the target fixed/floating
interest rate exposure for debt and foreign currency hedging

and place limits on counterparty exposures. Amore extensive
summary of these policies is provided in note 19 to the financial
statements on pages 147 to 152. Financialinstruments are used
tofinance the RELX Group businesses and to hedge transactions.
The Group's businesses do not enter into speculative transactions.

Capital and liquidity management

The capital structure is managed to support the Group’s objective
of maximising long-term shareholder value through appropriate
security of funding, ready access to debt and capital markets,
cost-effective borrowing and flexibility to fund business and
acquisition opportunities while maintaining appropriate leverage
toensure an efficient capital structure.

Overthe long-term, the Group seeks to maintain cash flow
conversion of 90% or higher and credit rating agency metrics
thatare consistent with a solid investment grade credit rating.
These metrics as defined by the rating agenciesinclude net debt
to EBITDA, onapensions and lease adjusted and on an unadjusted
basis, and various measures of cash flow as a percentage of
netdebt.

The Group’s uses of free cash flow over the longer term balance
the dividend policy, selective acquisitions and share repurchases,
while retaining the balance sheet strength to maintain access

to cost-effective sources of borrowing. Further detail on the
Group’s capitaland liquidity management is provided on pages 147
and 148.

Corporate responsibility

We work to minimise any negative environmentalimpact of
conducting our business, not least by continuing to expand our
purchase of renewable energy, which equated to 72% of our
globalelectricity consumptionin 2017.

We also achieved our goal of having 35% of our reporting locations
achieve green status by meeting five or more of our environmental
standards, which set target energy and water usage and waste
levels per person. Intheyear, three additional locations gained
ISO 14001 Environmental Management System certification.

We make a positive environmentalimpact through our products
and serviceswhich inform environmental debate, aid decision
makers and encourage research and development. In 2017, this
included more than 100 environmental sciences journals and
shows like World Efficiency Solutions, which allows environmental
innovators to meet business and government representatives,
among others, seeking environmental solutions.

Our Green Teams, local level environmental networks,
representing nearly 19,000 colleagues across the business,
advance environmental good practice. In 2017, | chaired regular
Environmental Checkpoint meetings totrack progress against
our environmental objectives. | highlighted our environmental
targetsand performance inan email to all staff globally on
World Environment Day in June.

Nick Luff
Chief Financial Officer
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Principalrisks

The Group has established risk management practices thatare
embedded into the operations of the businesses, based on the
Internal Control-Integrated Framework (2013) by the Committee
of Sponsoring Organisations of the Treadway Commission
(COSO0). The principalrisks facing the business, which have been
assessed by the Audit Committees and Boards, are described
below. The Directors confirm this processis robust andincludes
consideration of risks, including long-term systemic risks and
risks arising from the impact the Group has on external parties,
that could threaten the Group’s business models, future
performance, solvency or liquidity. Itis not possible to identify
everyrisk that could affect our businesses, and the actions taken

to mitigate the risks described below cannot provide absolute
assurance thata risk will not materialise and/or adversely affect
our business or financial performance. Our risk management
andinternal control processes are described in the Corporate
Governance section. Adescription of the businessand a
discussion of factors affecting performance is setoutin the
Chief Executive Officer’'s reportand the Business Review.
Treasuryrisks are further discussed in the Chief Financial
Officer'sreportandin note 19 to the consolidated financial
statements. Ourapproach to managing environmentaland other
non-financialrisksis set outin the Business Review and the
separate Corporate Responsibility Report.

Risk Descriptionandimpact Mitigation

Economy Demand forour products and services may be adversely Our businesses are focused on professional markets

and market impacted by factors beyond our control, such as the which have generally been more resilientin periods of

conditions economic environmentin the United States, Europe and economic downturn. We deliver information solutions,

other major economies, political uncertainties (including many on a subscription basis, which are important to

the potential consequences of the United Kingdom'’s our customers’ effectiveness and efficiency. We have

withdrawal from the European Union under Article 50 of extended our position in long-term global growth

the Treaty of Lisbon), acts of war, terrorism and civil unrest markets through organic new launches supported by the

aswellas levels of governmentand private funding provided selective acquisition of content and data sets. We continue

toacademicand researchinstitutions. todispose of businesses that no longer fit our strategy.
We continuously monitor economic and political
developmentstoassesstheirimpacton our strategy
which is designed to mitigate these risks.

Intellectual Our products and servicesinclude and utilise intellectual We actively engage in developing and promoting the

propertyrights property. Werely ontrademark, copyright, patentand legal protection of intellectual property rights. Our
otherintellectual property laws to establish and protect subscription contracts with customers contain provisions
our proprietaryrightsinthisintellectual property. There regarding the use of proprietary content. We are vigilant
isarisk thatour proprietaryrights could be challenged, astotheuseof ourintellectual propertyand, as
limited, invalidated or circumvented, which mayimpact appropriate, take legalaction to challenge illegal content
demand forand pricing of our products and services. distribution sources.

Copyright laws are subject to national legislative initiatives,
aswellas crossborderinitiatives such as those from the
European Commission, and increased judicial scrutiny
inseveraljurisdictionsin which we operate. This creates
additional challenges forusin protecting our proprietary
rightsin content delivered through the internetand
electronic platforms.

Dataresources Anumber of our businesses rely extensively upon content We seek as faras possible to have proprietary content.
and data from external sources. Data is obtained from Where contentis supplied to us by third parties, we aim to
public records, governmental authorities, customers have contracts which provide mutual commercial benefit.
and other information companies, including competitors. We also maintain an active dialogue with regulatory
Legalregulations, such as the European Union’s General authorities on privacy and other data related issues,
Data Protection Regulation (‘GDPR"), relating to internet and promote, with others, the responsible use of data.
communications, privacy and data protection, e-commerce, We have a global privacy programme in place, designed
information governance and use of publicrecords, are to complywith applicable privacy regulationsincluding
becoming more prevalentworldwide. The disruption or GDPR, which applies from 25 May 2018.
loss of data sources, either because of changes in the law
or because data suppliers decide not to supply them, may
impose limits on our collection and use of certain kinds of
information aboutindividuals and our ability to communicate
suchinformation effectively with our customers.

Paid Our Scientific, Technical & Medical (STM) primary research We engage extensively with stakeholdersinthe STM

subscriptions

content, like that of most of our competitors, is sold largely
on apaid subscription basis. There is continued debate in
government, academicand library communities, which
arethe principal customers for our STM content, regarding
towhat extent such content should be funded instead
through fees charged to authors or authors’ funders
and/or made freely available in some form after a period
following publication. Some of these methods, if widely
adopted, could adversely affect our STM revenue from

paid subscriptions.

community to better understand their needs and deliver
value to them.We are open to serving the STM community
under any payment model that can sustainably provide
researcherswith the criticalinformation tools that they
need. We focus on the integrity and quality of research
through the editorialand peer review process; we invest
in efficient editorial and distribution platformsandin
innovation in platforms and tools to make contentand
datamore accessible and actionable; and we ensure
vigilance on plagiarism and the long-term preservation
of research findings.
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STRATEGIC RISKS
Risk

Descriptionandimpact

Mitigation

Customer
acceptance
of products

Our businesses are dependent on the continued acceptance
by our customers of our products and services and the value
placed onthem. Failure to meet evolving customer needs
could impactdemand for our products and services and
consequently adversely affect our revenue or the long-term
returns from our investmentin electronic productand
platforminitiatives.

We are focused on the needs and economics of our
customers. We leverage user centred design and
development methods and customer analytics and invest
innewand enhanced technologies to provide contentand
innovative solutions that help them achieve better
outcomes and enhance productivity.

Competition

Ourbusinesses operate in highly competitive markets, and
the means of delivering our products and services, and the
products and services themselves, continue to change in
response to rapid technological innovations, legislative and
regulatory changes, the entrance of new competitors and

otherfactors. Failure to anticipate and quickly adapt to these

changes could impact the competitiveness of our products

andservicesand consequently adversely affect our revenue.

We gaininsightsinto our markets, evolving customers’
needs, the potential application of new technologies and
business models, and the actions of competitors. These
insightsinform our market strategies and operational
priorities. We continuously invest significant resources
inour products and services, and the infrastructure to
supportthem.

Acquisitions

We supplement our organic development with selected
acquisitions. If we are unable to generate the anticipated
benefits such as revenue growth and/or cost savings

associated with these acquisitions this could adversely affect

returnoninvested capitaland financial condition, or lead to
animpairment of goodwill.

Acquisitions are made within the framework of our
overall strategy, which emphasises organic development.
We have awell formulated process forreviewingand
executing acquisitions and for managing the post-
acquisition integration. This processis underpinned with
clear strategic, financial and ethical criteria. We closely
monitor the integration and performance of acquisitions.
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OPERATIONAL RISKS
Risk

Descriptionandimpact

Mitigation

Technology
failure

Ourbusinesses are dependenton electronic platformsand

networks, primarily the internet, for delivery of our products

andservices. These could be adversely affected if our
electronicdelivery platforms or networks experience
asignificant failure, interruption or security breach.

We have established procedures for the protection of our
technology assets. These include the development of
business continuity plans, including IT disaster recovery
plans and back-up delivery systems, to reduce business
disruptioninthe event of a major technology failure.

Cyber security

Ourbusinesses maintain online databases and information,
including public records and other personalinformation.
As part of maintaining thisinformation and delivering

our productsand services, werely onand provide data to
third parties, including customers and service providers.

These databasesand informationare atarget for compromise

and face arisk of unauthorised access and use by
unauthorised parties.

Our cyber security measures, and the measures used by
our third-party service providers, may notdetect or prevent
allattempts to compromise our systems, which may
jeopardise the security of the data we maintain or may

disrupt our systems. Failures of our cyber security measures

could resultinunauthorised accessto our systems,
misappropriation of our orourusers’ data, deletion or
modification of stored information or other interruption
toourbusiness operations. As techniques used to obtain
unauthorised accesstoortosabotage systems change
frequently, and may not be known until launched against
usorourthird-party service providers, we may be unable
toanticipate orimplement adequate measures to protect
againstthese attacks and our service providers and
customers may likewise be unable to do so.

Compromises of ourorourthird-party service providers’
systems, or failure to comply with applicable legislation
orregulatory or contractual requirements could adversely
affect our financial performance, damage our reputation
and expose us torisk of loss, fines and penalties, litigation
andincreased regulation.

We have established data privacy and security
programmes with the aim of ensuring that data is
protected and thatwe comply with relevant legislative,
regulatoryand contractual requirements.

We have governance mechanismsin place to design
and monitor common policies and standards across
our businesses.

We investinappropriate administrative, technicaland
physical controls which are applied across the enterprise
inarisk based security programme which operates at the
infrastructure, applicationand user levels. These controls
include, butare not limited to, infrastructure vulnerability
management, application scanning and penetration
testing, network segmentation, encryptionand logging
and monitoring. Our administrative controlsinclude
trainingand communication initiatives to establish
awareness of risks atall levels of our businesses. The
RELXGroup Privacy Principlesinclude the requirement
fortransparency, accountability and Privacy by Design.
We have appropriate incident response plans to

respond to threats and attacks, including internal
reporting channels and appropriate externaladvisors
and supportservices. We maintain appropriate data
privacy and information security policies and contractual
requirements forour businessesand run programmes
monitoring the application of our data privacy and
information security policies by third-party service
providers. We use independentinternaland third-party
auditorstoregularly test, evaluate and help enhance

our procedures and controls.

We have established procedures forincorporating the
requirements of relevant laws and regulations into our
overallsecurity programme, including into our policies
and procedures. Our compliance with theseisalso
regularly reviewed and tested.
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OPERATIONAL RISKS
Risk

Descriptionandimpact

Mitigation

Supply chain
dependencies

Ourorganisationaland operational structures depend on
outsourced and offshored functions, including use of cloud
service providers. Poor performance, failure or breach of
third parties towhom we have outsourced activities could
adversely affect our business performance, reputation
and financial condition.

We selectourvendors with care and establish contractual
service levels that we closely monitor, including through
key performanceindicators and targeted supplier audits.
We have developed business continuity plans toreduce
disruptionin the event of a major failure by avendor.

Talent

The implementation and execution of our strategies and
business plans depend on our ability to recruit, motivate
andretain skilled employees and management. We
compete globallyand across business sectors for talented
managementand skilled individuals, particularly those
with technology and data analytics capabilities. Aninability
to recruit, motivate or retain talent could adversely affect
our business performance. Failure torecruitand develop
adiverseandinclusive workforce could adversely affect
our reputation and business performance.

We have well-established management development
andtalent review programmes. We monitor capability
needsand remuneration schemes are tailored to attract
and motivate the best talentavailable atan appropriate
level of cost. We actively seek feedback from employees,
which feeds into plans to enhance employee engagement
and motivation. Our Diversity and Inclusion strategy
aims to create adiverse workforce and an environment
thatrespectsindividuals and their contribution and
fostersinnovation.

FINANCIAL RISKS
Risk

Descriptionandimpact

Mitigation

Pensions

We operate anumber of pension schemes around the
world, including localversions of the defined benefit type
inthe UKand the United States. The assets and obligations
associated with those pension schemes are sensitive to
changesinthe marketvalues of the scheme’s investments
and the market-related assumptions used tovalue scheme
liabilities. Adverse changes to assetvalues, discount rates,
longevity assumptions orinflation could increase future
pension costs and funding requirements.

We have professional management of our pension
schemes and we focus on maintaining appropriate asset
allocation and plan designs. We review our funding
requirementsonaregular basis with the assistance of
independentactuaries and ensure that the funding plans
are appropriate. We seek to manage pension liabilities
by reviewing pension benefits provided to staff as well
asthe structure of scheme arrangements.

Tax

Our businesses operate globally and our profits are subject
to taxationin many different jurisdictions and at differing
taxrates. The Organisation for Economic Co-operation and
Development (OECD)'s reports on Base Erosion and Profit
Shifting suggestarange of new approaches that national
governments mightadopt when taxing the activities of
multinational enterprises. The OECD continues to explore
options around the taxation of the digitaleconomy. As a
result of the OECD’s work and otherinternationalinitiatives,
tax laws that currently apply to our businesses may be
amended by the relevantauthorities or interpreted differently
by them, and these changes could adversely affect our
reportedresults.

We maintain an opendialogue with tax authorities, and
arevigilantin ensuring that we comply with current tax
legislation. We have clear and consistent tax policies
and tax matters are dealt with by a professional tax
function, supported by externaladvisers. As outlined
inthe Chief Financial Officer's report on page 59 we
participate in consultations with tax authorities and
international organisations. The principles we adopt
inourapproach to tax matters can be found on our
website at: www.relx.com/go/taxprinciples.

Treasury

The RELX Group consolidated financial statements are
expressed in pounds sterlingand are subject to movements
inexchange rates on the translation of the financial
information of businesses whose operational currencies
are otherthan sterling. The United States is our most
important marketand, accordingly, significant fluctuations
inthe US dollar exchange rate could significantly affect our
reported results. We also earn revenues andincur costsin
arange of other currencies, including the euro and the yen,
and significant fluctuations in these exchange rates could
alsosignificantlyimpact our reported results.

Macroeconomic, politicaland market conditions may
adversely affect the availability and terms of short and
long-term funding, volatility of interest rates, the credit
quality of our counterparties, currency exchange rates and
inflation. The majority of our outstanding debtinstruments
are, and any of our future debt instruments may be, publicly
rated by independent rating agencies. Our borrowing costs
and accessto capital may be adversely affected if the credit
ratings assigned to our debt are downgraded.

Ourapproach to capital structure and funding is
describedin the Chief Financial Officer’'sreporton
pages 54t059. The approach to the management
of treasuryrisksis describedinnote 19 to the
consolidated financial statements.




Financial review P

rincipal risks

63

REPUTATIONAL RISKS
Risk

Descriptionandimpact

Mitigation

Ethics

Asaworld-leading provider of professionalinformation
solutionstothe STM, risk and business analytics, legal
and exhibitions markets we, our employees and major
suppliersare expected toadhere to high standards of
independence and ethical conduct, including those related
toanti-briberyand anti-corruption, promoting human rights
and principled business conduct. Abreach of generally
accepted ethical business standards orapplicable anti-
briberyand anti-corruption or competition statutes could
adversely affect our business performance, reputation
and financial condition.

Our Code of Ethics and Business Conduct s provided

to everyemployee andis supported by training. It
encompasses such topics as competing fairly, prohibiting
corrupt business practice, promoting human rights and
fairemployment practices and encouraging open and
principled behaviour. We have well-established processes
forreportingandinvestigating instances of unethical
conduct. Our major suppliersarerequired toadhere
toour Supplier Code of Conduct.

Environmental

Our businesses have animpact on the environment,
principally through the use of energy and water, waste
generationand, in our supply chain, through paperuse and
printand production technologies. Failure to manage our
environmentalimpact could adversely affect our reputation.

We are committed to reducing these environmental
impacts by limiting resource use and efficiently
employing sustainable materials and technologies.
We require our major suppliersand contractors
tomeetthe same objectives. We seek to ensure that
allour businesses are compliant with relevant
environmental regulation.

The Strategic Report, as setout on pages 2to 63, has been approved by the Board of RELXPLC.

By order of the Board Registered Office
HenryUdow 1-3 Strand
Company Secretary London

14 February 2018 WC2N5JR
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Board Directors

Executive Directors

Erik Engstrom (54)
Chief Executive Officer

Non-Executive Directors

Sir Anthony Habgood (71)
Chairman

Group since November 2009. Joined the Group
as Chief Executive Officer of Elsevierin 2004.
Other appointments: Non-Executive Director
of Smith & Nephew plc.
Pastappointments: Priorto joining the Group
wasa partnerat General Atlantic Partners.
Before thatwas Presidentand Chief Operating
Officer of Random House Incand President
and Chief Executive Officer of Bantam
Doubleday Dell, North America. Began his
careerasa consultantwith McKinsey. Served
asaNon-Executive Director of Eniro ABand
Svenska Cellulosa Aktiebolaget SCA.
Education: Holds a BSc from Stockholm
Schoolof Economics, an MSc from the Royal
Institute of Technology in Stockholm, and
gainedan MBAfrom Harvard Business
Schoolasa Fulbright Scholar.

Nationality: Swedish

Nick Luff (50)
Chief Financial Officer

Appointed: June 2009
Other appointments: Chairman of: Courtof the
Bankof England and Pregin Holding Limited.
Pastappointments: Previously was Chairman
of Whitbread plc, Bunzl plc, Mdlnlycke Health
Care Limited and Norwich Research Partners
LLPandserved as Chief Executive of Bunzlplc,
Chief Executive of Tootal Group plcanda Director
of The Boston Consulting Group. Formerly
Non-Executive Director of Geest plc, Marks and
Spencer plc, National Westminster Bank plc,
Powergen plc, SVG Capital plc,and Norfolk
and Norwich University Hospitals Trust.
Education: Holdsan MAin Economics from
Cambridge University, an MSin Industrial
Administration from Carnegie Mellon University
andanHonoraryDoctorate of CivilLawfromthe
University of EastAnglia. He is a visiting Fellow
at Oxford University.

Nationality: British

Robert MacLeod (53) (R]C)
Non-Executive Director

Wolfhart Hauser (68)
Non-Executive Director
Senior Independent Director

LR INIC)

Appointed: April 2013

Other appointments: Chairman of FirstGroup
plcand a Non-Executive Director of
Associated British Foods plc.
Pastappointments: Chief Executive Officer
of Intertek Group plc from 2005 until 2015.
Priorto that he was Chief Executive Officer

of TUVSud AG between 1998 and 2002

and Chief Executive Officer of TUV Product
Service GmbH fortenyears. Formerlya
Non-Executive Director of Logica plc.
Education: Holds a master's degreein
Medicine from Ludwig-Maximilian-University
Munich and a Medical Doctorate from
Technical University Munich.

Nationality: German

Carol Mills (64) 00
Non-Executive Director

Appointed: September 2014
Pastappointments: Priortojoining the Group
was Group Finance Director of Centrica plc
from 2007. Before that was Chief Financial
Officerat The Peninsular & Oriental Steam
Navigation Company (P&0) and its affiliated
companies, having previously held anumber
of seniorfinance roles at P&0. Began his
careerasanaccountantwith KPMG.
FormerlyaNon-Executive Director of QinetiQ
Group plcand Lloyds Banking Group plc.
Education: Has adegreein Mathematics from
Oxford Universityandis a qualified

UK Chartered Accountant.

Nationality: British

Appointed: April 2016

Other appointments: Chief Executive

of Johnson Matthey Plc.
Pastappointments: Prior to joining Johnson
Matthey, spentfive years as Group Finance
Director of WS Atkins plc, having joined as
Group Financial Controllerin 2003. From
1993t02002, held avariety of senior finance
and M&Aroleswith Enterprise Oilplcin

the UKand US. Formerly a Non-Executive
Director of Aggreko plc.

Nationality: British

Appointed: April 2016

Other appointments: Independent Director
of Zyngalnc.
Pastappointments: Amember of the Boards
of Adobe Systems, Alaska Communications,
Tekelec Corporation, Blue Coat Systems,
Xactly Corporation, WhiteHat Security

and Ingram Micro. From 2004 to 2006,

was Executive Vice Presidentand General
Manager of the Infrastructure Products
Group at Juniper Networks. From 1998

to 2002 was Chief Executive Officer of

Acta Technology, and before Acta, spent
16years at Hewlett-Packard inanumber

of executive roles.

Nationality: American
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Adrian Hennah (60) (A]C)
Non-Executive Director

Marike van Lier Lels (58) (A]cC]
Non-Executive Director

Suzanne Wood (57) 00
Non-Executive Director

Appointed: April 2011

Other appointments: Chief Financial Officer
of Reckitt Benckiser Group plc.
Pastappointments: Chief Financial Officer
of Smith & Nephew plc from 2006 to 2012.
Before thatwas Chief Financial Officer of
Invensys plc, having previously held various
senior finance and management positions
with GlaxoSmithKline for 18 years. Formerly,
aNon-Executive Director of Indivior PLC.
Nationality: British

Linda Sanford (65) (R]c]
Non-Executive Director

Appointed: RELXNV, January 2010
RELXPLCand RELXGroup plc, July 2015.
Other appointments: Member of the
Supervisory Boards of TKH Group NV,
EnecoHolding NVand NS (Dutch Railways),
and a member of the Executive Committee
of Aegon Association.
Pastappointments: Member of the
Supervisory Boards of Royal Imtech NV,
Maersk BV, KPN NVand USG People NV, and
Executive Vice Presidentand Chief Operating
Officer of the Schiphol Group. Priortojoining
Schiphol Group, was a member of the
Executive Board of Deutsche Post Euro
Expressand held various senior positions
with Nedlloyd. Member of various Dutch
governmentaladvisoryboards.
Nationality: Dutch

Benvander Veer (66)
Non-Executive Director
Chairman of the Audit Committees

0006

Appointed: December 2012

Other appointments: Anindependent
Director of Consolidated Edison, Inc,

Pitney Bowes, Incand ION Trading UK Limited,
anda consultantto The Carlyle Group. Serves
ontheboard of trustees of the New York Hall
of Science.

Pastappointments: SeniorVice President,
Enterprise Transformation, IBM Corporation
until 2014, having joined the company in 1975.
Formerly a Non-Executive Directorof ITT
Corporation, served on the boards of
directors of The Business Council of New York
State and the Partnership for New York City,
andonthe boards of trustees of the State
University of New York, St John's University
and Rensselaer Polytechnic Institute.
Nationality: American

Appointed: September 2009

Other appointments: Member of the
Supervisory Boards of Aegon NVand
Koninklijke FrieslandCampina NV.
Pastappointments: Chairman of the
Executive Board of KPMG in the Netherlands
anda member of the Management Committee
of the KPMG International board until his
retirementin 2008, having joined KPMGin
1976.Formerly a member of the Supervisory
Boards of Royal Imtech NV, Siemens
Nederland NVand Tom Tom NV.

Nationality: Dutch

Appointed: September 2017

Other appointments: Group Finance Director
of Ashtead Group plc.

Pastappointments: Chief Financial Officer of
Ashtead Group’s largest subsidiary, Sunbelt
RentalsInc, from 2003 until 2012. Previously,
shealsoserved as Chief Financial Officer of
two US publicly-listed companies, Oakwood
Homes Corporationand Tultex Corporation.
Nationality: American

Board Committee membership key
() AuditCommittees

(D Remuneration Committee

m Nominations Committee

G Corporate Governance Committee
. Committee Chairman

Allofthe Directorsaredirectors of RELXGroup plc,
RELXPLCand RELXNV.
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RELX Group Business Leaders

Ron Mobed

Chief Executive Officer
Scientific, Technical

& Medical

tocurrent positionin 2012.

Previously President of Cengage
Learning’s Academic &
Professional Group and
Co-Presidentand Co-Chief
Operating Officer with information
services company IHS. Holds a
degree from Trinity College,
Cambridge,andamaster'sdegree
from Imperial College, London.

Mark Kelsey
Chief Executive Officer
Risk & Business Analytics

Business Informationin 2010
and CEO Risk Solutionsin 2012.

Has heldanumber of senior
positions acrossthe Group over
the past 30years. Studied at
LiverpoolUniversityand received
his MBA from Bradford University.

ChetBurchett
Chief Executive Officer
Exhibitions

positionin2015.

Previously President of the
Americas for Reed Exhibitions.
Priorto thatwas Presidentand
Chief Executive Officer, USA,
for Burson-Marsteller, aleading
global publicrelationsagency.
Holds adegree from Baylor
University.

Mike Walsh
Chief Executive Officer
Legal

Joined in 2003. Appointed
tocurrent positionin2011.

Previously CEO of LexisNexis US
Legal Markets and Director

of Strategic Business Development
Home Depot. Priortothatwas
apractising attorney at Weil,
Gotshaland Mangesin Washington
DCandservedasaconsultant

with The Boston Consulting Group.
Holds a Juris Doctor degree

from Harvard Law Schooland
isagraduate of Yale University.
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Kumsal Bayazit
Chairwoman, RELX
Technology Forum
and President,
Exhibitions Europe

Joinedin 2004. Appointed to
currentpositionin 2016.

Previously Chief Strategy
Officer, RELXGroup, and
Executive Vice President
of Global Strategyand
Business Development
for LexisNexis Legal &
Professional. Priorto

that worked with Bain &
Companyin New York,
LosAngeles, Johannesburg
and Sydney. Holds an MBA
fromHarvard Business
SchoolandisaGraduate of
the University of California
at Berkeley.

Youngsuk “YS” Chi
Director of RELX
Corporate Affairs and
Chairman Elsevier

Joined in2005. Appointed to
current positionin 2011.

Previouslywas President
and Chief Operating Officer
of Random House, founding
Chairman of Random House
Asiaand Chief Operating
Officer forIngram

Book Group. Holds an MBA
from Columbia University
andisagraduate of
Princeton University.

Gunjan Aggarwal
Chief Human Resources
Officer

Joinedin 2017. Appointed to
currentpositionatthattime.

Previously head of Human
Resourcesfor Ericsson’s
global mediabusiness
basedinSantaClara,
Silicon Valleyand before
thathead of Human
Resources for Ericsson
North America. Career
includesanumber of
Human Resources positions
inAsia, Europe and North
AmericaatUnileverand
Novartis. Holdsan MBA
from Xavier School of
Management, Jamshedpur,
India, andisagraduate from
JMlInstitute of Technology.

Henry Udow
Chief Legal Officerand
Company Secretary

Joinedin2011. Appointed to

current positionatthattime.

Previously Chief Legal
Officerand Company
Secretary of Cadbury plc
having spent 23years
working with the company.
Priortothatworked at
Shearman & Sterlingin
New Yorkand London.
Holds a Juris Doctor degree
fromthe University of
Michigan Law Schooland
abachelor'sdegreefrom
the University of Rochester.

Andrew Matuch
Chief Strategy Officer

Joinedin2012. Appointed
tocurrentpositionin 2016.

Previously was Executive
Vice President Global
Strategyand Business
Developmentfor LexisNexis
Legaland Professional.
Priortothatwasapartner
at OC&C Strategy
Consultants. Holdsan
MBAfrom Harvard
Business Schooland a
bachelor’'sdegree from
Williams College.
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Chairman’s introduction to Corporate Governance

The Boards remain committed
to maintaining high standards of
corporate governance, and also
to its simplification by removing
complexity from our structure
and processes, and in doing so
increasing transparency.

Our governance framework
lam pleasedto present our Corporate Governance Report
for 2017.

Therole of the Boards is to provide effective leadership for the
Group, and to oversee our strategy and the management of risks
toitsdelivery. Thisreport sets out how the Boards performed
these functions. It summarises their principal activities and
those of the Committees during the year. It also explainsin more
detailthe Group's corporate governance arrangements, and
provides an explanation of how both RELXPLC and RELXNV
(the Companies), have applied the main principles of the 2016 UK
Corporate Governance Code (the Code] during the year. To find
information on the application of the Dutch Corporate Governance
Code 2016 by RELXNV, please see the Corporate Governance
Statement of RELX NV whichis available on our website,
www.relx.com

The Boards remain committed to maintaining high standards
of corporate governance across the Group, which they view

as essential to delivering long-term success and protecting
shareholdervalue. With thisin mind, | am pleased to report that
the Companies complied with each of the provisions of the Code
in2017. The Boards are also committed to the simplification of
the Group’s governance arrangements by removing complexity
fromour structure and processes, and in doing so increasing
transparency. The Boards are, therefore, proposing to
shareholders to move from our current dual parent holding
company structure toasingle parent company. These changes
aredescribed in more detailin the Chairman’s Statement on
page 3.

As part of their leadership role, the Boards are responsible for
developing a culture of appropriate behaviour within RELX Group.
Therefore, they have established comprehensive systems of
corporate governance, whichinclude policies and procedures
that promote corporate responsibility, transparency and
accountability. Central to these policiesis the Group’s Code of
Ethicsand Business Conduct, which sets out clearly the standards
expected for corporate and individual behaviour. The Code of
Ethicsand Business Conduct applies toall Directorsand
employees of the Group, and is available on our website at
www.relx.com. More information onits application can be
foundin the Corporate Responsibility section on page 45.

The Group’s securities are listed in the UK, US and the Netherlands
and therefore the Companies are subject to applicable corporate
governance requirements of those jurisdictions. These
requirements, which are continually evolving, are reviewed and
monitored by the Corporate Governance Committee. The Boards
delegate anumber of other responsibilities to their Committees,
toenablethemto carry out their functions effectively. The Boards’
Committee structureis set out on page 72.

Board changes and succession

During the year, the Nominations Committee continued to keep
the composition of the Boards and their committees under
review to ensure their composition remained appropriate. lam
pleased toreportthat Suzanne Wood, Chief Financial Officer of
Ashtead Group plc, joined the Boards as a Non-Executive Director
in September 2017. Looking ahead, Benvan der Veerwill step
down as Chairman of the Audit Committeesin April 2018 and
Adrian Hennah will be appointed as his replacement. | would
like towelcome Suzanne to the Boards and thank Ben for his
significant contribution during his eight years as Chairman

of the Audit Committees.

Asaconsequence, the composition of the Boards' Committees
was also reviewed by the Nominations Committee, with a small
number of other changes being made to their membership.
The Nominations Committee will continue to monitor Board
and Committee composition and review succession planning
arrangements onanongoing basis.

Biographical details of each of the Directors are setout on
pages 66and 67. The membership of the Boards' Committees
asat31 December 2017 canalsobe found on pages 66 and 67.

Board Evaluation and Effectiveness

As Chairman, lamalso responsible for ensuring that the
effectiveness of the Boards, their Committees and the individual
Directors are evaluated annually. An externally facilitated
evaluationwas last undertaken in 2014/15. Therefore, in
accordance with the Code, the Corporate Governance Committee
appointed an external facilitator, Lorna Parker, to conductan
independent effectiveness review for 2017/18. Details of the
review, which confirmed that the Boards and their Committees
continue to function effectively, and each Director continues to
be effective and to demonstrate commitment to theirroles, are
setoutonpage77.

Having reviewed the results of the review, and taking into account
the changes made to the Boards and Committees during the year,
I believe that the Boards and their Committees continue to operate
effectively, and have an appropriate balance of skills, experience,
independence, knowledge of the Group and diversity to ensure
that they continue todo so.

| also remain satisfied that the Non-Executive Directors have
sufficienttime to undertake theirroles.

Therefore, onthe recommendation of the Nominations Committee,
all Directorswill stand for election or re-election at the Annual
General Meetingsin 2018.

Sir Anthony Habgood
Chairman
14 February 2018
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Corporate Governance Review

Overview

Corporate structure

RELXPLC isa publicly-listed holding company with its shares
traded onthe London and New York stock exchanges. Its principal
assetisthesharesthatitownsin RELXGroup plc, which
represent52.9% of the outstanding shares of RELX Group plc.

RELXNVisa publicly-listed holding company with its shares
traded on the Euronext Amsterdam and New York stock
exchanges. Its principal assetis the shares thatitownsin
RELX Group plc, which represent 47.1% of the outstanding
shares of RELXGroup plc.

RELX Group plc holds all of the operating businesses,
subsidiaries and financing activities of the Group. The Group’s
corporate structure is shown below:

RELXPLC RELXNV

52.9% 47.1%

RELXGroup plc

RELXPLC and RELX NV each have equalvoting rights in
RELXGroup plc. RELXPLC, RELXNVand RELX Group plcare
managed on a unified basis. RELX PLC, RELXNVand RELX Group
plc (and its subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures] are together
known as RELX Group orthe Group.

In2013, RELXNV adopted a unitary Board structure. In 2015,
we implemented a number of significant steps to simplify and
modernise our corporate structure, which resulted in all of

our businesses being owned by one company, RELX Group plc,
with consolidated accounts, all share listings havinga 1to 1
equalisation ratio and the membership of the Boards being fully
aligned.In 2016, the dividends between the shareholders of the
two parent companies were fully equalised.

Approach to corporate governance

The Boards of RELXPLC and RELXNV have implemented
standards of corporate governance and disclosure policies
applicable to companies listed on the London, Amsterdam and
New York stock exchanges. The effect of this is that a standard
applying to one will, where notin conflict, also be observed by
the other.

In 2016, revised versions of the UK Corporate Governance Code
(the UK Code) and the Dutch Corporate Governance Code [the
Dutch Code) were published by the UK Financial Reporting Council
(FRC) and the Dutch Monitoring Committee respectively, with the
UK Code applying to RELXPLC and the Dutch Code applying to
RELXNVfrom 1January 2017. The Boards of RELXPLC and

RELXNV supportthe principles of corporate governance set out
intherevised codes.

Corporate governance compliance and statements

RELXPLC, which hasits primary listing on the main market of
the London Stock Exchange, has complied with the provisions
of the UK Code during the year ended 31 December 2017.

RELXNV, which has its primary listing on the Euronext
Amsterdam Stock Exchange, has also complied throughout
the year with the UK Code.

Adescription of how both RELXPLC and RELXNV have applied
the main principles of the UK Code is set out on pages 72 to 80.
Acopy of the UK Code can be found on the FRC website at @
www.frc.org.uk

Forinformation on the application of the Dutch Code by
RELXNYV, please see the Corporate Governance Statement of
RELXNVwhichisavailable on our website, @www.relx.com

The Directors of RELXPLC and RELXNV are required by the UK
Code to make certain statementsin relation to provisions contained
inthe UK Code. The locations of those statements are as follows:

= Page 2to 63 forthe Strategic Report explaining the Group’s
business modeland the strategy for delivering the objectives
of the Group

= Page 60 for confirmation that the Directors have carried out
arobustassessment of the principal risks facing the Group,
including those that would threatenits business model, future
performance, solvency or liquidity

= Page 79 for confirmation that the Annual Reportand Accounts
is fair, balanced and understandable and provides the
information necessary for shareholders to assess the Group’s
position and performance, business modeland strategy

= Page 80foranexplanation of how the Directors have assessed
the prospects of the Group, taking into account the Group’s
currentpositionand its principalrisks

= Page 79 forthe statement on the status of the Groupasa
going concern
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Application of UK Corporate Governance
Code Principles

Leadership

Role of the Boards and its Committees

The Boards of RELXPLC, RELXNV and RELX Group plc (the
Boards), which are managed on a unified basis, are responsible
for providing leadership of the Group within a framework of
appropriate and effective controls that enable risk to be assessed,
and then managed inamannerwhich promotes the success of the
Group. The Boards are also responsible for overseeing the
Group’s strategy and performance, financial reporting, internal
controland risk management framework, and corporate
governance processes.

Their oversightroleisimplemented on a day-to-day basis through
the operation of aframework of responsibilities and delegated
authorities. Thereis a schedule of matters reserved for the
approval of the Boards, which generally includes those matters
thatare considered material to the current or future financial
performance of the Group. These include matters such asthe
approval of material acquisitions, major capital expenditure,
Group strategy and budgets, the Group’s financial statements and
its dividend policy. In order to allow the Boards sufficient time to
give these matters due attention, anumber of other responsibilities
have been delegated to four principal Board Committees.

Board Committees

These are setoutinthe Terms of Reference for each Committee
which can be found on our website at@www.relx.com.

The membership and activities of these Committees are
described on pages81,83and 103.

There are additionally a number of approved delegated authorities
in place from the Boards to the Chief Executive Officer and other
senior executives which relate principally to the day-to-day
management of the business.

Chairman and Chief Executive - division of responsibilities
Thereisaclearseparation of the roles of the Chairman, who leads
the Boards, and the Chief Executive Officer, whois responsible for
the day-to-day management of the Group, which are set outin
writing. The adjacent tableillustrates the key responsibilities

of the Directors. This division of responsibilities, in addition to

the schedule of matters reserved for the Boards and Terms of
Reference for each Committee, ensures thatthere are appropriate
controlsin place to preventany individual from having unfettered
powers of decision.

The Boards have established a number of Committees, to which they have delegated certain powers. The structure of these
Committees and a summary of their key responsibilities are set out below. Allthe Committees have written Terms of Reference,

which are available on our website: @www.relx.com

The Boards

\!

Audit Committees
Responsible for the oversight
of financialreporting, risk
managementand internal
control policies, and the
effectiveness of theinternal
and externalaudit processes.
The Committees comprise only
independent Non-Executive
Directors.

Report of the Audit
Committees page 103

\2

Remuneration Committee
Responsible for considering the
remuneration of the Group’s
Executive Directorsandthe
Chairman, and advising on
remuneration of senior
executives below Board level.
The Committee comprisesonly
Non-Executive Directors.

Directors’ Remuneration
Report page 83

\: 2

Nominations Committee
Responsible for keepingunder
review the composition of the
Boardsandthe Board
Committees, and the
recruitment of new Directors.
The Committee comprises only
Non-Executive Directors.

Corporate Governance
Committee

Responsible for reviewing
ongoing developmentsand
best practiceincorporate
governance, assessing the
performance of the Directors,
and monitoring the structure,
operationand membership
of the Board Committees.
The Committee comprises
only Non-Executive Directors.

o Reportof the Nominations
Committee page 81
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Roles of the Directors

Chairman

Provides leadership of the Boards, ensuring that they
function effectively

Ensuresthatall Directors are sufficiently appraised
of matters to make informed judgements, through the
provision of accurate, timely and clearinformation

Promotes high standards of corporate governance
Setsthe agendaand chairs meetings of the Boards

Chairs the Nominations and Corporate Governance
Committees

Facilitates the effective contribution of all of the Directors
Ensures effective dialogue with shareholders

Ensuresthe performance of the Boards is assessed
annually

Ensures effective induction and development of Directors

Chief Executive Officer

Day-to-day management of the Group

Develops and ensures implementation of the Group’s
strategy and commercial objectives

Ensuresthatthe decisions of the Boards are implemented
Promotes high standards of corporate governance

Informs and advises the Chairman and Nominations
Committee on executive succession planning

Leads communication with shareholders

Chief Financial Officer

Day-to-day management of the Group’s financial affairs

Ensuresthatarobust system of internal controland risk
managementisinplace

Maintains high-quality reporting of financial and
environmental performance internally and externally

Supports the Chief Executive Officerin developing and
implementing strategy

Senior Independent Director

Leads the Boards’ annualassessment of the performance
of the Chairman

Available to meet with shareholders on matters where
usualchannels are deemed inappropriate

Deputises for the Chairman, as necessary

Servesasasounding board for the Chairmanandactsasan
intermediary between the other Directors, when necessary

Non-Executive Directors

Constructively challenge and provide advice to the
Executive Directors

Effectively contribute to the development of strategy

Scrutinise the performance of managementin meeting
agreed goals and monitor the delivery of the Group’s
strategy

Serve as members of Board Committees and chair the
Auditand Remuneration Committees

Effectiveness

Board composition

The Boards of RELXPLC, RELXNVand RELX Group plcare
unitary boards and are comprised of the same Directors.
Inorderforthe Boards todischarge their duties and
responsibilities effectively, they have an appropriate balance

of skills, experience, independence and knowledge of the Group.
The Nominations Committee reviews, on an ongoing basis, the
composition of the Boards and their committees to ensure that
balance remains appropriate.

The name of each Director, their role on the Boards and their
biographical details as at the date of this reportappear on

pages 66 to 67. The Boards currently comprise the Chairman,

two Executive Directors and eightindependent Non-Executive
Directors, who bring awide range of skills and experience to
theirroles. A profile which identifies the skills and experience

of each Directoris available on our website at@www.relx.com.
Asummary of the balance of skills of the Non-Executive Directors
can be found on page 74.

The Nominations Committee and the Boards also consider diversity,
including gender, length of tenure and nationality as important
factors when reviewing the composition of the Boards. Asummary
of these can be found on page 74. Currently, 36% of the Boards are
made up of women, compared to the Group’s target of 30%.
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Balance of our Boards

BALANCE OF EXECUTIVE/NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

GENDER DIVERSITY

Executive: 2

Chairman: 1

Non-Executive: 8

Female: 4

Male: 7

LENGTH OF TENURE OF NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

NATIONALITY OF DIRECTORS

Swedish: 1 German: 1
Less than three years: 3
Seven to nine years: 3 Dutch: 2
British: 4

Three to six years: 3 American: 3
Areas of significant skills and expertise of PaREErRE e
the Non-Executive Directors onthe Boards Non-Executive Directors
Knowledge of corporate governanceissues for listed companies 100%
Operational experience in the Group’s main geographical markets 100%
Human resource managementand executive remuneration 100%
Corporateresponsibility 100%
Corporate strategy and organisation 100%
Marketing and customer relations 78%
Financialand organisational audit 78%
Executive board experienceinalargeinternationallisted company 78%
Operational experience in the telecommunications and information technology sectors 67%
Legal matters 67%
Banking, taxand corporate finance 56%
Operationalexperienceinthe Group’s product markets 33%
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Key activities of the Boards

The Boards meet regularly throughout the yearand, in 2017, held seven scheduled meetings. The Boards' schedule ensures that
allrelevant matters are considered during those meetings. The Boards’ schedule is set by the Chairman, with support from the
relevant Company Secretary. Additionally, throughout the year, the Non-Executive Directors meet without the Executive Directors

presentonaregular basis.

In 2017, the Board considered the following:

Business and Financial Strategy, Businessand

Performance Functional Reviews

= Reportsfromthe Chief = Strategyand business
Executive Officerand presentations, including
Chief Financial Officer two full-day strategy
onthe Group’sactualand reviews
forecasted operational « Budgetsand Annual
and financial performance Strategy Plan 2017-2020

= AnnualandInterim = Updates on major

Financial Results acquisitions, investments

anddisposals
Invested Capital = Capital Structureand
Funding requirements

= Annual Review of

Independence of the Non-Executive Directors

The Boards review the independence of the Non-Executive
Directors everyyear, based on the criteriaas setoutinthe UK
Code. Inaccordance withthe UK Code, the independence criteria
arenotappliedinrespect of the Chairman after his appointment.
Notwithstanding this, Sir Anthony Habgood met the independence
criteria contained in the UK Code when he was appointed
Chairmanin 2009. The Boards consider all Non-Executive
Directors (other than the Chairman) to be independent of
managementand free from any business or other relationship
which could materially interfere with their ability to exercise
independent judgement. The membership of the Audit,
Remuneration and Nominations Committees also meet the
independence criteria under the Code.

Succession planning

The Nominations Committee regularly reviews the composition
of the Boards and the status of succession plans. The Boards are
updated annually on senior management succession planning,
and during the year, they received a detailed presentation from
the Chief Human Resources Officer on the first three tiers of
management below the Chief Executive Officer. Directors also
have regular contact with succession candidates for senior and
executive management positions.

Risk, Legal, Governance Shareholders

and Regulatory Matters = Investor Relations

= TheGroup’s principal activities
risks and ongoing = Dividend declarations
monitoring of risk and policy
managementand internal - Share buyback
control

programme

= TheGroup’s Operating
and Governance
Principles

= Approvalof shareholder
communications, such
asthe Annual Report
and Notice of General
Meetings

= Boardsuccession
and executive talent
management

= Appointmentsand
re-appointmentsto the
Boardsand appointment
toBoards’ Committees

= Litigation update
= Reportsfromthe
Committee Chairmenon

the key activities of the
Boards Committees

= TheTerms of Reference
for each Board
Committee

Board appointments

RELXPLC and RELXNV shareholders maintain their rights to
appointindividuals to their respective Boards in accordance with
the provisions of the articles of association of these companies.
However, noindividual may be appointed to the Boards unless
recommended by the joint Nominations Committee. Members
of that Committee abstain when their own re-appointmentis
being considered.

Asageneralrule, letters of appointment for Non-Executive
Directors provide that, subject to annual re-election by
shareholders, individuals will serve foraninitial period of three
years, and are typically expected to be available to serve fora
second three-year period, ifinvited to do so. They may also be
invited to serve forathird period of three years. The Non-
Executive Directors’ letters of appointment set out the expected
time commitment required by the Company to fulfil their duties.
The notice period applicable to the Non-Executive Directorsis
one month. The notice period applicable to the service contracts
of the Executive Directorsis 12 months. Details of the terms of
appointmentand the remuneration of both Executive and
Non-Executive Directors are setoutin the Directors’
Remuneration Report, on pages 83to 95.

MBIAIBAQ

MBIABJ Sssaulsng

MB3IABJ BIDUBUIS

35UBUIAA09

UOI}BWI0JUI J8Y}0 PUB S}UBWIS)E)S BIDUBUlS




76 RELX Group Annual reports and financial statements 2017

In compliance withthe UK Code, all Directors seek re-election
by shareholders annually, except for those Directors retiring
immediately after the respective Annual General Meetings.

Board and Committee changes
Changesduring the yearin the composition of the Boards and
Board Committees are set outin the table on page 77.

The ongoing evolution of the Boards continued in 2017, with
Suzanne Wood appointed as anindependent Non-Executive
Director. Ms Wood was also appointed as a member of the Audit
Committees, which will benefit from her significant financial
experience at Board levelin publicly-listed companies, both
inthe UKand US.

Following areview of the composition of the Boards’ Committees
in anticipation of Ms Wood's appointment to the Audit Committees,
the Boards accepted arecommendation from the Nominations
Committee that with effect from 26 September 2017: (i) Linda
Sanford join the Remuneration Committee and step down from
the Audit Committees; and (i) Carol Mills step down from the
Remuneration Committee and remain on the Audit Committees.

Inaccordance with the articles of association of RELX PLC,
Directors are normally subject to election by shareholders at the
first Annual General Meeting following their appointment to the
Board. Therefore, Ms Wood will stand for election by shareholders
atthe 2018 RELXPLC Annual General Meeting.

Inaccordance withthe UK Code, all other Directors will retire
from the Board of RELXPLC at the Annual General Meeting and
will offer themselves for re-election. All Directors of RELX NV,
including Ms Wood who was appointed by shareholdersin
September 2017, will retire from the RELXNV Board at the

2018 Annual General Meeting and will offer themselves for
re-appointment. Based on the results of an independent external
evaluation of the Boards, their Committees and each Director
seekingre-electionatthe 2018 Annual General Meeting, the
Boards have accepted arecommendation from the Nominations
Committee that each of those Directors be proposed for
re-electionatthe 2018 Annual General Meeting of the respective
companies. Details of the independent external evaluation of the
Boards completedin respectof 2017/18 are set out on page 77.

Boardinduction and development

The Chairman and the Company Secretary are responsible for
ensuring that an effective induction programme takes place for
allnew Directors. Following appointment and as required, all
Directorsreceive afull, formal and tailored induction, which is
designed to meet theirindividual needs based on their knowledge
and experience. Thisincludes the provision of acomprehensive
briefing pack which contains information onthe Group’s
businesses, aswellas other relevantinformation to assist that
Directorin performing their duties.

Uponjoining the Boards as a Non-Executive Directorin September
2017, aninduction programme for Ms Wood was designed taking
into account her previous knowledge and experience and the role
that she was being asked to undertake for RELX Group. This
included meetings with the leadership teams of the main business
operating units, and also with the Chief Strategy Officer, in order
toenhance and deepen herunderstanding of RELX Group, its
businesses and the competitive environmentin which it operates.
She alsoreceived presentations from the Group’s key corporate
functions, including Finance and Internal Audit & Risk
Management, and from a number of the Group’s principal external
advisers. Given her first-time appointment to the Board of a
Dutch-Llisted company, Ms Wood was provided with an in-depth
briefing on herduties as a Director under Dutch law. She further
undertook a comprehensive Audit Committee programme
including a briefing from the external auditor, designed to ensure
familiarisation with the Committee’s oversight responsibilities.

To ensure that the Directors continually update their skills,
knowledge and familiarity with the Group, they attend meetings
in addition to scheduled Board and Committee meetings and
participate in site visits. Additionally, Non-Executive Directors
also have opportunities to meet RELX Group Business Leaders
and other senior executives. As part of the annual Board
evaluation, Directors are invited to discuss with the Chairman
theirtrainingand development needs.

Board informationand support

All Directors have complete and timely access to the information
required to discharge their responsibilities fully and effectively.
They have access to the services of the respective Company
Secretaries, who are responsible for the accurate and timely flow
of information to the Boards and advising the Chairman on all
corporate governance matters. The Company Secretary of each
Board attends all of its meetings. The Directors also have access
to other members of the Group’s management, staff and external
advisers, and may take independent professional advice in the
furtherance of their duties, at the relevant company’s expense.

Each of the Directorsis expected to attend all meetings of the
Board and Committees of which they are amember. Where a
Directorisunable to attend a Board or Committee meeting, they
are provided with the papers relating to that meetingand are able
todiscussissuesarising with the respective chairman and other
Board and Committee members. Theyare also provided with a
copy of the meeting minutes.
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Attendance at meetings of the Boards and Board Committees

The table below shows the attendance of Directors at meetings of the Boards and the Board Committees during the year.
Attendance is expressed as the number of meetings attended out of the number eligible to be attended.

Committee Corporate
Director appointments Boards" Audit Remuneration Nominations  Governance
Anthony Habgood (Chairman) 000 717 - 3/3 3/3 5/5
Erik Engstrom - 7/7 - - - -
Nick Luff - 717 - - - -
Wolfhart Hauser 0006 717 - 3/3 3/3 5/5
Adrian Hennah 00 7/1 3/4% - - 5/5  BoardCommittee
Marike van Lier Lels (AYC) 7/7 L]4 - - 5/5 membershipkey
RobertMacLeod o0 7/7 - 3/3 - 5/5 @Y Audit
Carol Mills? (AIR]C] 7/7 4L/4 11 - 5/5 ) Remuneration
Linda Sanford® [AIR]C] 717 3/3 2/2 - 5/5 () Nominations
BenvanderVeer [AIN]C) 7/7 YA - 3/3 5/5 (@ Corporate Governance
Suzanne Wood® [AYC) 3/3 11 - - 2/2 @ CommitteeChairman

(1) TheBoardsof RELXPLC,RELXNVand RELX Group plc. Inaddition to the seven scheduled meetings above, in 2017 serving Directors attended two full-day strategy and

businessreview meetings.

(2) MsMillsstepped down asamember of the Remuneration Committee with effect from 26 September 2017.

(3] MsSanfordjoined the Remuneration Committee and stepped down as a member of the Audit Committees, both with effect from 26 September 2017.

(4) MsWoodwas appointed asaNon-Executive Director of the Boards and as a member of the Audit Committees with effect from 26 September 2017.

(5] MrHennahwas unable toattend the February meetings of the Audit Committees due to an unexpected conflictwhich arose at short notice. He was provided with the papers
inadvance of the meeting for his review and comment (which was provided to the Audit Committee Chairman), and subsequent to the meeting taking place was provided

with a copy of the minutes.

Board evaluation

The Directors consider the evaluation of the Boards, its
Committees and membersto be animportantaspect of corporate
governance. In 2017, the Corporate Governance Committee
appointed an external facilitator to carry outanindependent
effectivenessreview of the Boards, their Committees and each
Director. The facilitator was Lorna Parker, an independent
practitioner with no other connection to the Group. Ms Parker’s
review took the form of structured interviews with Directors and
the Company Secretaries, supported by individual questionnaires
completed by all participants. Access to Board and Committee
papers for the prior 12 months was provided to Ms. Parker.

Thereview explored the following key areas:

= Board performance and effectiveness of decision-making
= Board composition and succession planning

= Talentmanagementand executive succession leadership
= Risk management, corporate governance and compliance

= Agenda planning and quality of information provided by
management

= Committee effectiveness

The principal findings and recommendations from the evaluation
were discussed with the Chairman and Senior Independent
Director, following which they were presented to a meeting of
the Boards.

The review of the performance of the Chairman of the Boards was
led by the Senior Independent Director. The Chairman was not
presentduring discussion among the Non-Executive Directors
relating to his performance. The conclusions of the review were
subsequently considered at a meeting of the Boards.

Conclusions of the 2017 review

The review confirmed that the Boards are functioning
effectively, underpinned by an appropriate blend of
experience, skills, gender and nationality, and an efficient
and thorough operating style led by the Chairman and Chief
Executive Officer. It further confirmed that the Directors
continue to be appropriately involved in key decisions taken
by the Group, monitoring the performance of the Group and
developing the Group’s strategy, and that a sound decision-
making processisin place which takes account of feedback
and challenge provided by the Non-Executive Directors. An
engaged and respectful atmosphere exists where openness
and debate are encouraged in Board discussions. There
continued to be clarityand alignment around strategy and the
key risks and challenges facing the Group. In line with evolving
best practice Corporate Governance, in 2018 an area of
increased focus for the Boards will be the Group’s culture
andvalues. Additionally, the Board and their Committees will
alsofocusontherevised UK Corporate Governance Code,
currently expected to be published in 2018.

Based onthe findings of the review, the Corporate Governance
Committee concluded that the Boards and their Committees
function effectivelyand collaboratively and with an appropriate
level of engagement with management. The Committee also
concluded that the performance of each Director continues

to be effective and that they demonstrate commitment to their
respectiveroles.
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Accountability

Internal control and risk management

RELX Group has established internal controls and risk
management practices thatare embedded into the operations
of the businesses, based on the Internal Control - Integrated
Framework (2013) issued by the Committee of Sponsoring
Organisations of the Treadway Commission (COS0). Details of
the principalrisks facing the Group and how these are mitigated
aresetoutonpages 60to 63.

Additionally, in order to provide reasonable assurance against
materialinaccuraciesor loss, and on the effectiveness of the
systems of internal controland risk management, the Group has
adopted the three lines of defence assurance model shown below.

1st Line of Defence

Group businesses maintain systems of internal
controlwhich are appropriate to the nature and
scale of theiractivitiesand address all significant
strategic, operational, financialand legal
compliance risks that they face

2nd Line of Defence

Centralfunctions thatare responsible for

1) designing policies, 2] introducing and sharing best
practice, 3) monitoring and evaluating compliance
with RELX policiesand relevant legislationand
regulationand appropriate remediation

3rd Line of Defence
Internalaudit provides independent assurance on
the effectiveness of the 1stand 2nd lines of defence

J

The Boards and Audit Committees

System of Internal Control

RELX Group Operating and Governance Principles

Note: Inadditiontothe Group’sinternal controls, the Groupis also audited externally.
Thereportofthe externalauditor hasbeenincluded from pages 106 to 116.

RELXPLCand RELXNV

The Boards of RELXPLC and RELXNV have each adopted a
schedule of matters which are required to be brought to them

for decision. During 2017, the Boards of RELXPLC and RELXNV
exercisedindependent supervisory roles over the activities and
systems of internal control of RELX Group plc. The Boards of
RELXPLCand RELX NV also approved the strategy and the annual
budgets of RELX Group plc, and received regular reports onits
operations, including treasury and risk management activities.

Majortransactions proposed by the Board of RELX Group plc
required the approval of the Boards of both RELXPLC and
RELXNV.The RELXPLC and RELXNV Audit Committees met
onaregularbasistoreviewthe systems of internal controland
risk management of RELX Group plc.

RELX Group plc

The Board of RELX Group plcis responsible for the system of

risk managementand internal control of the Group and has
implemented an ongoing process foridentifying, assessing,
monitoring and managing the principal risks faced by its
businesses. This process was in place throughout the year
ended 31 December 2017, and up to the date of the approvals of
the Annual Reports and Financial Statements 2017. The Board
monitors these systems of internal control and risk management
and annually carries outa review of their effectiveness.

RELXGroup plc has an established framework of procedures
and internal control, with which the management of each
businessisrequiredtocomply. The Board has adopted a
schedule of matters thatare required to be broughttoit for
decision. The Group operates authorisation and approval
processes throughoutall of its operations. Access controls exist
where processes have been automated to ensure the security
of data. Management information systems have been developed
toidentify risks and to enable assessment of the effectiveness
of the systems of internal control.

RELX Group plc has a Code of Ethics and Business Conduct that
provides aguide forachievingits business goals and requires
officersand employees to behave inan open, honest, ethical
and principled manner. The Code also outlines confidential
procedures enabling employees to reportany concerns about
compliance, or about the Group’s financial reporting practice.
The Code is available on our website at (=) www.relx.com

Each business area hasidentified and evaluated its principal risks,
the controlsin place to manage those risks and the levels of
residual risk accepted. Risk managementand control procedures
areembedded into the operations of the business and include the
monitoring of progressin areas forimprovement that come to
managementand Board attention.

The principalrisks facing RELX Group businesses are regularly
reportedtoand assessed by the Board and Audit Committee.
With the close involvement of business management and central
functions, the risk management and control procedures ensure
thatthe Group is managingits business risks effectivelyandin
acoordinated manneracross the businesses with clarity on the
respective responsibilities and interdependencies. Litigation and
other legal regulatory matters are managed by legal directorsin
the business.

The RELX Group plc Audit Committee receives regular reportson
the identificationand management of principal risks, and reviews
thesereports. The Audit Committee also receives regularreports
from both internaland external auditors oninternal controland
risk management matters. In addition, each businessareais
required, atthe end of the financialyear, to review the effectiveness
of internal controls and risk managementand reportits findings
on a detailed basis to the management of RELX Group plc. These
reports are summarised and, as part of the annual review of
effectiveness, submitted to the Audit Committee. The Chairman
of the Audit Committee reports to the Board on any significant
internal control matters arising.
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Annualreview

As partof theyear-end procedures, the RELXPLC and RELXNV
Audit Committees and Boards reviewed the effectiveness of the
systems of internal controland risk management, during the
2017 financialyear. Thisincluded consideration of risk appetite
(defined as the Group’s willingness to take on risk] for each
principalrisk. Risk appetite is based on anassessment of the level
of residual risk, taking account of inherent risk and mitigation
effort. The assessmentis rated, inrelation to the Group’s
objectives forthe current level of residualrisk, in three broad
categories: reduce, acceptand willing to extend. The level of
residual risk which the Group is prepared to accept will vary, with
ahigh level of mitigation effort over operational, financialand
compliance risks. The residualrisk level for externaland strategic
risks may be extended if doing soisin line with the Group’s
strategic objectives, values and stakeholderinterests and if
shareholderreturns could be increased. As part of the annual
review, the Boards considered the Group's culture. The objective
of these systems of internal control and risk managementis

to manage, rather than eliminate, the risk of failure to achieve
business objectives. Accordingly, they can only provide
reasonable, but not absolute, assurance against material
mis-statementorloss. The Boards have confirmed, subject to the
above, thatasregards financial reporting risks, the respective
risk management and control systems provide reasonable
assurance against materialinaccuracies or loss and have
functioned properly during the year. In accordance with the Code,
the Board has also considered the Group’s long-term viability,
following arobustand thorough assessment of its principal risks.
The resulting Viability Statement is set out on page 80.

Responsibilities in respect of the financial
statements

The Directors of RELXPLC, RELXNVand RELX Group plcare
required to prepare financial statements as at the end of each
financial period, in accordance with applicable lawand
regulations, which give a true and fair view of the state of affairs,
and of the profit or loss, of the respective companies and their
subsidiaries, jointventures and associates. They are responsible
for maintaining properaccounting records, for safeguarding
assets, and for taking reasonable steps to preventand detect
fraud and otherirregularities.

The Directorsare alsoresponsible for selecting suitable
accounting policies and applying them on a consistent basis,

and making judgements and estimates thatare prudentand
reasonable. Applicable accounting standards have been followed
and the RELX Group consolidated financial statements, which
aretheresponsibility of the Directors of RELXPLC, RELXNVand
RELXGroup plc, are prepared using accounting policies which
comply with International Financial Reporting Standards as
issued by the International Accounting Standards Board and as
adopted by the European Union. Having taken into account all of
the matters considered by the Boards and brought to the attention
of the Boards, the Directors are satisfied that the Annual Report
and Accounts, taken asawhole, is fair, balanced and
understandable, and provides the information necessary for
shareholdersto assess the Group’s position and performance,
business model and strategy.

Going concern

The Directors of RELXPLC, RELXNVand RELX Group plc, having
made appropriate enquiries, consider thatadequate resources
exist for the Group to continue in operational existence for the
foreseeable future and that, therefore, itis appropriate to adopt
the going concernbasis in preparing the 2017 financial
statements. Inreaching these conclusions, the Directors of
RELXPLC, RELXNVand RELX Group plc have had due regard to
the Group's financial position as at 31 December 2017, the strong
free cash flow of the Group, the Group’s ability to access capital
markets and the principal risks facing the Group.

Acommentaryon the Group’s cash flows, financial position and
liquidity for the year ended 31 December 2017 is set outin the
Chief Financial Officer's report on pages 54 to 59. This shows that
aftertaking account of available cash resources and committed
bank facilities that back up short-term borrowings, all of the
Group’s borrowings that mature within the next two years can be
covered.The Group’s policies on liquidity, capital management and
management of risks relating to interest rate, foreign exchange
and credit exposures are set out on pages 147to 152. The principal
risks facing the Group are set out on pages 60 to 63.

US certificates

Asrequired by Section 302 of the US Sarbanes-0Oxley Act 2002
and by related rulesissued by the US Securities and Exchange
Commission (the Commission), the Chief Executive Officer and
Chief Financial Officer of RELXPLC and RELX NV certifyin the
respective Annual Reports 2017 on Form 20-F to be filed with

the Commission thatthey are responsible for establishing and
maintaining disclosure controls and procedures and that they have:

= designed suchdisclosure controls and procedures to ensure
that materialinformation relating to the Group is made known
tothem

= evaluated the effectiveness of the Group’s disclosure controls
and procedures

= basedontheirevaluation, disclosed to the Audit Committees
and the external auditors all significant deficiencies in the
design or operation of disclosure controls and procedures and
any frauds, whether or not material, thatinvolve management
or other employeeswho have a significant role in the Group’s
internal controls

= presentedinthe RELXGroup Annual Report2017 on Form 20-F
their conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure
controlsand procedures

ADisclosure Committee, comprising the Company Secretaries of
RELXPLC and RELXNVand other senior managers of the Group,
provides assurance to the Chief Executive Officer and Chief
Financial Officer regarding their Section 302 certifications.

Section 404 of the US Sarbanes-Oxley Act 2002 requires the
Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer of RELXPLC
and RELXNVto certifyinthe respective Annual Reports 2017

on Form 20-F that they are responsible for maintaining

adequate internal control structures and procedures for financial
reportingandto conductanassessment of their effectiveness.
The conclusions of the assessment of internal control structures
and financial reporting procedures, which are unqualified, are
presentedinthe RELX Group Annual Report2017 on Form 20-F.
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Viability statement

Eachyear management develops a three-year strategy plan that
reflects the expected operating environment. This plan forms
the basis for Group and divisional targets. In 2017, our strategy
isunchanged. Our objective is to deliver improved outcomes for
professionaland business customers across industries, to help
them make better decisions, get better results and be more
productive. We do this by leveraging a deep understanding of
our customers to develop increasingly sophisticated information
based analytics and decision tools which combine content and
datawith analytics and technology in global platforms. We aim
to build leading positions in long-term global growth markets
and leverage our skills, assets and resources, both to build
solutions for our customers and to pursue cost efficiencies.
Furtherdetails on our strategyand 2017 progress are on pages 4
and 5. Whilst management selected three years forits review
and quantitative testing of the Group’s viability, reflecting the
length of the annual strategy plan period, italso considered
longer-term developments.

The three-year strategic plan for our businessesincludes
management’s assessment of the anticipated operational risks
affecting the business and assumes that current economic
conditions broadly persist, financing will be available on similar
terms to those negotiated recently and interest rates will follow
market expectations. Management then considers the viability
of the business should unexpected events arise. Afull
description of the principalrisks facing our business is set out
on pages 60to 63 along with the mitigating controls. Inassessing
viability, a cross-functional team comprised of business unit,
risk, strategy and treasury personnel estimate the quantitative
impact of each individual risk on the Group’s revenue and profit.

Shareholder engagement

RELXPLC and RELXNV participate in regular dialogue with their
shareholders. Each listed company reports toits shareholders
through the publication of the Group’sinterim and full-year
reports, following which presentations are made by the Chairman,
Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer on the Group’s
business, and these are simultaneously webcast. In addition,
quarterly trading updates are provided ahead of the Annual
General Meetings of the two listed companies and towards the
end of the financialyear, and a conference call with investors

was held following the third-quarter trading update for 2017.

In addition, ateach-in focused on developmentsin the Exhibitions
businesswas held for analysts and investors in November 2017,
whichwas also made available on our website at@www.relx.com

The Chief Executive Officer, the Chief Financial Officer and the
investorrelations team meet institutional shareholdersona
regular basis and the Chairman also makes himself available

to majorinstitutions as appropriate. The interim and annual
resultsannouncements and presentations, together with the
trading updates, otherimportantannouncements and corporate
governance documents concerning the Group, are available
onourwebsite. RELXNV has adopted a bilateral shareholder
contact policy, which is also available on our website.

The analysis then considers the effect of various sets of multiple
risks occurring simultaneously, combined with the inability
toaccessthe debt capital markets to refinance scheduled
liabilities as they become due. Reflecting the importance of
proprietary data and potential disruption or loss of data sources,
we modelled the impact of aworst-case scenario assuming the
invalidation of certain intellectual property rights and inability
to use certain third-party information. The analysis concluded
that even with the simultaneous occurrence of these risks and
no access to the debt capital markets, the Group would still have
sufficientfunds to trade, settle its liabilities as they come due
and remain compliant with its financial covenants.

Inaddition to scenario modelling, the Directors bi-annually
review the Group’s principalrisks, assess the likelihood and
impact of each risk together with the effectiveness of mitigating
controls. The Directors also receive regular updates from
management on treasury, tax, acquisitions and divestments
and periodic briefings on significant risk areas including
information security, technology and legal and regulatory
matters. Finally, separate from the annual strategy plan, the
Directors periodically receive updates from business area
management on their operations, prospects and risks. Whilst
these reviews and discussions naturally focus more closely on
the quantifiable risks facing the business, they also coverrisks
that may occur outside of the three-year planning period.

As aresult of stress-testing the three-year strategic plan

and supported by regular reviews of risk during the year, the
Directors confirm that they have areasonable expectation that
the Group will be able to continue its operations and meet its
liabilities as they fall due over the next three years and are not
aware of any longer-term operational or strategic risks that
would resultin adifferent outcome from the three-yearreview.

The Boards of RELXPLC and RELXNV commission periodic
reportsonthe attitudes and views of the companies’ institutional
shareholders and the results are presented to the respective
Boards. The Boards alsoreceive regular updates from the
Group’s Head of Investor Relations on the views of shareholders
through a briefingwhich is a standing agenda item for all meetings
ofthe Boards.

Annual General Meetings

The Annual General Meetings provide an opportunity for the
Boards to communicate with individual shareholders. The
Chairman, the Chief Executive Officer, the Chief Financial Officer,
the Chairmen of the Board Committees, other Directorsand a
representative of the external auditors are available to answer
questions from shareholders. Both RELXPLC and RELX NV offer
electronicvotingfacilities in relation to proxy voting at shareholder
meetings. All shareholders have an opportunity at the AGM to put
questionsto members of the Boards about RELX's performance.
Inline with the UK Corporate Governance Code, details of proxy
voting by shareholders, including votes withheld, are given at the
AGM and are posted on our website following the AGM.
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Report of the Nominations Committee

Thisreport has been prepared by the joint Nominations
Committee of RELXPLC and RELXNVand has beenapproved
by the respective Boards.

Membership

The Committee comprises only Non-Executive Directors. The
members of the Committee who served during the year were:

= AnthonyHabgood ([Committee Chairman)
= BenvanderVeer

= Wolfhart Hauser

Responsibilities

The principalrole and responsibilities of the Committee
aretoprovide assistance to the Boards by identifying
individuals qualified to become Directors and recommending
to the Boards the appointment of such individuals. The
responsibilities of the Committee are set outin written Terms
of Reference (available at@www.relx.com] andinclude:

= tokeepunderreview the size and composition of the Boards

= todevelopandagree the specification for the recruitment
of new Directors

= toprocure the recruitment of new Directors

= torecommend tothe Boards the appointment of candidates
subject, where appropriate, to the approval of shareholders
of RELXPLC and RELXNV

= torecommend Directorsto serve onthe Committees of
the Boards, having regard to the criteria for service on
each Committee as set outin the Terms of Reference for
such Committees, and torecommend membersto serve
as the Chair of those Committees

= tomake recommendationstothe Boardsin relationto
the re-appointment of any non-executive Director at the
conclusion of his/her specified term of office and the
electionorre-election of Directors at the Annual General
Meetings of RELXPLC and RELXNV

= toreviewand make recommendations to the Boards
inrelation toany Directors”actual or potential conflicts
of interest

Activities of the Committee
During the year, the Committee met three timesand its main areas
of focus were:

= there-appointment of Adrian Hennah as a Non-Executive
Director atthe conclusion of his specified term of office

= theappointment of Suzanne Wood as a Non-Executive Director

= areviewof the composition of the Audit and Remuneration
Committees resulting in the following changes: Linda Sanford
stepped down as a member of the Audit Committees and joined
the Remuneration Committee; Suzanne Wood was appointed
asamember of the Audit Committees; and Carol Mills stepped
down asamember of the Remuneration Committee and
remained a member of the Audit Committees

= areview of the Committee’s Terms of Reference
= succession planning for Non-Executive Directors

= therecommendation to the Boards of the suitability of
Directors’ external non-executive director appointments

Compositionand diversity of the Boards

The Committee seeks to ensure that the Boards and their
Committees comprise an appropriate balance of skills, experience,
independence, knowledge of RELX Group’s businesses, and
diversity, including gender. The Committee has established a
formal, rigorous and transparent procedure for the recruitment of
candidates to the Boards and recommendations by the Committee
are made principally on the basis of a candidate’s merit, against
objective criteriaand with due regard for the benefits of diversity.

The Group’s Diversity and Inclusion (D&I) Statement applies
across RELX Group, including to the Boards and their Committees.
The objective of the Statementis to articulate the Group’s
commitmentto a diverse workforce and to an environment that
respectsindividuals and their contributions, regardless of gender,
race or other characteristics, and to ensure the implementation

of that commitment. The Committee takes the D&I Statementinto
considerationwhen discussing the composition of the Boards and
their Committees, and any appointments or changes to them, and
this helps the Committee ensure that thereisanappropriate
balance of skills, experience, independence and knowledge of the
Group and diversity including gender, background and nationality.
The results of the implementation of the D&l Statement during

the year can be found within the ‘Balance of our Boards’ section
setouton page 74.

The Committee recognises the benefits that diversity on the
Boards can bringand has noted the recommendations set outin
the Hampton-Alexander Review onimproving gender balance in
FTSE leadership and the Parker Reportinto ethnic diversity of UK
Boards. The Committee will continue to monitor developments
inrelation to Board diversity. Details of the Group’s approach to
diversityandinclusion more generally inits workforce can be
foundin the Corporate Responsibility Report on page 42.
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The Committee retained The Zygos Partnership, anindependent
recruitment consultancy specialising in non-executive
appointments with no other connection to RELX Group, to carry
out the search foranew Non-Executive Director. Following a
rigorous and transparent process of assessments and interviews,
the Committee recommended to the Boards that Suzanne Wood
be appointed as a Non-Executive Director. The Boards accepted
this recommendation and following approval by the shareholders
of RELXNV, Ms Wood joined the Boards in September 2017. As part
of the selection process, the Committee considered, among other
things, Ms Wood's ability to devote sufficient time to the role of
Non-Executive Director, her existing externalinterests, and her
independence as defined under the UK Code.

The charts on page 74 illustrate in more detail the composition
of the Boards.

Conflicts of interest

During the year, the Committee monitored Directors’ conflicts of
interestin respect of their externalappointments, and undertook
anannualreview of these. No actual conflicts were identified.
However, situations were identified which could potentially give
rise toa conflict of interest, and the Boards authorised those
situationsand putin place appropriate procedures to manage
any potential conflicts at the recommendation of the Committee.
More information on conflicts of interest can be found in the
RELXPLC Directors’ Report on page 168.

Director re-elections

The Committee reviewed the results of the evaluation of the
effectiveness and performance of the Boards, their Committees
andtheindividual Directors, which had been facilitated by Lorna
Parker, anindependent external practitioner, and overseen by the
Corporate Governance Committee. Details of the 2017/18 Board
evaluation can be found on page 77. Following this review, the
Committee recommended that each Director on the Boards as

at 31 December 2017 be put forward for election or re-election
atthe 2018 Annual General Meetings.
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Directors’ Remuneration Report

The Directors' Remuneration Report (the Report) describes how the Group applies the principles of good governance relating

to Directors' remuneration. This Report has been prepared by the Remuneration Committee of RELX Group plc (the Committee)
inaccordance with the UK Corporate Governance Code, the UK Listing Rules, the Large and Medium-sized Companies and Groups
(Accounts and Reports]) (Amendment) Regulations 2013 (the UK Regulations) and the Dutch Corporate Governance Code

(the Dutch Code).

The Reportwas approved by the Boards of RELXPLC, RELXNVand RELX Group plc.

Introduction from the Remuneration Committee Chairman

The attached Reportreflects the annualincentives earned and the vesting outcomes for multi-yearincentives granted under the
remuneration policy applicable to the 2015-2017 cycle of the multi-year plans.

For 2017, underlying revenue growth was 4%. Underlying operating profit growth was 6%, and adjusted earnings per share (EPS)
atconstant currencies grew 7%. The performance measures used in our incentive plans (annual and multi-year) are based on adjusted
figures asthey provide relevantinformationin assessing the Group’s performance, position and cash flows. We believe that our adjusted
measures track the core operational performance of the Group and how it contributes to shareholder value creation. The RELX Annual
Reportincludes areconciliation of adjusted measures to IFRS measures.

Theseresults carry forward the strong financial results of the company over the preceding six years, with consistent revenue, profitand
earnings per share growth. With more predictable revenues, a higher growth profile and improving returns the company continues to
improve its quality of earnings. This consistent strong financial performance is reflected in good achievements against targets under
the multi-yearincentive plans.

2017 Qutcomes

The 2017 annualincentive payments to the Executive Directors were just above target, resulting in payouts of around 69% of the
maximum opportunity, which is a level that has been relatively consistent over the past sevenyearsandisin line with the consistent
annual financial progress made by the business during this time.

The 2015-17 cycle of the Long Term Incentive Plan [LTIP) vested at 88.1%, with the return on invested capital (ROIC) target having been
fully achieved, EPS just below the middle of the target range and total shareholder return (TSR] above the upper quartile of the sterling
and euro comparator groups and just below the upper quartile for the US dollar comparator group. On average, over the three-year
period, adjusted EPS growth at constant currencieswas 7.6% p.a. ROIC and EPS performance in respect of the 2015-17 cycle of the
Bonus Investment Plan (BIP) and the Executive Share Option Scheme (ESOS) resulted in respective vesting percentages of 92.8% and
95.7% of the awards granted. These outcomes reflect the strong and consistent returns and earnings growth achieved by the business
and howthe challenging targets set by the Committee have been perceived by the market. Over the 2015-17 period, ROIC increased from
12.8%to 13.1% while in the eight years since it was introduced as a metric into our multi-year incentives, ROIC has increased from 10.4%
to 13.1%, demonstrating the Group’s commitment to improved returns.

Inline with increases for the wider employee population, the Committee has approved 2018 salary increases for the Executive Directors
0f 2.5%.

2018 Implementation of simplified Remuneration Policy

InApril 2017 our shareholders approved a new remuneration policy for Executive Directors by a vote of 95% of the shares voted. The new
policy simplifies the incentive framework for Executive Directors by reducing the number of incentive plans in which they participate
from four (one annual and three multi-yearincentive plans] to two (one annualand one multi-year incentive plan). Accordingly,
commencing with the 2018 grants, the Executive Directors will no longerreceive grants under the BIP and the ESOS. Adescription of the
Remuneration Policy as approved by RELXPLC and RELXNV shareholders at the April 2017 Annual General Meetings is included on
pages 96 to 102 of this Report.

The audited sections of the Reportare clearly marked.

Wolfhart Hauser
Chairman, Remuneration Committee
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Annual Remuneration Report

Single Total Figure of Remuneration - Executive Directors (audited)
(a) (b) (c] (d) le] (f) (g) (h)
Share based awards Total

Annual UK statutory Dutch Civil | UKstatutory Dutch Civil

£000 Salary Benefits® incentive Pension® basis¥  Codebasis? basis  Code basis?
Erik Engstrom 2017 1,189 84 1,238 779 6,630 3,522 9,920 6,812
2016 1,160 73 1,184 847 8,135 3,461 11,399 6,725
Nick Luff 2017 700 17 726 204 3,325 2,027 4,972 3,674
2016 683 15 697 205 3,903 1,948 5,503 3,548

(1)

(2)

(3)

(4)

(5)

(6)

UK statutory basis [columns (e} and (g)): These figures are calculated in accordance with the methodology set out in the UK
Regulations. The figure for performance-related share based awards includes share price appreciation since the date the award
was granted. In the case of Erik Engstrom’s figures, the amountincluded that relates to share price appreciationis £4.2m for 2016
and £2.9m for 2017. For Nick Luff, the amountincluded that relates to share price appreciationis £1.9m for 2016 and £1.4m for 2017.

The figures for 2016 in column (e) disclosed in last year’'s Report were, as required by the UK Regulations, based on an estimate
using prescribed average share prices and exchange rates and have been restated in this Report to reflect the actualamount vested
andthe actualshare prices and exchange rates on the vesting dates of the 2014-16 cycle of BIP, LTIP and ESOS. The vesting
percentages underthese plans were determined on 24 February 2017 and were in line with those disclosed on page 94 in the 2016
Remuneration Report. Using the share prices and exchange rates on the vesting dates and the actual dividend equivalents paid in
respectof this cycle increased the 2016 disclosed figure by £836k for Erik Engstrom and by £52%9k for Nick Luff.

The 2017 figures reflect the vesting of the 2015-17 cycle of BIP, LTIP and ESOS. As the BIP, LTIP and ESOS vest after the approval date
of this Report, the average share prices and exchange rates for the last quarter of 2017 have been used to arrive at an estimated
figure under the UK statutory basisin respect of these awards.

Dutch Civil Code basis [columns (f) and (h)): These figures comply with the requirements of the Dutch Civil Code. The figures for
share based awards comprise the multi-yearincentive chargesin accordance with IFRS 2 - Share based Payment. These IFRS 2
charges do notreflectthe actualvalue received on vesting.

Exchange rates used for share based awards [column (e)): The exchange rates used to convert share based awards to pounds
sterling are (i for the UK statutory basis, those that applied at the vesting dates or, if vesting has not occurred at the time of sign off
of this Report, the average exchange rates for the last quarter of 2017; (i) for dividend equivalents, the actual gross pounds sterling
payment; and [iii) for estimated dividend equivalents in respect of awards for which vesting has not occurred at the time of sign off
of this Reportand which are yet to be paid, the average exchange rates for the last quarter of 2017.

Benefits: Each Executive Director receives a car allowance, private medical/dentalinsurance and the company meets the cost of
taxreturn preparation.

Pension: The figures are calculated in accordance with the methodology set out in the UK Regulations. For defined benefit schemes,
inwhich Erik Engstrom participates, the calculation in the table is reduced by the Director’s contributions and participation fee.
For Erik Engstrom both of these chargesincrease each year. Details of the increases are set outin the Remuneration Policy Report
on page 96. Nick Luff receives a cash allowance in lieu of pension which reduced to 29% of salary effective 1 March 2017 (from 30%
of salary previously) and will reduce by a further two percentage points on 1 March 2018 and 2019 respectively (down to 25% on

1 March 2019).

Totalremuneration for Directors: This is set outin note 28 to the consolidated financial statements on pages 158 to 159.
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2017 Annual Incentive

Setout belowisasummary of performance against each financial measure and the resulting annualincentive payments for 2017
(payable in March 2018):

Performance
measure

Relative
weighting

Achievementvs target Payoutas %
of salary

Erik Engstrom

Payoutas %
of salary
Nick Luff

Revenue

30%

Revenue was £7,355m versus a target' of £7,363m, resulting in 29.6% 29.6%

achievementversus target of 99.9% and a payout™ of 98.5% of 30%.

MBIAIBAQ

Adjusted net profit
after tax

30%

Adjusted net profit after tax was £1,635m versus a target!” of £1,624m, 32.1% 32.1%
resulting in achievement versus target of 100.7% and a payout®? of

107.0% of 30%.

Cash conversion

10%

Cash flowwas £2,192m (96% conversion) versus a target™ of £2,117m, 13.5% 13.5%
resulting in achievement versus target of 103.5% and a payout®? of

135% of 10%.

Key Performance
Objectives (KPOs)®

Erik Engstrom
(six KPOs)

30%

Thefirst KPO, related to organic expansion of analytics and decision tools, 29.0%

was fully achieved.

The second KPO, related to specific disposals and exits from joint ventures,
was slightly exceeded.

The third KPO, related toimprovementin the Group’s corporate functions,
was slightly exceeded.

The fourth KPO, related to technology initiatives across the Company, was
fully achieved.

Thefifth KPO, related to specific priorities and market segment milestones
and metrics within each business area, was almost fully achieved.

The sixth KPO, related to meeting the quantified targets and completing
the actions listed as 2017 objectives in the Corporate Responsibility Report.
Thetargets, and achievements against those targets, are summarised
onpages44to51inthis Annual Reports and Financial Statements 2017
and are more fully set outin detail on pages 11 to 67 in the Corporate
Responsibility Report which can be found at www.relx.com/go/CRReport.
This KPO was almost fully achieved.

Key Performance
Objectives (KPQs)®

Nick Luff (six KPOs)

30%

The first KPO, related to 2017 financial performance and acquisitions and 28.5%

disposals, was slightly exceeded.

The second KPO, related to tax and accounting matters and procedures,
was fully achieved.

The third KPO, related to achieving specific deliverables on balance sheet
priorities, was slightly exceeded.

The fourth KPO, related to achieving specific deliverables on shareholder
and analyst engagement, was almost fully achieved.

The fifth KPO, related to specific deliverables and metrics for the finance
functionincluding talent development, was fully achieved.

The sixth KPO, related to meeting the quantified targets and completing
the actions listed as 2017 objectivesin the Corporate Responsibility Report.
The targets, and achievements against those targets, are summarised
onpages44to5Tinthis Annual Reports and Financial Statements 2017
and are more fully set outin detail on pages 11to 67 in the Corporate
Responsibility Report which can be found at www.relx.com/go/CRReport.
This KPO was almost fully achieved.

104.2% 103.7%

Total payment

£1,238,028  £725,528

(1) Onanequivalentbasis (atactual exchange rates and after the netimpact of acquisitions and disposals completed during the year).

(2) Forachievementabove target, each 0.1% of overachievementincreased the payout ratio for that component by 1 percentage point up to a maximum payout ratio
of 150% at 105% achievement versus target. For achievement below target, each 0.1% of underachievement reduced the payout ratio by 1.5 percentage points
down toathreshold payout ratio of 10% at 94% achievementversus target.

(3) The maximum payout for the KPO component is 100% of 30%.

The Board believes that disclosing details beyond the level of specificity thatis included above would be commercially sensitive and
would give competitors an unfairinsightinto our strategic direction and annual execution plans.
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Multi-year incentives (granted under the Remuneration Policy in effect prior to the approval by shareholders of the new
Remuneration Policy at the Annual General Meetings in April 2017)

Multi-yearincentives with a performance period ended 31 December 2017 were the 2015 BIP, LTIP and ESOS granted to Executive Directors.

The Committee assessed the performance measures for these awards and made an overall assessment of underlying business
performance and other relevant factors. The vesting outcome resulting from this review is summarised below.

LTIP: 2015-17 cycle performance outcome

Performance Weighting Performance range and Achievement against the Resulting vesting
measure vesting levels setat grant! performance range percentage
TSR overthe three-year performance 1/3r below median 0% Inupper quartile of 93.6%
period median 30% sterlingand euro

upper quartile 100% comparator groups

andjust below
the upper quartile

inUSdollar
comparator group

Average growth in adjusted EPS over 1/3r below 5% p.a. 0% 7.6%p.a. 70.7%
the three-year performance period®? 5% p.a. 33%
6%p.a. 52.5%
7%p.a. 65%
8%p.a. 75%
9% p.a. 85%
10% p.a. 92.5%
11% p.a.and above 100%

ROIC inthe thirdyear of the 1/3 below 12.3% 0% 13.8%" 100.0%
performance period? 12.3% 33%
12.55% 52.5%
12.8% 65%
13.05% 75%
13.3% 85%
13.55% 92.5%
13.8% and above 100%

Totalvesting percentage: 88.1%

(1) Calculated onastraight-line basis for performance between the points.

(2) Growthinadjusted EPS at constant currencies and ROIC are calculated as set outin the Chief Financial Officer’s report on pages 54 to 59 and note 11 to the
consolidated financial statements on pages 138to 139, with adjustments made to remove the effect on ROIC of changes in exchange rates, pension deficits and
accounting standards over the three-year performance period.

(3) For2017,ROIC on pages 57 to 58 of the Chief Financial Officer’s report of 13.1% equates to 13.8% under the plan methodology, the difference primarily reflecting
changesinexchangerates between 2014 and 2017.

BIP: 2015-17 cycle performance outcome

Performance Weighting Performance range and Achievement against the Resulting vesting
measure vesting levels setat grant " performance range percentage
Average growth in adjusted EPS over 50% below 4% p.a. 0% 7.6%p.a. 85.7%
the three-year performance period? 4% p.a. 50%
6.5%p.a. 75%
9% p.a.orabove 100%
ROICinthe thirdyear of the 50% below 12.3% 0% 13.8%"% 100.0%
performance period? 12.3% 50%
12.8% 75%
13.3% orabove 100%
Totalvesting percentage: 92.8%

(1) Calculated onastraight-line basis for performance between the points.

(2) Growthinadjusted EPS at constant currenciesand ROIC are calculated as set outin the Chief Financial Officer’s report on pages 54 to 59 and note 11 to the
consolidated financial statements on pages 138to 139, with adjustments made to remove the effect on ROIC of changes in exchange rates, pension deficits and
accounting standards over the three-year performance period.

(3) For2017,ROIC on pages 57 to 58 of the Chief Financial Officer's report of 13.1% equates to 13.8% under the plan methodology, the difference primarily reflecting
changesinexchangerates between 2014 and 2017.



Governance Directors’ Remuneration Report 87

ESOS: 2015-17 cycle performance outcome

Performance Weighting Performance range and Achievementagainst the Resulting vesting
measure vesting levels set at grant'! performance range percentage
Average growth in adjusted EPS over 100% below 4% p.a. 0% 7.6% p.a. 95.7%
the three-year performance period®? 4% p.a. 33%
6% p.a. 80%
8% p.a.or above 100%

(1) Calculated onastraight-line basis for performance between the stated average adjusted EPS growth percentages.

[2) Growthinadjusted EPS at constant currenciesis calculated as set outin the Chief Financial Officer’s report on pages 54 to 59 and note 11 to the consolidated
financial statements on pages 138to 139.

Single Total Figure of Remuneration - Non-Executive Directors (audited)

Totalfee Benefits' Total

2017 2016 2017 2016 2017 2016
Anthony Habgood £625,000 £625,000 £2,381 £2,305 £627,381 £627,305
Wolfhart Hauser £140,000 £130,808 £780 £780 £140,780 £131,588
Adrian Hennah £90,000 £90,000 £780 £780 £90,780 £90,780
Marikevan Lier Lels!? €115,000  €115,000 €958 €1,025 €115,958  €116,025
Robert MacLeod £90,000 £62,423 £780 £90,780 £62,423
Carol Mills £101,000 £72,827 £1,620 £102,620 £72,827
Linda Sanford £90,000 £90,000 £1,620 £1,620 £91,620 £91,620
BenvanderVeer? €142,500  €142,500 €958 €1,025 €143,458  €143,525
Suzanne Wood® £24,000 N/A N/A £24,000 N/A

(1) Benefits comprise the notional benefit of tax filing support provided to Non-Executive Directors for filings outside their home country resulting from their
directorshipswiththe Group. The incremental assessable benefit charge pertaxreturn for 2017 was £840 (unchanged from 2016) fora UK tax return and £780
(unchanged from 2016) for a Netherlands tax return. Anthony Habgood's benefits alsoinclude £1,601 (£1,525in 2016} in respect of private medicalinsurance.
Further, the company meetsallreasonable travel, subsistence, accommodation and other expenses, includingany taxwhere such expenses are deemed
taxable,incurred by the Non-Executive Directors and the Chairmanin the course of performing their duties.

The pounds sterling equivalent of the total fees and benefits for Marike van Lier Lels and Benvan der Veer (converted at the average exchange rate applicable
totheyearsof reporting) were £101,717 (£95,102in 2016) and £125,840 (£117,643in 2016) respectively for 2017. For the purposes of reporting the total fees and
benefits for the two Directors, the pounds sterling benefit relating to the UK tax return preparation has been converted into euros at the average exchange rate
fortherelevantyear.

(3) Appointed on 26 September 2017.

(4) Thetotalremuneration for Directorsis setoutin note 28 to the consolidated financial statements on pages 158 to 159.

N/Adenotes that theindividualwas nota Director at the relevant date.

(2

Non-Executive Directors’fees
The feesinthe Single Total Figure table for Non-Executive Directors reflect the following feesin 2017:

Annualfee 2018 Annualfee 2017
Chairman £650,000 £625,000
Non-Executive Directors £85,000/€97,500 £75,000/€95,000
Senior Independent Director £30,000 £30,000
Chairman of:
- Audit Committee €37,500 €35,000
- Remuneration Committee £30,000 £25,000
Committee membership fee:
- Audit Committee £17,500/€20,000 £15,000/€20,000
- Remuneration Committee £17,500 £15,000/€20,000
- Nominations Committee £10,000/€12,500 £10,000/€12,500

In addition, effective from 1 January 2018 an intercontinental travel fee of £4,500/€5,000 will be payable to any Non-Executive Director
(excluding the Chairman) in respect of each transatlantic journey made in order to attend a RELX board or committee meeting.

Fees may be reviewed annually, although in practice they have changed on a less frequent basis. At the end of 2017, the Non-Executive
Directorand Chairman fees were reviewed against comparative benchmark data; taking account of market practice and general
governancetrends. Asaresultanumberof changes were approved which took effect on 1 January 2018 as set out above. Prior to that, the
last review took place during 2015 as a result of which a number of adjustments were made to the fees which took effect on 1 January 2016.
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Total pension entitlements (audited)

Erik Engstromisamember of the Group’'s UK defined benefit
pension arrangements. Mr Engstrom pays a participation fee
onthe amount of his pensionable base salary which exceeds
the scheme earnings cap.

Pension - Standard information

This fee was 7% until 28 February 2017, increased to 10% on
1March 2017 and willbe 13% from 1 March 2018. Further details
are provided in the Remuneration Policy on page 96.

Pension - UK statutory basis

Age at Normal Director's  Participation Totalof Director’s Accrued annual Accrued annual Single figure
December retirement  contributions fee contributionsand pensionat pension at pensionsvalue
2017 age participation fee 31December2016 31December 2017
54 60 £16,582 £98,303 £114,885 £357,912 £402,605 £778,9701
(1) Netof Director’s contribution and participation fee.
Schemeinterests awarded during the financial year (audited)
CURRENT MULTI-YEARINCENTIVEPLANS
Basis onwhich Face value of Value of awards Percentage of maximum that End of
awardis made award atgrant!” ifvestinlinewith  would be received if threshold performance
expectations®? performance achieved® period

BIP - matching share awards

Erik Engstrom  Opportunitytoinvest £1,159,686 £776,990 If one measure pays outat 31 December
cashand/orshares threshold, the overall payoutis 2019
up tovalue of annual 25%. If both measures pay out
incentive target atthreshold, the overall payout
Nick Luff opportunityand £682,897 £457,541 i5s50%.
receiveupto 1for1
matching award
LTIP - performance share awards
Erik Engstrom  250% of salary £2,899,215 £1,449,608 Ifthe measure with the lowest 31 December
payout at threshold pays out at 2019
threshold, the overall payout is 3%.
If each measure pays out at
threshold, the overall payoutis 32%
Nick Luff 200% of salary £1,365,794 £682,897
ESOS - market value options
Erik Engstrom  250% of salary £2,899,215 £463,874 33% 31 December
2019
Nick Luff 200% of salary £1,365,794 £218,527

(1) Thefacevalueofthe LTIPand ESOS awardsis calculated using (i) the middle market quotation of a PLC ordinary share (£14.945); (i the closing price of a NV
ordinary share (€16.7225); and liii) the GBP:EUR exchange rate on the trading day before grant (24 February 2017). These share prices are used to determine the
number of awards granted, as wellas to set option exercise prices. The face value of the ESOS options shown in this column has not beenreduced to reflect the
factthatthe aggregate option priceis payable on exercise. The face value of the BIP matchingaward to Erik Engstrom, who invested in NVADRs, is calculated
using (i the closing price of a NV ADR ($17.695); and (i) the GBP:USD exchange rate on the trading day before grant (24 February 2017). The face value for Nick
Luff's BIP matching award, who invested in PLC and NV ordinary shares, is calculated on the same basis as the LTIP and ESOS face values.

(2

For BIP, LTIPand ESOS, vesting in line with expectationsis as per the performance scenario chartdisclosed on page 83 of the 2013 Remuneration Report, i.e.

67% for BIPand 50% for LTIP. For ESOS, vestingin line with expectations means that 80% of the face value of the award at grant vests to which a valuation factor

of 20% has been applied.
(3

Threshold payout levels for each measure have beenincluded. Where there are multiple measures, itis possible to achieve threshold, and hence payout, in

respectof justone of the measures (or, for TSR, in respect of one of the three TSR comparator groups).

The LTIP awards grantedin 2017 are based on ROIC, EPS and TSR and the 2017 BIP awards on EPS and ROIC, with the respective metrics
weighted equally in each plan and assessed independently. The targets and vesting scales applicable to these awards are set out on
page 103 of the 2016 Remuneration Report. Inrespect of ESOS awards granted in 2017, 33% of the award vests for achieving average
growth in adjusted EPS over the three-year performance period of 4% p.a.; 80% vests for 6% p.a.and 100% for 8% p.a.



Governance Directors’ Remuneration Report

89

Externalappointments

The Committee believes that the experience gained by allowing
Executive Directorsto serve as Non-Executive Directors on the
boards of other organisations is of benefit to the Group.

Accordingly, Executive Directors may, subject to the approval

of the Chairman and the CEO (or the Chairman only in the case of
the CEO), serve as Non-Executive Directors on the boards of up
to two non-associated companies (of which only one may be a
major company) and they may retain remuneration arising from
such appointments.

Erik EngstromisaNon-Executive Director of Smith & Nephew plc
and received fees of £75,135for 2017 (£71,785in 2016).

Nick Luff was a Non-Executive Director of Lloyds Banking Group
plcuntil 11 May 2017. He received fees of £69,007 for 2017
(£165,000in 2016).

Payments to past Directors and payments for loss of office
(audited)

Robert Poletand Lisa Hook who retired from the Boards on

21 April 2016 received tax return preparation assistance of £1,620
and £840 respectively. There have been no payments for loss of
officein 2017.

Share interests [number of shares held)

Statement of Directors’ shareholdings and other share interests
(audited)

Shareholding requirement

The Committee believes thata closeralignment of interests can
be created between senior managementand shareholders if
executives build and maintain a significant personal stake in the
Group. The shareholding requirements applicable to the Executive
Directorsare setoutinthe table below. Shares that count for this
purpose are any type of RELXPLC or RELX NV security of which
the Director, their spouse, civil partner or dependent child has
beneficial ownership onanunencumbered basis. There has been
no change totheinterestsreported below between 31 December
2017 and 14 February 2018.

Meeting the shareholding requirementis both a vesting condition
forawards granted and a requirement to maintain eligibility for
future awards.

On 31 December 2017, the Executive Directors’ shareholdings
were as follows (valued using the middle market closing prices
of the relevant securities):

Shareholding
requirement (% of
31 December 2017

annual base salary)

400%
300%

Actualshareholding
asat31December2017
(% of 31 December 2017

annualbasesalary)

1,466%
637%

Erik Engstrom
Nick Luff

RELXPLC ordinaryshares

RELXNVordinaryshares TOTALRELXordinaryshares

1January 31December 1January 31December 1January 31December

2017 2017 2017 2017 2017 2017

Erik Engstrom 160,036 200,490 803,742 804,181 963,778 1,004,671
Anthony Habgood 50,000 50,000 38,450 38,450 88,450 88,450
Wolfhart Hauser 11,542 11,542 3,091 3,091 14,633 14,633
Adrian Hennah 10,508 10,508 10,508 10,508
Marikevan Lier Lels 3,000 8,000 3,000 8,000
Nick Luff 100,010 124,847 108,960 136,095 208,970 260,942
RobertMacLeod 3,250 6,950 3,250 6,950
Carol Mills 6,500 9,700 6,500 9,700
Linda Sanford 6,700 6,700 3,000 3,000 9,700 9,700
BenvanderVeer 10,766 10,766 10,766 10,766
Suzanne Wood (from 26 September 2017) N/A 3,500 N/A N/A 3,500

N/Adenotes thatthe individual was nota Director at the relevant date.
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Multi-year incentive interests (audited)
The tables belowand on page 91 set out vested but unexercised and unvested options and unvested share awards held by the Executive
Directorsincluding details of options and awards granted and options exercised and options and awards vested during the year of reporting.

All outstanding unvested options and share awards are subject to performance conditions. For disclosure purposes, any PLC and NV
ADRs awarded under the multi-year plans are included as ordinary shares. Between 31 December 2017 and the date of this Report,
there have been no changesinthe options or share awards held by the Executive Directors.

Erik Engstrom

OPTIONS No. of No. of No. of No. of
options options Option options Market options
heldon granted priceon exercised price per heldon Unvested Options
Year of Type of 1Jan during date of during shareat 31Dec options  exercisable
grant security 2017 2017 grant 2017 exercise 2017 vestingin until
ESOS 2013 PLC ord 178,799 £7.345 178,799 £15.038
NV ord 191,230 €8.147 191,230 €16.665
2014 PLCord 145,604 £9.245 145,604 07 Apr 24
NV ord 158,166 €10.286 158,166 07 Apr 24
2015 PLC ord 119,771 £11.520 119,771 Apr18 02Apr25
NV ord 126,358 €15.003 126,358 Apr18 02Apr25
2016 PLC ord 112,690 £12.550 112,690 Mar19 15Mar 26
NV ord 119,312 €15.285 119,312 Mar19 15Mar2é6
2017 PLC ord 96,996 £14.945 96,996 Feb20 27Feb27
NV ord 102,405  €16.723 102,405 Feb20 27Feb27
Total PLC ords 556,864 96,996 178,799 475,061
Total NVords 595,066 102,405 191,230 506,241

(1) The performance outcome forthe ESOS 2014 was disclosed on page 94 of the 2016 Remuneration Report.

SHARES No. of
unvested/
non-
No. of No. of No.ofshares Marketprice performance
unvested shares Market vested/ pershareat tested
shares awarded price per performance vesting/ shares End of
Year of Type of heldon during shareat testedduring performance heldon performance Date of
grant security 1Jan2017 2017 award 2017 testing  31Dec2017 period release
BIP 201410 NV ord 125174 €10.286 123,083 €16.723
2015 NVord 97,607 €15.003 97,607  Dec2017 H12018
2016 NV ord 94,965 €15.285 94,965 Dec2018 H12019
2017 NV ord 81,781 €16.723 81,781  Dec2019 H12020
LTIP 2014 PLCord 145,604 £9.245 136,707 £14.945
NV ord 158,166 €10.286 148,502 €16.723
2015 PLC ord 119,771 £11.520 119,771 Dec2017 H12018
NVord 126,359 €15.003 126,359  Dec2017 H12018
2016 PLC ord 112,690 £12.550 112,690  Dec2018 H12019
NV ord 119,312 €15.285 119,312 Dec2018 H12019
2017 PLC ord 96,996 £14.945 96,996  Dec2019 H12020
NV ord 102,405  €16.723 102,405 Dec2019 H12020
Total PLC ords 378,065 96,996 271,585 329,457
Total NVords 721,583 184,186 136,707 622,429

(1) The performance outcomes forthe BIPand LTIP 2014 were disclosed on page 94 of the 2016 Remuneration Report.
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Nick Luff
OPTIONS No. of No. of No. of No. of
options options Option options Market options
heldon granted priceon exercised price per heldon Unvested Options
Year of Type of 1Jan during date of during shareat 31Dec options  exercisable
grant security 2017 2017 grant 2017 exercise 2017 vestingin until
ESOS 2014 PLCord 65,656 £9.900 65,656 02Sep 24
NV ord 72,228 €11.378 72,228 02Sep 24
2015 PLC ord 56,423 £11.520 56,423 Apr18 02Apr25
NV ord 59,526 €15.003 59,526 Apr18 02Apr25
2016 PLC ord 53,087 £12.550 53,087 Mar19 15Mar2é6
NV ord 56,207 €15.285 56,207 Mar19 15Mar 26
2017 PLC ord 45,694 £14.945 45,694 Feb20 27Feb27
NV ord 48,242  €16.723 48,242 Feb20 27Feb27
Total PLC ords 175,166 45,694 220,860
Total NVords 187,961 48,242 236,203
(1) The performance outcome forthe ES0S 2014 was disclosed on page 94 of the 2016 Remuneration Report.
SHARES No. of
unvested/
non-
No. of No. of No.ofshares Marketprice performance
unvested shares Market vested/ pershareat tested
shares awarded price per performance vesting/ shares End of
Year of Type of heldon during shareat testedduring performance heldon performance Date of
grant security 1Jan2017 2017 award 2017 testing  31Dec2017 period release
BIP 2014"  PLCord 32,630 £9.900 32,085 £14.945
NVord 35,174 €11.378 34,586 €16.723
2015 PLC ord 28,187 £11.520 28,187  Dec2017 H12018
NV ord 29,520 €15.003 29,520 Dec2017 H12018
2016 PLC ord 26,543 £12.550 26,543  Dec2018 H12019
NV ord 28,103 €15.285 28,103  Dec2018 H12019
2017 PLC ord 22,847 £14.945 22,847  Dec2019 H12020
NVord 24,121 €16.723 24,121 Dec?2019 H12020
LTIP 2014"  PLCord 65,656 £9.900 61,644 £14.945
NV ord 72,229 €11.378 67,815 €16.723
2015 PLC ord 56,423 £11.520 56,423  Dec2017 H12018
NV ord 59,526 €15.003 59,526 Dec2017 H12018
2016 PLC ord 53,087 £12.550 53,087 Dec2018 H12019
NV ord 56,207 €15.285 56,207 Dec2018 H12019
2017 PLC ord 45,694 £14.945 45,694 Dec2019 H12020
NV ord 48,242  €16.723 48,242  Dec2019 H12020
Total PLC ords 262,526 68,541 93,729 232,781
Total NVords 280,759 72,363 102,401 245,719

(1) The performance outcomes forthe BIPand LTIP 2014 were disclosed on page 94 of the 2016 Remuneration Report.
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Performance graphs

The graphs below show total shareholder returns for RELXPLC and RELX NV, calculated on the basis of the average share pricein
the 30trading days before the respective year end and assuming dividends were reinvested. RELXPLC’s performance is compared
with the FTSE 100 and RELX NV with the AEX Index (to reflect their respective memberships of those indices). The three-year charts
cover the performance period of the 2015-17 cycle of the LTIP.
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UK Regulations require disclosure of the relative share performance for the nine calendaryears ended 31 December 2017, of
RELXPLC. During that period the total return for the FTSE 100 was 148% while TSR for RELXPLC was 364%, an outperformance
of 216 percentage points.
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CEO historical pay table
The table below shows the historical CEO pay overaten-year period. The year 2008 has beenincluded to show the pre-2009 position,
as 2009 was a transition year with three CEO incumbents.

£000 2008 20099 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017
CEO SirCrispin : SirCrispin lan Erik Erik Erik Erik Erik Erik Erik Erik Erik

Davis Davis Smith Engstrom Engstrom Engstrom Engstrom Engstrom Engstrom Engstrom Engstrom Engstrom
Annualised 1,181 1,181 900 1,000 1,000 1,025 1,051 1,077 1,104 1,131 1,160 1,189

base salary

Annualincentive 61% 30% 37% 71% 67% 66% 73% 70% 71% 70% 68% 69%
payoutasa %
of maximum

Multi-year 100% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 70%%  96%“  90%“W  97%%  97%W  92%
incentive vesting
asa % of
maximum

CEO total (UK) 7,193 706 1,033 426 3,140 2,738 11,1459 5463 17,447 11,4167 11,399® 9,920
statutory basis)™

CEO total (Dutch 6,631 (514) 1,033 431 2,675 5,045 5,443 6,100 6,839 6,412 6,725 6,812
Civil Code basis)?

(1) UKstatutory basis: Thisis described infootnote (1) to the Single Total Figure of Remuneration table on page 84.
(2) Dutch CivilCode basis: Thisis described in footnote (2) to the Single Total Figure of Remuneration table on page 84.

(3) SirCrispin Daviswas CEO from 1 Januaryto 31 March, lan Smith was CEO from 1 Aprilto 10 November and Erik Engstrom was CEO from 11 November to
31December.

(4) The2017,2016and 2015 percentages reflect BIP, LTIPand ESOS. The 2014 percentage reflects the final tranche of the discontinued Reed Elsevier Growth Plan
(REGP), BIPand ESOS. The 2013 percentage reflects BIPand ESOS only and the 2012 figure reflects BIP and the first tranche of the discontinued REGP.

(5) The2012figurereflects the vesting of the first tranche of the discontinued REGP and includes the entire amount that was performance tested over the 2010-12
period, including the 50% of shares deferred until2015inaccordance with the planrulesincluding £3m attributed to share price appreciation.

(6) The2014figureincludes the vesting of the second and final tranche of the discontinued REGP and includes £8.8m attributed to share price appreciation.

(7) The2015figureincludes £4.4m attributed to share price appreciation.

(8) The2016figureincludes £4.2m attributed to share price appreciation. The UK statutory basis has been restated for actual share prices and exchange rates
applicable on the dates of vesting (see page 84 for further detail).

(9) The2017figureincludes £2.9m attributed to share price appreciation.
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Comparison of change in CEO pay with change in employee pay
The table below shows the percentage change in remuneration
(salary, benefits and annual incentive) from 2016 to 2017 for the
CEO compared with the average employee.*

% change from 2016 to 2017

Average
CEO employee!”
Salary 2.5% 2.5%
Benefits 15.8%% 2.5%
Annualincentive 4.6% 5.8%

(1) Thisreflectsasubstantial proportion of our global employee population.

(2) Theincreaserelatestoanincreaseinthe deemed benefit of taxreturn
preparation services. Services provided to Mr Engstrom have not changed.

*From financialyear 2017, the new Dutch Corporate Governance Code
recommends companies describe pay ratios within the company.
Totalemployee costs are disclosed below; remuneration for the CEO
isdisclosed on page 84 and the total average number of employees (on a full
time equivalent basis) during 2017 was 31,200. The Committee believes these
disclosures provide ameaningful description of the relative pay of the CEO
compared with that of the average employee.

Relative importance of spend on pay

The following table sets out the total employee costs forall
employees, as well as the amounts paid in dividends and share
repurchases.

2017 (Em) 2016 (£Em) % change
Employee costs!” 2,273 2114 +8%
Dividends 762 683 +12%
Share repurchases 700 700 -

(1) Employee costsinclude wages and salaries, social security costs,
pensionsand share based and related remuneration. After adjusting for
fluctuationsinthe Group’s principal currencies, employee costs rose 3%
inconstant currency.

Implementation of remuneration policyin 2018

Salary: The Committee has awarded a salaryincrease of 2.5% to
each Executive Director, which means that, from 1 January 2018,
Erik Engstrom’s salaryroseto£1,218,403 and Nick Luff’'s salary
to £717,478. Thisisin line with the guidelines agreed for employees
inthe Group’s most significant locations globally for 2018.

AIP: The operation of the AIPin 2018 changesinaccordance

with the terms of the new policy set out on page 97 of this Report.
Details of the 2018 annual financial targets and KPOs will be
disclosedinthe 2018 Remuneration Report.

LTIP:In accordance with the terms of the new policy, we will

be granting LTIP awards with a face value of 450% of salary to
Erik Engstrom and 375% to Nick Luff (see page 98). The awards
are subjecttoathree-year performance period and the net
(after tax) vested shares are to be retained for a further two-year
holding period.

The following metrics, weightings, targets and vesting scales
applyto LTIP awards grantedin 2018.

Thevesting of LTIP awards is dependent onthree separate
performance measures: TSR, EPS and ROIC, weighted
20%:40%:40% respectively and assessed independently.

The TSR measure comprises three comparators (sterling, euro
and US dollar] reflecting the fact that the Group accesses equity
capital markets through three exchanges - London, Amsterdam
and New York —inthree currency zones. The Group’s TSR
performance is measured separately against each comparator
group and each ranking achieved will produce a payout, if any,

inrespectof one-third of the TSR measure. The proportion of the
TSR measure that vests will be the sum of the three payouts.

The averaging period applied for TSR measurement purposesis
the three months before the start of the financialyearin which the
award is granted and the last three months of the third financial
year of the performance period.

The companies forthe 2018-20 LTIP cycle were selected on the
following basis (unchanged from prioryear):

(a) theywereinarelevantmarketindexorwerethe largest listed
companiesontherelevant exchanges atthe end of the year
before the start of the performance period: the FTSE 100 for
the sterling group; the Euronext100 (including the AEX) and
DAX30forthe eurogroup; and the S&P 500 for the US dollar

group;

(b) certain companies were then excluded:

e those with mainly domestic revenues (as they do not reflect
the global nature of the Group’s customer base);

e those engaged in extractive industries (as they are exposed
to commodity cycles); and

e financial services companies (as they have a different risk/
reward profile).

(c) theremaining companieswere then ranked by market
capitalisation and, for each comparator group, approximately
40 companies with market capitalisations above and below

that of the Group were taken; and

(d) relevantlisted global peers operating in businesses similar

tothose of the Group but not otherwise included were added.

Each comparator group comprises approximately 40 companies.

Vesting percentage of each third TSR ranking within the relevant

ofthe TSRtranche* TSR comparator group
0% Below median
25% Median
100% Upper quartile

*Vesting is on a straight-line basis for performance between the minimum and
maximum levels.

The calculation methodology for the EPS and ROIC measuresis
setoutinfootnotes (2] and (3) on page 86 and the 2013 Notices of
Annual General Meetings, which can be found on the Group’s
website. The targets and vesting scales applicable to the EPS and
ROIC tranches of the 2018 LTIP awards reflect the company’s
approachtoacquisitions, disposals and share buybacks and are
setout below.

Average growth
inadjusted EPS over
thethree-year

ROICinthe third
yearof the

Vesting percentage
of EPSandROIC

tranches* performance period performance period
0% below 5% p.a. below 12.0%

25% 5%p.a. 12.0%
50% 6%p.a. 12.4%
65% 7% p.a. 12.8%
75% 8%p.a. 13.2%
85% 9% p.a. 13.6%
92.5% 10%p.a. 14.0%
100% 11% p.a. orabove 14.4% or above

*Vestingis on a straight-line basis for performance between the stated average
adjusted EPS growth/ROIC percentages.
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Remuneration Committee advice

The Committee consists of independent Non-Executive Directors
and the Chairman of RELX Group plc. Details of members and
their attendance are contained in the Corporate Governance
section on page 77. The Chief Legal Officer & Company Secretary
attends meetings as secretary to the Committee. At the

invitation of the Chairman of the Committee, the CEO of
RELXGroup plc attends appropriate parts of the meetings.

The CEO of RELX Group plcis notinattendance during discussions
about his remuneration.

The Human Resources Director advised the Committee during
theyear.

Shareholder voting at 2017 Annual General Meetings

Willis Towers Watson is the external adviser, appointed by the
Committee through a competitive process. Willis Towers Watson
also provided actuarial and other human resources consultancy
services to some Group companies during the year. The Committee
is satisfied that the firm’'s advice continues to be objective and
independent, and that no conflict of interest exists. The individual
consultants who work with the Committee do not provide advice
to the Executive Directors, oract on their behalf. Willis Towers
Watsonisamember of the Remuneration Consultants’ Group and
conductsitsworkin line with the UK Code of Conduct for executive
remuneration consulting. During 2017, Willis Towers Watson
received fees of £14,489 for advice given to the Committee,
charged onatime and expense basis.

Atthe Annual General Meeting of RELXNV, on 19 April 2017, votes cast by proxy and at the meeting in respect of the Directors’

remuneration were as follows:

Resolution Votes For % For Votes Against %Against  Totalvotescast  VotesWithheld
Amendments to the Remuneration Policy 670,276,345 95.70% 30,141,484 430% 700,417,829 5,371,474
(binding)

Amendmentsto the RELX Group plc 675,218,276 96.19% 26,749,717 3.81% 701,967,993 3,821,310
Long-Term Incentive Plan (binding)

Addition of a deferred share elementto 692,611,396 98.23% 12,504,128 1.77% 705,115,524 673,779

the Annual Incentive Plan (binding)

Atthe Annual General Meeting of RELXPLC, on 20 April 2017, votes cast by proxy and at the meeting in respect of the Directors’

remuneration were a s follows:

Resolution Votes For % For Votes Against %Against  Totalvotescast  VotesWithheld
Remuneration Policy (binding) 788,804,530 94.95% 41,992,841 5.05% 830,797,371 26,762,399
Amendments to the RELX Group plc 787,817,896 94.61% 44,903,327 5.39% 832,721,223 24,841,362
Long-Term Incentive Plan (binding)

Remuneration Report (advisory) 772,674,562 92.88% 59,274,998 7.12% 831,949,560 25,619,005

Wolfhart Hauser
Chairman, Remuneration Committee
14 February 2018
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Remuneration Policy Report

Setoutinthis sectionisadescription of the company’s remuneration policy for Directors, as approved by RELXPLC and RELXNV
shareholders atthe April 2017 Annual General Meetings. (Its wording has been updated solely to reflect the passage of time since the
policy was first published.) The original wording, as first published, can be found on pages 84 to 90 of the 2016 Annual Reports and
Financial Statements.

Remuneration policy table - Executive Directors
Allfootnotes to the policy table can be found on pages 98 to 99.

ANNUAL BASESALARY

Purpose and link to strategy
Torecruitandretain the best executive talent globally to execute our strategic objectives at appropriate cost.

Operation
Salaries for Executive Directors are set and reviewed annually by the Remuneration Committee (the Committee] with changes typically
taking effecton 1 January. In exceptional circumstances, the Committee may review salaries more frequently.

When reviewing salaries, the Committee considers the executive’s role and sustained value to the company in terms of skill, experience
and overall contribution and the company’s guidelines for salaries for allemployees for the year. Periodically, competitiveness with
companieswhich are comparable in respect of industry, size, international scope and complexity is also considered in order to ensure
the company’s ability to attract and retain executives.

Forthe lastsixyears, Executive Directors’ salaryincreases have been 2.5% perannum.

Performance framework
N/A

Maximum value

Salaryincreases to Executive Directors will remain within the range of increases for the wider employee population. However, the
Committee has discretion to exceed this to take account of individual circumstances such as change in responsibility, increasesin scale
or complexity of the business, inflation oralignment to market level.

Recovery of sums paid
No provision.

RETIREMENT BENEFITS

Purpose and link to strategy
Retirement plans are part of remuneration packages designed to recruit and retain the best executive talent at appropriate cost.

Operation

Our policyis to offer competitive long-term sustainable defined contribution plans. Any amount above applicable limits, for example
HMRC’s annual allowance in the UK, will be paid in cash and will be subject to tax and social security deductions. In certain
circumstances, executives can take cash instead of pension contributions.

The UK defined benefit schemes are closed to new hires. Continued membership of legacy defined benefit schemes requires annual
increases to contributions and participation fees from all members, who have a choice to switch to the defined contribution plan atany time.

The CEOisamember of a UK legacy defined benefit pension arrangement, accruing 1/30% of final year pensionable earnings for each year
(pro-rated for partyears] of service, with a normal retirement age of 60. In line with all UK defined benefit scheme members, the CEQ’s
contributions have beenincreasing annually since 2011 and were 11% of pensionable earnings up to the base scheme’s earnings cap as
of 1 March 2017. The contribution rate increases by two percentage points each year during the policy period to 13% as of 1 March 2018,
15% as of 1 March 2019 and 17% as of 1 March 2020. The CEO also pays a participation fee which, from 1 March 2017, was 10% of the
amount of his pensionable earnings in excess of the base scheme’s earnings cap. The participation fee increases by three percentage
points eachyearduring the policy period to 13% as of 1 March 2018, 16% as of 1 March 2019 and 19% as of 1 March 2020. In addition,

since March 2017, a cap applies of 2% perannum on the increase in the CEO’s pensionable earnings.

Performance framework
N/A

Maximum value

Defined contribution plan - maximum company contribution of 25% of salary perannum or equivalent cash in lieu. The CFO received
30% of salary under an arrangement which was made pursuant to the previous remuneration policy, which contained a 30% of salary
maximum. During the policy period, the CFO's company contribution decreases by one percentage point to 29% from March 2017, by
two percentage points to 27% from March 2018 and by a further two percentage points to 25% from March 2019.

Defined benefit scheme - accrual of 1/30% of final year pensionable earnings for every year of service up to a maximum of 2/3rds of
pensionable earnings. As noted above under “Operation”, the CEQ is subject to increases in his contributions and in the participation fee,
aswellasacaponannualincreasesin pensionable earnings, as part of his ongoing membership of this scheme.

Recovery of sums paid
No provision.
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OTHERBENEFITS

Purpose and link to strategy
To provide competitive benefits at appropriate cost.

Operation

Other benefits, subject to periodic review, mayinclude private medical and dental cover, life assurance, tax return preparation costs, car
benefits, directors’ and officers’ liability insurance, relocation benefits and expatriate allowances and other benefits available to employees
generally, including, where appropriate, the tax on such benefits.

Performance framework
N/A

Maximum value

The maximum for ongoing benefits for Executive Directors will not normally exceed 10% of salary (excluding relocation benefits and
any tax related charge on benefits which is met by the company). However, the Committee may provide reasonable benefits beyond this
amountin exceptional situations, such as a changein the individual’s circumstances caused by the company, or if there is a significant
increase in the cost of providing the agreed benefit.!

Recovery of sums paid

No provision.

AIP (ANNUAL INCENTIVE PLAN)

Purposeand link to strategy

The annualincentive provides focus on the delivery of annual financial targets and the achievement of annual objectives and milestones
which are chosen toalign with the company’s strategy and create a platform for sustainable future performance. The compulsory
deferral of one-third of anyannualincentive earned into RELX shares for three years promotes longer-termalignment of Executive
Directors’interests with shareholders’interests, including an element of post-termination shareholding.

Why performance measures are chosenand how targets are set

Performance measuresinclude a balanced set of financial targets and Key Performance Objectives (KPOs), which are appropriately
weighted and which support current strategy and incentivise the Executive Directors to achieve the desired outcomes without undue
risk of focusing on any one financial measure.

The targets are designed to be challenging. They are set with reference to the previous year’s performance and internal and external
forecasts for the following year.

Operation

The Committee reviews and sets the financial targets and KPOs annually, taking into account internal forecasts and strategic plans.
Itapproves fourto six KPOs for each Executive Director, reflecting critical business priorities for which each isaccountable. At least one
KPOwillrelate to the achievement of sustainability targets.

Followingyear end, the Committee compares actual performance with the financial targets and assesses the achievement of individual
KPOs. Two-thirds of any annualincentive earned is paid in cash to the Executive Director and the remaining one-third is deferred into
RELXshares, which are not released to the Executive Director for three years.

Dividend equivalents accrued during the deferral period are payable in respect of the shares that vest.

Onachangein control, the default position is that deferred shares vest. Alternatively, the Committee may determine that deferred
shareswill notvestand willinstead be exchanged for equivalent awards in the acquiring company.

Performance framework
The measures include financial targets, which have a weighting of at least 70%, and individual KPOs, with each element assessed separately.

= The minimum payoutis zero.

= |fthresholdisreached foreach of the financial measures, the overall payout for the financial measures is 10.5% of salary. If the
financial measure with the lowest weighting pays out at threshold and the others do not pay out at all, the overall payout for financial
measuresis 1.5% of salary. Thereis no threshold level for KPOs.

= Payoutfortarget performanceis 150% of salary.

Following anassessment of achievementand scoring of KPOs, the Committee agrees the overall level of earned incentive for each
Executive Director.

Committee discretion applies.?3*

Maximum value

The maximum potentialannualincentive is 200% of annual base salary. Thisincludes the deferred share element but excludes dividend
equivalents payable in respect of the deferred shares.

Recovery of sums paid

Claw-back applies.®
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LONGTERMINCENTIVEPLAN

Purpose and link to strategy
The Long Term Incentive Plan (LTIP) is designed to provide a long-term incentive for Executive Directors to achieve the key performance
measures that support the company’s strategy, and to align their interests with shareholders.

Why performance measures are chosenand howtargets are set

Our strategic focus is on continuing to transform the core business through organic investment and the build out of new productsinto
adjacent markets and geographies, supplemented by selective portfolio acquisitions and divestments. The performance measuresin the
LTIPare chosento support this strategy by focusing on sustained earnings growth, return oninvested capitaland shareholder return.

Targets are setwith regard to previous results and internal and external forecasts for the performance period and the strategic plan for
the business. Theyare designed to provide exceptional reward for exceptional performance, whilst allowing areasonable expectation
thatreward at the lower end of the scale is attainable, subject to robust performance.

Operation
Annual awards of performance shares, with vesting subject to:

= performance measured over three financialyears
= continued employment (subject to the provisions set outin the Policy on payments for loss of office section)

= meeting shareholding requirements (400% of salary for the CEO and 300% of salary for the CFO)
Executive Directors are to retain their net (after tax] vested shares for a holding period of two years after vesting.
Dividend equivalents accrued during the performance period are payable in respect of the performance shares that vest.

Onachange of control, the default position is that awards vest on a pro-rated basis, subject to an assessment of performance against targets
atthattime. Alternatively, the Committee may determine that the awards will not vest and will instead be exchanged for equivalent awards in
the acquiring company.

Performance framework
The performance measuresare EPS, ROIC and relative TSR, weighted 40%:40%:20% respectively and assessed independently,
such thata payout can be received under any one of the measures (or, for TSR, in respect of one of the three comparator groups).

= The minimum payoutis zero.

= |feachofthe measuresvestsatthreshold, the overall payoutis 25% of the award. If the measure with the lowest weighting vests
atthreshold and the others do notvestatall, the overall payoutis 2% of the award.

= Payoutinline with expectations is 50% of the maximum award.
Dividend equivalents are not taken into account in the above payout levels.

Committee discretion applies.?34

Maximum value
The maximum grantinanyyearis up to450% of base salary for the CEO and up to 375% of base salary for other Executive Directors
(notincluding dividend equivalents).

Recovery of sums paid
Claw-back applies.®

1. Other benefits: Maximum value was increased from 5% under the previous policy to 10% under the current policy to reflectincreases in the cost of providing the
agreed benefits. The level of benefits provided to Executive Directors was not changed.

2. Discretioninrespectof AIPand LTIP payout levels: Indetermining the level of payout underthe AIPand vestingunderthe LTIP, the Committee takes into account
RELX's overall business performance and value created for shareholders over the period in reviewand other relevant factors. It has discretion to adjust the
vesting and payout levels (subject always to the maximum individual limits] if it believes this would result in a fairer outcome. This discretion will only be used in
exceptional circumstances and the Committee willexplainin the next Remuneration Report the extent towhich it has been exercised and the reasons for doing so.

3. Discretiontovaryperformance measures underthe AIPand the LTIP: The Committee mayvary the financial measures applying toa currentannualincentive
yearand performance measures for LTIP awards already granted ifa change in circumstances leads it to believe that the arrangementis no longer a fair
measure of performance. Any new measures will not be materially less, or more, challenging than the original ones.

4. Discretionontermination of employmentunderthe AIP and the LTIP: The Committee’sdiscretion ontermination of employmentis described under the
“Policy on payments for loss of office” section on page 101.

5. Malusand claw-back under the AIPand the LTIP: Under the AIP and the LTIP, the Committee has discretion to apply malus and claw-back (i) if the payout
(including the AIP deferred shares element) was calculated on the basis of materially misstated financial or other data, in which case it can withhold a payout
and can seek torecoverthe difference in value between the incorrect payout and the amount that would have been paid had the correct data been used or (ii) if
there has been serious misconduct on the partof the individual, inwhich case the Committee may withhold an AIP payout, lapse unvested LTIP awards and may
require repayment of AIPand LTIP gains arising during a specified period. Under the LTIP, the Committee also has discretion to apply malus and claw-back ifa
participant breaches post-termination restrictive covenants, in which case unvested awards would lapse and the Committee may require repayment of gains
arising during the period beginning sixmonths before termination and ending on the date the post-termination restrictive covenants are stated to expire.
Serious misconducthas beenadded asatrigger eventunderthe AIP and the LTIP since the previous policy toincrease the circumstances inwhich we can apply
malus and claw-back.
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6. Explanation of differences betweenthe company’s policy on Executive Directors’ remuneration and the policy for other employees: Incentives: Alarger
percentage of Executive Directors’ remuneration is performance related than that of other employees. Allmanagers participate inan annualincentive plan,
but participation levels, measures and targetsvaryaccording to their role, seniority and local business priorities. Approximately 100 senior executives
currently participate in the LTIPand about 1,000 participate in the Executive Share Option Scheme [ESOS). Grant levels under the plans varyaccording torole
and seniority. In considering the remuneration policy for Executive Directors, under which the Executive Directors only participate in the AIP and the LTIP, the
Committee considered the incentive plan participation for the wider senior management population. Other benefits: The range and level of retirementand other
benefits provided to employeesvaryaccording torole, seniority and local market practice. This is to ensure that we provide competitive packages which are
appropriate to specificroles. In reducing the maximum company contribution for Executive Directors under the defined contribution pension plan, the
Committee took into account the contribution rates for Executive Directors and for the wider employee population.

7. Changesto pay components: The changes which were made since the previous remuneration policy, together with the rationale for the changes, are described
inthe Committee Chairman’sintroduction on pages 81to 83 of the Annual Reports and Financial Statements 2016 and in notes 1and 5above.

Remuneration outcomes in different performance scenarios

The Committee considers the level of remuneration that may be paid in the context of the performance delivered and value added for
shareholders. The charts beloware anillustration of how the CEO’s and CFO’s regular annual remuneration could vary under different
performance scenarios. The salary, benefits and pension levels are the samein all three scenarios in each chart. Salaryis based on
2017 salary. Benefitsis based on the 2016 Single Total Figure table. Pension, annualincentive and LTIP are all based on the policy table’s
award levels and percentages applied to the 2017 salary. Annualincentive amounts include the one-third portion which is subject to
compulsorydeferralinto RELX shares forthreeyears, although the deferral portion is separately identified within the annualincentive
amountinthe charts. The performance assumptions which have been used are as follows: Minimum means no AIP payout and no
LTIPvesting. In line with expectations means AIP payout at 150% of salary (of which one-third is deferred into shares) and LTIP vesting
at half of the award. Maximum means AIP payout at 200% of salary (of which one-third is deferred into shares) and LTIP vesting at 100%
of the award.

No share price movementisassumed and any dividend equivalents payable in respect of the AIP deferred sharesand the LTIP are
notincluded.

CEO REMUNERATION (£000) CFO REMUNERATION (£000)
9,664
LTIP LTIP
AIP deferred shares AIP deferred shares
AlP cash AIP cash
6395 55% ¥ Salary, benefits, pension ¥ Salary, benefits, pension
42% 4,915
- 3253 oy
28% °
1,937 40%
Minimum Inline with  Maximum Minimum Inline with  Maximum
expectations expectations
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Approachtorecruitmentremuneration - Executive Directors

When agreeing the components of aremuneration package on the appointment of a new Executive Director, oraninternal promotion to
the Board, the Committee would seek to align the package with the remuneration policy stated in the policy table. However, on an internal
promotion to the Board, any existing contractual obligations and commitments may continue to be honoured, even if not consistent with
the prevailing policy. For example, if the individualisa member of the legacy defined benefit pension scheme, the Committee will consider
the pensionarrangementsin the context of the package as awhole and may allow continued participation.

The Committee’s general principle on recruitmentis to offer a competitive remuneration package to attract high-calibre candidates
fromaglobaltalent pool. Basic salarywould be setatan appropriate level for the candidate, taking into account all relevant factors.
As adataanalytics and technology-driven business, with half of its revenue in the US, the company primarily competes for talent with
US-based information and technology companies.

Thevarious components and the company’s approach are as follows:

Standard package onrecruitment*
To offer remuneration in line with the policy table (including the limits), taking into account the principles set out above.

Compensation for forfeited entitlements

The Committee may make awards and payments on hiring an external candidate to compensate him or her for entitlements forfeited
on leaving the previous employer. If such a decision is made, the Committee will attempt to reflect previous entitlements as closely as
possible using avariety of tools, including cash and share based awards. Malus and claw-back provisions will apply where appropriate.
If necessaryto facilitate the grant of awards, the Committee may rely on the one person exemption from shareholder approvalin the
UK Listing Rules.

Relocation allowances and expenses

The type and size of relocation allowances and expenses will be determined by the specific circumstances of the new recruit.

*The standard package comprises annual base salary, retirement benefits, other benefits, AIPand LTIP.

Shareholding requirement

The Executive Directors are subject to shareholding requirements. These are a minimum of 400% of annual base salary for the CEO and
300% of annual base salary for other Executive Directors. On joining or promotion to the Board, Executive Directors are given a period of
time, typically up to five years, to build up to their requirement.

Policy on payments for loss of office
Inline with the company’s policy, the service contracts of the existing Executive Directors contain 12-month notice periods.

The circumstances inwhich an Executive Director’s employmentis terminated will affect the Committee’s determination of any payment
for loss of office, but it expects to apply the principles outlined in the table on the next page. The Committee reserves the right to depart
fromthese principles where appropriate in light of any taxation requirements to which the company or the Executive Directoris subject
(including, without limitation, section 409A of the US Internal Revenue Code), or other legal obligations. Treatment of legacy awards granted
under multi-yearincentive plans in which the Executive Directors no longer participate will be in accordance with those plans and the policy
on payments for loss of office summarised in the Remuneration Policy Reportin the 2013 Annual Reports and Financial Statements.
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Policy on payments for loss of office (continued)

GENERAL'

INCENTIVES

Mutually agreed termination/termination by the company other than for cause?

The Executive Director would be entitled to salary, benefits
and other contractual paymentsin the normalway up to
the termination date and would be paid for any accrued but
untaken holiday.

Salary: Payment of upto 12 months’ salary to reflect the notice
period or paymentin lieu of notice.

Other benefits: Where possible, benefits would be continued for
up to the duration of any unworked period of notice (not exceeding
the maximum stated in the policy table] or the Executive Director
would receive a cash payment (not exceeding the cost to the
company of providing those benefits).

Pension: Deferred orimmediate pensioninaccordance with
schemerules, with acreditin respect of, or payment for up

to, the full period of any unworked period of notice. Thereis
provision under the defined benefit pension scheme for members
leaving company service by reason of permanentincapacity to
make an application to the scheme trustee for early payment of
their pension.

Other: The company may pay compensationin respect of any
statutory employment rights and may make other appropriate
and customary payments.

The company would have due regard to principles of mitigation
of loss. Reductions would be applied to reflect any portion of the
notice period thatis worked and/or spent on gardening leave.

Oninjury, disability, ill-health or death, the Committee reserves
therighttovarythe treatmentoutlinedin this section.

Annualincentive: Any unpaid annualincentive for the previous year
and apro-ratapaymentin respect of the part of the financial year
up to the termination date would generally be payable (subject to
the deferral provisions), with the amount being determined by
reference to the original performance criteria. However, the
Committee hasdiscretion to decide otherwise depending on the
reason for termination and other specific circumstances. The
companywould not pay any annualincentive in respect of any part
of the financial year following the termination date (e.g. forany
unworked period of notice). Any unvested AIP deferred shares
would vestin full at the end of the deferral period. The annual
incentive claw-back provisions would apply.

LTIP: The default position is that unvested LTIP awards would be
pro-rated toreflecttime employed and would vest subject to
performance measured at the end of the relevant performance
period and subject to the Executive Director continuing to meet his
shareholding requirement on a pro-rated basis. The Committee
has discretionto allow unvested LTIP awards to vest earlierand
toadjustthe application of time pro-rating and performance
conditions, subject to the planrules.

Employee instigated resignation

The Executive Director would not receive any payments for loss
of office. The Executive Director would be entitled to salary,
benefits and other contractual paymentsin the normalway up
to the termination date and would be paid for any accrued but
untaken holiday.

Pension: Adeferred orimmediate pension would be payable
inaccordance with the scheme rules.

Annualincentive: The Executive Director would be entitled to receive
anannualincentive for acompleted previous year (subject to the
deferral provisions), but nota pro-rated annualincentive in respect
of apartyearup to the termination date, unless the Committee
decides otherwise in the specific circumstances. Any unvested
AlIP deferred shares would vestin full at the end of the deferral
period. Annualincentive claw-back provisions would apply.

LTIP: All outstanding LTIP awards would lapse on the date of notice.

Dismissal for cause

The Executive Director would be entitled to salary, benefits

and other contractual paymentsinthe normalway up to the
termination date and would be paid for any accrued but untaken
holiday, but would not receive any payments for loss of office.

Pension: Adeferred orimmediate pension would be payable
inaccordance with the schemerules.

Annualincentive: The Executive Director would not receive any
unpaid annualincentive. Any unvested AIP deferred shares lapse
on the date of dismissal.

LTIP: Alloutstanding LTIP awards would lapse on the date of
dismissal.

1. Inadditiontowhatis setoutin this section, on termination forany reason, Erik Engstrom will be entitled to payment of amounts held in his “Retirement Account”.
Before he joined the company’s UK defined benefit scheme, he was nota member of any company pension scheme and RELX made annual contributions of 19.5% of
base salarytoadeferred compensation plan. Contributions to this Retirement Account ceased when he became a member of the UK defined benefitarrangement.

2. Incaseswheretheapproved leavertreatmentapplies, the AIPand LTIP have a default position as well as giving the Committee discretion to adjust the default
treatmentwithin certain parameters. The Committee would only expect to exercise such discretion where the Committee believes the personal circumstances

of the Executive Directorsorequire.
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Remuneration policy table - Non-Executive Directors

FEES

Purpose and link to strategy

To enable RELXto recruit Non-Executive Directors with the right balance of personal skills and experience to make a major contribution
tothe Boards and Committees of a global business whichis listed in London, Amsterdam and New York.

Operation

RELX Chairman: Receives an aggregate annual fee with no additional fees, e.g. Committee Chairman fees. Inrespect of RELXPLC and
RELX Group plc, the Committee determines, on the advice of the Senior Independent Director, the Chairman’s fee. In respect of RELXNV,
the Committee makes a recommendation, on the advice of the Senior Independent Director, to the Board of RELXNV, which determines

the Chairman'’s fee.

Other Non-Executive Directors: Receive an aggregate annual fee in respect of their memberships of the Boards of RELXPLC, RELXNV
and RELX Group plc. Additional fees are payable to the Senior Independent Director and Committee Chairmen. Fees are also payable for
membership of Board Committees. In future, attendance orinternational travel fees may be paid. The Boards determine the level of

fees, subjecttoapplicable law.

Fees may be reviewed annually, although in practice they have changed on a less frequent basis. When reviewing fees, considerationis
given to the time commitmentrequired, the complexity of the role and the calibre of the individual. Periodically, comparative market data
isalsoreviewed, the primary source forwhich is the practice of FTSE 30 companies, with reference also to the Euronext Amsterdam

(AEX])index and US-listed companies.

Maximum value

The aggregate annual fee limit for fees paid to the Chairman and the Non-Executive Directors in respect of their memberships of the
Boards of RELXPLC, RELXNVand RELX Group plcis approximately £2m. The shareholders of RELXPLC and RELX Group plc have
approved a maximum totalannual fee limit of £500,000 and £1,000,000 respectively. Additional fees for membership of or chairing Board
Committees and assuming additional responsibilities such as acting as Senior Independent Director, are not subject to these maximum
limits. The shareholders of RELXNV have approved a maximum annual fee limit of €600,000 for all fees borne by RELXNV.

OTHERBENEFITS

Purpose and link to strategy
To provide competitive benefits at appropriate cost.

Operation

Other benefits for Non-Executive Directors are reviewed periodically and may include private medical cover, tax return preparation
costs, secretarial benefits, car benefits, travel and related subsistence costs, including, where appropriate, the tax on such benefits.

Maximum value
Thereisno prescribed maximum amount.

Approachtorecruitment remuneration -

Non-Executive Directors

Following recruitment, a new Non-Executive Director will
be entitled to fees and other benefitsin accordance with the
company’s remuneration policy. No additional remuneration
is paid on recruitment. However, any reasonable expenses
incurred during the recruitment process will be reimbursed.

Policy on payments for loss of office - Non-Executive Directors
In addition to unpaid accrued fees, the Non-Executive Directors
are entitled to receive one month’s fees for loss of office if their
appointmentis terminated before the end of its term.

Service contracts and letters of appointment

There are nofurtherobligationsin the Directors’ service contracts
and letters of appointment which are not otherwise disclosed in
this Reportwhich could give rise to aremuneration payment or
loss of office payment. All Directors’ service contracts and letters
of appointment are available forinspection at the company’s
registered office. The Executive Directors’ service contracts do not
have a fixed expiry date.

Consideration of employment conditions elsewhere

inthe company

When the Committee reviews the Executive Directors’ salaries
annually, ittakes into accountthe company’s guidelines for
salaries forallemployeesforthe forthcoming year. We do not
currently use any other remuneration comparison metrics
when determining the quantum and structure of Directors’ pay.
We have not consulted with employees in connection with our
policy on Directors’ remuneration.

Consideration of shareholder views

Our practiceis to consult shareholders and consider their views
when formulating, or changing, our policy. Before the current
policy was approved by shareholders at the 2017 AGMs, the
Committee consulted extensively with shareholders (representing
atotal of over 45% of the company’s combined PLC and NVissued
share capital) and shareholder representative bodies in the UK,
the Netherlands and the US on the proposed new remuneration
policy. We were grateful for the constructive feedback, whichwas
takenintoaccountinourfinal proposals.

Previous remuneration policy and prior commitments

Any payments which are still to be made underarrangements
made and awards granted under the previous remuneration policy
(whichisincludedinthe 2013 Annual Reports and Financial
Statements and was approved by RELXPLC shareholders at the
2014 Annual General Meeting) will be made consistent with that
policy. The provisions of the previous policy which relate to
arrangements and awards granted under the previous policy will
therefore continue to apply untilall paymentsinrelation to those
arrangements and awards have been made.

The Committee also reserves the right to make any remuneration
or loss of office payments if the terms were agreed prior to the
approval of the previous policy or prior to anindividual being
appointed asa Director.
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Report of the Audit Committees

Thisreport has been prepared by the Audit Committees of
RELXPLCand RELXNVin conjunctionwith the Audit Committee
of RELX Group plc (the Committees) and has been approved by the
respective Boards. It provides an overview of the membership,
responsibilities and activities of the Committees. The RELXPLC
and RELXNV Audit Committees fulfil theirroles from the
perspective of the respective companies and both Committees
have accesstothe reportstoandthe work of the RELXGroup plc
Audit Committee in this respect.

Membership

The Committees comprise at least three independent
Non-Executive Directors. The members of each of the
Committees who served during the year were:

= BenvanderVeer (Chairman of the Committees)

= AdrianHennah

= Linda Sanford (until 26 September 2017)

= Marikevan Lier Lels

= CarolMills

= Suzanne Wood (from 26 September 2017)

Adrian Hennah, a UK chartered accountant, Suzanne Wood, a
US chartered accountant, and Benvander Veer, aregistered

accountantinthe Netherlands, are considered to have
significant, recentand relevant financial experience.

The Committees asawhole are deemed to have competence
relevanttothe sectorsinwhich RELX operates.

Please see pages 66 and 67 for full profiles of Audit Committee
members.

Responsibilities

The mainrole and responsibilities of the Committees are
toassist the respective Boards in fulfilling their oversight
responsibilities regarding:

= theintegrity of the Group’s interim and full year financial
statements and financial reporting processes;

= riskmanagementandinternal controls, and the
effectiveness of the internal auditors; and

= theperformance of the external auditors and the
effectiveness of the external audit process, including
monitoring the independence and objectivity of Ernst
& Young.

The Committeesreport to the respective Boards on their
activities, identifying any mattersin respect of which they
considerthataction orimprovementis needed and making
recommendations as to the steps to be taken.

The terms of reference of each Audit Committee are reviewed
annually and a copy of eachis published on the Group’s
website, (=) www.relx.com

Committee meetings

The Committees met four times during 2017. The Audit Committee
meetings are typically attended by the RELX Chief Executive
Officer, the RELX Chief Financial Officer, the RELX Financial
Controller, the RELX Chief Legal Officer, the RELX Head of Audit
and Risk, and audit partners from the external auditors.

Financialreporting
Indischarging their responsibilities in respect of the 2017 interim
and fullyear financial statements, the Committees have:

= reviewedand discussed areas of significantjudgementin the
preparation of the financial statements, including in particular:

i. thecarryingvalues of goodwilland intangible assets - the
significantjudgementsinrespect of asset carryingvalues
relate to the assumptions underlying the value in use
calculationsincluding discount rates and long-term growth
assumptions. The Committees received and discussed
reports fromthe RELX Financial Controller onthe
methodology and the basis of the assumptions used;

ii. capitalisation of internally generated intangible assets -
the capitalisation of costs related to the development of new
products and business infrastructure, together with the useful
economic lives applied to the resulting assets, requires the
exercise of judgement. The Committees received reports
fromthe RELXFinancial Controller onthe amounts
capitalised and asset lives selected for major projects;

iii. uncertain tax positions —assessing potential liabilities
across numerous jurisdictionsis complex and requires
judgementin making tax determinations. The Committees
received and discussed reports from the RELX Head of
Taxation on the potential liabilities identified and
judgements applied;

iv. reviewed the recognition of certain pension scheme
liabilities which are subject to judgement. The Committees
received and discussed reports from the RELX Financial
Controller on the methodology and the basis of the
assumptions used;

= reviewed the criticalaccounting policies and compliance
with applicable accounting standards, including the
preparations for IFRS 9, 15and 16, reviewed other disclosure
requirements and received regular update reports on
accounting and regulatory developments, including a review
of compliance with the Dutch Corporate Governance Code
whichwasissued on 8 December 2016;

= receivedand considered the Financial Reporting Council’s
audit quality review of Ernst & Young's audit of the Group’s
financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2016.
Therewere no significant findings from the review;

= reviewedthedisclosures madeinrelationtointernal control,
risk management, the going concern statementand the
viability statement. The Committees received and discussed
reports from the RELX Head of Auditand Risk and the
RELX Treasurer on the processes undertakenand
assumptions used in formulating these disclosures; and

= considered whether the Annual Reporttakenasawholewas
fair, balanced and understandable.

The Committees alsoreceived detailed written and verbal reports
from the external auditors on these matters. The Committees were
satisfied with the explanations provided and conclusions reached.
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Risk managementand internal controls
With respect to their oversight of risk management and internal
controls, the Committees have:

= received and discussed regularreports summarising the
status of the Group's risk management activities, including
actions to mitigate risks, and the findings from internal audit
reviews and the actions agreed with management. Areas of
focusin 2017 included: operationaland financial controls;
regulatory compliance; business continuity and resilience;
review of information (cyber) security; data privacy (including
the EU General Data Protection Regulation readiness); post
acquisition integration; and continued compliance with the
requirements of Section 404 of the US Sarbanes-Oxley Act
relating to the documentation and testing of internal controls
over financial reporting;

= reviewedandapproved the internalaudit plan for 2018 and
monitored execution of the 2017 plan, including progressin
respect of recommendations made;

= reviewedtheresources, terms of reference and effectiveness
ofthe RELX Group plc risk managementand internal audit
functions, including the results of an independent external
review of the internal audit function;

= received presentations from:the RELX Chief Compliance
Officer on the compliance programmes, including the
operation of the Group’s codes of conduct, training
programmes and whistleblowing arrangements and the
RELX Chief Legal Officeron legalissues and claims;

= receivedreports fromthe RELX Chief Strategy Officer
and Chief Legal Officer on information security and other
technology-related risks;

= received updates fromthe RELX Treasurer on pension
arrangements and funding, treasury policies and risk
management and compliance with treasury policies;

= received presentations from the RELX Head of Taxation
ontax policies and related matters;

= receivedregularupdates fromthe RELX Chief Financial
Officer on developments within the finance function; and

= received presentations from chief financial officers of major
businesses.

External audit effectiveness
The Group has awell-established policy on audit effectiveness

andindependence of auditors that sets outamongst other things:

the responsibilities of each Audit Committee in the selection

of auditors to be proposed for appointment or re-appointment
and foragreement on the terms of their engagement, scope

and remuneration; the auditorindependence requirements and
the policy on the provision of non-audit services; the rotation of
audit partners and staff; and the conduct of meetings between
the auditors and the Audit Committees. The policyis available on
the website, (=) www.relx.com

The auditors are precluded from engaging in non-audit

services that would compromise theirindependence orviolate
any professional requirements or regulations affecting their
appointment as auditors. The auditors may, however, provide
non-audit services which do not conflict with theirindependence,
and where their skills and experience make them a logical
supplier, subject to pre-approval by the Audit Committees.

Non-auditservices performed inthe Netherlands are limited to
auditassurance activities. The Committees will continue to review
the policy on the provision of non-audit services in the light of
ongoing regulatory developments.

The Committees have, each quarter, reviewed and agreed the
non-audit services provided in 2017, together with the associated
feeswhich are setoutin note 4 to the consolidated financial
statements. The non-audit services provided were in the areas

of audit-related activities, such as royalty assurance, and
compliance, duediligence and othertransaction-related services.

The externalauditors have confirmed theirindependence and
compliance with the Group policy on auditorindependence to the
Audit Committees.

Ernst &Young LLP and Ernst & Young Accountants LLP were first
appointed auditors of RELXPLC, RELC NVand RELX Group plc
forthe financialyearended 31 December2016. The auditors
arerequired to rotate the lead audit partners responsible

forthe auditengagements every five years. The year ended

31 December 2017 was the second year for the lead engagement
partner for RELXPLC, Nigel Jones, and for the lead engagement
partner for RELXNV, Guusvan Eimeren. The Audit Committees
confirmthat they were in compliance with the provisions of

The Statutory Audit Services for Large Companies Market
Investigation (Mandatory Use of Competitive Tender Processes
and Audit Committee Responsibilities) Order 2014 during the
financialyearended 31 December 2017.

The Committees have conducted their review of the performance
of the externalauditors and the effectiveness of the external audit
process fortheyearended 31 December 2017. The review was based
onasurvey of key stakeholders across the Group, consideration
of public reports by regulatory authorities on key Ernst & Young
member firms and the quality of the auditors’ reporting toand
interaction with the Audit Committees. Based on this review, the
Audit Committees were satisfied with the performance of the
auditors and the effectiveness of the audit process.

Audit Committee effectiveness

The effectiveness of the Audit Committees was reviewed as
partof the 2017 evaluation of the Boards which confirmed that
the Committees continue to function effectively. Details of the
evaluationare setouton page 77.

Benvander Veer
Chairman of the Audit Committees
14 February 2018
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Independent auditors’ report

UNITED KINGDOM - Ernst & Young LLP NETHERLANDS -Ernst & Young Accountants LLP
TO: THE MEMBERS OF RELXPLC TO: THEGENERAL MEETING OF RELXNV

Forthe purpose of these reports, the terms ‘we’ and ‘our’ denote Ernst & Young LLP in relation to the UK responsibilities and reporting
obligations to the Members of RELXPLC and Ernst & Young Accountants LLP in relation to Dutch responsibilities and reporting obligations
tothe General Meeting of RELXNV. RELXPLC and RELX NV jointly own RELX Group plc, which holds all the operating businesses and
financing activities. RELXPLC, RELXNV, RELX Group plc and its subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates are together known as

‘the Group’. The reports of Ernst & Young LLP and Ernst & Young Accountants LLP are presented in the left and right hand columns of
this reportrespectively. Where separate columns are not presented, the content of the reports of Ernst & Young LLP and Ernst & Young
Accountants LLP areidentical unless clearly marked otherwise.

The financial statements (‘the Financial Statements’], which are defined below, comprise:

= the consolidated financial statements of the Group (‘the Consolidated Financial Statements’);
= the parentcompany financial statements of RELXPLC (‘the PLC Company Accounts’); and

= theparentcompany financial statements of RELXNV (‘the NV Company Accounts’).

1.0PINIONS

We have audited the Consolidated Financial Statements of the Group, whichis based in London and Amsterdam, for the year ended

31 December 2017 which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 December 2017, the consolidated income
statement, the consolidated statement of comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of cash flows, and the consolidated
statement of changes in equity for the year then ended and notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 1to 32, includinga summary
of the significantaccounting policies and other explanatory information.

In addition, Ernst & Young LLP has audited the PLC Company Accounts (which comprise the company statement of financial position
asat31December 2017, the company statement of changes in equity for the year ended 31 December 2017 and the notes 1to 5
including a summary of the significantaccounting policies and other explanatory information) and Ernst & Young Accountants LLP
has audited the NV Company Accounts, based in Amsterdam, (which comprise the company statement of financial position as at

31 December 2017, the company statement of comprehensive income, and the company statement of changes in equity for the year
ended 31 December 2017 and the notes 1 to 8 to the NV Company Accounts, including the summary of the significant accounting
policies and other explanatory information).

RELXPLC RELXNV

Inouropinion: Inouropinion:

= the Consolidated Financial Statements and the PLC Company = the Consolidated Financial Statements give a true and fair
Accounts give atrue and fair view of the state of the Group’s view of the financial position of the Group as at 31 December
and of RELXPLC’s affairsas at 31 December 2017 and of the 2017 and of its result and its cash flows for the year then ended
Group’s profit for the year then ended; inaccordance with International Financial Reporting Standards

= the Consolidated Financial Statements have been properly ('IFRS’) as adopted by the European Union and as issued by the
prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting International Accounting Standards Board and with Part 9 of
Standards ('IFRS’) as adopted by the European Union; Book 2 of the Dutch Civil Code; and

= the PLC Company Accounts have been properly prepared = the NVCompanyAccounts give a true and fair view of the
in accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted financial position of RELXNVas at31 December 2017 and of
Accounting Practice; and its resultfor 2017 in accordance with FRS 101 ‘Reduced

= both the Consolidated Financial Statements and the PLC Disclosure Framework’ as aresult of applying Section 362 (1)
Company Accounts have been prepared in accordance with the of Book 2 of the Dutch Civil Code.
requirements of the Companies Act 2006, and, as regards the
group financial statements, Article 4 of the IAS Regulation.

The financial reporting framework that has been applied in the preparation of the group financial statementsis applicable law and
International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) as adopted by the European Union. The financial reporting framework that has
been appliedinthe preparation of the PLC Company Accounts and the NV Company Accounts financial statements is applicable law
and United Kingdom Accounting Standards, including FRS 101 “Reduced Disclosure Framework” (United Kingdom Generally
Accepted Accounting Practice).
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2.BASISFOROPINIONS
RELXPLC

We conducted our auditin accordance with International Standards
on Auditing (UK) (ISAs (UK)) and applicable law. Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s
responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements section 10 of
ourreportbelow. We areindependent of RELX Group and RELXPLC
inaccordance with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our
audit of the financial statementsin the UK, including the FRC's Ethical
Standard as applied to listed publicinterest entities, and we have
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these
requirements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

RELXNV

We conducted our auditinaccordance with Dutch law,
including the Dutch Standards on Auditing. Our responsibilities
underthose standards are further described in the ‘Auditor’s
responsibilities’ section 10 of our report.

We areindependent of RELX Group in accordance with the
Verordeninginzake de onafhankelijkheid van accountants bij
assurance-opdrachten (ViO, Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants, a regulation with respect toindependence) and
otherrelevantindependence regulationsin the Netherlands.
Furthermore we have complied with the Verordening
gedrags-en beroepsregels accountants (VGBA, Dutch Code
of Ethics).

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficientand appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

3.USE OF OURREPORT
RELXPLC

Thisreportis made solely to the company’s members, as a body,
inaccordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the Companies Act 2006.
Our auditwork has been undertaken so that we might state to the
company’s members those matters we are required to state tothem
inanauditor’'s reportand for no other purpose. To the fullest extent
permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone
otherthan the companyand the company’s members as a body, for
our auditwork, for this report, or for the opinions we have formed.

4.CONCLUSIONS RELATING TO PRINCIPAL RISKS, GOING CONCERN AND VIABILITY STATEMENT

RELXPLC

We have nothing to reportinrespect of the following information

inthe annualreport, in relation to which the ISAs(UK) require us

toreporttoyouwhetherwe have anything materialtoadd or draw

attention to:

= thedisclosuresintheannualreportsetoutonpages60to 63
that describe the principalrisks and explain how they are being
managed or mitigated;

= thedirectors’ confirmation set outon page 60intheannual report
thatthey have carried outarobustassessment of the principalrisks
facing the entity, including those that would threaten its business
model, future performance, solvency or liquidity;

= thedirectors’ statementsetouton page 79 in the financial
statements about whether they considered itappropriate to adopt
the going concern basis of accounting in preparing them, and their
identification of any material uncertainties to the entity’s ability to
continue to do so over a period of at least twelve months from the
date of approval of the financial statements

= whetherthedirectors’ statementin relation to going concern
required underthe Listing Rulesinaccordance with Listing Rule
9.8.6R(3)is materially inconsistent with our knowledge obtained
inthe audit; or

= thedirectors’ explanation set out on page 80intheannual report
asto howtheyhave assessed the prospects of the entity, over
what period they have done so and why they consider that period
tobe appropriate, and their statement as to whether they have a
reasonable expectation that the entity will be able to continue in
operation and meetits liabilities as they fall due over the period
of theirassessment, including any related disclosures drawing
attention to any necessary qualifications orassumptions.
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5.0VERVIEW OF OUR AUDIT APPROACH
Key audit matters = Uncertain tax positions
= Internally developed intangible assets
= Aspectsofrevenue recognition
= Carryingvalue of goodwill and acquired intangible assets
= Finance systems
Auditscope = We performed an audit of the complete financial information of 6 components and audit procedures on
specific balances forafurther 5 components.
= The components where we performed full or specific audit procedures accounted for 79% of absolute
profit before tax, 78% of revenue and 78% of total assets.
Materiality = Overall Group materiality of £86.7m which represents approximately 5% of profit before tax.

6.KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professionaljudgment, were of most significance in our audit of the financial statements
of the current period and include the most significant assessed risks of material misstatement (whether or not due to fraud) that we
identified. These mattersincluded those which had the greatest effect on: the overall audit strategy, the allocation of resources in the
audit; and directing the efforts of the engagement team. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the financial
statementsasawhole,andin our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. We have communicated
the key audit matters to the Boards. The key audit matters are nota comprehensive reflection of all matters discussed.

RISK OURRESPONSETO THERISK KEY OBSERVATIONS COMMUNICATED
TOTHEAUDITCOMMITTEES

Uncertain tax positions Riskdirection: «——»

Refertothe Report of the Audit Committees on page 103 and note 10 Taxation of the Consolidated Financial Statements on page 134

The Groupis subjecttotaxin numerous Procedures onthe uncertain tax positions We concluded that management’s
jurisdictions. Its complex organisation were performed centrally by the Group team judgementsinrelation to the extent of
and operational structure givesrise supported by overseas teams including provisions for uncertain tax positions
to potential tax exposures that require specialists: are appropriate.

management to exercise judgementin = Weassessedthe processes and tested

making determinations as to the amount controls over the tax provisioning process.

of tax thatis payable. = We metwithtax managementto understand

The Group reports cross-border the Group cross-border transactions, status
transactions undertaken between of all significant provisions, and any changes
subsidiaries onanarm’s-length basis tomanagement’s judgementsintheyear.
intaxreturnsinaccordance with = Weread correspondence with tax authorities
Organisation for Economic Co-operation and external advisors toinform our

and Development (OECD) guidelines. assessment of recorded estimates and
However, transfer pricing relies onthe evaluate the completeness of the provisions
exercise of judgementanditis frequently recorded.

possible for there to be arange of

> . = Weevaluated management’s methodology
legitimate and reasonable views.

torecord orrelease provisions following tax

The Group is subject to tax authority audits audits, settlements and the expiry of
asamatter of routine and has a number of timeframes.
open taxenquiries. = Wetestedthe calculation of the year end

provisions by inspecting underlying

Asaresult,ithasrecognised a number of ’ .
documentation and supporting schedules.

provisions againstuncertain tax positions,
the valuation of which requires significant
judgement.

We focused on thisareadue tothe
significance of the balance and

the subjectivity in determining the
quantification of the provision and

the judgementaround the trigger for
recognitionorrelease. Thereisarisk
that the tax provisions may be incorrectly
quantified, impacting the provision and
the effective taxrate.
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RISK

OURRESPONSETOTHERISK

KEY OBSERVATIONS COMMUNICATED
TOTHEAUDITCOMMITTEES

Internally developedintangible assets

Riskdirection: <« »

Refertothe Report of the Audit Committees on page 103 and note 16 Intangible assets of the Consolidated Financial Statements on page 143

The Group capitalised internally developed
intangible assets of £304 millionin the
currentyear (2016: £280 million). The
capitalisation of costs related to the
development of new products and
businessinfrastructure, together with
the useful economic lives applied to the
resulting assets, requires the exercise

of judgement.

We focused on thisareaasthe Group

has invested significantlyinanumber

of projectsacross the business. Itis
inherently judgemental with respect to
technical feasibility, intention and ability
to complete the intangible asset, ability to
use or sell the asset, generation of future
economic benefits and the ability to
measure the costs reliably. This results
inarisk that expenditures may be
inappropriately capitalised, amortised
orvalued.

We performed full and specific scope audit
procedures over thisrisk areain é locations,
which covered 86% of the account balance:

We did not identify any evidence of
material misstatementin the internally
developed intangible assets balance.

We assessed the processesand tested
controls for the capitalisation of internally
generated intangible assets and
identification of indicators of impairment.
We assessed the accounting policy and
methodology for capitalisation of expenditures.
We evaluated the accuracy and valuation

of amounts capitalised to assess that costs
aredirectly attributable and necessary to
create, produce, and prepare the asset to be
capable of operatinginthe mannerintended
by management.

We assessed management’s consideration
as towhetherindicators of impairment
existed based on the ongoing business
rationale, including the stage of completion
forinternally developed intangible assets.
Where indicators were present, we assessed
management’s recovery projections to
determine the reasonableness of
judgements on expected cash flows that
support recovery of the intangible balance.

Aspects of revenue recognition

Riskdirection: <« »

Referto note 2Segment Analysis of the Consolidated Financial Statements on page 124

The Group earnsrevenue fromavariety
of sources among the different business
areas, including annual subscriptions,
transactional usage and exhibition fees.
The nature of the risk associated with the
accuraterecording of revenue varies.

We recognise that revenue is a key metric
upon whichthe Groupisjudged, that the
Group hasannualinternaltargets, and
thatthe Group hasincentive schemes that
are partially impacted by revenue growth.

We have determined that thereisarisk
inrelation toeach ofthe business areas
reflective of the opportunity to commit
fraudintherespective revenue streams
through manual adjustments or override
of controls by management.

We performed full and specific scope audit
procedures over thisrisk areain 10 locations,
which covered 78% of the risk amount. We
performed procedures to address the specific

We did not identify evidence of material
misstatementinthe revenue
recognisedintheyear.

riskineach business area.

We assessed the processes and tested
controls over each significant revenue
stream.

We evaluated the appropriateness of journal
entriesimpacting revenue, as well as other
adjustments made in the preparation of the
financial statements. We considered unusual
journals such as those posted outside of
expected days, or by unexpected individuals.
We also evaluated management’s controls
over such adjustments.

We inspected a sample of contracts to check
that revenue recognition wasin accordance
with the contracttermsandthe group’s
revenue recognition policies.

We tested a sample of transactions around
period end to test that revenue was recorded
inthe correct period.

Forrevenue streamswhich have
judgemental elements, we evaluated
management’'s assumptions.
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6.KEY AUDIT MATTERS (CONTINUED)

RISK

OURRESPONSETO THERISK

KEY OBSERVATIONS COMMUNICATED
TOTHEAUDIT COMMITTEES

Carryingvalue of goodwill and acquired intangible assets

Riskdirection: «——»

Refertothe Report of the Audit Committees on page 103 and note 15 Goodwill and note 16 Intangible assets of the Consolidated
Financial Statements on pages 142 and143, respectively

We focused on this area due the size of
the goodwill balance of £5,965 million
(2016: £6,392 million) and acquired
intangible assets net book amount of
£2,058 million (2016: £2,519 million)

and because the Directors”assessment
of thevalue in use of the Group's Cash
Generating Units ((CGU’) involves
judgementabout the future results of the
Group and the discount rates applied to
cash flow forecasts, and any consequential
impairment that may be necessary.

We assessed the key information usedin
determining the valuationincluding the
weighted average cost of capital, cash flow
forecasts andthe implicit growth, utilising
our specialist supportas necessary. We also
conducted a sensitivity analysis to understand
how much these projections would need to
change by fortheretobeanimpairment.

We assessed management’s annual goodwill
and indefinite lived acquired intangible asset
impairment review as wellas management’s
consideration as to whether indicators of
impairment existed for finite lived acquired
intangible assets. Where indicators were
present foracquiredintangible assets,

we focused on the key judgementsin the
impairment review calculations, for example,
the expected cash flows and future benefits
as compared to the costswhere applicable.

We noted the assumptions relating
to the impairment models fell within
acceptable ranges.

We agree with management’s
conclusion that no materialimpairment
of goodwill orintangible assets were
requiredintheyear.

Finance systems

The Group has many IT systemswhich are
vitalto the ongoing operations and to the
integrity of the financial reporting process.
Dueto the global nature of the Group and
its operations, the applications, associated
infrastructureand IT processes which
support significant business and financial
processesare spread acrossanumber

of locations. These are delivered by a mix
ofin-house teams and third party support
providers who on occasionresidein
different countries from the physical
location of the ITinfrastructure or the
location of the RELX business users.
Understanding the IT environment
including interfaces betweenthemwasan
areaofauditfocustoassessiftransactions
are being processed accurately.

We utilised IT auditors to support our evaluation

of the design and operation of IT controls to

address the Group's control objectives and

financial reporting risks.

= Wemadeinquiries of managementto
understand the IT environment and walked
through the financial processes end-to-end
inordertounderstand where IT systems
were integralto the Group accounting
processes, asapplicable.

= We performed dataanalytic procedures
in certain locations and business areas
tounderstand the flow of transactions
and perform specific test procedures.

= Wetestedthe T generalcontrols
environment for the key applications.

= Where appropriate, we received reports
fromthe service auditors of the outsourced
systems and evaluated the adequacy of the
work performed and followed up on matters
arising, performing further procedures as
necessary.

= Whererequired, we tested compensating
controls or performed alternative
procedures to complement the controls
based auditapproach.

Riskdirection: <« »

Ourunderstanding and testing of IT
systems and controls supported our
auditapproach.

Inthe prioryear, our auditor’s reportincluded a key audit matterin relation to Transition as auditor, including auditing opening balances.
Asthisis our second year auditing the Group, the key audit matter relating to audit transition is no longer applicable.
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7.AN OVERVIEW OF THE SCOPE OF OUR AUDIT
Tailoring the scope

Our assessment of audit risk, our evaluation of materiality and our allocation of performance materiality determine our audit scope for
each entity within the Group. Taken together, this enables us to form an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We take into
accountsize, risk profile, the organisation of the group and effectiveness of group-wide controls, changes in the business environment
and other factors such as recent Internal audit results when assessing the level of work to be performed at each entity.

The Group has centralised processes for key judgements and determination of accounting policies. Certain areas of audit focus,
namely internally developed intangible assets, revenue recognition, and IT system management are decentralised processes
delineated by business area. We have tailored our audit response accordingly and procedures for the areas of focus were performed
ordirected by the Group audit team.

Inassessing the risk of material misstatement to the Group financial statements, and to ensure we had adequate quantitative coverage
of significantaccountsin the financial statements, of the reporting components of the Group, we selected eleven components covering
entities within United Kingdom, the Netherlands, the United States, France, and Switzerland, which represent the principal business
units within the Group.

Of the eleven components selected, we performed an audit of the complete financial information of six components (“full scope
components”] which were selected based on their size or risk characteristics. For the remaining five components (“specific scope
components”], we performed audit procedures on specific accounts within that component that we considered had the potential for the
greatestimpacton the significantaccountsin the financial statements either because of the size of these accounts or their risk profile.

The reporting components where we performed audit procedures accounted for 79% (2016: 83%) of the Group’s profit before taxon an
absolute basis', 78% (2016: 83%) of the Group’s Revenue and 78% (2016: 82%) of the Group’s Total assets. For the currentyear, the full
scope components contributed 57% (2016: 57%) of the Group's profit before tax on an absolute basis, 70% (2016: 75%) of the Group’s
revenue and 70% (2016: 72%) of the Group’s total assets. The specific scope component contributed 22% (2016: 26%) of the Group’s profit
before tax on an absolute basis, 8% (2016: 8%) of the Group’s revenue and 8% (2016: 10%) of the Group’s total assets. The audit scope of
these components may not have included testing of all significant accounts of the component but will have contributed to the coverage
of significantaccounts tested for the Group.

Ofthe remaining components that together represent 21% of the Group's profit before tax on an absolute basis, none are individually
greaterthan 2.1% of the Group’s profit before tax on an absolute basis. For these components, we performed other procedures, including
analyticalreview, review of internal audit reports, and testing of consolidation journals, intercompany eliminations and foreign currency
translation recalculations at the Group level to respond to any potential risks of material misstatement to the Group financial statements.

The charts below illustrate the coverage obtained from the work performed by our audit teams.

PROFIT BEFORE TAX (ABSOLUTE) REVENUE TOTAL ASSETS

21%

22% 22%

57% 8% 8%
22%

70% 70%

M Full scope Specific scope Other procedures

Changes fromthe prioryear

Changesfromthe prioryearinclude reducing two components from full to specific scope and reducing three components from specific
scope to other procedures scope as part of our risk focused approach which reflects the experience gained from being in our second
year as auditors.

Integrated team structure
The overallaudit strategy is determined by the UK senior statutory auditor, Nigel Jones and Dutch statutory auditor Guus van Eimeren.

RELX Group plcis basedinthe UK, however, due to the structure of the RELXPLC and RELXNV ownership, the Group team includes
members from both the UKand the Netherlands. The Dutch auditor travelled to the UK many times during the currentyear’s audit and
members of the Group audit teamin both jurisdictions work together as an integrated team. Both partners attended certain Audit
Committee meetings during the course of the auditand concluded on key judgements.

1. Coverage of profit before taxmeasured on an absolute basis for each component [components with a loss would be added to both the numerator and denominator).
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7.AN OVERVIEW OF THE SCOPE OF OUR AUDIT (CONTINUED)

Involvement with componentteams

In establishing our overall approach to the Group audit, we determined the type of work that needed to be undertaken at each of the
components by us, as the primary audit engagement team, or by component auditors from other EY global network firms operating under
ourinstruction. Of the six full scope components, audit procedures were performed on three of these directly by the Group audit team.
Forthe five specific scope components, where the work was performed by component auditors, we determined the appropriate level of
involvement to enable us to determine that sufficient audit evidence had been obtained as a basis for our opinion on the Group asawhole.

The Group auditteam continued to follow a programme of planned visits that has been designed to ensure that the Senior Statutory
Auditors, oranother group audit partner, visit all full scope locations and specific scope locations on a rotational basis. During the
currentyear’s audit cycle, visits were undertaken by the Group audit team to the component teams in United Kingdom, the Netherlands,
the United States, France, and Switzerland. These visits involved meeting local management and discussing the audit approach with the
componentauditteam and any issues arising from their work. The Group audit team also participated in key discussions, via conference
callswithall fulland specific scope locations. The primary team interacted regularly with the component teams where appropriate
duringvarious stages of the audit, reviewed key working papers and were responsible for the scope and direction of the audit process.
This, together with the additional procedures performed at Group level, gave us appropriate evidence for our opinion on the Group
financial statements.

8.0URAPPLICATION OF MATERIALITY
We apply the concept of materiality in planning and performing the audit, in evaluating the effect of identified misstatements on the audit
andin forming our audit opinion.

Materiality

The magnitude of an omission or misstatement that, individually orin the aggregate, could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of the users of the financial statements. Materiality provides a basis for determining the nature and extent of our
audit procedures.

We determined materiality for the Group to be £86.7 million (2016: £74.0 million), which is 5% (2016: 5%) of profit before tax. We believe
that this materiality basis provides us with the best assessment of the requirements of the users of the financial statements.

RELXPLC RELXNV

We determined materiality for the PLC Company Accounts to We determined materiality for the NV Company Accounts to

be £63.4 million (2016: £31.3million), which is 2% (2016: 1%) of be €87.4 million (2016: €43.1 million), which is 2% (2016: 1%)
equity. Materiality has increased due to this being our second of equity. Materiality has increased due to this being our second
year auditing the company. year auditing the company.

Performance materiality
The application of materiality at the individual account or balance level. Itis setatan amount to reduce to an appropriately low level the
probability that the aggregate of uncorrected and undetected misstatements exceeds materiality.

Onthe basis of our risk assessments, together with our assessment of the Group’s overall control environment, our judgement was that
performance materiality was 75% (2016: 75%) of our materiality, namely £65.0m (2016: £56.0m). We have set performance materiality
atthis percentage due to our assessment of the control environment and the historic lack of significant audit findings.

Auditwork at component locations for the purpose of obtaining audit coverage over significant financial statement accounts is
undertaken based ona percentage of total performance materiality. The performance materiality set for each componentis based on
the relative scale and risk of the component to the Group as awhole and our assessment of the risk of misstatement at that component.
Inthe currentyear, the range of performance materiality allocated to components was £19.5m to £48.7m (2016: £13.5m to £33.8m).

Reporting threshold
Anamount belowwhich identified misstatements are considered as being clearly trivial.

We agreed with the Audit Committee that we would report to them all uncorrected audit differences in excess of £4.35m (2016: £3.7m),
whichis setat 5% of materiality, as well as differences below that threshold that, in our view, warranted reporting on qualitative grounds.

We evaluate any uncorrected misstatements against both the quantitative measures of materiality discussed above and in light of other
relevant qualitative considerationsin forming our opinion.
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9.0THERREPORTING
RELXPLC

Otherinformation

The otherinformation comprises the informationincludedin the
annualreportas setouton pages 2-104, other than the financial
statements and ourauditor’s report thereon. The directors are
responsible for the otherinformation.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the
otherinformation and, except to the extent otherwise explicitly
stated in this report, we do not express any form of assurance
conclusionthereon.

In connection with ouraudit of the financial statements, our
responsibility is to read the otherinformationand, in doing so,
consider whether the otherinformation is materially inconsistent
with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the
audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If we
identify such materialinconsistencies or apparent material
misstatements, we are required to determine whether there

isa material misstatementin the financial statementsora
material misstatement of the other information. If, based on the
work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of the other information, we are required to report
that fact.

We have nothing to reportinthisregard.

Inthis context, we also have nothing to reportinregard to our

responsibility to specifically address the following items in

the otherinformationand toreportas uncorrected material

misstatements of the other information where we conclude that

those items meet the following conditions:

= Fair,balanced and understandable set out on page 79 - the
statement given by the directors that they consider the annual
reportand financial statements taken as awhole is fair,
balanced and understandable and provides the information
necessary for shareholderstoassess the group’s
performance, business modeland strategy, is materially
inconsistent with our knowledge obtained in the audit; or

= Audit committee reporting set out on pages 103-104 - the
section describing the work of the audit committee does not
appropriately address matters communicated by us to the
audit committee; or

= Directors’ statement of compliance with the UK Corporate
Governance Code setout on page 71-the parts of the
directors’ statementrequired underthe Listing Rules
relating to the company’s compliance with the UK Corporate
Governance Code containing provisions specified for review
by the auditor in accordance with Listing Rule 9.8.10R(2) do
not properly disclose a departure from a relevant provision
of the UK Corporate Governance Code.

RELXNV
Reporton otherinformationincluded the annualreportand
financial statements

Inaddition to the financial statements and our auditors’ report

thereon, the annualreports and financial statements contain

otherinformation that consists of:

= Reportofthe Board of RELXNV;

= QOtherinformation pursuantto Part 9 of Book 2 of the Dutch
CivilCode;

= DHyearsummary;

= QOtherfinancialinformation;

= Shareholderinformation.

Based on the following procedures performed, we conclude that

the otherinformation:

= isconsistentwith the financial statements and does not
contain material misstatements;

= containstheinformation as required by Part 9 of Book 2 of the
Dutch Civil Code.

We have read the otherinformation. Based on our knowledge

and understanding obtained through our audit of the financial
statements or otherwise, we have considered whether the other
information contains material misstatements. By performing
these procedures, we comply with the requirements of Part 9 of
Book 2 of the Dutch Civil Code and the Dutch Standard 720. The
scope of the procedures performed is less than the scope of those
performedinouraudit of the financial statements.

Engagement

We have been engaged by the General Meeting at 13 January 2016
asauditor of RELXNV since the audit of the year 2016 and we are
the statutory auditor since that date up until today.
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9.0THERREPORTING (CONTINUED)

Opinions on other matters prescribed by the Companies Act 2006
Inouropinion, the part of the directors’ remuneration report to
be audited has been properly prepared inaccordance with the
Companies Act 2006.

Inouropinion, based onthe work undertakenin the course of

the audit:

= theinformation giveninthe strategic reportandthe directors’
report for the financial year for which the financial statements
are preparedis consistentwith the financial statements; and

= thestrategicreportand the directors’ report have been
preparedinaccordance with applicable legal requirements.

Matters onwhichwe arerequired toreport by exception

Inthe light of the knowledge and understanding of the group and
the parentcompany andits environment obtained in the course
of the audit, we have notidentified material misstatementsin the
strategicreportorthe directors’ report.

We have nothing to reportinrespect of the following mattersin

relation towhich the Companies Act 2006 requires us to report

toyouif, in our opinion:

= adequate accounting records have not been kept by the parent
company, or returns adequate for our audit have not been
received from branches notvisited by us; or

= the parentcompanyfinancial statements and the partof the
Directors’ Remuneration Reportto be audited are notin
agreementwith the accounting records and returns; or

= certaindisclosures of directors’ remuneration specified by
law are not made; or

= wehave notreceived all the information and explanations we
require for our audit.
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10.SCOPE AND RESPONSIBILITIES
RELXPLC

Responsibilities of directors

As explained more fullyin the directors’ responsibilities
statementsetouton page 171, the directors are responsible
forthe preparation of the financial statements and for being
satisfied that they give atrue and fair view, and for such internal
controlasthe directors determineis necessary to enable the
preparation of financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whetherdueto fraud orerror.

In preparing the financial statements, the directors are
responsible forassessing the group and parent company’s
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable,
matters related to going concernand using the going concern
basis of accounting unless the directors eitherintend to
liquidate the group or the parent company or to cease
operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Auditor’sresponsibilities for the audit of the financial
statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about
whetherthe financial statements asawhole are free from
material misstatement, whether due tofraud orerror, and to
issue an auditor's report thatincludes our opinion. Reasonable
assuranceis ahigh level of assurance, butis nota guarantee
thatan audit conducted in accordance with ISAs (UK) will
always detecta material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or errorand are considered
materialif, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected toinfluence the economic decisions

of userstaken on the basis of these financial statements.

Explanation as towhat extent the audit was considered
capable of detectingirregularities, including fraud

The objectives of ouraudit, inrespect to fraud, are; to identify
and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial
statements due to fraud; to obtain sufficient appropriate audit
evidence regarding the assessed risks of material misstatement
dueto fraud, through designing and implementing appropriate
responses;and torespond appropriately to fraud or suspected
fraud identified during the audit. However, the primary
responsibility for the prevention and detection of fraud rests
with both those charged with governance of the entity and
management.

Ourapproachwasas follows:

= We obtained an understanding of the legal and regulatory
frameworks thatare applicable to the group and
determined that the most significantare those that relate to
the reporting framework (IFRS, FRS 101, the Companies Act
2006 and UK Corporate Governance Code) and the relevant
tax compliance regulationsin the jurisdictions in which the
group operates.

= Weunderstood how RELX Group is complying with those
frameworks making enquiries of management, internal
audit, those responsible for legaland compliance
procedures and the company secretary. We corroborated
our enquiries through our review of board minutes and
papers provided to the Audit Committee.

RELXNV

Directors’ and Audit Committee’s responsibilities

The Directors areresponsible for:

= the preparation and fair presentation of the Consolidated
Financial Statementsinaccordance with IFRSs as adopted by
the European Unionand Part 9 of Book 2 of the Dutch Civil Code;

= thepreparationand fair presentation of the NV Company
Accountsinaccordance with FRS 101 ‘Reduced Disclosure
Framework’ as aresult of applying Section 362 (1) of Book 2
of the Dutch Civil Code;

= thepreparation of the otherinformation, including the report
of the Board in accordance with Part 9 of Book 2 of the Dutch
CivilCode and otherinformation pursuant to Part 9 of Book 2
of the Dutch Civil Code;

= suchinternal controlas the directors determineis necessary
to enable the preparation of the Financial Statements thatare
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud orerror.

In preparing the Financial Statements, the Directors are
responsible for assessing the Group’sand RELXNV’s ability to
continue asagoing concern. Based on the financial reporting
frameworks mentioned, the Directors should prepare the
Consolidated Financial Statements and NV Company Accounts
using the going concern basis of accounting unless the Directors
eitherintend to liquidate the Group and/or RELXNV or to cease
operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so. The
Directors should disclose in the Financial Statements events and
circumstances that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s
and/or RELX NV’s ability to continue as a going concern.

The Audit Committee is responsible for overseeing the Group's
financialreporting process.

Auditor’sresponsibilities

Our objective is to planand perform the auditassignmentina
manner that allows us to obtain sufficientand appropriate audit
evidence for our opinion.

Ouraudit has been performed with a high, but not absolute, level
of assurance, which means we may not have detected all errors
and fraud.

Misstatements canarise from fraud or error and are considered
materialif, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably
be expected toinfluence the economic decisions of users taken
onthe basis of these financial statements. The materiality affects
the nature, timing and extent of our audit procedures and the
evaluation of the effect of identified misstatements on our opinion.

For moreinformation about an audit of financial statements,
we refer to the NBAwebsite: https://www.nba.nl/globalassets/
tools-en-voorbeelden/standaardpassages/eng_
beursgenoteerd_01.pdf.
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10.SCOPE AND RESPONSIBILITIES (CONTINUED)

= Weassessed the susceptibility of the group’s financial
statements to material misstatement, including how fraud
might occur by meeting with management fromvarious parts
ofthe business to understand where it considered there was
susceptibility to fraud. We also considered performance
targetsandtheir propensity toinfluence on efforts made
by managementto manage earnings. We considered the
programmes and controls that the group has established to
addressrisks identified, or that otherwise prevent, deterand
detect fraud; and how senior management monitors those
programmes and controls. Where the risk was considered
to be higher, we performed audit procedures toaddress each
identified fraud risk. These procedures included testing manual
journalsand were designed to provide reasonable assurance
thatthe financial statements were free from fraud orerror.

= Basedonthisunderstanding we designed our audit procedures
toidentify non-compliance with such laws and regulations.
Our proceduresinvolved: journal entry testing, with a focus
onmanual consolidation journals and journalsindicating large
orunusualtransactions based on ourunderstanding of the
business; enquiries of legal counsel, Group management,
internalaudit, country management atall fulland specific
scope management; and focused testing. In addition, we
completed procedures to conclude onthe compliance of the
disclosuresintheannual reportandaccountswithall
applicable requirements.

= Anyinstances of non-compliance with laws and regulations
were communicated by/to components and considered in our
auditapproach, if applicable.

Afurther description of our responsibilities for the audit of the

financial statementsis located on theFinancial Reporting Council’s

website at https://www.frc.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities.

This description forms part of our auditor’s report.

Other matterswe arerequired to address

= Wewere appointed by the company on 21 April 2016 to audit the
financial statements for the year ending 31 December 2016 and
subsequent financial periods.

= Theperiod of total uninterrupted engagementincluding
previous renewals and reappointmentsis twoyears, covering
theyearsending 2016 and 2017.

= Thenon-auditservices prohibited by the FRC’s Ethical Standard
were not provided to the group or the parent company and we
remainindependent of the group and the parent companyin
conducting the audit.

= Theauditopinionis consistent with the additional report to the

auditcommittee.

Reportonother legaland regulatory requirements

= Wehave beenengaged by the General Meeting at 13 January
2016 as auditor of RELX NV since the audit of the year 2016
and we are the statutory auditor since that date up until today.

= Wehave not provided prohibited non-audit services as referred
toin Article 5(1) of the EU Regulation on specific requirements
regarding statutory audit of public-interest entities.

= Wealsosubmitanadditional report to the audit committee
inaccordance with Article 11 of the EU Regulation on specific
requirements regarding statutory audit of public-interest
entities. The informationincluded in this additional report
is consistent with our audit opinionin this auditor’s report.

11.SIGNING
NigelJones
(Senior Statutory Auditor)

Forand on behalf of
Ernst & YoungLLP
London

14 February 2018

Notes:

Guusvan Eimeren

Ernst & Young Accountants LLP
Amsterdam

14 February 2018

1. Themaintenance andintegrity of the RELX Group web siteis the responsibility of the directors; the work carried out by the auditors does notinvolve
consideration of these matters and, accordingly, the auditors accept no responsibility for any changes that may have occurred to the financial statements since

theywere initially presented onthe web site.

2. Legislationinthe United Kingdom governing the preparation and dissemination of financial statements may differ from legislationin otherjurisdictions.
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Consolidated income statement
é.
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017 2016 2015
Note £m £m £m
Revenue 2 7,355 6,895 5,971
Costofsales i} i} 31) 488) (2,129)
Gross profit 4,724 4,407 3,842
Selling and distribution costs (1,163) (1,109) (965)
Administration and other expenses (1,693) (1,627) (1,444)
Share of results of joint ventures
Operating profit 2
Financeincome 3
Finance costs 5
Net finance costs ' %
Disposals and other non-operating items 2
Profit before tax
Current tax
Deferred tax
Taxexpense
Net profit for theyear
Attributable to:
RELXPLC and RELXNVshareholders 1,659 1,161 1,008
Non-controllinginterests 8 8 .. 6. |
Net profit for the year 1,667 1,169 1,014 §
Earnings per share g
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017 2016 2015 %
Basicearnings pershare =
RELXPLC 1 82.2p 56.3p 46.4p
RELXNV 11 82.2p 56.3p 49.4p
Diluted earnings per share
RELXPLC 1 81.5p 55.8p 46.0p
RELXNV 11 81.5p 55.8p 48.9p
g
o
o
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Consolidated statement of comprehensive income

2017 2016 2015
Note £m £m £m
Net profitfor the year 1,667 1,169 1,014
Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss:
Actuarial gains/(losses) on defined benefit pension schemes 6 233 (262) 157
Taxonitemsthatwill notbereclassified to profitortloss 0 (699 45 (34)
Totalitems that will not be reclassified to profitor loss 174 (217) 123
Items that may be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss:
Exchange differences ontranslation of foreign operations (507) 670 99
Fairvalue movements on cash flow hedges 19 137 (165) (104)
Transferto net profitfrom cash flow hedge reserve 19 25 46 29
,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,, 0.....BO 9. 18
,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,, ..B78) 570 42
,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,, , oo feom 383 165
Totalcomprehenswe income for the year 1 466 1,522 1,179
Attributable to:
RELXPLCand RELXNV shareholders 1,458 1,514 1,173
Non-controllinginterests 8 8 6

Total comprehensiveincome for theyear o 1,466 T 522 o 1179 i
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Consolidated statement of cash flows

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017 2016 2015
Note £m £m £m

Cash flows from operating activities

Cash generated from operations 12 2,445 2,236 1,882

Interest paid (152) (160) (140)

Interest received

Cash flows from investing activities

Acquisitions

Purchases of property, plantand equipment

Expenditure oninternally developed intangible assets
Purchase of investments

Proceeds from disposals of property, plantand equipment
Gross proceeds from business disposals

Payments on business disposals

Net cash used ininvesting activities

Cash flows from financing activities

12 (131)

Dividends paid to shareholders of RELXPLC and RELX NV 14 (762) (683) (583)
Distributions to non-controlling interests (10) 9) (8)
(Decreasel/increase in short-term bank loans, overdrafts and commercial paper 12 (148) 271 (339)
Issuance of term debt 12 873 603 500
Repayment of term debt 12 (712) (474) (186)
Repayment of finance leases 12 (5) (7) (9)
Repurchase of ordinary shares 26 (700) (700) (500)
Purchase of shares by Employee Benefit Trust 26 (39) (29) (23)
Proceedsonissueofordinaryshares 2 B
Netcashusedinfinancingactivities (1671) " (1.005) " {1,124]
(Decrease)/increase in cash and cash equivalents 12 (45) 9 (139)
Movementin cash and cash equivalents

Atstartofyear 162 122 276
(Decreasel/increase in cash and cash equivalents (45) 9 (139)
Exchengetranslationdifferences € 3 (15)
Atend of year 111 162 122
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Consolidated statement of financial position

AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2017 2016
Note £m £m
Non-currentassets
Goodwill 15 5,965 6,392
Intangible assets 16 3,194 3,604
Investmentsinjointventures 17 102 102
Otherinvestments 17 141 137
Property, plantand equipment 18 209 242
Deferredtaxassets 10 405 bbb
Net pension assets 6 22 -
Derivative financialinstruments 19 8 49
4444444444444 10124 10970
Currentassets
Inventories and pre-publication costs 20 197 209
Trade and otherreceivables 21 1,822 1,956
Derivative financialinstruments 19 29 20
Cashandcashequivalents 12 M 162
‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘ L2189 2,347
Assetsheldforsale b
Total assets 12,283 13,323
Current liabilities
Trade and other payables 22 3,237 3,425
Derivative financialinstruments 19 32 85
Borrowings 23 678 1,159
Taxation 560 612
D I OIS e 25 A28
‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘ 4,526 5304
Non-current liabilities
Derivative financialinstruments 19 25 110
Borrowings 23 4,208 3,684
Deferred tax liabilities 10 738 1,137
Net pension obligations 6 350 636
T 25 .62 8
4444444444444 5,383 5656
Liabilities associated with assets heldforsale .~ =5
Totalliabilities 9909 10965
Netassets 2,374 2,358
Capitalandreserves
Share capital 26 224 226
Share premium 26 3,104 3,003
Shares heldintreasury 26 (1,631) (1,471)
Translation reserve 169 727
Otherreserves 27 487 l1es)
Shareholders’ equity 2,353 2,320
Non-controllinginterests 21 38
Total equity 2,374 2,358

The consolidated financial statements were approved by the Board of Directors and authorised forissue on 14 February 2018.

Theywere signed on its behalf by:

A JHabgood
Chairman

Chief Financial Officer
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Consolidated statement of changes in equity
Non-
Share Share Sharesheld Translation Other Shareholders’ controlling Total
capital premium intreasury reserve reserves equity interests equity
Note £m £m £m £m £m £m £m £m
Balance at 1 January 2015 212 2,820 (1,107) 74 107 2,106 31 2,137
Total comprehensive income
fortheyear - - - 99 1,074 1,173 6 1,179
Dividends paid 14 - - - - (583) (583) (8) (591)
Issue of ordinary shares,
net of expenses - 24 - - - 24 - 24
Repurchase of ordinary shares - - (623) - - (623) - (623)
Cancellation of shares (4) - 269 - (265) - - -
Bonusissue of ordinary shares 18 (18) - - - - - -
Increase inshare based
remuneration reserve
(net of tax) - - - - 47 47 - 47
Settlement of share awards - - 49 - (49) - -
Acquisitions - - - - - -
Exchange differenceson
translation of capital
.andreserves . @ ... (78) o 19 B 10 O 1.
Balance at 1 January 2016 224 2,748 (1,393) 224 341 2,144 34 2,178
Total comprehensive income
fortheyear - - - 670 844 1,514 8 1,522
Dividends paid 14 - - - - (683) (683) (9) (692)
Issue of ordinary shares,
net of expenses - 23 - - - 23 - 23
Repurchase of ordinary shares - - (722) - - (722) - (722)
Cancellation of shares 26 (6) - 713 - (707) - - -
Increaseinshare based
remuneration reserve
(net of tax) - - - - L4 L4 - A
Settlement of share awards - - 39 - (39) - - -
Exchange differenceson
translation of capital
_.andreserves 8 .. 232 lwos) o en 8 e S . 5.
Balance at 1 January 2017 226 3,003 (1,471) 727 (165) 2,320 38 2,358
Total comprehensive income
fortheyear - - - (507) 1,965 1,458 8 1,466
Dividends paid 14 - - - - (762) (762) (10) (772)
Issue of ordinary shares,
netof expenses - 32 - - - 32 - 32
Repurchase of ordinary shares - - (737) - - (737) - (737)
Cancellation of shares 26 (4) - 570 - (566) - - -
Increasein share based
remuneration reserve
(net of tax) - - - - 42 42 - 42
Settlement of share awards - - 37 - (37) - - -
Acquisitions - - - - - - 1 1
Disposal of business - - - - - - (15) (15)
Exchange differences on
translation of capital
_andreserves 2 69 | o) s 0 o m_ m
Balance at31 December 2017 224 3,104 (1,631) 169 487 2,353 21 2,374
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements
for the year ended 31 December 2017

1 Basis of preparation and accounting policies

Basis of preparation

RELXPLCand RELXNV are separate, publicly-held entities. RELXPLC's ordinary shares are listed in London and, through a depositary
receipt, in New York, and RELXNV’s ordinary shares are listed in Amsterdam and, through a depositary receipt, in New York. RELXPLC
and RELX NV jointly own RELX Group plc, which holds all the Group’s operating businesses and financing activities. RELXPLC, RELXNV,
RELX Group plcand its subsidiaries, jointventures and associates are together known as “the Group”.

The Governing Agreement determines the equalisation ratio between RELXPLC and RELXNV shares. One RELXPLC ordinary share
confersan equivalent economicinteresttoone RELXNVordinary share.

Asaresult of these arrangements, all shareholders can be regarded as having interests in a single economic entity. Consequently,
the Directors have concluded that the Group forms a single reporting entity for the presentation of consolidated financial statements.
Accordingly, the Group consolidated financialinformation represents the interests of both sets of shareholders and is presented by
both RELXPLC and RELXNV as their respective consolidated financial statements.

The Directors of RELXPLC and RELX NV, having made appropriate enquiries, consider that adequate resources exist for the Group
to continue in operational existence for the foreseeable future and that, therefore, itis appropriate to adopt the going concern basis
in preparing the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2017.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, subsidiaries of the Group are accounted for under the acquisition method and
investmentsin associates and jointventures are accounted for under the equity method. Allintra-group transactions and balances
areeliminated.

Onacquisition of a subsidiary, or interestin an associate or joint venture, fair values, reflecting conditions at the date of acquisition, are
attributed to the netassets, including identifiable intangible assets acquired. Adjustments are made to bring accounting policies into line
with those of the Group. The results of subsidiaries sold or acquired are included in the consolidated financial statements up to or from
the date that control passes from or to the Group.

Non-controlling interestsin the net assets of the Group are identified separately from shareholders’ equity. Non-controlling interests
consist of the amount of those interests at the date of the original acquisition and the non-controlling share of changes in equity since the
date of acquisition.

Accounting policies

The Group’s consolidated financial statements are prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) as
adopted by the European Union and asissued by the International Accounting Standards Board (IASB). The accounting policies under
IFRS areincluded in the relevant notes to the consolidated financial statements. The accounting policies below are applied throughout
the financial statements and are unchanged from those applied in preparing the consolidated financial statements for the year ended
31 December 2016 and 2015.

Foreign exchange translation
The consolidated financial statements are presented in sterling.

Transactionsinforeign currencies are recorded at the rate of exchange prevailing on the date of the transaction. Non-monetary assets
and liabilities thatare measured at historical costin foreign currencies are translated using the exchange rate at the date of the transaction.
At each statement of financial position date, monetary assets and liabilities that are denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated
attherate prevailing on the statement of financial position date. Exchange differences arising are recorded in the income statement
otherthanwhere hedge accounting applies, as set out on pages 147 to 152.

Assetsand liabilities of foreign operations are translated at exchange rates prevailing on the statement of financial position date. Income
and expenseitems and cash flows of foreign operations are translated at the average exchange rate for the period. Significant individual
items ofincome and expense and cash flows in foreign operations are translated at the rate prevailing on the date of transaction.
Exchange differences arising are classified as equity and transferred to the translation reserve. When foreign operations are disposed
of, the related cumulative translation differences are recognised within the income statementin the period.

The Group uses derivative financialinstruments, primarily forward contracts, to hedge its exposure to certain foreign exchange risks.
Details of the Group’s accounting policies in respect of derivative financial instruments are set out on page 147.



Financial statements and other information Notes to the consolidated financial statements 123

1 Basis of preparation and accounting policies (continued)

Critical judgements and key sources of estimation uncertainty
The most significantaccounting policies in determining the financial condition and results of the Group, and those requiring the most
subjective or complexjudgement, relate toand are included in the following notes:

= valuation of goodwilland intangible assets - notes 15and 16;
= capitalisation of development spend - note 16;
= taxation-note 10;and

= accounting for defined benefit pension schemes - note 6.

Other significant accounting policies
The accounting policy inrespect of revenue recognition is also significant in determining the financial condition and results of the Group,
although the application of this policy is more straightforward. This policy is included in note 2.

Standards and amendments effective for the year
Theinterpretations and amendments to IFRS effective for 2017 have not had a significantimpact on the Group’s accounting policies
orreporting.

Standards, amendments and interpretations notyet effective
New accounting standards and amendments and their expected impact on the future accounting policies and reporting of the Group
are set out below.

IFRS 9 - Financial Instruments (effective for the 2018 financialyear). The standard replaces the existing classification and measurement
requirementsin|AS 39 - Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement. Adoption of the standard is not expected to have
asignificantimpact onthe measurement, presentation or disclosure of financial assets and liabilities in the consolidated financial
statements. The most notable impact for the Group relates to cash flow hedge accounting, which will result in additional disclosure
inrespectof the costs of hedging reserve balance and movements from 2018 onwards.

IFRS 15 - Revenue from Contracts with Customers (effective for the 2018 financial year). The new standard provides a single point of
reference for revenue recognition, including guidance in relation to identification of contracts and licensing arrangements. RELX Group
willadopt IFRS 15 0n a fully retrospective basis. Management have performed a fullassessment of the impact of IFRS 15. The adoption of
IFRS 15 will not resultin a material change to the 2017 income statement reported numbers, and will not resultin material differences to
the 2018 income statement numbers.

IFRS 16 - Leases (early adoption so as to be effective for the 2018 financial year). The new standard eliminates the distinction between
operatingandfinance leases and requires lessees to recognise all leases with a lease term of greater than 12 months in the statement
of financial position. RELX Group will adopt this standard a year earlier than the mandatory effective date of 1 January 2019. IFRS 16 will
be adopted on afully retrospective basis. The majority of the RELX Group lease portfolio relates to property leases. Management have
performedafullassessment of the impact of IFRS 16.

The table below sets out the expected impact on the income statementand the most significantly impacted statement of financial
positionaccounts.

2017as IFRS9 IFRS 15 IFRS 16 2017as
reported impact impact impact restated
£m £m £m £m £m

Income statement
Revenue 7,355 - (14) - 7,341
Adjusted operating profit 2,284 - (11) 11 2,284
Reported operating profit 1,905 - (1) 1 1,905
Net finance costs (182) (2) - (15) (199)
Adjusted net profit attributable to RELX PLC and RELX NV shareholders 1,635 (2) (9) (4) 1,620
Reported net profitattributable to RELX PLC and RELX NV shareholders 1,659 (2) (9 - 1,648
Adjusted EPS 81.0p (0.1p) (0.5p) (0.2p) 80.2p
Reported EPS 82.2p (0.1p) (0.5p) - 81.6p
Statement of financial position
Right of use asset 16 - - 272 288
Borrowings (including lease liability) (4,886) 14 - (381) (5,253)
Finance lease receivable - - - 56 56
Deferredincome (1,834) - (76) - (1,910)

Additionally, anumber of amendments and interpretations have been issued which are not expected to have any significantimpact
onthe Group’s accounting policies and reporting.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements
for the year ended 31 December 2017

Accounting policy
The Group’s reported segments are based on the internal reporting structure and financial information provided to the Boards.

Adjusted operating profitis the key segmental profit measure used by the Group in assessing performance. Adjusted operating
profitis reconciled to operating profit on page 125.

Revenue represents the value of sales less anticipated returns on transactions completed by performance, excluding customer
salestaxes.

Revenues are recognised for the various categories as follows: subscriptions — on periodic dispatch of subscribed product or
rateably over the period of the subscription where performance is not measurable by despatch; transactional - on despatch or
occurrence of the transaction; and advertising — on publication or over the period of online display.

Revenue recognition policies, while an area of management focus, are generally straightforward in application as the timing of
productor service delivery and customer acceptance for the various revenue types can be readily determined. Allowances for
product returns are deducted from revenues based on historical return rates. Where sales consist of two or more components
that operate independently, revenueis recognised as each componentis completed by performance, based on attribution of
relative value.

RELXGroupisaglobal provider of information and analytics for professional and business customers across industries operating

in four major market segments: Scientific, Technical & Medical is a global information analytics business that helps institutions and

professionals advance healthcare, open science, and improve performance for the benefit of humanity; Risk & Business Analytics

provides customers with solutions and decision tools that combine public and industry specific content with advanced technology and

analytics toassistthemin evaluating and predicting risk and enhancing operational efficiency; Legalis a leading global provider of legal,
regulatoryand business information and analytics that helps customers increase productivity, improve decision-making and outcomes
and advance the rule of law around the world; and Exhibitions is the world's leading events business, enhancing the power of face-to-face

through data and digital tools at over 500 events, in 30 countries, attracting more than 7m participants.

Revenue Adjusted operating profit

2017 2016 2015 2017 2016 2015

£m £m £m £m £m £m

Scientific, Technical & Medical 2,478 2,320 2,070 913 853 760

Risk & Business Analytics 2,076 1,906 1,601 759 686 575

Legal 1,692 1,622 1,443 332 311 274
Exhibitions 09 0sr 887 ...288 269 .27
Sub-total ...h355 6895 5971 . ...2289 2119 1826
Unallocateditems e N (-] N () B

Total 7,355 6,895 5,971 2,284 2,114 1,822

2017 2016 2015

£m £m £m

North America 4,004 3,693 3,166

United Kingdom 1,083 1,055 996

The Netherlands 855 813 649

Restof Europe 704 707 614
Rest of world L T09 627 546

Total 7,355 6,895 5,971

2017 2016 2015

£m £m £m

North America 4,081 3,778 3,215

United Kingdom 522 504 461

The Netherlands 92 118 17

Rest of Europe 1,081 1,091 958
Rest of world e W79 1,404 1,220

Total 7,355 6,895 5,971




Financial statements and other information Notes to the consolidated financial statements 125

2
g
2 Segment analysis (continued)
ANALYSIS OF REVENUE BY FORMAT 2017 2016 2015
£m £m £m
Electronic 5,399 4,954 4,179
Print 834 875 906
Face-to-face 1,122 1,066 886
Total 7,355 6,895 5,971
&
ANALYSIS OF REVENUE BY TYPE 2017 2016 2015 §
£m £m £m 2
Subscriptions 3,808 3,618 3,123 %
Transactional 3,449 3,163 2,736 z
Advertising 98 114 112
Total 7,355 6,895 5,971
ANALYSIS BY BUSINESS SEGMENT Expenditure on
acquired goodwilland Capital expenditure Amortisationofacquired Depreciationand other
intangible assets additions intangible assets amortisation
2017 2016 2015 2017 2016 2015 2017 2016 2015 2017 2016 2015
£m £m £m £m £m £m £m £m £m £m £m £m
Scientific, Technical & Medical 94 19 7 97 86 74 77 88 77 81 82 86 n
Risk & Business Analytics - 288 41 83 67 56 141 147 131 52 45 33 §
Legal 6 83 96 154 156 161 52 73 56 121 113 95 Li
Exhibitions 33 21 67 23 26 27 [AA 38 32 18 17 14 3
Total 133 411 211 357 335 318 314 346 296 272 257 228 g
Capital expenditure comprises additions to property, plantand equipment and internally developed intangible assets. Amortisation
ofacquired intangible assets includes amounts in respect of joint ventures of nil (2016: £3m; 2015: £3m) in Legaland £1m (2016: £1m;
2015: £1m) in Exhibitions.
ANALYSIS OF NON-CURRENT ASSETS BY GEOGRAPHICAL LOCATION 2017 2016 2015
£m £m £m
North America 7,304 8,174 6,824
United Kingdom 978 906 787
The Netherlands 154 135 125 ®
Rest of Europe 746 801 723 2
Rest of world 429 461 399 §
Total 9,611 10,477 8,858 5
Non-currentassets by geographical location exclude amounts relating to deferred tax, pension assets and derivative financial instruments.
Operating profitis reconciled to adjusted operating profit as follows:
RECONCILIATION OF OPERATING PROFIT TO ADJUSTED OPERATING PROFIT 2017 2016 2015
£m £m £m
Operating profit 1,905 1,708 1,497
Adjustments:
Amortisation of acquired intangible assets 314 346 296
Acquisition-related costs 56 51 35
Reclassification of taxin jointventures 10 10 (6)
Reclassification of finance income injointventures m m.-
Adjusted operating profit 2,284 2,114 1,822

The share of post-tax results of joint ventures of £37m (2016: £37m; 2015: £64m) included in operating profit comprised £5m
(2016: £10m; 2015: £37m)] relating to Legal, £32m (2016: £27m; 2015: £28m) relating to Exhibitions and nil (2016: nil; 2015: £1m loss)
relating to Risk & Business Analytics.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements
for the year ended 31 December 2017

3 Operating profit

Operating profitis stated after charging/(crediting) the following:

2017 2016 2015
Note £m £m £m
Staff costs
Wages and salaries 1,926 1,767 1,490
Social security costs 213 198 169
Pensions 6 95 m 58
Sharebasedremuneration 3938 34
Total staff costs 2,273 2,114 1,751
Depreciationand amortisation
Amortisation of acquired intangible assets 16 313 342 292
Share of joint ventures” amortisation of acquired intangible assets 1 4 4
Amortisation of internally developed intangible assets 16 203 189 157
Depreciation of property, plantand equipment 18 i 89 68T
Total depreciationand amortisation 586 603 524
Other expensesandincome
Costof salesincluding pre-publication costs and inventory expenses 2,631 2,488 2,129
Operating lease rentals expense 104 102 90
Operating lease rentalsincome (3) (6) (5)
The amortisation of acquired intangible assets is included within administration and other expenses.
4 Auditors’ remuneration
2017 2016 2015
£m £m £m

Auditors’ remuneration
Payable to the auditors of RELXPLC and RELXNV

0.9 0.8
.23 42,

,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,, .62 5.0

,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,, L0608

,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,, e 136858
Tax services - 0.4 0.9
Other services: Consulting - 0.1 0.2
Other services: Duediligence and other transaction-related services 03 04 03]
Totalnon-auditrelatedservices e O3 09 LA
Total auditors’ remuneration 7.6 7.7 7.2

Amounts payable to the auditors of the Group’s subsidiaries include amounts for the audit of internal controls over financial reporting
inaccordance with the US Sarbanes-Oxley Act. Non-audit services performed in the Netherlands by Ernst & Young Accountants LLPin
2017 and 2016 (and Deloitte Accountants BV in 2015) are limited to audit-related assurance services. Included in audit related assurance
servicesfor2017are £0.Tminfeesfor services relating to RELX pension plans. The previously reported 2016 fees paid to EY for audit
services have been revised toinclude additionalamounts for expensesincurred and final fees for statutory audits which took place
subsequent to the audit of the RELX Group consolidated accounts.

5 Personnel

NUMBER OF PEOPLE EMPLOYED: FULL-TIME EQUIVALENTS At31December Averageduringtheyear

2017 2016 2015 2017 2016 2015
Business segment
Scientific, Technical & Medical 7,500 7,500 7,200 7,500 7,300 7,200
Risk & Business Analytics 8,100 8,200 7,600 8,200 7,900 7,500
Legal 10,600 10,700 10,500 10,700 10,600 10,000
Exhibitions ...4000 4000 3800 4,000 3900 3,700
Sub-total ..30,200 30,400 29,100 30,400 29,700 28,400
Corporate/shared functions ... 80 80 90 80 90 900
Total 31,000 31,200 30,000 31,200 30,600 29,300
Geographical location
North America 13,500 13,700 13,400 13,600 13,500 13,400
United Kingdom 5,000 4,900 4,700 5,000 4,800 4,500
The Netherlands 1,300 1,400 1,500 1,400 1,500 1,500
Rest of Europe 2,800 2,800 2,800 2,800 2,800 2,800
Rest ofworld ..8,400 8400 7600 8400 8000 7100

Total 31,000 31,200 30,000 31,200 30,600 29,300
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6 Pension schemes

Accounting policy

The expense of defined benefit pension schemes and other post-retirement employee benefits is determined using the projected
unit credit method and charged in the income statement as an operating expense, based on actuarial assumptions reflecting market
conditions at the beginning of the financialyear. Actuarial gains and losses are recognised in full in the statement of comprehensive
income in the period in which they occur.

Past service costs and credits are recognised immediately at the earlier of when planamendments or curtailments occurand when
related restructuring costs or termination benefits are recognised. Settlements are recognised when they occur.

Net pension obligations in respect of defined benefit schemes are included in the statement of financial position at the presentvalue
of scheme liabilities, less the fair value of scheme assets. Where schemes are in surplus, i.e. assets exceed liabilities, the net
pension assets are separatelyincluded in the statement of financial position. Any net pension asset is limited to the extent that the
assetisrecoverable.

The expense of defined contribution pension schemes and other employee benefitsis charged in the income statementas incurred.

Criticaljudgement and key source of estimation uncertainty

At 31 December2017,the Group operates defined benefit pension schemesinthe UKand the US. These schemes require management
to exercise judgementin estimating the ultimate cost of providing post-employment benefits, especially given the length of each
scheme’s liabilities. Accounting for defined benefit pension schemes involves judgement about uncertain events, including the life
expectancy of the members, salary and pensionincreases, inflation, the future operation of each scheme and the rate at which the
future pension payments are discounted. Estimates for these factors are used in determining the pension cost and liabilities
reportedinthe financial statements. The estimates made around future developments of each of the critical assumptions are made
in conjunction with independent actuaries, and each scheme is subject to a periodic review by independent actuaries. Information
regarding some of the assumptions used for valuation is provided below, together with a sensitivity analysis.

Anumber of pension schemes are operated around the world. The largest defined benefit schemes as at 31 December 2017 are in the UK
and the US. In November 2015, the Netherlands defined benefit pension scheme, together with allassociated assets and liabilities, was
transferredinto anindustry-wide collective defined contribution scheme. This scheme is now accounted for as a defined contribution
pension plan, with no deficit or surplus recognised on the balance sheet. Priorto this, the scheme was a career average salary scheme
and was opento new hires.

Major defined benefit schemes in place at 31 December 2017

The UKschemeisafinal salary schemeandis closed to new hires. Members accrue a portion of their final pensionable earnings based
onthe number of years of service. The US scheme is a cash balance scheme and is closed to new hires. Members earn pay credits
dependenton age andyears of service up to certain limits which are added to an account balance that accrues interest at specified
minimum rates. In September 2017, itwas announced the US scheme would be closed to future accruals effective 1 January 2019.

Each of the major defined benefit schemesis administered by a separate fund thatis legally separated from the Group. The trustees

of the pension funds in the UK and plan fiduciaries of the US scheme are required by law to actin the interest of the funds’ beneficiaries.
Inthe UK, the trustees of the pension fund are responsible for the investment policy with regard to the assets of the fund. The board of
trustees consists of an equal number of company-appointed and member nominated Directors. Inthe US, the fiduciary duties for the
scheme are allocated between committees which are staffed by senior employees of the Group; the investment committee has the
primary responsibility for the investmentand management of plan assets.

The funding of the Group’s major schemes reflects the different rules within each jurisdiction.

Inthe UK, the level of funding is determined by statutory triennial actuarial valuations in accordance with pensions legislation.
Where the scheme falls below 100% funded status, the Group and the scheme trustees mustagree on how the deficit is to be remedied.
The UK Pensions Regulator has significant powers and sets outin codes and guidance the parameters for scheme funding.

The US scheme has an annual statutory valuation which forms the basis for establishing the employer contribution each year (subject
to ERISAand IRS minimums). Should the statutory funded status fall to below 100%, the US Pension Protection Act requires the deficit
to be rectified with additional contributions over a seven-year period.

Employer cash contributions to defined benefit pension schemes, inrespect of 2018, are expected to be approximately £37mincluding
apension deficit funding contribution of £20m relating to the UK scheme recovery plan.

In addition to the contributions set out above, the Group has committed to providing a further £110m of deficit funding contributions to the
UK scheme overthe period from 2019 to 2022. The triennial valuation will take place during 2018, as part of which funding requirements
infuture yearswill be reassessed.
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6 Pension schemes (continued)

The pension expense, including amounts in relation to the UK, US (for allyears) and NL (for 2015 only) defined benefit schemes, and
defined contribution schemes in total, recognised within operating profit consists of:

2017 2016 2015

£m £m £m

Defined benefit pension expense (net of settlement and past service credits) 4 36 6

Defined contribution pension expense 71 75 52
Toial e

The amountsrecognised inthe income statement in respect of defined benefit pension schemes during the year are presented by major
scheme asfollows:

2017 2016 2015

UK Us  Total UK Us  Total UK us NL  Total

£m £m £m £m £m £m £m £m £m £m

Service cost 33 14 47 27 14 41 34 18 15 67
(42) (1) (43) - (5) (5) (1) - (60 (67)
(9 13 4 27 9 36 33 18 (45) 6
10 5 15 9 5 14 14 5 2 21

Netdefined benefit pension expense 1 18 19 36 14 50 47 23 (43) 27

Netinterest on net defined benefit pension scheme liabilities is presented within net finance costs in the income statement. Service cost,
including settlements and past service credits, is presented within operating profit.

The 2017 settlement and past service cost credits primarily relate to changes to the UK scheme.
Settlementsand past service creditsin 2015 primarily relate to the transfer of the Netherlands scheme to a collective industry-wide scheme.

The significant valuation assumptions, determined for each major scheme in conjunction with the respective independent actuaries,
are presented below. The net defined benefit pension expense for each yearis based on the assumptions and scheme valuations set at
31 December of the prioryear.

AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2017 2016 2015

UK us UK us UK us
Discount rate 2.60% 3.55% 2.65% 4.00% 3.85% 4.45%
Inflation 3.15% 2.50% 3.25% 2.50% 3.05% 2.50%

Discountrates are set by reference to high-quality corporate bond yields.

Mortality assumptions make allowance for future improvements in longevity and have been determined by reference to applicable
mortality statistics. The average life expectancy assumptions are set out below:

AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2017 Male average life Femaleaverage
expectancy life expectancy

UK us UK us

Member currently aged 60 years 86 86 88 89

Member currently aged 45years 87 87 90 89
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6 Pension schemes (continued]
The amountrecognised in the statement of financial position in respect of defined benefit pension schemes at the startand end of the
year and the movements during the year were as follows:
2017 2016

UK us Total UK us Total

£m £m £m £m £m £m
Defined benefit obligation -
Atstartof year (3,883) (1,120)  (5,003) (3,089) (955) (4,044) g
Service cost (33) (14) (47) (27) (14) (41) 2
Past service credits 42 1 43 - 5 5 5
Interest on pension scheme liabilities (101) (42) (143) (117) (45) (162) =
Actuarial gain/(loss) on financial assumptions 45 (61) (16) (774) (61) (835) =
Actuarial (loss)/gain arising from experience assumptions (39) 1 (38) 22 3 25
Contributions by employees (8) - (8) (7) - (7)
Benefits paid 123 60 183 109 95 204
Liabilities transferred on settlement* - - - - 36 36
Exchangetranslationdifferences - .0 100 - .. lsa) o (184)
Atend ofyear (3,854) (1,075) (4,929) (3,883) (1,120) (5,003)
Fair value of scheme assets
Atstartofyear 3,390 977 4,367 2,838 822 3,660 e
Interestincome on planassets bAl 37 128 108 40 148 )
Returnonassets excludingamountsincludedininterestincome 181 106 287 502 46 548 ;2;
Contributions by employer 42 43 85 44 41 85 3
Contributions by employees 8 - 8 7 - 7 z
Benefits paid (123) (60) (183) (109) (95) (204)
Assets transferred on settlement* - - - - (36) (36)
Exchange translationdifferences = L) I ) e 159 159,
Atend of year 3,589 1,012 4,601 3,390 977 4,367
Opening net deficit (493) (143) (636) (251) (133) (384)
Service cost (33) (14) (47) (27) (14) (41)
Netinterest on net defined benefit obligation (10) (5) (15) 9) (5) (14)
Settlementand past service credits 42 1 43 - 5 5 °
Contributions by employer 42 43 85 44 41 85 2
Actuarial gains/(losses) 187 46 233 (250) (12) (262) 3
Exchangetranslationdifferences - 9 9 o s . s 2
Overallnet pension obligation (265) (63) (328) (493) (143) (636)
*In 2016, the settlement relates to an annuity purchase in the US.
Asat 31 December 2017, the defined benefit obligations comprised £4,690m (2016: £4,760m) in relation to funded schemes and £239m
(2016: £243m]) in relation to unfunded schemes.
The weighted average duration of defined benefit scheme liabilities is 20 years in the UK (2016: 20 years) and 13 years in the US
(2016: 13 years). Deferred tax assets of £66m (2016: £145m) are recognised in respect of the pension scheme deficits.
Anetpension asset has beenrecognisedinrelationto the US funded scheme after considering the guidance in IAS 19 Employee Benefits
and IFRIC 14. The split between net pension obligations and net pension assets is as follows:

2017 2016

£m £m

Net pension asset 22 -
Net pension obligation (350) (636)
Overallnet pensionobligaton (328) | (636)
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6 Pension schemes (continued)

Amountsrecognised in the statement of comprehensive income are set out below:

2017 2016 2015
£m £m £m
Gainsand losses arising during the year:
Experience (losses)/gains on scheme liabilities (38) 25 182
Experience gains/(losses) on scheme assets 287 548 (134)
Actuarial (losses)/gains on the present value of scheme liabilities due to changes in:
-discount rates (102) (873) 96
- inflation 69 (96) (64)
~other actuarial assumptions B N S
233 (262) 157
Net cumulative losses at start of year (846) (584) (741)
Net cumulative losses atend of year (613) (846) (584)
The major categories and fair values of scheme assets at the end of the reporting period are as follows:
FAIR VALUE OF SCHEME ASSETS 2017 2016
UK us Total UK us Total
£m £m £m £m £m £m
Equities 1,252 143 1,395 1,261 330 1,591
Governmentbonds 1,395 221 1,616 1,390 104 1,494
Corporate bonds - 622 622 - 527 527
Property funds and ground leases 620 - 620 487 - 487
Structured debtanddirect lending 253 - 253 162 - 162
Cashand cash equivalents 46 18 64 69 15 84
Other 23 8 31 21 1 22
Total 3,589 1,012 4,601 3,390 977 4,367

Assets and obligations associated with the schemes are sensitive to changes in the market values of assets and the market-related
assumptions used tovalue scheme liabilities. In particular, adverse changes to asset values, discount rates orinflation could increase
future pension costs and funding requirements.

Typically, the Group’s schemes are exposed to: investment risks, whereby actual rates of return on plan assets may be below those
rates used to determine the defined benefit obligations, and interest rate risks, whereby scheme deficits may increase if bond yields
inthe UKand the US decline and are not offset by returnsin government and corporate bond portfolios. The schemes are also exposed
tootherrisks, such as unanticipated future increasesin member longevity patterns and inflation, all potentially leading to anincrease
inscheme liabilities.

Investment policies of each scheme are intended to ensure continuous payment of defined benefit pensions in the short-term and
long-term. Efforts are made to limit risks on marketable securities by adopting investment policies that diversify assets across
geographiesand among equities, government and corporate bonds, property funds and cash. Asset allocations are dependent on
avariety of factorsincluding the duration of scheme liabilities and the funded position of the plan.

Allequities, governmentand corporate bonds have quoted pricesin active markets.

Sensitivity analysis

Thevaluation of the Group’s pension scheme liabilities involves significant actuarial assumptions, being the life expectancy of the
members, inflation and the rate at which the future pension payments are discounted. Differences arising from actual experience or future
changesinassumptions may materially affect future pension charges. In particular, changesin assumptions for discount rates, inflation
and life expectancies that are reasonably possible would have the following approximate effects on the defined benefit pension obligations:

£m
Increase/decrease of 0.25% in discount rate: 222
Increase/decrease of 0.25% in the expected inflation rate: 134
Increase/decrease of one yearin assumed life expectancy: 179

The above analysis has been calculated on the same basis used to determine the defined benefit obligation recognised in the statement
of financial position. There has been no change in the methods used to prepare the analysis compared with prioryears. This sensitivity
analysis may not be representative of the actual change in the defined benefit obligation asitis unlikely that changes in the above
assumptions would occurinisolation of one another as some of the assumptions may be correlated.
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7 Share based remuneration

Accounting policy

The fairvalue of share based remuneration is determined at the date of grant and recognised as an expense in the income statement
onastraight-line basis over the vesting period, taking account of the estimated number of shares that are expected to vest. Market
based performance criteria are taken into account when determining the fair value at the date of grant. Non-market based performance
criteria are taken into account when estimating the number of shares expected to vest. The fair value of share based remuneration

is determined by use of a binomial or Monte Carlo simulation model as appropriate. All of the Group’s share based remunerationis
equity settled.

The Group provides anumber of share based remuneration schemes to Directors and employees. The principal share based remuneration
schemes are the Executive Share Option Schemes (ES0OS), the Long-Term Incentive Plan (LTIP), the Retention Share Plan (RSP) and the
Bonus Investment Plan (BIP). Share options granted under ESOS are exercisable after three years and up to ten years from the date of
grantataprice equivalentto the marketvalue of the respective shares at the date of grant. Conditional shares granted under LTIP, RSP
and BIP are exercisable after three years for nil consideration if conditions are met. Other awards principally relate to allemployee
share based saving schemesinthe UKand the Netherlands.

Share based remuneration awards are, other than upon retirement or in exceptional circumstances, subject to the condition that the
employee remainsin employment at the time of exercise.

Conditional shares granted under LTIP, RSP and BIP between 2014 and 2017 are subject to the achievement of growth targets of adjusted
earnings per share measured at constant exchange rates as well as the achievement of atargeted percentage return on invested capital
of the Group. LTIP grants between 2014 and 2017 and RSP grantsin 2014 and 2017 are also variable subject to the achievement of a total
shareholderreturn performance target.

The weighted average fair value peraward is based on full vesting on achievement of non-market-related performance conditions and
stochastic models for market-related components. The conditional shares and option awards are recognised in the income statement
over the vesting period, being between three and five years, on the basis of expected performance against the non-market-related
conditions, with the fair value related to market-related components unchanging.

Inrespectof RELXPLC Inrespect of RELXNV
ordinaryshares ordinaryshares
Weighted Weighted
average fair average fair
Number of value per Number of value per
shares award shares award
000 £ 000 £
2017 GRANTS
Share options 1,688 1.60 1,647 1.30
Conditional shares 1,637 13.74 1,631 13.33
2016 GRANTS
Share options 1,727 1.49 1,668 1.12
Conditional shares 1,706 11.51 1,778 11.41
2015 GRANTS
Share options 1,911 1.23 1,827 0.77
Conditional shares 1,841 10.44 1,874 9.72
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7 Share based remuneration (continued)

The mainassumptions used to determine the fair values, which have been established with advice from and data provided by
independentactuaries, are set out below:

ASSUMPTIONS FOR GRANTS MADE DURING THE YEAR Inrespectof RELXPLC Inrespectof RELXNV
ordinaryshares ordinaryshares
2017 2016 2015 2017 2016 2015
Weighted average share price at date of grant
-Share options* £15.44 £12.52 £11.44 €17.04 €15.31 €14.80
- Conditional shares £15.07 £12.68 £11.55 €16.71 €15.28 €14.98
Expected share price volatility 16% 17% 19% 19% 19% 19%
Expected option life bLyears 4years 4years 4years 4years 4years
Expected dividend yield 3.0% 3.0% 3.5% 3.0% 3.0% 4.2%
Risk-free interest rate 0.3% 0.7% 0.8% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0%
Expected lapse rate 2-5% 2-5% 2-5% 2-5% 2-4% 2-4%

*Weighted average exercise price is disclosed in the table below.

Expected share price volatility has been estimated based on relevant historical datain respect of the RELXPLC and RELXNV ordinary
share prices. Expected share option life has been estimated based on historical exercise patternsinrespect of RELXPLC and RELXNV
share options.

The share based remuneration options outstanding as at 31 December 2017, inrespect of both RELXPLC and RELXNV ordinary shares,
are setout below:

SHARE OPTIONS Inrespect of RELXPLC Inrespect of RELXNV
ordinaryshares ordinaryshares

Weighted Weighted

Number of average Number of average

shares exercise shares exercise

under option price  underoption price

’000 (pence) '000 (€)

Outstanding at 1 January 2015 9,327 629 9,468 7.58

Granted 1,911 978 1,827 14.80

Exercised (2,053) 627 (1,716) 7.32

Forfeited (254) 694 (680) 7.51
EXPIred o 191) 618 (438) 618

Outstanding at 1 January 2016 8,740 704 8,461 9.27

Granted 1,727 1,164 1,668 15.31

Exercised (1,954) 519 (1,778) 8.05

Forfeited (424) 489 (310) 12.41
EXPIred o AT 470 (144 856

Outstanding at 1 January 2017 7,942 865 7,897 10.71

Granted 1,688 1,396 1,647 17.06

Exercised (2,130) 700 (2,170) 9.86

Forfeited (394) 1,135 (186) 15.54
EXpIred e W1A0) 762 1140)  9.20

Outstanding at 31 December 2017 6,966 1,031 7,048 12.36

Exercisable at 31 December 2015

696 4,241 10.14

Exercisable at 31 December 2017

The weighted average share price at the date of exercise of share options and vesting of conditional shares during 2017 was 1,560p
(2016:1,278p; 2015:1,118p) for RELX PLC ordinary shares and €17.23 (2016: €15.23; 2015: €14.50) for RELX NV ordinary shares.
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g
3
7 Share based remuneration (continued)
RANGE OF EXERCISE PRICES FOR OUTSTANDING SHARE OPTIONS 2017 2016 2015
Weighted Weighted Weighted
average average average
Number of remaining Number of remaining Number of remaining
shares perioduntil sharesunder perioduntil  sharesunder perioduntil
under option expiry option expiry option expiry
000 (years) ‘000 (years) ‘000 (years)
RELXPLCordinaryshares (pence) oy
401-600 1,043 2.8 1,672 3.6 2,950 4.0 EX
601-800 733 3.6 1,922 3.4 2,856 44 2
801-1,000 1,272 4.0 1,732 53 1,903 6.3 3
1,001-1,200 1,465 5.3 1,657 6.2 1,031 9.3 g
1,201-1,400 1,530 6.1 949 9.2 - -
1,401-1,600 896 9.2 10 9.7 - -
16001800 27 9T T SR T T
Total 6,966 5.2 7,942 5.1 8,740 5.3
RELXNVordinaryshares (€)
4.01-6.00 1,032 3.2 1,380 4.2 1,924 5.4
6.01-8.00 506 1.8 965 2.2 1,446 2.8
8.01-10.00 617 5.4 1,181 5.6 1,971 5.9
10.01-12.00 865 6.2 1,239 7.2 1,333 8.2 -
12.01-14.00 69 6.3 114 7.5 143 8.4 3
14.01-16.00 2,600 7.7 3,002 8.7 1,625 9.2 é
16.01-18.00 1,154 9.1 16 8.3 19 9.0 5
18012000 205 90 o S o :
Total 7,048 6.5 7,897 6.4 8,461 6.3 =
Share options are expected, upon exercise, to be met by the issue of new ordinary shares.
8 Netfinance costs
Accounting policy
Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of an asset that takes a substantial period of
timeto bring to use are capitalised. All other interest on borrowings is expensed as incurred. The cost of issuing borrowings is generally ®
expensed overthe period of borrowing so as to produce a constant periodic rate of charge. %
2017 2016 2015 :
£m £m £m
Interest on short-term bank loans, overdrafts and commercial paper (10) (15) (11)
Interestontermdebt 152)  (160)  (141)
Total borrowing costs (162) (175) (152)
Losses on loans and derivatives not designated as hedges (9) (14) (3)
Fairvalue losses on designated fair value hedge relationships - - (1)
Netfinancing charge on defined benefitpensionschemes ns) . 04 1)
Finance Costs (186) | (203 (1771,
Intereston bank deposits 3 6 3
Fairvalue gains on designated fair value hedge relationships 1 - -

:I:?:'wénceincome“ ) ) ) )
Net finance costs (182) (

(174)

Anetgainof £63m (2016: loss of £26m; 2015: loss of £48m)] on interest rate derivatives designated as cash flow hedges was recognised in
other comprehensive income and accumulated in the hedge reserve. This included gains of £78m (2016: losses of £18m; 2015: losses of
£42m) related to foreign exchange movements on debt hedges, which were reclassified immediately to the income statement and offset
£78m (2016: £18m gains; 2015: £42m gains) of foreign exchange losses on the related debt. The remaining loss of £15m (2016: £8m;
2015: £6m) recognised in other comprehensive income may be reclassified to the income statement in future periods. Including the
£78m (2016: losses of £18m; 2015: losses of £42m) of foreign exchange gains, net gains of £65m (2016: losses of £27m; 2015: losses of
£48m)intotalwere transferred from the hedge reserve in the period.
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9 Disposals and other non-operating items

Accounting policy

Assets of businesses that are available forimmediate sale in their current condition and for which a sales process is considered
highly probable to complete are classified as assets held for sale and are carried at the lower of carrying value and fair value less
coststosell. Fairvalue is based on anticipated disposal proceeds, typically derived from firm or indicative offers from potential
acquirers. Non-current assets are notamortised or depreciated following their classification as held for sale. Liabilities of
businesses held for sale are also separately classified on the statement of financial position. Fair value movements in the venture
capital portfolio, which are classified as held for trading, are reported within disposals and otheritems - see note 17.

2017 2016 2015

£m £m £m

Revaluation of held for trading investments 5 (13) 8
Gain/(loss) on disposal of businesses and assets held for sale e S 2 9
Net gain/(loss) on disposals and other non-operating items 1 (40) (11)

10 Taxation

Accounting policy

Tax expense comprises currentand deferred tax. Currentand deferred taxare charged or credited in the income statement except
tothe extent that the taxarises froma transaction or eventwhichis recognised, inthe same or a different period, outside the income
statement (eitherin other comprehensive income, directly in equity, or through a business combination), in which case the tax
appearsin the same statementas the transaction that gave rise to it.

Currenttaxisthe amount of corporate income taxes expected to be payable or recoverable based on the profit for the period as
adjusted foritems thatare not taxable or notdeductible, and is calculated using tax rates and laws that were enacted or substantively
enacted at the date of the statement of financial position. Management periodically evaluates positions taken in tax returns with
respect to situations in which applicable tax regulation is subject to interpretation. Provisions are established where appropriate
onthe basis of amounts expected to be paid to the tax authorities.

Currenttaxincludes amounts provided in respect of uncertain tax positions when management expects that, upon examination
of the uncertainty by a tax authority in possession of all relevant knowledge, itis more likely than not that an economic outflow will
occur. Changesinfacts and circumstances underlying these provisions are reassessed at the date of each statement of financial
position, and the provisions are remeasured as required to reflect currentinformation.

Deferred taxisrecognised ontemporary differences arising between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying
amountsin the statement of financial position. Deferred tax is calculated using tax rates and laws that have been enacted or
substantively enacted at the end of the reporting period, and which are expected to apply when the related deferred tax asset
isrealised or the deferred tax liability is settled.

Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary differences but not recognised for taxable temporary
differences arising oninvestments in subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures where the reversal of the temporary difference
canbe controlled anditis probable that the difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future. Deferred tax liabilities are not
recognised on temporary differences that arise from goodwill which is not deductible for tax purposes.

Deferred taxassets are recognised to the extentitis probable that taxable profits will be available against which the deductible
temporary differences can be utilised, and are reviewed at the end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent thatitis no
longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred taxassets and liabilities are not recognised in respect of temporary differences that arise on initial recognition of assets
and liabilities acquired other thanin a business combination. Deferred tax is not discounted.
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10 Taxation (continued)

Accounting policy (continued)

Criticaljudgement and key source of estimation uncertainty

The Groupis subject to taxin numerous jurisdictions, giving rise to complex tax issues that require management to exercise
judgementin making tax determinations. As a multinational enterprise, our tax returnsin the countries in which we operate are
subject to tax authority audits as a matter of routine. While the Group is confident that tax returns are appropriately prepared and
filed, amounts are provided in respect of uncertain tax positions that reflect the risk with respect to tax matters under active
discussion with tax authorities, or which are otherwise considered to involve uncertainty.

Provisions against uncertain tax positions are measured using one of the following methods, depending on which of the methods
management expects will better predict the amount it will pay over to the tax authority:

= TheSingle Best Estimate - where thereis a single outcome thatis more likely than not to occur. This will happen, for example,
where the tax outcome is binary (such as whether an entity can deduct an item of expenditure) or the range of possible outcomes
isnarrow or concentrated on a single value. The most likely outcome may be that no tax is expected to be payable, in which case
the provision is nil; or

= AProbability-Weighted Expected Value - where, on the balance of probabilities, something will be paid to the tax authority but
the possible outcomes are widely dispersed with low individual probabilities (i.e. there is no single outcome more likely than not
to occur). Inthis case, the provision is the sum of the probability-weighted amounts in the range.

Inassessing provisions against uncertain tax positions, management uses in-house tax experts, professional firms and previous
experience toinform the evaluation of risk. However, it remains possible that uncertainties will ultimately be resolved at amounts
greater or smaller than the liabilities recorded.

In particular, although we report cross-border transactions undertaken between Group subsidiaries onan arm’s-length basis in
taxreturnsinaccordance with OECD guidelines, transfer pricing relies on the exercise of judgement anditis frequently possible
forthere to be arange of legitimate and reasonable views. This means that it isimpossible to be certain that the returns basis will be
sustained on examination. Discussions with tax authorities relating to cross-border transactions and other matters are ongoingin
each of our major tradingjurisdictions. Although the timing and amount of final resolution of these uncertain tax positions cannot
bereliably predicted, no significantimpact on the profitability of the Group is expected in the near term.

Estimation ofincome taxes alsoincludes assessments of the recoverability of deferred tax assets. Deferred tax assets are only
recognised to the extent that they are considered recoverable based on existing tax laws and forecasts of future taxable profits
againstwhich the underlying tax deductions can be utilised. The recoverability of these assets is reassessed at the end of each
reporting period, and changes inrecognition of deferred tax assets will affect the tax liability in the period of that reassessment.

2017 2016 2015
£m £m £m
Current tax
United Kingdom
The Netherlands
....... Restofworld
Totalcurrenttaxcharge

erred tax
Tax expense

Cashtax paidinthe yearwas £449m (2016: £402m; 2015: £343m), which is different to the tax expense for the year set out above.
There areanumber of reasons why the cash tax paymentsin a particularyear will be different from the tax expense in the accounts:
Deferred tax:

= Taxexpenseincludes deferredtax, whichisanaccounting adjustmentarising from temporary differences;
= Temporarydifferences occurwhenanitem hastobeincludedintheincome statementin oneyear butis taxed inanotheryear; and

= Forthe purposes of acquisition accounting only, the Group recognises deferred tax liabilities arising on intangible assets. Any unwind
of these deferred tax liabilities from the amortisation of intangible assets does not result in cash tax payments.

Timing differences:
= Taxpaymentsrelatingtoaparticularyear’s profits are typically due partly in the year and partly in the following year.
Prior period adjustments:

= Currenttax expenseisthe best estimate atthe end of the period of cash tax expected to be paid; and

= Totheextentthefinalliability is higher or lower than that estimate, any cash taximpact will occurin a later period.
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10 Taxation (continued)

Items recorded in equity and other comprehensive income:

= Some of the benefits of tax deductions related to share based payments, pensions and hedging are credited to equity or other
comprehensive income rather than to tax expense, and so the cash tax liability will be lower than the current tax expense inyears
when those deductions are available.

Setout belowis areconciliation of the difference between tax expense for the period and the theoretical expense calculated by
multiplying accounting profit by the applicable tax rate.

We believe the most meaningfulapplicable rate is that obtained by multiplying the accounting profits and losses of all consolidated
entities by the applicable domestic rate in each of those entities” jurisdictions.

The nettax expense charged on profit before tax differs from the theoretical amount that would arise using the weighted average of tax
rates applicable to accounting profits and losses of the consolidated entities, as follows:

2017 2016 2015

£m % £m % £m %
Profitbeforetax . e N34 NATS 812
Tax ataverage applicable rates (392) 22.6% (330) 22.4% (299) 22.8%
Tax effect of share of results of joint ventures 7 (0.4)% 7 (0.5)% " (0.8)%
Expenses notdeductible for tax purposes (14) 0.7% (18) 1.3% (16) 1.1%
US state taxes (18) 1.0% (13) 0.9% (9) 0.7%
Non-deductible costs of share based remuneration 1] 0.1% (1) 0.1% (3) 0.2%
Non-deductible disposal-related gains and losses (36) 21% (8) 0.5% 4 (0.3)%
Tax losses of the period not recognised (10) 0.6% (2) 0.1% (2) 0.2%
Recognition and utilisation of tax losses thatarose in prioryears 16 (0.99% 32 (2.1)% - 0.0%
Other adjustmentsin respect of prior periods 35 (2.0)% 28 (1.9)% 16 (1.2)%
Deferred tax effect of changes in tax rates 3 (9% 1 0% - 00%
Tax expense (67) 3.9% (304) 20.7% (298) 22.7%

Theweighted average applicable tax rate for the year was 22.6% (2016: 22.4%, 2015: 22.8%), reflecting the applicable ratesin the
countrieswhere the Group operates. The Group's future tax charge will be sensitive to the geographic mix of profits and losses and
thetaxratesand laws in force in the jurisdictions inwhich we operate.

Inthe UK, areductioninthe corporate tax rate from 18% to 17% from April 2020 was enacted on 6 September 2016. In the US, the Tax
Cutsand Jobs Actwhich includes areductioninthe federal corporate tax rate from 35% to 21% from January 2018 was enacted on
22 December2017. Consequently, the Group has measured its US deferred tax assets and liabilities at the end of the reporting period
atacombined (federaland state] tax rate of 26%. This has resulted in the recognition of an exceptional deferred tax credit of £346min
the income statementand areductionin the reported tax rate to 3.9% (2016: 20.7%, 2015: 22.7%).

The following tax has been recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity during the year:

2017 2016 2015
£m £m £m

Taxonitems that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
Tax on actuarial movements on defined benefit pensionschemes 89 A5 (34)
Taxon items th‘é“t”may be re&éssified to '|‘)H|"‘6fit orloss
Taxonfairvalue movementsoncashflowhedges S 1) N & A 1
Net tax (debit)/credit recognised in other comprehensiveincome . S ) Y- S 11 |
Tax credit on share based remuneration recognised directly in equity 8 10 17

The measurement of the US deferred tax assets and liabilities has also resulted ina charge of £10m in other comprehensive income and
acharge of E5mdirectlyin equity.
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10 Taxation (continued)
2017 2016
£m £m
Deferredtaxassets 405 JVA
Deferred tax liabilities e A738) (1,137)
Total (333) (693)

Movements in deferred tax liabilities and assets (before taking into consideration the offsetting of balances within the same jurisdiction)

are summarised as follows:

Deferred taxliabilities Deferredtaxassets
Excess of tax Excess of
allowances Acquired Other amortisation Taxlosses Other
over intangible  temporary over tax carried Pensions  temporary
amortisation assets differences allowances forward liabilities  differences Total
£m £m £m £m £m £m £m £m
Deferred tax (liability)/asset at
1 January 2016 (339) (702) (291) 251 32 103 295 (651)
Credit/(charge] to profit 9 91 4 (28) 26 (1) (31) 70
Credit to equity/other comprehensive
income - - 4 - 33 17 54
Acquisitions - (38) - - - - (35)
Exchangetranslationdifferences 63 el G5 0. 9 10 46 1131
Deferred tax (liability)/asset at
1 January 2017 (393) (767) (338) 263 70 145 327 (693)
Credit/(charge] to profit 97 298 2 (15) 22 - (32) 372
(Chargel/credit to equity/other
comprehensive income - - 7 - - (76) (20) (89)
Acquisitions - (2) - - - - - (2)
Exchange translationdifferences 29 . 45 27 9 6 @) (23 79.
Deferred tax (liability)/asset at
31December 2017 (267) (426) (302) 257 87 66 252 (333)

Other deferred tax liabilities include temporary differences in respect of property, plantand equipment, capitalised development spend
and financialinstruments. Other deferred tax assetsinclude temporary differencesin respect of share based remuneration provisions

and financialinstruments.

As aresult of exemptions on dividends from subsidiaries and capital gains on disposal there are no significant taxable temporary

differences associated with investmentsin subsidiaries, branches, associates and interests in jointarrangements.

Deferredtaxassetsinrespectof tax losses and other deductible temporary differences have only been recognised to the extent that itis
more likely than not that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow the asset to be recovered. Accordingly, no deferred tax asset

has been recognisedin respect of unused trading losses of approximately £143m (2016: £111m) carried forward atyear end. The

deferred tax asset not recognised in respect of these losses is approximately £34m (2016: £30m). Of the unrecognised losses, £30m
(2016: £31m) will expire if not utilised within ten years and £113m (2016: £80m) will expire after more than ten years.

Deferred tax assets of approximately £4m (2016: £7m) have not been recognised in respect of tax losses and other temporary

differences carried forward of £23m (2016: £42m), which can only be used to offset future capital gains.

MBIAIBAQ

MBIABJ Sssaulsng

MB3IABJ BIDUBUIS

90UBUJIBA0G

2
3
o
3
o
[
=
(V]
-~
o
-
(]
3
(]
3
-
0
[
3
=5
o
=
>
(]
=
5
=4
(=]
=]
3
o
=
=]
S



138 RELX Group Annual reports and financial statements 2017

Notes to the consolidated financial statements

for the year ended 31 December 2017

11 Earnings per share

Accounting policy

With effect from 6 April 2016, the UK government abolished tax credits on dividends paid after this date, including the 2015 final
dividend, whichwas paid in May 2016. As aresult of the abolition of this credit, dividends and therefore earnings per share are equal
forboth RELXPLC and RELXNV. Earnings per share is calculated by taking the reported net profit attributable to shareholders and

dividing this by the total weighted average number of shares.

In calculating earnings per share of the Group up until the end of 2015 (prior to the abolition of the tax credit), the earnings for each
class of share were calculated on the basis that earnings are fully distributed. The Group’s usual practice is for only a portion of
earnings to be distributed by way of dividends. Until the end of 2015, dividends paid to RELXPLC and RELXNV shareholders were,
otherthaninspecial circumstances, equalised at the gross level inclusive of the prevailing UK tax credit available to certain
RELXPLC shareholders. The allocation of earnings between the RELXPLC shares and the RELXNV shares reflected the differential
in dividend payments declared as a result of the tax credit, with the balance of earnings assumed to be distributed as a capital

distribution, in equalamounts per share.

Adjusted earnings pershareis calculated by dividing adjusted net profit attributable to shareholders by the total weighted average

number of shares for the Group.

EARNINGS PER SHARE - FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017 2016
Net profit Net profit
attributable Weighted attributable Weighted
toRELXPLC average toRELXPLC average
and RELXNV number and RELXNV number
shareholders of shares EPS shareholders of shares EPS
£m (millions) (pence) £m (millions) (pence)
Basic earnings pershare for RELXPLC
and RELXNV (pence) 1,659 2,019.4 82.2p 1,161 2,062.3 56.3p
Diluted earnings per share for RELXPLC
and RELXNV (pence) 1,659 2,035.2 81.5p 1,161 2,079.8 55.8p
ALLOCATION OF EARNINGS - 2015
2015
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER £m
RELXPLC
Allocation of distributed earnings 294
Allocation of undistributed earnings 224
Total net profitallocated to RELXPLC shares 518
RELXNV
Allocation of distributed earnings 291
Allocation of undistributed earnings 199
Total net profitallocated to RELX NV shares 490
Total net profit attributable to RELXPLC and RELX NV shareholders 1,008
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11 Earnings per share (continued)
EARNINGS PER SHARE - 2015 2015
Weighted
average
number of
shares EPS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER (millions) (pence)
Basicearnings per share
RELXPLC 1,116.2 46.4p g
RELXNV 992.4 49.4p 3
Diluted earnings per share 2
]
RELXPLC 1,125.9 46.0p 2
RELXNV 1,001.6 48.9p
The diluted figures are calculated after taking account of potential additional ordinary shares arising from share options and
conditional shares.
ADJUSTED EARNINGS PER SHARE 2017 2016 2015
Adjusted net Adjusted net Adjusted net
profit profit profit
attributable Weighted attributableto  Weighted attributableto  Weighted
toRELXPLC average RELXPLCand average RELXPLCand average
andRELXNV ~ number Adjusted RELXNV numberof  Adjusted RELXNV numberof  Adjusted %—1
shareholders ofshares EPS shareholders shares EPS shareholders shares EPS E]
£m (millions)  (pence) £m  (millions) (pence) £m  (millions) (pence) 2
Adjusted earnings per share for 2
<
RELXPLCand RELXNV (pence) 1,635 2,019.4 81.0p 1,488 2,062.3 72.2p 1,275 2,108.6 60.5p 2
RECONCILIATION OF ADJUSTED NET PROFIT ATTRIBUTABLE TO RELX PLC AND RELX NV SHAREHOLDERS 2017 2016 2015
£m £m £m
Net profit attributable to RELXPLC and RELX NV shareholders 1,659 1,161 1,008
Adjustments (post-tax]:
Amortisation of acquired intangible assets 356 364 311
Acquisition-related costs 43 38 27
Net financing charge on defined benefit pension schemes 1 10 16
Disposals and other non-operating items 5 6 (2)
@
Other deferred tax credits from intangible assets* (93) (91) (85) g
Exceptional tax credit 3
Adjusted net profit attributable to RELXPLC and RELXNV shareholders s 5
*Movements on deferred tax liabilities arising on acquired intangible assets that do not qualify for taxamortisation.
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12 Statement of cash flows

Accounting policy

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash balances, call deposits and other short-term highly liquid investments and are held in the

statement of financial position at fair value.

RECONCILIATION OF PROFIT BEFORE TAX TO CASH GENERATED FROM OPERATIONS 2017 2016 2015
£m £m £m
Profit before tax 1,734 1,473 1,312
Disposals and other non-operating items (1) 40 1"
Netfinancecosts 182 195 174
Operatingprofit 1905 1708 1497
Shareofresultsofjointventures 5 I ) I )
Amortisation of acquired intangible assets 313 342 292
Amortisation of internally developed intangible assets 203 189 157
Depreciation of property, plantand equipment 69 68 71
Sharebasedremuneration ¥ 3 3
Totalnon-cashitems 624637 ssh
Decrease/lincrease] ininventories and pre-publication costs 2 (24) (17)
Decrease/lincrease) inreceivables 35 (146) (150)
(Decreaselfincreaseinpayables @) 98 &
Increase in working capital (47) (72) (105)

Cash generated from operations

CASH FLOW ON ACQUISITIONS 2017 2016 2015
Note £m £m £m
Purchase of businesses 13 (117) (336) (158)
Investmentin jointventures (1 (1) (8)
Deferred payments relating to prioryearacquisitions 3 ... (24) ... (25).
Total (131) (361) (191)
RECONCILIATION OF NET BORROWINGS Related
Cashand derivative
cash financial
equivalents Borrowings instruments 2017 2016 2015
£m £m £m £m £m £m
Atstart of year 162 (4,843) (19) (4,700) (3,782) (3,550)
(Decreasel/increase in cash and cash equivalents (45) - - (45) 9 (139)
Decrease/(increase) in short-term bank loans, overdrafts and
commercial paper - 152 (4) 148 (271) 339
Issuance of term debt - (873) - (873) (603) (500)
Repayment of term debt - 712 - 712 474 186
Repaymentoffinanceleases ) 5 e S 7 o 9.
Changeinnetborrowingsresulting fromcashflows “s) @ @ 53 (s (05
Inception of finance leases - (2) - (2) (3) (12)
Fairvalue and other adjustments to borrowings and related
derivatives - (73) 64 9 (22) 4
Exchangetranslationdifferences | 6 3 2 2 G (119)
Atend of year 1M1 (4,886) 43 (4,732) (4,700) (3,782)

Net borrowings comprise cash and cash equivalents, loan capital, finance leases, promissory notes, bank and other loans, derivative
financialinstruments that are used to hedge certain borrowings and adjustments in respect of cash collateral received/paid. The Group
monitors net borrowings as part of capital and liquidity management.
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13 Acquisitions

During theyear,anumber of acquisitions were made. The net assets of the businesses acquired are incorporated at their fair value to the
Group. Provisional fair values of the consideration given and of the assets and liabilities acquired are summarised below:

Fairvalue Fairvalue Fairvalue

2017 2016 2015

£m £m £m

Goodwill 77 222 100
Intangible assets 56 189 m
Property, plantand equipment - 1 -
Currentassets 3 12 9
Current liabilities (16) (20) (23)
Deferred tax (2) (35) (19)

Net assetsacquired

Consideration (after taking account of £7m (2016: £10m; 2015: £3m) net cash acquired)
Less: consideration deferred to futureyears

Less:acquisition date fair value of equity interest

Net cash flow

Goodwill, being the excess of the consideration over the net tangible and intangible assets acquired, represents benefits which do not
qualify for recognition as intangible assets, including: the ability of a business to generate higher returns than individual assets; skilled
workforces; and acquisition synergies that are specific to the Group. In addition, goodwill arises on the recognition of deferred tax
liabilities inrespect of intangible assets for which amortisation does not qualify for tax deductions.

The fairvalues of the assets and liabilities acquired in the last 12 months are provisional pending the completion of the valuation
exercises. Finalfairvalues will be incorporated in the 2018 consolidated financial statements. There were no significant adjustments
to the provisional fair values of prioryear acquisitions established in 2016.

The businessesacquiredin 2017 contributed £12m to revenue, increased adjusted operating profit by £2m, decreased net profit by
£6mand contributed nil to net cashinflow from operating activities for the partyear under the Group’s ownership and before taking
account of acquisition financing costs. Had the businesses been acquired at the beginning of the year, on a pro forma basis the Group
revenues, adjusted operating profitand net profit attributable to RELXPLC and RELX NV shareholders for the year would have been
£7,368m, £2,288mand £1,662m respectively, before taking account of acquisition financing costs.

14 Equity dividends

ORDINARY DIVIDENDS PAID IN THE YEAR 2017 2016 2015
£m £m £m
RELXPLC 400 356 295
RE L X N 362 327 288
Total 762 683 583

Ordinarydividends declared and paid in the year ended 31 December 2017, inamounts per ordinary share, comprise: a 2016 final
dividend of 25.7p (2016: 22.3p; 2015: 19p) and a 2017 interim dividend of 11.7p (2016: 10.25p; 2015: 7.4p), giving a total of 37.4p (2016: 32.55p;
2015:26.4p) for RELXPLC; and a 2016 final dividend of €0.301 (2016: €0.288; 2015: €0.285) and a 2017 interim dividend of €0.132
(2016:€0.122; 2015: €0.115), giving a total of €0.433 (2016: €0.410; 2015: €0.400) for RELX NV.

The Directors of RELX PLC have proposed a final dividend of 27.7p (2016: 25.7p; 2015: 22.3p), giving a total for the financial year of 39.4p
(2016:35.95p; 2015: 29.7p). The Directors of RELX NV have proposed a final dividend of €0.316 (2016: €0.301; 2015: €0.288), giving a total
forthe financialyear of €0.448 (2016: €0.423; 2015: €0.403). The total cost of funding the proposed final dividends is expected to be
£559m, for which no liability has been recognised at the statement of financial position date.

RELXNVdividends per share were adjusted retrospectively in 2015 to reflect the bonus issue declared on 30 June 2015.

Untilthe end of 2015, dividends paid to RELX PLC and RELX NV shareholders were, other than in special circumstances, equalised
atthe gross levelinclusive of the prevailing UK tax credit received by certain RELX PLC shareholders. With effect from 6 April 2016
the UK government abolished the dividend tax credits previously available to certain RELX PLC shareholders, impacting dividends
paid after this date.

The Employee Benefit Trust has currently waived the right to receive dividends on RELXPLC and RELX NV shares. This waiver has
been applied todividends paidin 2017, 2016 and 2015.
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15 Goodwill

Accounting policy

On the acquisition of a subsidiary or business, the purchase considerationis allocated between the net tangible and intangible
assetsonafairvalue basis, with any excess purchase consideration representing goodwill. Goodwill arising on acquisitions also
includes amounts corresponding to deferred tax liabilities recognised in respect of acquired intangible assets.

Goodwillisrecognised as anassetand reviewed forimpairmentwhenthere is an indicator that the asset may be impaired and
atleastannually. Anyimpairmentis recognised immediately in the income statement and not subsequently reversed.

Ondisposal of asubsidiary or business, the attributable amount of goodwillisincluded in the determination of the profit or loss
ondisposal.

At each statement of financial position date, the carrying amounts of tangible and intangible assets and goodwill are reviewed to
determine whetherthereisanyindication that those assets have suffered animpairment loss. If any such indication exists, the
recoverable amount, which is the higher of value in use and fair value less costs to sell, of the asset is estimated in order to determine
the extent, ifany, of theimpairment loss. Where the asset does not generate cash flows that are independent from other assets, value
inuse estimates are made based on the cash flows of the cash generating unit to which the asset belongs. Intangible assets with an
indefinite useful life are tested forimpairment at least annually and whenever there is any indication that the asset may be impaired.

Ifthe recoverable amount of an asset or cash generating unitis estimated to be less than its net carryingamount, the net carrying
amount of the asset or cash generating unitis reduced toits recoverable amount. Impairment losses are recognised immediately
inthe income statementin administration and other expenses.

Criticaljudgement and key source of estimation uncertainty

The carryingamounts of goodwill and indefinite lived intangible assets in each business are reviewed for impairment at least
annually. The carryingamounts of all otherintangible assets are reviewed where there are indications of possible impairment.
Animpairment review involves a comparison of the carrying value of the asset with estimated values in use based on the latest
management cash flow projections, approved by the Boards. Key areas of judgement in estimating the values in use of businesses
are the growth in cash flows over a forecast period of up to five years, the long-term growth rate assumed thereafter and the
discountrate applied to the forecast cash flows. Adescription of the key assumptions and sensitivities is provided below.

2017 2016

£m £m

At start of year 6,392 5,231

Acquisitions 77 222
Disposals/reclassified as held for sale (72) (19)

Transfers 1 -
Exchangetranslationdifferences e \G43) 958

Atendof year 5,965 6,392

Transfers relate to movementsin goodwill as a result of the finalisation of the accounting for prioryear acquisitions.

The carryingamount of goodwillis after cumulative amortisation of £1,173m (2016: £1,284m), which was charged prior to the adoption
of IFRS, and £9m (2016: £9m) of subsequent impairment charges recorded in prioryears.

Impairment review
Impairment testing of goodwill and indefinite lived intangible assets is performed at least annually in accordance with the methodology
described above. There were no charges forimpairment of goodwillin 2017 (2016: nil; 2015: nil).

Goodwillis compiled and assessed among groups of cash generating units, which represent the lowest level at which goodwillis
monitored by management. Typically, acquisitions are integrated into existing business units, and the goodwill arising is allocated to the
groups of cash generating units (CGUs) that are expected to benefit from the synergies of the acquisition. As the business areas have
becomeincreasingly integrated and globalised, the current CGU allocation reflects the global leverage of assets, skills, knowledge and
technology platforms, and the monitoring of goodwill by management.

GOODWILL 2017 2016
£m £m
Scientific, Technical & Medical 1,479 1,549
Risk & Business Analytics 2,595 2,829
Legal 1,390 1,499
Exhibitions ......501 515

Total 5,965 6,392
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15 Goodwill (continued)

The key assumptions used for each group of cash generating units are disclosed below:

KEY ASSUMPTIONS 2017 2016
Nominal Nominal
Pre-tax long-term long-term
discount market Pre-tax market
rate growthrate discountrate growthrate
Scientific, Technical & Medical 10.1% 3% 10.0% 3%
Risk & Business Analytics 12.3% 3% 11.7% 3%
Legal 12.7% 2% 12.4% 2%
Exhibitions 12.6% 3% 12.6% 3%

The pre-tax discount rates used are based on the Group’s weighted average cost of capital, adjusted to reflect a risk premium specific to
each business. Nominal long-term market growth rates, which are applied after the forecast period of up to five years, do not exceed the
long-term average growth prospects for the sectors and territories in which the businesses operate.

Asensitivity analysis has been performed based on changesin key assumptions considered to be reasonably possible by management:
anincreasein the discount rate of 0.5%, a decrease in the compound annual growth rate for cash flow in the five-year forecast period of
2.0%, and adecrease inthe nominal long-term market growth rates of 0.5%. The sensitivity analysis shows that noimpairment charges
would result from these scenarios.

16 Intangible assets

Accounting policy

Intangible assets acquired as part of a business combination are stated in the statement of financial position at their fair value as
atthe date of acquisition, less accumulated amortisation. Internally generated intangible assets are stated in the statement of
financial position at the directly attributable cost of creation of the asset, less accumulated amortisation.

Intangible assets acquired as part of business combinations comprise: market-related assets (e.g. trademarks, imprints, brands);
customer-related assets (e.g. subscription bases, customer lists, customer relationships); editorial content; software and systems
(e.g. applicationinfrastructure, product delivery platforms, in-process research and development); contract-based assets

(e.g. publishing rights, exhibition rights, supply contracts); and other intangible assets. Internally generated intangible assets
typically comprise software and systems development where anidentifiable assetis created thatis probable to generate future
economic benefits.

Intangible assets, other than journaltitles determined to have indefinite lives, are amortised on a straight-line basis over their
estimated useful lives. The estimated useful lives of intangible assets with finite lives are as follows: market and customer-related
assets - 3to 40years; content, software and other acquired intangible assets - 3to 20 years; and internally developed intangible
assets-3to 10years. Journaltitles determined to have indefinite lives are notamortised and are subject to impairment review

at leastannually, including a review of events and circumstances to ensure that they continue to support an indefinite useful life.

Criticaljudgements and key sources of estimation uncertainty

On acquisition of a subsidiary or business, the purchase consideration is allocated between the net tangible and intangible assets
otherthan goodwill on a fairvalue basis, with any excess purchase consideration representing goodwill. The valuation of acquired
intangible assets represents the estimated economic value in use, using standard valuation methodologies, including as
appropriate, discounted cash flow, relief from royalty and comparable market transactions. Acquired intangible assets are
capitalised and amortised systematically over their estimated useful lives, subject to impairment review. The assumptions used
are subjectto management judgement.

Appropriate amortisation periods are selected based on assessments of the longevity of the brands and imprints, the strength
and stability of customer relationships, the market positions of the acquired assets and the technological and competitive risks
thatthey face. Certainintangible assetsin relation to acquired science and medical publishing businesses have been determined
to have indefinite lives. The longevity of these assets is evidenced by their long-established and well-regarded journal titles, and
their characteristically stable market positions. The assumptions used are subject to management judgement.

Development spend embracesinvestmentin new products and other initiatives, ranging from the building of online delivery
platforms, to launch costs of new services, to building new infrastructure and applications. Launch costs and other ongoing
operating expenses of new products and services are expensed as incurred. The costs of building product applications, platforms
andinfrastructure are capitalised asintangible assets, where the investment they represent has demonstrable value and the
technicaland commercial feasibility is assured. Costs eligible for capitalisation must be incremental, clearly identified and directly
attributable toa particular project. The resulting assets are amortised over their estimated useful lives. Impairment reviews are
carried out at least annually where indicators of impairment are identified. Judgement is required in the assessment of the potential
value of adevelopment project, the identification of costs eligible for capitalisation and the selection of appropriate asset lives.
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16 Intangible assets (continued)

Total Internally
Marketand Content, acquired  developed
customer- software intangible intangible
related andother assets assets Total
£m £m £m £m £m
Cost R
At 1 January 2016 3,158 3,133 6,291 2,053 8,344
Acquisitions 103 86 189 - 189
Additions - - - 280 280
Disposals/reclassified as held for sale - - - (100) (100)
Exchange translation differences e 81460 07T 317 1,388
At1January 2017 3,872 3,679 7,551 2,550 10,101
Acquisitions 32 24 56 - 56
Additions - - - 304 304
Disposals/reclassified as held for sale (26) (76) (102) (42) (144)
Transfers (50) 27 (23) - (23)
Exchange translation differences e 1309) (1620 AT (121) (592)
At 31 December 2017 3,519 3,492 7,011 2,691 9,702
Accumulated amortisation et
At1January 2016 1,402 2,611 4,013 1,175 5,188
Charge fortheyear 204 138 342 189 531
Disposals/reclassified as held for sale - - - (96) (96)
Exchange translation differences SR SO . SO LA AR SO -1 - o8
At 1January 2017 1,893 3,139 5,032 1,465 6,497
Charge fortheyear 188 125 313 203 516
Disposals/reclassified as held for sale (16) (72) (88) (43) (131)
Exchange translation differences e 188)  (146) (304) (70)  (374)
At 31 December 2017 1,907 3,046 4,953 1,555 6,508
Netbook amount
1,612 446 2,058 11 3,194

Transfersrelate to movementsinintangible assets as a result of the finalisation of the accounting for prior year acquisitions.

Included in content, software and other acquired intangible assets are assets with a net book value of £120m (2016: £175m)] that arose
onacquisitions completed priorto the adoption of IFRS that have not been allocated to specific categories of intangible assets. Internally

developed intangible assets typically comprise software and systems development where an identifiable asset is created that is

expected to generate future economic benefits.

Included in market and customer-related intangible assets are £112m (2016: £123m) of journaltitles relating to Scientific, Technical &
Medical determined to have indefinite lives based on an assessment of their historical longevity and stable market positions. In 2015,
following a review by management, £280m of brands and imprints relating to Scientific, Technical & Medical previously determined to
have anindefinite useful life were assigned a useful life of 20 years. Indefinite lived intangibles are tested for impairment at least annually.
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17 Investments

Accounting policy

Investments, other than investments in jointarrangements and associates, are stated in the statement of financial position at fair
value. Investments held as part of the venture capital portfolio are classified as held for trading, with changes in fair value reported
indisposals and other non-operatingitems inthe income statement. All other investments are classified as available for sale with
changesinfairvalue recognised directly in equity until the investment is disposed of or is determined to be impaired, at which time
the cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in equity is brought into the net profit or loss for the period. Allitems recognised
intheincome statement relating to investments, other than investments in joint arrangements and associates, are reported as
disposals and other non-operating items.

Available for sale investments and venture capitalinvestments held for trading represent investments in listed and unlisted securities.
The fairvalue of listed securities is determined based on quoted market prices, and of unlisted securities on management’s estimate of
fairvalue based on standard valuation techniques, including market comparisons and discounts of future cash flows, having regard to
maximising the use of observable inputs and adjusting for risk. Advice from valuation expertsis used as appropriate.

Alljointarrangements are classified as joint ventures because the Group shares joint control and has rights to the net assets of the
arrangements. Investmentsinjointventures and associates are accounted for under the equity method and stated in the statement
of financial position at cost as adjusted for post-acquisition changesinthe Group’s share of net assets, less anyimpairmentin value.

2017 2016

£m £m

Investmentsinjointventures 102 102

Available for sale investments 2 2
Venture capitalinvestments held fortrading ] 139 . 135

Total 243 239

Thevalue of venture capitalinvestments and available for sale investments has been determined by reference to other observable
market inputs or, when these are not available, by reference to inputs we believe would reflect the assumptions market participants
would use. Gains and losses included in the consolidated income statement are provided in note 9.

Ananalysis of changesin the carrying value of investments in joint ventures is set out below:

2017 2016

£m £m

At start of year 102 101

Share of results of joint ventures 37 37
Dividends received from jointventures (38) (44)
Disposals and transfers - (7)

Additions 2 1
Exchange translation differences e ) 14

Atend of year 102 102
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17 Investments (continued)

Summarised aggregate information in respect of the Group’s share of joint ventures is set out below:

RELXGroup‘sshare

2017 2016

£m £m

Revenue 101 131

Net profit for the year 37 37

Totalassets 85 92
Totalliabilities Loe2) o (49)

Netassets 43 43
GO0 I SN L

Total 102 102

The Group’s consolidated other comprehensive income includes noincome or losses relating to joint ventures in either period.

18 Property, plantand equipment

Accounting policy

Property, plantand equipment are stated in the statement of financial position at cost less accumulated depreciation. No depreciation
is provided on freehold land. Freehold buildings and long leaseholds are depreciated over their estimated useful lives up to a
maximum of 50 years. Short leases are written off over the duration of the lease. Depreciationis provided on otherassetsona
straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives as follows:

-land and buildings: land - not depreciated; leasehold improvements - shorter of life of lease and 10 years;

- fixtures and equipment: plant - 3to 20 years; office furniture, fixtures and fittings - 5to 10 years; computer systems,
communication networks and equipment -3 to 7 years.

2017 2016
Landand Fixturesand Landand Fixturesand
buildings  equipment Total buildings equipment Total
£m £m £m £m £m £m

Cost
Atstart of year 231 687 918 205 595 800
Acquisitions - - - - 1 1
Capital expenditure 5 48 53 6 48 54
Disposals/reclassified as held for sale (3) (40) (43) (13) (52) (65)
Exchange translation differences am e s8) 3395 128
Atend of year 216 654 870 231 687 918
Accumulated depreciation
Atstartofyear 139 537 676 117 454 571
Charge fortheyear 9 60 69 9 59 68
Disposals/reclassified as held for sale (1) (39 (40) (7) (50) (57)
Exchange translation differences o) (34) A) 20 Th 9
Atend of year 137 524 661 139 537 676
Netbook amount 79 130 209 92 150 242

No depreciationis provided on freehold land of £14m (2016: £16m). The net book amount of property, plantand equipment at
31 December2017includes £16m (2016: £20m) in respect of assets held under finance leases relating to fixtures and equipment.



Financial statements and other information Notes to the consolidated financial statements 147

19 Financialinstruments

Accounting policy
Financialinstruments comprise investments (other than investments in joint ventures or associates), trade receivables, cash and
cash equivalents, payables and accruals, borrowings and derivative financialinstruments.

Investments (other than investmentsin joint ventures and associates) are classified as either held for trading or available for sale,
asdescribedin note 17. (These investments are typically classified as either Level 2 or 3in the IFRS 13 fair value hierarchy.) The fair
value of suchinvestmentsis based on standard valuation techniques, including market comparisons and discounts of future cash
flows, having regard to maximising the use of observable inputs and adjusting for risk.

Trade receivables are carried in the statement of financial position at invoiced value less allowance for estimated irrecoverable
amounts. Irrecoverable amounts are estimated based on the ageing of trade receivables, experience and circumstance. Borrowings
and payables are recorded initially at fair value and subsequently carried at amortised cost (other than fixed rate borrowings in
designated hedging relationships for which the carryingamount of the hedged portion of the borrowings is subsequently adjusted
forthe gain or loss attributable to the hedged risk).

Derivative financialinstruments are used to hedge interest rate and foreign exchange risks. Where an effective hedge isin place
against changes in the fair value of fixed rate borrowings, the hedged borrowings are adjusted for changes in fair value attributable
totherisk being hedged with a correspondingincome or expense included in the income statement within finance costs. The
offsetting gains or losses from remeasuring the fair value of the related derivatives are also recognised in the income statement
within finance costs. When the related derivative expires, is sold or terminated, or no longer qualifies for hedge accounting, the
cumulative changeinfairvalue of the hedged borrowing is amortised in the income statement over the period to maturity of the
borrowing using the effective interest method.

Changes in the fair value of derivative financial instruments that are designated and effective as hedges of future cash flows are
recognised (net of tax) in other comprehensive income and accumulated in the hedge reserve. If a hedged firm commitment or
forecasted transaction results in the recognition of a non-financial asset or liability, then, at the time that the asset or liability is
recognised, the associated gains or losses on the derivative that had previously been recognised in other comprehensive income are
included in theinitial measurement of the asset or liability. For hedges that do not resultin the recognition of an asset or a liability,
amounts deferredinthe hedge reserve are recognised in the income statement in the same period in which the hedged item affects
net profit or loss. Any ineffective portion of hedgesis recognised immediately in the income statement.

Cash flow hedge accounting is discontinued when a hedging instrument expires oris sold, terminated or exercised, or no longer
qualifies for hedge accounting. At that time, any cumulative gain or loss on the hedging instrument recognised in other
comprehensiveincomeis either retained in the hedge reserve until the firm commitment or forecasted transaction occurs, or,
where a hedged transactionis no longer expected to occur, isimmediately credited or expensed in the income statement.

Derivative financialinstruments that are not designated as hedging instruments are classified as held for trading and recorded in
the statement of financial position at fair value, with changes in fair value recognised in the income statement.

The fairvalues of interest rate swaps, interest rate options, forward rate agreements and forward foreign exchange contracts
represent the replacement costs calculated using observable market rates of interest and exchange. The fair value of long-term
borrowings is calculated by discounting expected future cash flows at observable market rates. (These instruments are accordingly
classified as Level 2inthe IFRS 13 fair value hierarchy).

The mainfinancial risks faced by the Group are liquidity risk, market risk - comprising interest rate risk and foreign exchange risk -
and creditrisk. Financialinstruments are used to finance the Group's businesses and to manage interest rate and foreign exchange
risks. The Group’s businesses do not enter into speculative derivative transactions. Details of financial instruments subject to liquidity,
marketand credit risks are described below.

Liquidity risk
The Group maintains arange of borrowing facilities and debt programmes to fund its requirements at competitive rates.

The balance of long-term debt, short-term debtand committed bank facilities is managed to provide security of funding, taking into account the
cash generation cycle of the business and the uncertain size and timing of acquisition spend. Toaccommodate the significant free cash flow
generated by the Group andto capitalise onaninexpensive source of funding, a meaningful portion of the overall debt portfolio is typically kept
short-termas long asthere exists acceptable liquidity in the commercial paper markets and sufficient capacity under committed credit lines.
The Group's treasury policies ensure adequate liquidity by requiring that (a) no more than $1.5bn of term debt matures in any 12-month period,
(b) the sum of term debt maturing over the ensuing 12 months plus short-term borrowingsis less than the sum of available cash plus
committed facilities and (c) minimum levels of borrowing with maturities over three and five years are maintained.

The treasury policies ensure debt efficiency by (a) targeting certain levels of short-term borrowings across a given year, (b) maintaining a
weighted average maturity of the gross debt portfolio of approximately five years and (c) minimising surplus cash balances. From time to
time, based on cash flow and market conditions, the Group may redeem term debt early or repurchase outstanding debt in the open market.
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Debtisissuedto meetthe funding requirements of various jurisdictions and in the currencies that are needed. It is recognised that debt
canactasanaturaltranslation hedge of earnings, netassets and net cash flowin currencies other than the reporting currency. For this
reason, the majority of the Group’s net debtis denominated in US dollars and euros, reflecting the Group’s largest geographical markets.

There were no changes tothe Group’s long-term approach to capital and liquidity management during the year.

The remaining contractual maturities for borrowings and derivative financialinstruments are shown in the table below. The table shows
undiscounted principaland interest cash flows and includes contractual gross cash flows to be exchanged as part of cross-currency
interest rate swaps and forward foreign exchange contracts where there is a legal right of set-off.

AT 31 DECEMBER 2017 Contractual cash flow
Carrying Within Morethan
amount 1year 1-2years 2-3years 3-4years 4-5years Syears Total
£m £m £m £m £m £m £m £m
Borrowings
Fixed rate borrowings (4,6417) (336) (706) (577) (518) (805) (2,198) (5,140)
Floating rate borrowings (469) (464) - - - - (5) (469)
Derivative financial liabilities
Interest rate derivatives (13) (1 (1 (2) (2) (4) (8) (18)
Cross-currencyinterest rate swaps (2) (258) (17) (18) (18) (18) (541) (870)
Forward foreign exchange contracts (42) (2,148) (418) (188) (41) - - (2,795)
Derivative financial assets
Interest rate derivatives 20 13 1" 10 1 - - 35
Cross-currency interest rate swaps 42 246 7 7 7 7 554 828
Forward foreignexchangecontracts 53 | 2139 422 193 42 - - 2,796
Total (4,828) (809) (702) (575) (529) (820) (2,198) (5,633)
AT 31 DECEMBER 2016 Contractual cash flow
Carrying Within More than
amount 1year 1-2years 2-3years 3-4years 4-5years Syears Total
£m £m £m £m £m £m £m £m
Borrowings
Fixed rate borrowings (3,937) (479) (345) (733) (555) (72) (2,617) (4,801)
Floating rate borrowings (906) (822) (2) (82) - - (4) (910)
Derivative financial liabilities
Interest rate derivatives (14) - - (1) (2) (2) (12) (17)
Cross-currencyinterest rate swaps (37) (21) (252) (18) (20 (20 (618) (949)
Forward foreign exchange contracts (144) (1,675) (512) (215) (51) - - (2,453)
Derivative financial assets
Interest rate derivatives 35 17 8 8 9 - - 42
Cross-currency interest rate swaps 13 9 234 7 7 7 539 803
Total (4,969) (1,373) (402) (829) (561) (87) (2,712) (5,964)

The carryingamount of derivative financial liabilities comprises £15m (2016: £16m]) in relation to fair value hedges, £30m (2016: £153m)
in relation to cash flow hedges and £12m (2016: £30m) not designated as hedging instruments. The carrying amount of derivative
financial assets comprises £20m (2016: £32m) in relation to fair value hedges, £81m (2016: £22m] in relation to cash flow hedges and
£14m (2016: £15m) not designated as hedging instruments, less nil of cash collateral received from swap counterparties which has been
offsetagainst the related derivative financial assets (2016: £4m of cash collateral paid to swap counterparties which has been offset
against the related derivative liabilities) (see ‘Credit risk' below). The expected cash flows in respect of the cash collateral have been
included in the tables above together with the cash flows for the related cross-currency interest rate swaps.
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19 Financialinstruments (continued)

At31December 2017, the Group had access toa $2,000m committed bank facility maturing in July 2020, which was undrawn. This facility
backs up short-term borrowings. Allborrowings that mature within the next two years can be covered by the facility and by utilising
available cashresources.

The committed bank facility is subject to financial covenants typical to the Group’s size and financial strength. The Group had significant
headroom within these covenants for the year ended 31 December 2017. There are no financial covenantsin any outstanding public bonds.

Market risk

The Group’s primary market risks are to interest rate fluctuations and exchange rate movements. Derivatives are used to manage the
risks associated with interest rate and exchange rate movements and the Group does not enterinto speculative derivatives. Derivatives
used by the Group for hedging a particularrisk are not specialised and are generally available from numerous sources. The impact of
market risks on net post-employment benefit obligations and taxation is excluded from the following market risk sensitivity analysis.

Interest rate exposure management

The Group'sinterest rate exposure management policy aims to minimise interest costs with an acceptable level of year on year volatility.
Toachieve this, the Group uses fixed rate term debt, interest rate swaps, forward rate agreements and interest rate options. Interest
rate derivatives are used only to hedge an underlying risk and no net market positions are held.

At 31 December 2017, 44% of gross borrowings were either fixed rate or had been fixed through the use of interest rate swaps, forward
rate agreements and options. A 100 basis point reduction ininterest rates would resultin an estimated decrease in net finance costs of
£26m (2016: £25m), based on the composition of financialinstruments including cash, cash equivalents, bank loans and commercial
paper borrowings at 31 December 2017. A 100 basis pointrise in interest rates would resultin an estimated increase in net finance costs
of £26m (2016: £25m).

Theimpacton netequity of atheoretical changeininterestratesasat 31 December 2017 is restricted to the change in carrying value

of floating rate to fixed rate interest rate derivatives in a designated cash flow hedge relationship and undesignated interest rate derivatives.
A 100 basis point reduction ininterest rates would resultin an estimated increase in net equity of £2m (2016: £2m) and a 100 basis point
increase ininterest rates would reduce net equity by an estimated £2m (2016: £2m). The impact of a change ininterest rates on the carrying
value of fixed rate borrowings in a designated fair value hedge relationship would be offset by the change in carrying value of the related
interest rate derivative. Fixed rate borrowings notin a designated hedging relationship are carried at amortised cost.

Foreign currency exposure management

Translation exposures arise on the earnings and net assets of individual businesses whose operational currencies are other than sterling.
Some of these exposures are offset by denominating borrowings in US dollars, euros and other currencies. Currency exposures on
transactions denominatedinaforeign currency are generally hedged using forward contracts. In addition, recurring transactions and
futureinvestment exposures may be hedged, in advance of becoming contractual. The precise policy differs according to the specific
circumstances of the individual businesses. Highly predictable future cash flows may be covered for transactions expected to occur during
the next 24 months (50 months for the Scientific, Technical & Medical subscription businesses] within limits defined according to the period
beforethetransactionis expected to become contractual. Covertakes the form of foreign exchange forward contracts.

As at31 December 2017, the amount of outstanding foreign exchange cover against future transactions was £1.3bn (2016: £1.5bn).

Atheoretical weakening of all currencies by 10% against sterling at 31 December 2017 would decrease the carrying value of net
assets, excluding net borrowings, by £630m (2016: £658m). This would be offset to a degree by a decrease in net borrowings of £448m
(2016: £389m). Astrengthening of all currencies by 10% against sterling at 31 December 2017 would increase the carrying value of net
assets, excluding net borrowings, by £630m (2016: £658m) and increase net borrowings by £448m (2016: £389m).

Aretranslation of the Group's net profit for the year, assuming a 10% weakening of all foreign currencies against sterling but excluding
transactional exposures, would reduce net profit by £148m (2016: £105m). A 10% strengthening of all foreign currencies against sterling
on this basis would increase net profit for the year by £148m (2016: £105m).
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19 Financialinstruments (continued)

Creditrisk

The Group seeks to manage interest rate risk and limit foreign exchange risks described above by the use of financialinstruments

and asaresult hasacreditrisk from the potential non-performance by the counterparties to these financialinstruments, which are
unsecured. The amount of this credit risk is normally restricted to the amounts of any hedge gain and not the principal amount being
hedged. The Group also has a credit exposure to counterparties for the full principalamount of cash and cash equivalents. Credit risks
are controlled by monitoring the credit quality of these counterparties, principally licensed commercial banks and investment banks
with strong long-term credit ratings, and the amounts outstanding with each of them.

In certain situations, the Group enters into credit supportarrangements with derivative counterparties to mitigate the credit exposures
arising from hedge gains on the related financial instruments. Under these arrangements, the Group receives (or pays) cash collateral
equaltothe mark to marketvaluation of the related derivative asset (or liability] on monthly settlement dates. At 31 December 2017, nil
cash collateral had been received, resultingin no payable balance to be offset against the related derivative assets of £2m in the
statement of financial position (2016: £4m of cash collateral paid and the resulting receivable balance offset against the related
derivative liabilities of £5m).

The Group has treasury policies in place which do not allow concentrations of risk with individual counterparties and do not allow
significant treasury exposures with counterparties which are rated lower than A-/A3 by Standard & Poor’s, Moody’s and Fitch.

At 31 December 2017, cash and cash equivalents totalled £111m (2016: £162m), of which 90% (2016: 94%) was held with banks rated
A-/A3 or better.

The Group also has credit risk with respect totrade receivables due fromits customers, which include national and state governments,
academicinstitutionsand large and small enterprisesincluding law firms, book stores and wholesalers. The concentration of credit
risk from trade receivables is limited due to the large and broad customer base. Trade receivable exposures are managed locally in the
business units where theyarise. Where appropriate, business units seek to minimise this exposure by taking payment in advance and
through management of credit terms. Allowance is made for bad and doubtful debts based on management’s assessment of the risk
takingintoaccountthe ageing profile, experience and circumstance. The maximum exposure to credit risk is represented by the
carryingamount of each financial asset, including derivative financial instruments, recorded in the statement of financial position.

Included within trade receivables are the following amounts which are past due but for which no allowance has been made: past due up
toone month £220m (2016: £187m); past due two to three months £97m (2016: £96m); past due four to six months £44m (2016: £45m);
and pastdue greater than six months £40m (2016: £31m). Examples of trade receivables which are past due but forwhich no allowance
has been made include those receivables where there is no concern over the creditworthiness of the customer and where the history
of dealings with the customerindicate the amount will be settled.

Hedge accounting
The hedging relationships thatare designated under IAS 39 - Financial Instruments are described below.

Fairvalue hedges

The Group has entered into interest rate swaps and cross-currency interest rate swaps to hedge the exposure to changes in the fair
value of fixed rate borrowings due to interest rate and foreign currency movements which could affect the income statement. Interest
rate derivatives (including cross-currency interest rate swaps) with a principal amount of £2,021m (2016: £1,403m) were in place at 31
December 2017 swapping fixed rate term debt issues denominated in US dollars (USD) and euros to floating rate USD and euro debt
respectively for the whole or part of their term.
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The gainsand losses on the borrowings and related derivatives designated as fair value hedges, which are included in the income
statement, for the three years ended 31 December 2017,2016 and 2015 were as follows:
GAINS/ILOSSES) ON BORROWINGS AND RELATED DERIVATIVES Fairvalue 31
1January movement De- Exchange December
2017 gain/(loss) designated gain/(loss) 2017
£m £m £m £m £m
USD debt 16 (1) (2) )] 12
Related interest rate swaps 1 (12)
EUR debt m un
Related interest rate swaps 1 17
.................. ) S -
Total relatingto USD and EUR debt (17) 16 (2) (2) (5)
Totalrelatedinterestrate swaps 16 ... (1s) . 2 . 2. 5.
Net (loss)/gain (1) 1 - - -
GAINS/(LOSSES) ON BORROWINGS AND RELATED DERIVATIVES Fairvalue 31
1January movement De- Exchange  December
2016 gain/(loss) designated gain/(loss) 2016
£m £m £m £m £m
USD debt 2 13 - 1 16
Relatedinterestrateswaps @ .. (13 ... T (.18
ééPdebt ........... i S L - -
Relatedinterestrateswaps % .. T (14 .. - -
B T e [3],..‘ (33,.]..
Related interest rate swaps - 3 32
.............................. T T (1)
Total relating to USD, GBP and EUR debt (8) 14 (2) (17)
Totalrelatedinterestrateswaps 8 (14 2 16
Netloss - - - (1)
GAINS/(LOSSES) ON BORROWINGS AND RELATED DERIVATIVES Fairvalue 31
1January movement  Exchange December
2015  gain/(loss)  gain/(loss) 2015
£m £m £m £m

USD debt
Related interest rate swaps

GBP debt
Related interest rate swaps

EUR debt
Related interest rate swaps

Totalrelatingto USD, GBP and EUR debt
Totalrelated interest rate swaps

Netloss

Allfair value hedges were highly effective throughout the three years ended 31 December 2017.
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Gross borrowings as at31 December 2017 included £24m (2016: £30m)] in relation to fair value adjustments to borrowings previously
designatedin afairvalue hedge relationship whichwere de-designated in 2008. The related derivatives were closed out on de-designation
with a cashinflow of £62m. £3m (2016: £3m) of these fair value adjustments were amortised in the year as a reduction to finance costs.

Gross borrowings were also reduced by £2m (2016: increased by £6m) in relation to fair value adjustments to borrowings previously
designatedinafairvalue hedging relationship which were de-designated during the year or prioryear. £6m (2016: £8m) of these fair
value adjustments were amortised in the year as a reduction to finance costs. The related derivatives remained on the balance sheet
at31 December 2017 with a carrying value of £2m (2016: £8m).

Cash flow hedges
The Group enters into two types of cash flow hedge:

1 Debthedges comprisinginterest rate derivatives which fix the interest expense on a portion of forecast floating rate debt (including
commercial paper, short-term bank loans and floating rate term debt), and cross-currency interest rate derivatives which hedge the
cash flow exposure arising from foreign currency denominated debt.

2 Revenue hedges comprising forward foreign exchange contracts which fix the exchange rate on a portion of future foreign currency
subscription revenues forecast by the businesses for up to 50 months.

Movementsinthe hedge reservein 2016 and 2017, including gains and losses on cash flow hedging instruments, were as follows:

Totalhedge

Debt Revenue reserve

hedges hedges pre-tax

£m £m £m

Hedgereserve at 1 January 2016: gains/(losses) deferred 6 (44) (38)
Lossesarisingin 2016 (26) (139) (165)

Amounts recognisedinincome statement 27 19 46
Exchange translation differences SR O ) N 1
Hedge reserve at 1 January 2017: gains/(losses) deferred 8 (169) (161)

Gainsarisingin 2017 63 74 137

Amounts recognised inincome statement (65) 90 25
Exchange translation differences SO 1 S -2 S
Hedgereserve at 31 December 2017: gains/(losses) deferred 5 (7) (2)

All cash flow hedges were highly effective throughout the two years ended 31 December 2017.

Adeferredtax charge of £1m (2016: credit of £28m; 2015: credit of £8m) in respect of the above gains and losses at 31 December 2017
was alsodeferredinthe hedge reserve.

Ofthe amounts recognised in the income statement in the year, losses of £90m (2016: losses of £19m; 2015: gains of £19m) were
recognised in revenue, and gains of £65m (2016: losses of £27m; 2015: losses of £48m) were recognised in finance costs. A tax credit
of £1m (2016: £12m; 2015: £1m) was recognised in relation to these items.

The deferred gains and losses on cash flow hedges at 31 December 2017 are currently expected to be recognised in the income
statementin futureyears as follows:

Totalhedge

Debt Revenue reserve

hedges hedges pre-tax

£m £m £m
2018 3 (18) (15)
2019 (1) - (1)

2020 (2) 10 8
2021 (2) 1 (1)
2022 and Doy ONd 7. - T
Gains/(losses) deferredinhedge reserve at end of year 5 (7) (2)

The cash flows for these hedges are expected to occurin line with the recognition of the gains and losses in the income statement, other
thaninrespect of certain forward foreign exchange hedges on subscriptions, where cash flows may be expected to occurin advance of
the subscriptionyear.
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20 Inventories and pre-publication costs
Accounting policy
Inventories and pre-publication costs are stated at the lower of cost, including appropriate attributable overhead, and estimated net
realisable value. Such costs typically comprise direct internal labour costs and externally commissioned editorial and other fees.
Pre-publication costs, representing costs incurred in the origination of content prior to publication, are expensed systematically
reflecting the expected sales profile over the estimated economic lives of the related products, generally up to five years.
ve)
Annualreviews are carried out to assess the recoverability of carryingamounts. G,
§
o
2017 2016 =
£m £m s
Raw materials 2 2
Pre-publication costs 157 152
Finished goods e 38 55
Total 197 209
21 Trade and other receivables
2017 2016
£m £m s
Tradereceivables 1,682 1,782 3
Allowance for doubtful debts S (79) (56) =
) S 1,603 1,726 <
Prepayments and accruedincome e 219 230 =
Total 1,822 1,956
Tradereceivables are predominantly non-interest bearing and their carryingamounts approximate to their fair value.
Trade receivables are stated net of a provision for allowances for doubtful debts. The movements in the provision during the year were
as follows:
2017 2016
£m £m
Atstartof year 56 51 °
Charge for the year 39 A 2
Trade receivables written off (15) (6) 3
Exchange translation differences S (1) 7 3
Atend of year 79 56
22 Trade and other payables
2017 2016
£m £m
Trade payables 240 297
Accruals 670 650
Social securityand other taxes 114 M4
Other payables 379 423
Deferredincome e 1,834 1,941
Total 3,237 3,425

Trade and other payables are predominantly non-interest bearing and their carrying amounts approximate to their fair value.
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23 Borrowings

Accounting policy

Borrowings are recorded initially at fair value and subsequently carried at amortised cost, other than fixed rate borrowingsin
designated hedging relationships for which the carrying amount of the hedged portion of the borrowings is subsequently adjusted
forthe gain or loss attributable to the hedged risk. When the related derivative in such a hedging relationship expires, is sold or
terminated, or no longer qualifies for hedge accounting, the cumulative change in fair value of the hedged borrowing is amortised
intheincome statement over the period to maturity of the borrowing using the effective interest method.

2017 2016
Fallingdue Fallingdue Fallingdue Fallingduein
within inmorethan within morethan
1year 1year Total 1year 1year Total
£m £m £m £m £m £m
Financial liabilities measured atamortised cost:
Short-term bank loans, overdrafts and commercial paper 464 - 464 521 - 521
Term debt 209 1,696 1,905 299 2,021 2,320
Finance leases 5 5 10 5 9 14
Term debtinfairvalue hedging relationships - 2,069 2,069 - 1,399 1,399
Term debt previously i fair value hedging relationships o= 438 438 334 255 589
Total 678 4,208 4,886 1,159 3,684 4,843

The total fair value of financial liabilities measured at amortised costis £2,532m (2016: £3,071m). The total fair value of term debt in fair
value hedging relationshipsis £2,148m (2016: £1,517m). The total fair value of term debt previously in fair value hedging relationships is
£501m (2016: £660m).

RELXPLCand RELXNV have given jointand several guarantees of certain long-term and short-term borrowings issued by subsidiaries
of RELX Group plc. Included within term debt above are debt securities issued by RELX Capital Inc., a 100% indirectly-owned finance
subsidiary of RELXPLC and RELXNV, which have been registered with the US Securities and Exchange Commission. RELXPLC and
RELXNV have fully and unconditionally guaranteed these securities, which are not guaranteed by any other subsidiary of RELX PLC
and RELXNV.

Analysis by year of repayment

2017 2016
Short-term Short-term
bank loans, bank loans,
overdrafts overdrafts
and and
commercial Finance commercial Finance
paper Termdebt leases Total paper Termdebt leases Total
£m £m £m £m £m £m £m £m
Within1year . .. b4 209 5 618 %21 638 5 118
Within 1to 2years - 593 3 596 - 219 4 223
Within 2to 3years - 508 2 510 - 700 3 703
Within 3to 4 years - [YAA - [YAA - 496 2 498
Within 4 to Syears - [YAA - 644 - - - _
AfterSyears ... T 2004 o200 2260 2260
Afterlyear ... T 208 8 4208 3675 9 3684
Total 464 4,612 10 4,886 521 4,308 14 4,843

Short-term bank loans, overdrafts and commercial paper were backed up at 31 December 2017 by a $2,000m (£1,479m) committed bank
facility maturing in July 2020, which was undrawn.
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23 Borrowings (continued)
Analysis by currency
2017 2016
Short-term Short-term
bank loans, bank loans,
overdrafts overdrafts
and and
commercial Finance commercial Finance
paper Termdebt leases Total paper Termdebt leases Total
£m £m £m £m £m £m £m £m
USdollars 103 2,058 10 2171 13 2,274 14 2,301
£ sterling 262 299 - 561 189 604 - 793
Euro 76 2,055 - 2,131 240 1,430 - 1,670
Other currencies e 23 T S 23 T T e 79.
Total 464 4,612 10 4,886 521 4,308 14 4,843

Included in the US dollar amounts for term debt above is £742m (2016: £732m) of debt denominated in euros (€600m; 2016: €600m) and
Swiss francs (CHF 275m; 2016: CHF 275m) that was swapped into US dollars on issuance and against which there are related derivative
financialinstruments, which, as at 31 December 2017, had a fair value of £38m (2016: £39m).

24 Lease arrangements

Accounting policy

Assets held under leases which confer rights and obligations similar to those attaching to owned assets are classified as assets

held underfinance leases and capitalised within property, plantand equipment or software and the corresponding liability to pay

rentalsis shown net of interestin the statement of financial position as obligations under finance leases. The capitalised value of the
assetsisdepreciated on a straight-line basis over the shorter of the periods of the leases or the useful lives of the assets concerned.
Theinterest element of the lease payments is allocated so as to produce a constant periodic rate of charge.

Operating lease rentals are charged to the income statement on a straight-line basis over the period of the leases. Rentalincome
from operating leases is recognised on a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease.

The Group has exposures to sub-lease shortfallsin respect of certain property leases for periods up to 2024. Provisions are
recognised for net liabilities expected to arise on these exposures. Estimation of the provisions requires judgementin respect

of future head lease costs, sub-lease income and the length of vacancy periods.

Finance leases
At 31 December 2017, future finance lease obligations fall due as follows:

2017 2016

£m £m

Within oneyear 5 5

Inthe second to fifthyearsinclusive 5 9

10 14

Less: future finance charges - -

Total 10 14

Presentvalue of future finance lease obligations payable:

Within one year 5 5
Inthe second to fifth yearsINCIUSIVe | | | i S 7.

Total 10 14

The fairvalue of the lease obligations approximates to their carrying amount.
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24 Lease arrangements (continued)

Operating leases
At 31 December 2017, outstanding commitments under non-cancellable operating leases fall due as follows:

2017 2016

£m £m

Within one year 109 M4
Inthe second to fifth yearsinclusive 287 338
After five years 88 115
Total 484 567

The Group leases various properties, principally offices, which have varying terms and renewal rights that are typical to the territory
inwhich they are located. Of the above outstanding commitments, £478m (2016: £559m) relate to land and buildings.

The Group hasanumber of properties that are sub-leased. The future lease receivables contracted with sub-tenants fall due as follows:

2017 2016

£m £m

Within one year 21 17

Inthe second to fifth yearsinclusive 60 68
AT Y Y TS e L

Total 82 85

25 Provisions

Accounting policy

Provisions are recognised when a presentobligation exists as aresult of a past event, the obligation is reasonably estimable, and it
is probable that settlementwill be required. Provisions are measured at the best estimate of the expenditure required to settle the
obligation at the statement of financial position date.

2017 2016

£m £m

Atstart of year 112 121
Utilised (24) (24)
Exchange translation differences e (7 15,

Total 81 112

Provisions principally relate to leasehold properties, including sub-lease shortfalls and guarantees givenin respect of certain property
leases forvarious periods up to 2024.

At 31 December 2017, provisions are included within currentand non-current liabilities as follows:

2017 2016

£m £m

Current liabilities 19 23
Non-current liabilities 62 89
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2
:
26 Share capital, share premium and shares held in treasury
Accounting policy
Shares of RELXPLC and RELX NV that are repurchased by the respective company and not cancelled are classified as shares held in
treasury. The consideration paid, including directly attributable costs, is recognised as a deduction from equity. Shares of RELXPLC
and RELXNVthatare purchased by the Employee Benefit Trust are also classified as shares held in treasury, with the cost
recognised as a deduction from equity. The consolidated share capital of the Group is the aggregate of the RELXPLC and RELXNV
individual share capitals. .
RELXPLC @
CALLED UP SHARE CAPITAL - ISSUED AND FULLY PAID 2017 2016 §
No.of shares £m No. of shares £m g
Atstartofyear 1,144,122,623 165 1,175,914,837 170
Issue of ordinary shares 2,019,483 - 1,907,786 -
Cancellation of shares (22,460,0000 (3) (33,700,000) (5)
Atend ofyear 1,123,682,106 162 1,144,122,623 165
RELXNV
CALLED UP SHARE CAPITAL - ISSUED AND FULLY PAID 2017 2016
No.ofshares €m No.of shares €m
Atstartofyear 1,019,893,404 71 1,048,162,690 73
Issue of ordinary shares 2,067,694 - 1,730,714 - Y
Cancellation of shares (22,000,0000 (1) (30,000,000) (2) f‘g’
Atend of year 999,961,098 70 1,019,893,404 71 =)
£m £m g
Atend of year* 62 61
*The RELXNV sterling information has been translated using the exchange rates as disclosed in note 29 to the consolidated
financial statements.
NUMBER OF ORDINARY SHARES Yearended 31 December
2017 2016
Sharesin Sharesin
issuenetof issuenetof
Sharesin Treasury treasury treasury
issue shares shares shares g>
(millions) (millions) (millions) [millions) &
RELXPLC :
Atstart of period 1,144.1 (63.6) 1,080.5  1,106.6 3
Issue of ordinary shares 2.0 - 2.0 1.9
Repurchase of ordinary shares - (23.1) (23.1) (29.2)
Net release of shares by the Employee Benefit Trust - 0.7 0.7 1.2
Cancellation of shares ,‘ e (225) 225
Atend of year 1,123.6 (63.5) 1,060.1 1,080.5
RELXNV
At start of period 1,019.9 (57.7) 962.2 985.3
Issue of ordinary shares 21 - 21 1.7
Repurchase of ordinary shares - (21.4) (21.4) (26.1)
Net release of shares by the Employee Benefit Trust - 0.7 0.7 1.3
Cancellation of shares ,4 e (200 220
Atend of year 1,000.0 (56.4) 943.6 962.2
Atend of period - RELXPLCand RELXNV 2,123.6 (119.9)  2,003.7 2,042.7
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26 Share capital, share premium and shares held in treasury (continued)

During theyear, RELXPLC repurchased 23.1m (2016: 29.2m; 2015: 25.7m) RELX PLC ordinary shares for an average price of 1,604p and
RELXNVrepurchased 21.4m (2016: 26.1m; 2015: 15.8m) RELX NV ordinary shares for an average price of €17.57. The total consideration
forthe repurchaseswas £700m (2016: £700m; 2015: £500m). These shares are held in treasury.

The Employee Benefit Trust purchases RELXPLC and RELX NV shares which, at the trustees’ discretion, can be used in respect of
the exercise of share options and to meet commitments under conditional share awards. During the year, the Employee Benefit Trust
purchased 1.2m RELX PLC sharesand 1.3m RELX NV shares for a total cost of £39m (2016: £29m; 2015: £23m). At 31 December 2017,
shares held by the Employee Benefit Trust were £82m (2016: £81m)] at cost.

Theissue of ordinary sharesin the year relates to the exercise of share options. Details of share option and conditional share schemes
aresetoutinnote 7on page 131.

Allof the RELXPLC and RELXNV ordinary shares rank equally with respect tovoting rights and rights to receive dividends, except for
shares heldintreasury by the respective parent company, which do not attract voting or dividend rights. There are no restrictions on
therightstotransfer shares.

At31December 2017, RELXPLC shares held intreasury related to 3,493,817 (2016: 4,229,442) RELX PLC ordinary shares held by

the Employee Benefit Trust; and 60,077,786 (2016: 59,415,287) RELX PLC ordinary shares held by the parent company. At 31 December
2017, RELX PLC shares held by the Employee Benefit Trust were £39m (2016: £38m) at cost. During December 2017, 22.5m (2016: 33.7m)
RELXPLC ordinaryshares heldintreasurywere cancelled.

At31December 2017, RELXNV shares held intreasury related to 3,775,905 (2016: 4,519,358) RELX NV ordinary shares held by the
Employee Benefit Trust; and 52,563,100 (2016: 53,204,378) RELX NV ordinary shares held by the parent company. At 31 December 2017,
RELXNV shares held by the Employee Benefit Trust were £43m (2016: £43m) at cost. During December 2017, 22.0m (2016:30.0m)
RELXNVordinary shares held in treasury were cancelled.

On7December 2017, RELXPLC and RELXNV announced a non-discretionary programme to repurchase further ordinary shares up
tothevalue of £100m. At 31 December 2017, an accrual of £100m was recognised in respect of this non-discretionary commitment.
Afurther3.3m RELXPLC ordinary sharesand 2.9m RELXNV ordinary shares have been repurchased in Januaryand February 2018
under this programme.

27 Otherreserves

Hedge Other

reserve reserves Total Total

2017 2017 2017 2016

£m £m £m £m

At startof year (133) (32) (165) 341

Profitattributable to RELXPLC and RELX NV shareholders - 1,659 1,659 1,161
Dividends paid - (762) (762) (683)
Actuarial gains/(losses) on defined benefit pension schemes - 233 233 (262)
Fairvalue movements on cash flow hedges 137 - 137 (165)

Transferto net profit from cash flow hedge reserve 25 - 25 46

Tax recognised in other comprehensive income (30) (59) (89) b4

Increase in share based remuneration reserve (net of tax) - 42 42 44
Cancellation of shares - (566) (566) (707)
Settlement of share awards - (37) (37) (39)
Exchangetranslationdifferences a2 e 35
Atend of year (3) 490 487 (165)

Otherreserves principally comprise retained earnings and the share based remuneration reserve.

28 Related partytransactions

Transactions betweenthe RELXPLC, RELXNV, RELX Group plc and subsidairies of the Group have been eliminated within the
consolidated financial statements. Transactions with joint ventures were made on normal market terms of trading and comprise sales
of goods and services of £16m (2016: £2m; 2015: nil) and the rendering and receiving of goods and services of £0.1m (2016: nil; 2015: £14.0m).
As at31 December 2017, amounts owed by jointventures were £2m (2016: nil; 2015: £1m) and amounts due to joint ventures were £1m
(2016:nil; 2015: £1m). See note 6 for details of the Group’s participation in defined benefit pension schemes.

Key management personnelare also related parties as defined by IAS 24 - Related Party Disclosures and comprise the Executive
and Non-Executive Directors of RELXPLC and RELXNV. Key management personnel remunerationis set out below. For reporting
purposes, salary, benefits and annualincentive payments are considered short-term employee benefits.
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28 Related party transactions (continued)

KEY MANAGEMENT PERSONNEL REMUNERATION 2017 2016 2015
£m £m £m
Salaries, other short-term employee benefits and non-executive fees 5 5 5
Post-employment benefits 1 1 1
Share Dased T MU At O e 6 D o,
Total 12 11 11
EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS Costofshare Costof
Annual based pension
Salary Benefits incentive remuneration* provision* Total
€000 €000 £000 €000 €000 €000
Total Executive Directors 2017 1,889 101 1,964 5,549 983 10,486
2016 1,843 88 1,881 5,409 1,052 10,273
2015 1,797 92 1,889 5,181 966 9,925

*The share based remuneration charge comprises the multi-year incentive scheme chargesinaccordance with IFRS 2 - Share Based
Payment. These IFRS 2 charges do not reflect the actual value received on vesting. The cost of pension provisionis calculated in
accordance with the methodology set outin the UK Regulations. The amountis reduced by the Directors’ contributions and
participation fee for defined benefit schemes and reduced by the payments made to defined contribution schemes orin lieu of pension.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS 2017 2016 2015
£000 £000 £:000
Fees and benefits 1,396 1,364 1,145

The remuneration of non-executive directors comprises fees for services, and benefits primarily relating to tax filing supportin respect
of filings resulting from their directorships. The value of deemed benefits provided during 2017 to two former Directors’ was £2,460
(2016: nil; 2015: nil). No loans, advances or guarantees have been provided on behalf of any Director. The aggregate gains made by
Executive Directors on the exercise of options during 2017 were £2,804,358 (2016: £3,082,715; 2015: £1,474,715).

29 Exchangerates

The following exchange rates have been applied in preparing the consolidated financial statements:

Statement of
Income statement financial position
2017 2016 2015 2017 2016
Eurotosterling 1.14 1.22 1.38 112 1.17
US dollarstosterling 1.29 1.36 1.53 1.35 1.23

30 Subsequent events

On 29 January 2018, RELX Group announced that it had entered into a definitive agreement to acquire 100% of the share capital of
ThreatMetrix for £580m. The acquisition is subject to customary conditions and regulatory consents and is expected to close during the
first half of 2018. This acquisition will be accounted for as a business combination in accordance with IFRS 3. The results and net assets
of ThreatMetrix will be consolidated into the RELX Group results from the point of close. The assessment of the fair values of the assets
and liabilities acquired will be completed during 2018.

31 Approval of financial statements

The consolidated financial statements were approved and authorised for issue by the Boards of Directors of RELXPLC and RELXNV
on 14 February 2018.
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32 Related undertakings

Afulllist of related undertakings (comprising subsidiaries, joint ventures, associates and other significant holdings) is set out below.

Allare 100% owned directly orindirectly by the Group except where percentage ownership denoted in (x%).

Share Reg
Company Name Class Office
Australia
Adaptris Pty Ltd Ordinary AUS1
Elsevier (Australia) Pty Ltd Ordinary AUS3
Fair Events Pty Ltd (49%) Ordinary AUS4
First4FarmingAustralia Pty Ltd Ordinary AUS1
Fitness Show Pty Ltd (80%) Ordinary AUS6
LexisNexis Risk Solutions Assets Australia Pty Ltd Ordinaryand AUS3

Redeemable

Preference
LexisNexis Risk Solutions Australia Pty Ltd Ordinary AUS3
LexisNexis Risk Solutions Unit Trust Units AUS3
Reed Exhibitions Australia Pty Ltd Ordinary AUS2
Reed International Books Australia Pty Ltd Ordinary AUS3
Reed 0z Comic-Con Pty Ltd (80%) Ordinary AUS2
RELXAustraliaPtyLtd Ordinary AUS2
Austria
ExpoxxMessebau GmbH Registered Capital AUT1
LexisNexis VerlagARD ORAC GmbH & CoKG Registered Capital AUT2
ORACGesellschaftm.b.H. Registered Capital AUT2
Reed CEEGmbH Registered Capital AUT1
ReedMesse Salzburg GmbH Registered Capital AUT3
ReedMesse Wien GmbH Registered Capital AUT1
RELXAustriaGmbH Registered Capital AUT3
System StandBau GmbH Registered Capital AUTA
Belgium
LexisNexis BVBA Ordinary BEL1
First4Farming Europe NV Ordinary-A, BEL2

Ordinary-B
Brazil
ElsevierEditoralLtda Quotas BRA1
Elsevier Participacoes Ltda Quotas BRA1
FircosoftBrazil Consultoriae Servicosde InformaticaLtda Ordinary BRA2
LexisNexis Informacoes e Sistemas Empresariais Ltda Quotas shares BRA3
LexisNexis Servicosde Anélise de Risco Ltda Quotasshares BRA3
MLexBrasilMidiaMercadologicaltda Quotas BRA4
Reed Exhibitions AlcantaraMachado Ltda Quotas shares BRA3
Canada
LexisNexis Canadalnc ClassA(non-voting), CAN1

Class B voting)
Reed ExhibitionsInc Common CAN2
RELXCanadaltd Unlimited Class A, CAN3

Unlimited Class B,

Unlimited Class C,

Unlimited Class D,

Unlimited ClassE,

Unlimited ClassF,

Unlimited Class G,

Unlimited ClassH
Chile
Encyclopédie Médico-Chirurgicale Chile Limitada Ordinary CHL1
China
Beijing Bakery China Exhibitions Co., Ltd (25%) Registered Capital CHN1
Beijing Medtime Elsevier Education Technology Co.,Ltd (49%) Registered Capital CHN2
BeijingReed Elsevier Scienceand Technology Co., Ltd Registered Capital CHN3
Beijing Reed Guanghe Exhibition Co., Ltd (80%) Registered Capital CHN4
C-OneEnergyCo.,Ltd Registered Capital CHNé
GenilexInformation Technology Co., Ltd (40%) Registered Capital CHN7
ICIS Consulting (Beijing) Co., Ltd Registered Capital CHN8
KeAiCommunications Co., Ltd (49%) Registered Capital CHN9
LexisNexis Risk Solutions (Shanghai) Information Registered Capital CHN10
TechnologiesCo., Ltd
MLex Consulting (Beijing) Co., Ltd Registered Capital CHN11
Reed Elsevier Information Technology (Beijing) Co., Ltd Registered Capital CHN3
Reed Exhibitions (China) Co., Ltd Registered Capital CHN4
Reed Exhibitions (Shanghai) Co., Ltd Registered Capital CHN12
Reed Hongda Exhibitions (Henan) Co., Ltd (51%) Registered Capital CHN13
Reed Huabai Exhibitions (Beijing) Co., Ltd (51%) Registered Capital CHN4
Reed Huabo Exhibitions (Shenzhen) Co., Ltd (65%) Registered Capital CHN14
Reed Huaqun Exhibitions Co., Ltd (52%) Registered Capital CHN4
Reed Kuozhan Exhibitions (Shanghai) Co., Ltd (60%) Registered Capital CHN12
Reed Sinopharm Exhibitions Co., Ltd (50%) Registered Capital CHN4
RELX(China) InvestmentCo., Ltd Ordinary CHN15
Shanghai CBIBusiness Development Co., Ltd Registered Capital CHN16
ShanghaiDatong Medical Information Technology Co., Ltd Registered Capital CHN17
ShanghaiSinoReal Exhibitions Co., Ltd (27.5%) Registered Capital CHN18

Share Reg
Company Name Class Office
Colombia
LexisNexis Risk SolutionsS.A.S. Ordinary coLt
Denmark
ElsevierA/S Ordinary DNK1
ReedElsevier Denmark ApS Ordinary DNK1
Dubai, UAE
Reed Exhibitions Free Zone-LLC Ordinary UAE1
RELXMiddle EastFZ-LLC Ordinary UAE2
Egypt
Elsevier EgyptLLC Ordinary EGY1
France
Elsevier Holding France SAS Registered Capital FRA1
ElsevierMassonSAS Registered Capital FRA1
EvoluprintSAS Ordinary FRA2
FircosoftSAS Ordinary FRA3
GieEdi-Data Ordinary FRA4
GieJuris-Data Ordinary FRA4
GIEPRK-Publicite RobertKrier Registered capital FRAS
LexisNexis Business Information Solutions Ordinary FRA4
LexisNexis Business Information Solutions Holding Ordinary FRA6
LexisNexis International DevelopmentServices Ordinary FRA4
LexisNexis SA Ordinary FRA4
Reed ExhibitionsISGSARL Registered capital FRA7
Reed Expositions France SAS Ordinary FRAS5
ReedMidem SAS Registered capital FRA7
ReedOrganisation SAS Ordinary FRAS
RELXFranceS.A. Registered capital FRA7
SAFISA Ordinary FRA8
Germany
Collexis GmbH Registered Capital DEU3
Elsevier GmbH Registered Capital DEU3
Elsevier Information Systems GmbH Registered Capital DEU3
LexisNexis GmbH Registered Capital DEUS
MedCongress GmbH Registered Capital DEU1
REC Publications GmbH Registered Capital DEU1
Reed Exhibitions (Germany) GmbH Registered Capital DEU1
Reed Exhibitions Deutschland GmbH Registered Capital DEU1
Reed Exhibitions Holdings GmbH Registered Capital DEU1
Reed Travel(Germany) GmbH Ordinary DEU6
RELXDeutschland GmbH Registered Capital DEU1
TschachSolutions GmbH Ordinary DEU7
Hong Kong
Ascend ChinaHolding Ltd Ordinary HNK1
Reed Business Information (China) Ltd Ordinary HNK2
CBIGroup Co.Ltd(20%) Ordinary HNK3
JCExhibitionand Promotion Ltd (65%) Ordinary HNK1
JYLN SagerLtd (40%) Ordinary HNK5
MLexAsiaLtd (91%) Ordinary HNKé6
Reed Exhibitions Ltd Ordinary HNK5
RELX(Greater China) Ltd Ordinary HNK?7
India
BIChurchill Living Stone PvtLtd Equity shares IND1
ComicConIndiaPrivate Ltd (36%) Ordinary IND2
FircoSoftIndiaPrivate Ltd Ordinary IND3
Harcourt (India) PvtLtd Equityshares IND1
ReedElsevier Publishing (India) Pvt Ltd Ordinary IND4
Reed Manch Exhibitions Private Ltd (70%) Ordinary IND5
ReedSIExhibitions Private Ltd (51%) Ordinary INDé
Reed Triune Exhibitions Private Ltd (72%) Ordinary IND7
RELXIndiaPrivate Ltd Ordinary IND1
Indonesia
PTReed PanoramaExhibitions (50%]) Ordinary IDN1
Ireland
ArmanattaHolding Ltd Ordinary IRE1
Butterworth (Ireland) Ltd Ordinary,AOrdinary IRE2
ElsevierServicesIreland Ltd Ordinary IRE4
L.W.P.M. (Holdings) Ltd 6% Cumulative, IRE2

Deferred Ordinary,

Ordinary
LexisNexis Risk Solutions (Ireland) Ltd Ordinary IRE1
LexisNexis Risk Solutions (Europe) Ltd Ordinary IRE1
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32 Related undertakings [continued)
Share Reg Share Reg
Company Name Class Office Company Name Class Office
Israel Spain
LexisNexisIsraelLtd Ordinary ISR1 ElsevierEspana,S.L. Participations ESP1
Italy Switzerland
Elsevier SRL Registered Capital ITA1  ElsevierFinance SA Ordinary CHE1
ICISItaliaSRL Ordinary ITA2 FircosoftSchweizGmbH ) Ord?nary CHE2
Reed Exhibitions|SG Italy SRL Ordinary ITA1  RELXIntellectual Properties SA Ordinary CHE1
Reed Exhibitions ItaliaSRL Ordinary ITA3  RELXRisksSA Ordinary CHE1
RELXSwissHoldings SA Ordinary CHE1
Japan
AscendJapanKK Ordinary JPN1 Taiwan
Elsevier JapanKK Ordinary JPN2 Elsevier TaiwanLLC Registered Capital TWN1
LexisNexis Japan KK Common Stock JPN3
Reed Exhibitions JapanKK Ordinary JPN4 -
. Thailand
ReedISGJapan KK Ordinary JPNS - - -
ReedHolding(Thailand) Co., Ltd Ordinary THA2
Reed Tradex Company Ltd (49%) Preference shares THA1
Korea(South)
ElsevierKorealLLC Ordinary KOR1 The Netherlands
LexisNexis Legaland ProfessionalService Korea Ltd Ordinary KOR2 AGRM SolutionsC.V. Partnership Interest NLD1
Reed Exhibitions Korea Ltd Ordinary KOR3 ElsevierB.V. Ordinary NLD1
ReedExporumLtd [600%] Ordinary KOR4  Eisevier EmploymentServicesB.V. Ordinary NLD1
ReedK.FairsLtd(70%) Ordinary KOR3 LexisNexis Business Information Solutions B.V. Ordinary NLD1
LexisNexis UniventioB.V. Ordinary NLD2
Luxembourg ReedBusinessB.V. Ordinary NLD1
FIRCOSOFT Luxembourg Sarl Ordinary LUx1  RELXFinanceB.V. Ordinary NLD1
RELXHoldingsB.V. Ordinary NLD1
Malavsia RELXNederlandB.V. EShares/REShares NLD1
_y - - - RELXOverseasB.V. EShares/RE Shares NLD1
LexisNexis Malaysia Sdn Bhd Ordinary MYST  RELXUSHoldings (Amsterdam)B.V. Ordinary NLD1
Reed Exhibitions Sdn Bhd Ordinary MYS1
TJVenturesSdnBhd Ordinary MYS1
Turkey
Mexico Elsevier STMBilgiHizmetleriLimited Sirketi Ordinary TUR1
= - Reed Tiiyap Fuarcilik A.S.(50%) A-shares/B-shares TUR2
Masson-DoymaMexico,S.A. Ordinary MEX1
Reed Exhibitions MexicoS.A.deC.V. Ordinary MEX2 _ _
United Kingdom
Morocco AccuitySolutions Ltd Ordinary GBR2
— - AccuitySolutions UK Ltd Ordinary GBR2
Reed Exhibitions Morocco SARL Ordinary MAR1 AdaptrisGroupLLtd Ordinary GBR2
AdaptrisLtd Ordinary GBR2
NewZealand AscendHoldings Ltd Ordinary GBR2
LexisNexisNZ Ltd Ordinary NZL1 AscendWorldwide Group Holdings Ltd Ordinary, GBR2
OrdinaryC,
e OrdinaryD,
Philippines Ordinari—A
Reed Elsevier Shared Services (Philippines) Inc. Ordinary PHL1 Ascend Worldwide Ltd Ordinary GBR2
Avenue Exhibitions Ltd non-voting, Ordinary GBR4
Poland AxxiaSystems Ltd Ordinary, GBR1
Elseviersp.z.0.0. Ordinary POL1 Ordinary-A
BerrowsPension Trustees Ltd Ordinary GBR1
Ruce Bluegrill Ltd Ordinary GBR4
Bradfield Brett Holdings Lt 71/2% Pref BR1
EcwatechCompanyZAO Ordinary RUS1 radfieldBrettHoldingsLtd Inc/omoe [r)e"dei;;erdy ¢
LexisNexis000 Registered Capital RUSZ  Bradfield, Brett & CompanyLtd Ordinary GBRI
Real Estate Events Direct 000 (80%) Registered Capital RUS3 Butterworth & Co. (Overseas) Ltd Ordinary GBR1
RELX000 Registered Capital RUSZ " utterworth & Co. (Publishers)Ltd 4.5% Cum. GBRI
Preference,
SaudiArabia ‘A’ Ordinary,
Reed Sunaidi Exhibitions (50%) Ordinary SAUT ‘B"Ordinary
Butterworths Ltd Ordinary GBR5
e CorderyCompliance Ltd (72%) Ordinary GBR5
Singapore_ ; CorderyLtd(72%) Ordinary GBR5
Elsevier (Singapore) Pte Ltd Ordinary SGP1 Credivaltd Ordinary GBR6
F4F Agriculture (Asia Pacific) Pte Ltd Ordinary SGP2 DBTLtd Ordinary GBR2
ICIS Investment Singapore Pte Ltd Ordinary SGP3 DewEventsLtd Ordinary GBR4
Lexis-Nexis Philippines Pte Ltd (75%) Preference shares SGP3 DraytonLegal RecoveriesLtd Ordinary GBR7
ReedBusiness Information Pte Ltd Ordinary SGP4 E&PEventsLLP(50%) No Shares GBRA4
RE(HAPL)PteLtd Ordinary SGP1 ElsevierLtd Ordinary GBRS
gELX'S.'“gap”e][Péf'“d 8“’!”” 22"3 Elsevier Life SciencesIPLtd Ordinary GBR8
AF|Asia Pte Ltd (50%) rdinary P4 EveryformLtd OrdinaryA, GBRY
OrdinaryB,
SouthAfrica OrdinaryC,
FircosoftSouth Africa (Pty) Ltd Ordinary ZAF1 Ordinary D
Globalrange SA(Pty) Ltd Ordinary ZAF2 FircosoftLtd Ordinary GBR2
Korbitec (Pty) Ltd (90%) Ordinary ZAF3  First4FarmingLtd Ordinary GBR2
LegalPerfectSoftware Solutions (Pty) Ltd (90%) Ordinary ZAF3 Formpart(EPL)Ltd Ordinary GBR1
LexisNexis Academic (Pty) Ltd (90%) Ordinary ZAF3 Formpart (EPS) Ltd Ordinary GBR1
LexisNexis (Pty) Ltd (90%) Ordinary ZAF3 Formpart(MDL) Ltd Ordinary GBR1
LexisNexis Risk Management (Pty) Ltd (90%) Ordinary ZAF3 Formpart(PDL)Ltd Ordinary GBR1
Property PaymentExchange (SA) (Pty) Ltd [“Pexsa”) (90%) Ordinary ZAF3  Formpart(SFL)Ltd Ordinary GBR1
RELX (Pty) Ltd Ordinary ZAF3 GamermaniaLtd Ordinary GBR2
ReedExhibitions (Pty) Ltd (90%) A-shares ZAFL  GeorgePhilipHoldingsLtd Cumulative GBR1
Reed Management (Pty) Ltd (90%) A-shares ZAF4 Preference,
Reed Exhibitions (Pty) Ltd (90%) Ordinary ZAF4 Ordinary,
Reed Venue Management (Pty) Ltd (90%) A-shares ZAF4 OrdinaryA,
WinsearchServices (Pty) Ltd (90%) Ordinary ZAF3 Redeemable
Cumulative
Preference
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32 Related undertakings (continued)

Share Reg Share Reg
Company Name Class Office Company Name Class Office
United Kingdom cont. United States
HallplazaLtd Ordinary GBR4 AccuityAsset VerificationServicesInc Common Stock USA1
Imbibe Media Ltd Ordinary GBR4 Accuity Europelnc Common Stock USA1
Indicium Financial Ltd Ordinary GBR10 AccuityHoldingsInc Common Stock and USA1
InferMed Ltd Ordinary GBR8 Preferred Stock
Information Handling Ltd (85%) Ordinary GBR1 AccuityInc Common Stock USA1
Insurance Initiatives Ltd Ordinary GBR10 C.L.U.E.Inc Common Stock USA2
Legend Exhibitions Ltd Ordinary-A, GBR4 CharlesJonesLLC MembershipInterest USA2
Ordinary-B DePluimenLLC Membership Interest USA3
LexisNexis Risk Solutions UK Ltd Ordinary GBR11 Derman, Inc Common Stock USA4
Marktile Ltd Ordinary GBR1 DiioLLC MembershipInterest USAS5
MCMCentral Ltd Ordinary GBR2 Dunlap-HannaPublishers (50%) Partnership Interest USA8
MCMExpoLtd Ordinary GBR2 ElsevierInc Common Stock USA3
MCMStategyLtd Ordinary GBR2 Elsevier HoldingsInc Common Stock USA3
MendeleyLtd Ordinary GBR8 Elsevier MedicalInformationLLC MembershipInterest USA3
MLexLtd (91%) AQrdinaryShares, GBR5 ElsevierSTMinc Common Stock USA3
Ordinary Enclarity, Inc Common Stock USA2
Moreover Technologies Ltd Ordinary GBR1 ExitCareLLC Membership Interest USA3
Mosby International Ltd Ordinary GBR1 FireSolutionsInc Commonand USA4
Neptune Collections Ltd Deferred GBR4 Preferred Stock
NewsfloLtd Ordinary GBR1 Flightstats, Inc Common Stock USAS5
Offshore Europe (Management) Ltd Ordinary GBR4 Gaming BusinessAsiaLLC(50%) Membership Interest USA3
Offshore Europe Partnership (50%) Partnership Interest GBR4 Globalrange Corporation Common Stock USAS5
OPG1Ltd Ordinary GBR1 GoldStandard, Inc Ordinaryshares USA3
Oxford Spires Management Co; Ltd (55%) Ordinary GBR12 Health MarketScience, Inc Common Stock USA2
PeopletracerLtd Ordinary GBR6 IDG-RBI ChinaPublishers LLC (50%) Membership Interest USA3
PreanHoldingsLtd Deferred, Ordinary GBR1 Informed Decisions, LLC MembershipInterest USA3
RE(IDM) Ltd Cumulative GBR2 Innovata,LLC Membership Interest USAS
Redeemable Intelligize, Inc Common Stock USA3
Preference, Internet-JournalsLLC Membership Interest USA3
Ordinary, J.Allan Sheehan Scholarship Fund Inc No Shares USA3
Ordinary-A Knovel Corporation Common Stock USA3
RE(SEG)Ltd Ordinary-A, GBR4 LexMachinalnc Common Stock USA3
Ordinary-B, LexisNexis Claims Solutions Inc Common Stock USA2
Preferred Ordinary LexisNexis Coplogic SolutionsInc Common Stock USA2
RE(SEL]Ltd Ordinary GBR4  LexisNexisof PuertoRicolnc Common Stock USA6
RE(SOE) Ltd Ordinary GBR4  LexisNexisRiskAssetsInc Common Stock USA2
REDirectors (No.1) Ltd Ordinary GBR1 LexisNexis Risk DataManagementInc Common Stock USA2
REDirectors(No.2) Ltd Ordinary GBR1 LexisNexis Risk Holdings Inc Common Stock USA2
RESecretariesLtd Ordinary GBR1 LexisNexis Risk Solutions BureauLLC Membership Interest USA2
ReedAll-EnergyLtd Ordinary GBR4 LexisNexis Risk Solutions FL Inc Common Stock USA2
Reed BusinessInformation (Holdings) Ltd Ordinary GBR2 LexisNexis Risk SolutionsInc Common Stock USA2
ReedBusinessInformationLtd Ordinary GBR2  LexisNexisSpecialServicesInc Common Stock USA6
Reed ConsumerBooksLtd Ordinary GBR1 LexisNexis VitalChek Network Inc Common Stock USA2
ReedElsevier (UIG) Ltd Ordinary GBR1  ManagedTechnologyServicesLLC(51%) Membership USA9
ReedElsevier Pension InvestmentManagement Ltd Ordinary GBR1 Interest
ReedElsevier Pension Trustee Ltd Ordinary GBR1 Matthew Bender & Company, Inc. Common Stock USA3
ReedEventsLtd Ordinary GBR4  MLexUS,Inc(91%) Common Stock USA3
Reed Exhibitions Ltd Deferred, Ordinary GBR4 MWW ClinicalSalesForce, Inc.(50%) Common Stock USA3
ReedHealthcare Communications Ltd Ordinary-A GBR2 Nexis, Inc Common Stock USA4
Reed Midem Ltd Ordinary GBR4 PoliceReports.US,LLC Membership Interest USA2
ReedNomineesLtd Ordinary GBR1 Portfolio Media, Inc Common Stock USA3
ReedOverseasCorporationLtd Ordinary GBR1 RavelLawInc Common Stock USA3
Reed Publishing Corporation Ltd Ordinary GBR1 Re(CMDGC) Inc Common Stock USA3
RELX(Holdings) Ltd Ordinary GBR1 Reed Business InformationInc Common Stock USA5
RELX (Investments) plc Ordinary GBR1 Reed Technologyand Information Services Inc. Common Stock USA3
RELX(UK)Holdings Ltd Ordinary GBR1 Reed Westminster CaresInc No Stock USA4
RELX(UK)Ltd Ordinary GBR1 RELX CapitalInc Common Stock USA4
RELXFinance Ltd Ordinary GBR1 RELXInc Common Stock USA3
RELXGroupplc ‘E’Ordinary, GBR1 RELXUSHoldingsInc Common Stock USA3
Ordinary, Reman, Inc Common Stock USA3
‘R"Ordinary REVIVPartnershipLP Noshares USA4
RELXOverseasHoldings Ltd Ordinary, GBR1 Ronald G. Segel Memorial Scholarship Fund Inc. Noshares USA3
Preference SAFIAmericas LLC (50%) Membership Interest USA3
REVVenturePartnersLtd Ordinary GBRT  tClaraLLC(51%) Membership Interest USA4
Rowan Marketing Ltd (50%) Ordinary GBR2  TheElsevier Foundation NoShares USA3
ScriptaTechnicaltd ‘A'Ordinary, 'B’ GBRT  TheMichie Company Common Stock USA4
Ordinary, TheReedElsevier Ventures 2005 Partnership LP Partnership Interest USA4
Cumulative TheReedElsevier Ventures 2006 Partnership LP Partnership Interest USA4
Preference The Reed Elsevier Ventures 2008 PartnershipLP Partnership Interest USA4L
SharpwiseLtd Ordinary GBR1  TheReedElsevierVentures2009 PartnershipLP Partnership Interest USA4
TheLancetLtd Ordinary GBR1  TheReedElsevierVentures2010PartnershipLP Partnership Interest USA4
The Medicine Publishing Company Ltd Ordinary GBR1  TheReedElsevierVentures 2011 PartnershipLP PartnershipInterest USA4
The Medicine Publishing Group Ltd Ordinary GBRT  TheReedElsevierVentures2012PartnershipLP Partnership Interest USA4
TheViscomGroup Ltd Ordinary GBR1  TheReedElsevierVentures2013PartnershipLP Partnership Interest USA4
Tolley Publishing CompanyLtd Ordinary, AEquity GBR1  TheRemick Publishers(50%) Partnership Interest USA8
TracesmartGroupLtd Ordinary GBRé  world Compliance, Inc Common Stock USA4
TracesmartLtd Ordinary GBRé
WaunelliLtd Ordinary GBR13
Venezuela
Encyclopédie Médico-Chirurgicale VenezuelaC.A. Ordinary VEN1
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32 Related undertakings (continued])

Registered offices

Registered offices

Australia Dubai, UAE
AUS1: Building B, Level 2, Unit 11, 1 Maitland Place, Baulkham Hills NSW 2153, Australia UAE1: Office No. 328, Building 02, third floor, P.0. Box 502425, Dubai, United Arab
AUS2: Level 10,10 Help Street, Chatswood NSW 2067, Australia Emirates

AUS3: ‘Tower?2 Level 10,475 Victoria Avenue, Chatswood NSW 2067

AUS4:  GrantThornton, Level 17,393 Kent St, Sydney, NSW 2000, Australia

AUS5: KPMG, 147 Collins Street, Melbourne, Vic, 3000

AUS6: Fordham BusinessAdvisors Pty Ltd, Rialto South Tower Level 35,525 Collins
Street, Melbourne, Vic, 3000

UAE2: AlSufouh Complex, Floor3, No.304, Dubai, United Arab Emirates

Egypt
EGY1: LandMark Office Building, 2nd Floor, 90th Street, City Center, 5th Settlement,
New Cairo, Cairo, Egypt

Austria

France

AUT1: Messeplatz1,1020, Wien, Austria
AUT2: Marxergasse 25, 1030, Wien, Austria
AUT3: AmMessezentrum 6,5020, Salzburg, Austria

Belgium

BEL1: Grotesteenweg-Zuid 39,9052 Gent, Belgium
BEL2: Leernseteenweg 128 BoxE, 9800 Deinze, Belgium
BEL3: 67ruedelaloi, 1040 Etterbeek, Belgium

Brazil

BRA1: RuaSetedeSetembro,n®111,salas 601,1501/1502, 1601/1602,1701/1702 e 802 - 8°
Andar, Centro, cidade do Rio de Janeiro, estado do Rio de Janeiro, CEP 20.050-006

BRA2: S3oPaulo, State of Sdo Paulo, at Rua Bela Cintra, n® 1.200, 8th floor, CEP 01415-002

BRA3: RuaBelaCintrano. 1200, 10th floor, Sdo Paulo, 01415-001, Brazil

BRA4: Avenida paulista, 2300-Piso Pilotis room 28, Sao Paulo, Sao Paulo 01310-300

Canada

FRA1: 65, rueCamille Desmoulins, 92130, Issy les Moulineaux, France
FRA2: ParcEuronord- 10, rueduParc-31150Bruguieres

FRA3: 247ruedeBercy75012Paris

FRA4: 141ruedeJavel, 75015 Paris

FRA5: 52Quaide DionBouton 92800 Puteaux

FRA6: Immeuble « Technopolis », 350 rue Georges Besse -Nimes (30000)
FRA7: 27quaiAlphonse Le Gallo, 92100, Boulogne-Billancourt, France
FRA8: 6-8RueChaptal, 75009 Paris

Germany

DEU1: VolklingerStrasse 4,40219, Disseldorf, Germany

DEU3: Theodor-Heuss-Allee 108, D-60488, Frankfurtam Main, Hesse, Germany
DEU4: Hackerbriicke 6,80335, Munich, Germany

DEUS: Heerdter Sandberg30, 40549, Diisseldorf, Germany

DEUé6: Schwannstr. 6,40476 Disseldorf

DEU7: Steinhduserstrasse 9, 76135, Karlsruhe, Germany

CAN1: 123Commerce Valley Drive East, Suite 700, Markham, Ontario, L3T 7W8, Canada
CAN2: 905King StreetWest, 4TH Floor, Toronto, Ontario, Canada M6K 3G9
CAN3: 555Rlichmond Street West, Toronto, Ontario, Canada, M5V 3B1

Chile

CHL1: Serrano 172, Santiago, Chile

China

CHN1: ZhongkunBuilding, Room 612, Gaolianggiaoxie Street, No. 59, Haidan District,
Beijing, 100044, China

CHN2: WestBuilding of Administration Building, Xueyuan Road No. 38 Peking University
Health Science Center, Haidan District, Beijing, 100191, China

CHN3: OrientalPlaza, No. 1EastChangAnAve, Tower W1, 7th Floor, Unit 1-7, Dong Cheng
District, Beijing, 100738, China

CHN4: PingAnInternational Finance Center, Room 1504, 15th Floor, Tower A-101, 3-24
floor, Xinyuan South Road, Chaoyang District, Beijing, 100027, China

CHN5: 4/FBlock C, No 999 Jingzhong Road, Changning District, Shanghai, China

CHNé: 9/F,No3Zhongshan Er Road, Guangzhou, China

CHN7: Unit 2480, Building 2, No. 7, Chuangxin Road, Science Park of Changping District,
Beijing, China

CHN8: Room 12B, 7th Floor, Oriental Plaza, 1 East Chang An Avenue, Beijing, China

CHN9: 16Donghuangchenggen North Street, Beijing, 100717, China

CHN10: Room 5106, Raffle City, 268 Middle Xizang Road, Huangpu District, Shanghai,
200001, China

CHN11: RoomA 100 0f Room 0307, Floor 3, Building 3, 7 Middle Dongsanhuan road,
Chaoyang District, Beijing

CHN12: Intercontinental Center, 42F, 100 Yutong Road, Zhabei District, Shanghai, 200070,
China

CHN13: World ExpoMansion, 14F, No. 04-05, No. 8 Business Out Ring Road, Zhengzou New
District, Zhengzou, 450000, China

CHN14: Shenzhen International Chamber of Commerce Tower, Room 1801-1802, 1805,
Fuhua3rd Road, Futian District, Shenzhen, 518048, China

CHN15: Room 319,238 Jiangchangsan Road, Jing'an District, Shanghai, China

CHN16: Room 702-2, 200 Huiyuan Road, Jiading Industrial Area, Shanghai

CHN17: No 498, GouShoulJing Road, Building 6 Unit 12502-505, Shanghai, Pudong New
District, 201203, China

CHN18: Building 2, Room No. 3895, Changjiang Avenue, No. 161, Changliang Farm,
Chongming County, Shanghai Municipality

Colombia

COL1: Philippe Prietocarrizosa & UriaAbogados, Carrera 9 No. 74-08 Oficina 105,
Bogota, d.c., 76600, Colombia

Denmark

DNK1: NielsJernesVej 10,9220, Aalborg @st, Denmark

Hong Kong

HNK1: 20/F AlexandraHouse, 18 Chater Road, Central, Hong Kong

HNK2: Level28,Building8, 3 Pacific Place, 1 Queens Road East, HONG KONG, Hong Kong
HNK3: Unit204 2/F, MalaysiaBldg., 50 Gloucester Rd, Wanchai, Hong Kong

HNK4: Level54 Hopewell Center, 183 Queens Road East (Tricor Office), Hong Kong
HNK5: Flat2, 19/F Henan Building 90-92, Jaffe Road Wanchai, Hong Kong, Hong Kong
HNKé6: 703Silvercord, Tower 2,30 Canton Road, Tsimshatsui, Kowloon, Hong Kong
HNK7: 3901, 39th Floor Hopewell Center, 183 Queens Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong,

Hong Kong

India

IND1:  818,8thFloor, Indraprakash Builing, 21 Barakhamba Road, New Delhi, 110001,
India

IND2: B9/5VasantVihar,New Delhi, 110057, India

IND3: n°664Level 6-ChennaiRegus - Citi Centre - 10/11 Dr Radhakrishnan Salai,
Mylapore - Chennai 600004

IND4: 18, Kotla Lane, Rouse Avenue, New Delhi, 110002, India

IND5:  B-15/192, Pharma Apartments, Patparganj, |.P. Extension, New Delhi, 110092,
India

IND6: B-9,"A"Block, LSC, NarainaVihar, Ring Road, New Delhi, 110028, India

IND7: #25,3rd floor, 8th Main Road, Vasanthnager, Bangalore, 560052, India

Indonesia

IDN1:  PanoramaBuilding, 5th Floor, Jalan Tomang Raya No. 63, Jakarta, 11440,
Indonesia

Ireland

IRL1: 80HarcourtStreet, Dublin2, Ireland

IRL2:  ArthurCoxBuilding, Earlsfort Terrace, Dublin 2, Ireland

IRL3:  (A&L Goodbody Secretarial Services), 25/28 North Wall Quay, Dublin 1,001 H104,
Ireland

IRL4:  Suite 4320, Atlantic Avenue, Westpark Business Campus, Shannon, Clare, Ireland

Israel
ISR1:  Meitar, attorneysatLaw, 16 Abba HillelRoad, Ramat Gan, 5250608, Israel

Italy

ITA1:  ViaMarostica 1,20146, Milan, Italy

ITA2:  Studio Colombo e Associati, ViaCinodel Duca 5, 20122, Milano, Italy
ITA3:  Milano [MI)ViaMarostica 1cap 20146
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Japan

JPN1: Kyodo Tsushin Kaikam 2F, 2-2-5 Toronomon, Minato-ku, Tokyo, 105-0001
JPN2: ArkMoriBuilding, 1-12-32 Akasaka, Minato-ku, Tokyo, 107-6029, Japan
JPN3: 1-9-15,HigashiAzabu, Minato-ku Tokyo Japan

JPN4: Shinjuku-NomuraBldg., 1-26-2 Nishi-shinjuku, Shinjuku-ku, Tokyo, Japan
JPN5: 13-12Rokubancho, Chiyoda-ku, Tokyo, Japan
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32 Related undertakings (continued)

Registered offices

Registered offices

Korea (South)

Thailand

KOR1: Chunwoo Building, 4th floor, 534 Itaewon-dong, Yongsan-gu, Seoel, 140-861,
Korea, Republic of

KOR2: 206 Noksapyeong-daero, Yongsan-gu, Seoel, Korea, Republic of

KOR3: "Room 4401, Trade Tower, 159-1, Samseong-dong, Gangnam-gu Seoul, 135-729,
Republic of Korea”

KOR4: 1324 Block ATeraTowerll, 201, Songpa-daero, Songpa-gu, Seoul, 05854

Luxembourg

LUX1: BlocB19-21, Routed’Arlon, L-8009 Strassen, Luxembourg

THA1:  SathornNakorn Building, Floor 32, No. 100/68-69 North Sathon Road, Silom,
Bangrak, Bangkok, 10500, Thailand

THA2: 540Mercury Tower, 22nd Floor, Ploenchit Road, Lumpini, Pathumwan, Bangkok
10330

The Netherlands

NLD1: Radarweg?29, 1043NXAmsterdam, Netherlands
NLD2: Galileiweg8,2333BD Leiden, Netherlands

Turkey

Malaysia

MYS1: 6th Floor, AkademiEtiga, No. 23 Jalan Melaka, 50100 Kuala Lumpur, Malaysia

Mexico

TUR1: Maslak Mah. Bilim Sokak Sun Plaza Kat:13 Sisli-Maslak, Istanbul, Turkey
TUR2: Tiyap Fuarve Kongre Merkezi, E-5KarayoluUzeri, Glirpinar Kavsagi 34500,
Biiyiikcekmece, Istanbul, 34500, Turkey

MEX1: InsurgentesSur #1388 Piso 8, Col. Actipan, Deleg. Benito Juarez, C.P.03230
Ciudad de México, México
MEX2: Av.InsurgentesNo. 1388, Piso8, Col.Actipan, 03230 Mexico, Mexico

Morocco

MAR1: Forum BabAbdelazizau 62, Angle Blvd. d’Anfa, 6éme étage, Apt 61, Casablanca,
Morocco

NewZealand

NZL1: Level1,138TheTerrace, P.0.Box 472, Wellington 6011, New Zealand

Philippines

PHL1: BuildingH, 2nd Floor, U.P. Ayalaland TechnoHub, Commonwealth Avenue, Quezon
City, Metro Manila, 1101, Philippines

Poland

POL1: NatpollBuilding, ul. Migdalowa 4/59,02-796, Warsaw, Poland

Russia

RUS1: PokrovkaStreet 27, Building 1, Moscow, Russian Federation

RUS2: 24Bolshaya Nikitskaya Str., bldg. 5, Moscow 125009, Russian Federation

RUS3: Petrozavodskaya street 28/4, Building VI, room 2, 125475, Moscow, Russian
Federation

SaudiArabia

SAU1: AlFadlCommercial Center, Jeddah, 21411, Saudi Arabia

Singapore

SGP1: 3KillineyRoad, #08-01Winsland House 1, Singapore, 239119, Singapore

SGP2: 16 RafflesQuay, #33-03Hong Leong Building, Singapore, 048581, Singapore

SGP3: 80RobinsonRoad, #02-00, Singapore, 068898, Singapore

SGP4: 1ChangiBusinessPark Crescent, #06-01Plaza8 & CBP, Singapore, 48602551,
Singapore

South Africa

ZAF1: RegusBrooklynBridge, 3rd Floor Steven House, Brooklyn Bridge Office Park,
Fehrsen Street, Brooklyn, Pretoria

ZAF2: FourwaysGold Park, 1st Floor - Wentworth Building, 32 Roos Street, Fourways,
2191, South Africa

ZAF3: 215Peter Mokaba Road (North Ridge Road), Morningside, Durban, Kwa-Zulu
Natal, 4001, South Africa

ZAF4: ThebeHouse,2nd Floor, 166 Jan Smuts Avenue, Rosebank, Johannesburg, 2196,
South Africa

Spain

ESP1: C/JosepTarradellas20-30,1°/20029, Barcelona, Spain
ESP2: Calle Zancoeta 0009, 48013, Bilbao, Viscaya, Spain

Switzerland

CHE1: Espacede L'Europe3,2002Neuchatel, Switzerland
CHE2: Bahnhofstrasse 100-8001Zurich

Taiwan

TWN1: Suite N-818, 8/F, Chia Hsin Cement Building, 96 Zhong Shan North Road, Section 2,

Taipei, 10449, Taiwan

United Kingd

GBR1: 1-3Strand, London, WC2N 5JR, United Kingdom

GBR2: QuadrantHouse, The Quadrant, Sutton, Surrey, SM25AS, United Kingdom

GBR3: AG Gateway Global Network, 85 Great Portland Street, First Floor, London,
WIWT7LT, United Kingdom

GBR4: GatewayHouse 28 The Quadrant, Richmond, Surrey, TW9 1DN, United Kingdom

GBR5: LexisHouse,30Farringdon Street, London, EC4A4HH, United Kingdom

GBRé6: GlobalReach, Dunleavy Drive, Cardiff, CF11 0SN, United Kingdom

GBR7: ThekEye, 1ProcterStreet, London, WC1V 6EU, United Kingdom

GBR8: TheBoulevard, Langford Lane, Kidlington, Oxford, 0X51GB, United Kingdom

GBR9: c/oRELX(UK]Limited, Butterworths Limited, 4 Hill Street, Edinburgh,
EH23JZ, Scotland

GBR10: 35-37St. Marys Gate, Nottingham, United Kingdom, NG1 1PU

GBR11: 1stFloor80Moorbridge Road, Maidenhead, Berkshire, London, SL8 8BW,
United Kingdom

GBR12: 40Kimbolton Road, Bedford, England, MK40 2NR

GBR13: 1000 Lakeside, Western Road, Portsmouth, P06 3EN, United Kingdom

us

USA1: 1007 Church Street, Evanston L 60201

USA2: 1000AldermanDr., Alpharetta, GA30005

USA3: 230ParkAve, NewYork, NY 10169

USA4: 1105North Market St, Wilmington, DE 19801

USA5: 3355WestAlabama Street, Houston, TX77098

USA6: PuertaDelCondado #1095, Wilson Ave, Local #3, San Juan, PR00907
USA7: N909N.SepulvedaBlvd., 11th Floor, ELSegundo, CA 90245

USA8: 313Washington Street, Suite 400, Newton, MA02458

USA9: 1209 Orange Street, Wilmington, DE 19801

Venezuela
VEN1: AvenidaBanca, Torre BOD, Piso 21, La Castellana, Estado Miranda, Caracas,
Venezuela
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O year summary

Restated®

2017 2016 2015 2014 2013
Note £m £m £m £m £m

RELX Group consolidated financial information
Revenue 7,355 6,895 5971 5,773 6,035
Reported operating profit 1,905 1,708 1,497 1,402 1,376
Adjusted operating profit 1 2,284 2,114 1,822 1,739 1,749
Reported net profit attributable to shareholders 1,659 1,161 1,008 955 1,10

RELXPLC financialinformation
Reported earnings per ordinary share (pence)
Adjusted earnings per ordinary share (pence)

RELXNYV financialinformation®

Reported earnings per ordinary share (pence) 82.2p 56.3p 49.4p 45.8p 51.6p
Reported earnings per ordinary share (euro) €0.936 €0.687 €0.682 €0.568 €0.609
Adjusted earnings per ordinary share (euro) €0.923 €0.880 €0.835 €0.698 €0.638
Dividend per ordinary share (euro) 2 €0.448 €0.423 €0.403 €0.383 €0.329

(1) Adjusted figures are presented as additional performance measures used by management. A reconciliation of the adjusted
measures to the comparable GAAP measures can be found on page 186. Adjusted measures are stated before amortisation and
impairment of acquired intangible assets and goodwill, the net financing cost on defined benefit pension schemes and acquisition-
related costs, exceptional tax credits (in 2017, resulting from the US Tax Cuts and Jobs Act], and in respect of attributable net profit,
reflectataxrate that excludes the effect of movementsin deferred taxation assets and liabilities that are not expected to crystallise
inthe neartermandincludes the benefit of taxamortisation where available on acquired goodwill and intangible assets.
Acquisition-related financing costs and profitand loss from disposal gains and losses and other non-operating items are also
excluded from the adjusted figures.

(2) Dividend perordinaryshareis based on the interim dividend and proposed final dividend for the relevant year.

(3) RELXNVamounts and dividend per share reflect the bonus share issue declared on 30 June 2015.

MBIAIBAQ

MBIABJ Sssaulsng

MB3IABJ BIDUBUIS

90UBUJIBA0G

]
5
o
3
(a0,
o
=
I
3
o
=
o
E]
)
3
3
@
»
3
o
o
2
5
o
Y
5
=
=)
]
3
]
=
°
E]



166 RELX Group Annual reports and financial statements 2017




Financial statements and other financial information 167

RELXPLC
Annual Reportand
Financial Statements

In this section

MBIAIBAQ

168 Directors’ Report

172 RELXPLC statement of financial position
173 RELXPLC statement of changes in equity
173 RELXPLC accounting policies

174 Notes to the RELX PLC financial statements

MB3IARJ SSauIsng

MB3IABJ JBIDUBULY

9J0UBUJDA0G




168 RELX Group Annual reports and financial statements 2017

Directors’ Report

The Directors present theirreport, together with the financial
statements of the Group and RELXPLC (the Company), for the year
ended 31 December 2017.

RELXPLCisincorporatedasa public limited companyandis
registeredin England and Wales with registered number 77536.
RELXPLC's registered officeis 1-3 Strand, London, WC2N 5JR.

Corporate structure

RELXPLC and RELXNV are separate, publicly-listed holding
companies. RELXPLC’s ordinary shares aretraded onthe
Londonand New York stock exchanges, and RELXNV’s ordinary
shares are traded on the Amsterdam and New York stock
exchanges. RELXPLC and RELXNV have equalvoting rightsin
RELXGroup plc, which holds all of RELX Group’s operating
businesses, subsidiaries and financing activities. RELXPLC,
RELXNV, RELX Group plcand its subsidiaries, joint ventures and
associates are together known as 'RELX Group’ or ‘the Group'.

Financial statement presentation

Underthe Governing Agreement between RELXPLC and RELXNV,
one RELXPLC ordinary share confers an equivalent economic
interesttoone RELXNV ordinary share. Therefore, all shareholders
canberegardedas havinginterestsinasingle economic entity.
Accordingly, the Group forms a single reporting entity for the
presentation of consolidated financial statements. The Group
consolidated financial statements represent the interests of both
sets of shareholders and are presented by both RELXPLC and
RELXNV astheir respective consolidated financial statements.
This Directors’ Reportand the financial statements of the Group
and Company should be read in conjunction with the other reports
setouton pages 2to 104. Areview of the Group’s performance
during theyearis set outon pages 8to 52, the principal risks facing
the Group are setouton pages 60to 63, and the Group statement
on corporate responsibility is set out on pages 42 to 52.

Theshares of RELXPLC and RELXNV are regarded as two
separate classes of share which together form the consolidated
issued share capital of the Group. In calculating the earnings per
share of the Group, the earnings for each company are calculated
onafullydistributed basis. The Group’s usual practiceis foronlya
portion of earnings to be distributed by way of dividends. Dividends
paidto RELXPLC and RELXNV shareholders are, other thanin
special circumstances, equalised ata gross level and reported
earnings per share have the same value foreach RELXPLC and
RELXNVshare.

Inadditionto the reported figures, adjusted figures are presented
as additional performance measures used by management to
assess the performance of the business. These exclude the Group’s
share of amortisation of acquired intangible assets, acquisition-
related costs, taxinjointventures, disposal gains and losses and
other non-operatingitems, related tax effects, and movements
in deferred taxation assets and liabilities related to acquired
intangible assets, and include the benefit of taxamortisation
where available on acquired goodwill and intangible assets.

In 2017, the exceptional tax creditarising as a result of the

US Tax Cuts and Jobs Act has been excluded from our adjusted
measures.

Company financial statements

The individual company financial statements of the Company
are presented on page 172, and were prepared under Financial
Reporting Standard 101 (FRS 101).

Distributable reservesasat31 December 2017 were £1,518m
(2016: £1,472m), comprising reserves less shares held in treasury.

Parent company shareholders’ funds asat31 December 2017
were £3,174m (2016: £3,112m).

Strategic Report

The Companies Act 2006 requires the Company to presenta fair
review of the Group during the financialyear. The Strategic Report,
whichincludes a review of the Group’s business areas, a financial
review, the principalrisks facing the Group, anyimportant events
affecting the Group since 31 December 2017, and the likely future
developmentsinthe Group’s business, is set out on pages 2to 63
which areincorporated into this Directors’ Report by reference.
The Directors’ Report, inclusive of the Strategic Report
incorporated therein, forms the management reportfor the
purposes of the Financial Conduct Authority’s Disclosure and
Transparency Rule 4.1.8R.

Dividends

The Board is recommending a final dividend of 27.7p (2016: 25.7p)
perordinary share to be paid on 22 May 2018 to shareholders
appearing on the Register at the close of business on 27 April 2018.
Payment of this final dividend remains subject to the approval of the
Company’s shareholders atits 2018 Annual General Meeting (AGM).
Togetherwith the interim dividend of 11.7p (2016: 10.25p) per
ordinary share, paid in August 2017, the total ordinary dividends
fortheyearwillbe 39.4p (2016: 35.95p).

Details of dividend cover and dividend policy are set out on page 58.

Corporate Governance

The Company has complied throughout the year with the provisions
of the UK Corporate Governance Code 2016 (the UK Code), which

is publicly available on the Financial Reporting Council website
(www.frc.org.uk). Details of how the main principles of the UK Code
have been applied and the Directors’ statement oninternal control
aresetoutinthe Corporate Governance reporton pages 72to 80,
which areincorporated into this Directors’ Report by reference.

Greenhouse gas emissions

The Company is required to state the annual quantity of emissions
intonnes of carbon dioxide equivalent from Group operational
activities. Details of our emissions during the year ended

31 December 2017 and the actions being taken to reduce them
aresetoutinthe Corporate Responsibility section of the Strategic
Reportonpages51and 52, whichareincorporated into the Directors’
Reportbyreference. Further details can be found in our online
Corporate Responsibility Report at www.relx.com/go/CRReport.

Directors

The names of the Directors who served on the Board during the
year, and changestothe Board, are set out on pages 66, 67, 76 and
77,which areincorporated into this Directors’ Report by reference.
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Share capital

The Company’'sissued share capital comprises a single class of
ordinary shares, all of which are listed on the London and New York
stock exchanges. Allissued shares are fully paid up and carry no
additional obligations or special rights. Each share carries the right
toonevote at general meetings of the Company.

Inageneral meeting, subjecttoanyrightsand restrictions attached
toanyshares, onashow of hands every memberwhois presentin
person shall have one vote and every proxy present who has been
duly appointed by one or more members entitled to vote on the
resolution has one vote (although a proxy has one vote for and one
vote against the resolution if: (i) the proxy has been duly appointed by
more than one member entitled to vote on the resolution; and (i) the
proxy has beeninstructed by one or more of those members to vote
forthe resolution and by one or more other of those members to
vote againstit]. Subjectto any rights or restrictions attached to any
shares, onavote onaresolutionona pollevery member presentin
person or by proxy shall have one vote for every share of which he/
sheisthe holder.

Proxy appointments and voting instructions must be received by
the registrars not lessthan 48 hours before a general meeting.
There are no specific restrictions on the size of a holding noron
the transfer of shares, which are both governed by the general
provisions of the Articles and prevailing legislation. The Company
isnotaware of any agreements between shareholders that may
resultinrestrictions on the transfer of shares oronvotingrights
attachedtotheshares.

Atthe 2017 AGM, shareholders passed a resolution authorising
the Directors toissue shares for cash ona non-pre-emptive basis
uptoanominalvalue of £8.2m, representing less than 5% of the
Company’sissued share capital, and authorising the Directors
toissue up toanadditional 5% of the issued share capital for cash
onanon-pre-emptive basis in connection with an acquisition or
specified investment. Since the 2017 AGM, no shares have been
issued under this authority. The shareholder authority also
permitted the Directors toissue sharesin order to satisfy
entitlements under employee share plans, and details of such
allotments are noted below. The authorities to issue shares will
expire atthe 2018 AGM. Two separate resolutions to extend the
authorities will be proposed at the 2018 AGM: (i) to authorise the
Directorstoissue shares for cash onanon-pre-emptive basis up
to 5% of the issued share capital and to satisfy entitlements under
employee share plans; and (i) to authorise the Directors toissue
up to 5% of the issued share capital for cash onanon-pre-emptive
basisin connectionwith an acquisition or specified investment
subject to certain conditions in accordance with the Pre-Emption
Group's Statement of Principles.

Duringtheyear, 2,019,483 ordinary sharesinthe Companywere
issuedin order to satisfy entittements under employee share
plansas follows: 717,932 under a UK Sharesave option scheme
atprices between 410.80p and 1251.20p per share; and 1,301,551
under executive share option schemes at prices between 466.50p
and 1494.50p per share.

Theissued share capitalasat31 December 2017 is shownin note 26
tothe consolidated financial statements.

Authority to purchase shares

Atthe 2017 AGM, shareholders passed aresolution authorising
the purchase of upto 114.4m ordinary sharesin the Company
(representing less than 10% of the issued ordinary shares) by
market purchase. During theyear, 23,122,499 ordinary shares
with a nominalvalue of 14%/11sp [representing 2.0% of the ordinary
sharesinissue on 31 December2017) were purchased under this
and the previous authority, for a total consideration of £371m,
including expenses, and subsequently transferred to be held in
treasury. The purpose of the share buyback is to reduce the capital
of the Company.

On 27 December 2017, the Company cancelled 22.46mordinary
shares heldintreasury. Therefore,asat 31 December 2017 there
were 60,077,786 ordinary shares held in treasury, representing
5.3% of theissued ordinary shares. Afurther 3,304,631 ordinary
shareswere purchased between 2 January 2018 and the date of
this report. The authority to make market purchases will expire at
the 2018 AGM, at which aresolution to further extend the authority
will be submitted to shareholders.

Substantial shareinterests

Asat 31 December 2017, the Company had been notified by the
following shareholders that they held an interest of 3% or more
invoting rights of its issued share capital pursuant to Rule 5 of
the Disclosure and Transparency Rules (DTR):

Notifications received asat31 December 2017 % of voting rights

= BlackRockInc 9.62%
= Invesco Limited 5.03%
= Legal & General Groupplc 3.40%

The percentage interests stated above are as disclosed at the date
onwhich the interests were notified to the Company.

Between 31 December 2017 and 14 February 2018, the Company
did not receive any notifications under DTR 5.

Employee Benefit Trust

The trustee of the Employee Benefit Trust held aninterestin
3,493,817 ordinary sharesin the Company (representing 0.3% of the
issued ordinary shares) asat 31 December 2017. The trustee may
vote or abstain from voting any sharesitholdsinanyway it sees fit.

Significantagreements - change of control

The Governing Agreement between RELXPLC and RELX NV states
that, upon a change of control of RELX PLC (for these purposes, the
acquisition by athird party of 50% or more of the issued share
capital having voting rights), should there not be a comparable offer
from the offeror for RELXNV, RELXNV may serve notice upon the
Companyvarying certain provisions of the Governing Agreement,
including the governance and the standstill provisions.

Thereareanumber of borrowing agreementsincluding credit
facilities that, in the event of a change of control of both the Company
and RELXNVand, in some cases, a consequential credit rating
downgrade to sub-investment grade may, at the option of the
lenders, require repaymentand/or cancellation as appropriate.

Articles

The Company’s Articles of Association, which were notamended
during the year, may only be amended by a special resolution of
shareholders passed ata general meeting of the Company.

MBIAIBAQ

MBIABJ Sssaulsng

MB3IABJ BIDUBUIS

90UBUJIBA0G

]
5
o
3
(a0,
o
=
I
3
o
=
o
E]
)
3
3
@
»
3
o
o
2
5
o
Y
5
=
=)
o
3
]
=
°
E]



170 RELX Group Annual reports and financial statements 2017

Appointment and replacement of Directors

The appointment, re-appointmentand replacement of Directors
isgoverned by the Company’s Articles, the Governing Agreement
between RELXPLC and RELXNV, the Companies Act 2006 and
related legislation. RELX PLC shareholders maintain their right
toappointand re-appoint Directors by way of an ordinary
resolutioninaccordance with the Articles. However, noindividual
may be appointed to the Board unless recommended by the joint
Nominations Committee of RELXPLC and RELXNV. Subject to this
restriction, the Directors may appointadditional or replacement
Directors, who may only serve until the following AGM of the
Company, at which time they must retire and, if appropriate, seek
election by the Company’s shareholders. ADirector may be
removed from office by the Company as provided for by applicable
law, in certain circumstances set outin the Company’s Articles,
and atageneralmeeting of the Company by the passing of an
ordinaryresolution.

The Articles provide fora Board of Directors consisting of not
fewer than two, but not more than 20 Directors, who manage the
business and affairs of the Company.

Powers of Directors

Subjecttothe provisions of the Companies Act 2006, the Company’s
Articlesand anydirections given by special resolutions, the
business of the Company shall be managed by the Board which
may exercise all the powers of the Company.

Directors’ indemnity

Inaccordance withits Articles, the Company has granted Directors
anindemnity, to the extent permitted by law, in respect of liabilities
incurred as aresult of their office. This indemnity was in place for
Directorsthatserved atanytimeduring the 2017 financialyear,
andalso for each serving Director as at the date of approval of this
report. The Company also purchased and maintained throughout
theyear Directors’ and Officers’ liability insurance in respect of
itselfandits Directors.

Related party transactions

Internal controlsarein place to ensure thatanyrelated party
transactionsinvolving Directors or their connected personsare
carried outonanarm’s-length basisandare properly recorded
anddisclosed where appropriate.

Conflicts of interest

Underthe Companies Act 2006, the Directors have a duty to
avoid situations in which they have, or could have, adirect or
indirectinterest that conflicts with the interests of the Company.
The Board has established formal procedures foridentifying,
assessing and reviewing any situations where a Director has
aninterest that conflicts, or may possibly conflict, with the
interests of the Company.

The Nominations Committee considers any such conflict or
potential conflictand makes arecommendation to the Board
onwhetherto authoriseit, as permitted under the Company’s
Articles. Inreachingits decision, the Board is required to act
inaway it considers would be most likely to promote the success
of the Company and may impose limits or conditions when
givingitsauthorisation, if it thinks this is appropriate. Actual

or potential conflicts of interest are reviewed annually by the
Nominations Committee.

Financial Instruments

The Group’s financial risk management objectives and policies,
including hedging activities and exposure torisks, are describedin
note 19 to the consolidated financial statements on pages 147 to 152.

Political donations

The Group does not make donations to European Union (EU) political
organisations orincur EU political expenditure. Inthe US, Group
companies donated £62,791(2016: £74,264]) to political
organisations. In line with US law, these donations were not made at
federallevel, but only to candidates and political parties at the state
and local levels.

Employee relations

The Group is committed to employee involvement and participation.
Where appropriate, major announcements are communicated to
employeesthrough internal briefings. Information on performance,
development, organisational changes and other matters of interest
iscommunicated through briefings and electronic bulletins.

The Companyis an equal opportunity employerand does not
discriminate on the grounds of race, gender or other characteristics
inits recruitment oremployment policies. The Group seeks
opinions from employees through a triennial survey. The last
employee surveywas carried outin 2015. Certain employees
throughout the Group are eligible to participate inthe Group’s
shareincentive plans.

Disabled persons

RELXGroup has a positive approach to diversity and inclusion.
Details of the Group’s Diversity and Inclusion Statement are set out
on page 46, whichisincorporated into this Directors’ Report by
reference. The Group is committed to the fulland fair treatment

of people with disabilities in relation to job applications, training,
promotionand career development. Where existing employees
become disabled, our policyis to provide continuing employment,
supportand trainingwherever practicable.

Disclosuresrequired under UK Listing Rule 9.8.4
Theinformation required by Listing Rule 9.8.4is set outon the
pages below:

Informationrequired Page
(1) Interest capitalised by the Group n/a
(2) Publication of unaudited financial information n/a
(4) Long-termincentive schemes n/a
(5) Waiverof emoluments by adirector n/a
(6) Waiver of future emoluments by a director n/a
(7). Nonpro-rataallotments for cash (issuer) n/a

(8) Nonpro-rataallotments for cash (major subsidiaries) n/a

(9] Parentparticipationina placing by a listed subsidiary n/a

(10) Contracts of significance n/a
(11) Provision of services by a controlling shareholder n/a
(12) Shareholder waiver of dividends 141
(13) Shareholderwaiver of future dividends 141
(14) Agreements with controlling shareholders n/a
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Financial statements and accounting records

The Directorsareresponsible for preparing the Directors’ Report
and the financial statementsinaccordance with applicable law
andregulations.

Company law requires the Directors to prepare financial
statements for each financialyear. Under that law the Directors
arerequired to prepare the consolidated financial statements
inaccordance with International Financial Reporting Standards
(IFRS) as adopted by the EU and Article 4 of the IAS Regulation.
The Directors have elected to prepare the individual company
financial statementsinaccordance with Financial Reporting
Standard 101 Reduced Disclosure Framework. Under company
law the Directors must notapprove the accounts unless theyare
satisfied that they give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of
the Company and of the profit or loss of the Company for that period.

In preparing the individual company financial statements, the
Directorsare required to: select suitable accounting policies and
then apply them consistently; make judgements and accounting
estimates that are reasonable and prudent; state whether Financial
Reporting Standard 101 Reduced Disclosure Framework has been
followed, subject toany material departures being disclosed and
explainedinthe financial statements; and prepare the financial
statements onagoing concern basis unlessitis inappropriate to
presume thatthe Company will continue in business.

In preparing the Group financial statements, IAS1 requires that
Directors: properly selectand apply accounting policies; present
information, including accounting policies, ina manner that
provides relevant, reliable, comparable and understandable
information; provide additional disclosures when compliance with
the specificrequirements of IFRS are insufficient to enable users
tounderstand the impact of particular transactions, other events
and conditions on the entity’s financial position and financial
performance; and make anassessment of the company’s ability
to continueasagoing concern.

The Directors are responsible for keeping adequate accounting
records that are sufficient to show and explain the Company’s
transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy atany time
the financial position of the Company and enable them to ensure
that the financial statements comply with the Companies Act 2006.
Theyarealsoresponsible for safeguarding the assets of the
Companyand hence for taking reasonable steps for the prevention
and detection of fraud and otherirregularities.

Directors’ responsibility statement
Each of the Directors, whose names and roles can be found on
pages 66 to 67, confirms that, to the best of their knowledge:

= theconsolidated financial statements, preparedinaccordance
with International Financial Reporting Standards as issued by
the International Accounting Standards Board and as adopted
bythe European Union, give atrue and fair view of the assets,
liabilities, financial position and profit or loss of the Group;

= theindividual company financial statements, preparedin
accordance with Financial Reporting Standard 101 ‘Reduced
Disclosure Framework’ (FRS 101), give a true and fair view
of the assets, liabilities, financial position and profit or loss
of the Company;and

= theDirectors’ Reportincludes afair review of the development
and performance of the business and the position of the Group,
togetherwith a description of the principal risks and
uncertainties thatitfaces.

Having taken into accountall the matters considered by the Board
and brought to the attention of the Board during the year, the
Directors are satisfied that the Annual Reportand Accounts, taken
asawhole, is fair, balanced and understandable and provides the
information necessaryforshareholders to assess the Company’s
positionand performance, business model and strategy.

Neither the Company northe Directors acceptany liability to any
personinrelationtothe Annual Report exceptto the extent that
such liability could arise under English law. Accordingly, any
liability to a personwho has demonstrated reliance on any untrue
or misleading statement or omission shall be determinedin
accordance with Section 90A of the Financial Services and
Markets Act 2000.

Disclosure of information to auditors

Inaccordance with Section 418 of the Companies Act 2006, each
Directorin office at the date the Directors’ Reportis approved,
confirms that:

= sofarastheDirectorisaware,thereisnorelevantaudit
information of which the Company’s auditors are unaware; and

= he/she hastakenallthe steps that he/she ought to have taken
as a Director to make himself/herself aware of any relevant
auditinformation and to establish that the Company’s auditors
are aware of thatinformation.

Going concern

The Directors’ statement regarding the appropriateness of adopting
the going concern basis of accounting is set out on page 79, which
isincorporated into this Directors’ Report by reference.

Long-termviability statement

The Directors’ statementregarding the long-termyviability of the
Groupissetouton page 80, whichisincorporated into this Directors’
Report by reference.

Auditors

Resolutions for the re-appointment of Ernst & Young LLP as
auditors of the Company and to authorise the Audit Committee,
on behalf of the Board, to determine their remuneration will be
submitted to shareholders at the 2018 AGM.

By order of the Board

HenryUdow
Company Secretary
14 February 2018

Registered Office
1-3Strand
London
WC2N5JR
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RELX PLC statement of financial positi

2017 2016
Note £m £m
Non-currentassets
Investments in subsidiary undertakings 1 - 77
Investmentsinjointventures 13,027 3,025
3027 3102
Currentassets
Receivables: amounts due from joint ventures 2 205 68
Totalassets 3,232 3,170
Current liabilities
Taxation 2 3
Other payables 56 .55
....58 .58,
Netassets 3,174 3,112
Capitalandreserves
Share capital 162 165
Share premium 1,309 1,295
Shares heldintreasury (753) (645)
Capitalredemptionreserve 25 22
Otherreserves 160 158
Net profit 817 717
Reserves 1454 1,400
Shareholders’ equity 3,174 3,112

The RELXPLC company financial statements were approved by the Board of Directors and authorised forissue on 14 February 2018.

Theywere signed on its behalf by:

AJHabgood
Chairman

Chief Financial Officer
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RELX PLC statement of changes in equity

Shares Capital
Share Share heldin redemption Other Net

capital premium treasury reserve'” reserves? profit Reserves® Total

£m £m £m £m £m £m £m £m

Balanceat 1 January 2016 170 1,284 (604) 17 156 665 1,426 314

Total comprehensive income for the year - - - - - 717 - 717
Dividends paid “ - - - - - - (356)  (356)
Repurchase of ordinary shares - - (376) - - - - (376)

Cancellation of shares (5) - 335 5 - - (335) -

Issue of ordinary shares, net of expenses - 1" - - - - - 1

Equity instruments granted to employees of the Group - - - - - - 2
Transferof netprofittoreserves T et e - (665) 665 T

Balance at 1 January 2017 165 1,295 (645) 22 158 717 1,400 3,112

Total comprehensive income for the year - - - - - 817 - 817
Dividends paid ¥ - - - - - - (400)  (400)
Repurchase of ordinary shares - - (371) - - - - (371)

Cancellation of shares (3) - 263 3 - - (263) -
Issue of ordinary shares, net of expenses - 14 - - - - - 14

Equity instruments granted to employees of the Group - - - - 2 - - 2
Transferof netprofittoreserves T = (717) 7 T
Balance at31 December 2017 162 1,309 (753) 25 160 817 1,454 3174

(1) The capitalredemption reserve does notform part of the distributable reserves balance.
(2) Otherreserves relate to equityinstruments granted to employees of the Group under share based remuneration arrangements, and do not

form part of the distributable reserves balance.

(3) Distributable reservesat31December2017were £1,518m (2016: £1,472m]) comprising net profitand reserves, net of shares held intreasury.
(4) Refertonote 14 of the RELX Group consolidated financial statements on page 141 for further dividend disclosure.

RELXPLC accounting policies

Basis of preparation

RELXPLC meets the definition of a qualifying entity under FRS 100
(Financial Reporting Standard 100) issued by the Financial
Reporting Council (FRC]. Accordingly, the financial statements
are preparedinaccordance with FRS 101 (Financial Reporting
Standard 101) ‘Reduced Disclosure Framework’ asissued by the
Financial Reporting Council, incorporating the Amendments to
FRS 101 issued by the FRCin July 2015 and the amendments to
Company law made by The Companies, Partnerships and Groups
(Accounts and Reports) Regulations 2015.

As permitted by FRS 101, RELX PLC has taken advantage of the
disclosure exemptions available under that standard in relation to
share based payments, financialinstruments, capital management,
presentation of comparative information in respect of certain
assets, presentation of a cash flow statement, standards not yet
effective, impairment of assets and related party transactions.

The RELXPLC financial statements have been prepared on the
historical cost basis.

Unlessotherwiseindicated, allamountsin the financial statements
areinmillions of pounds.

The RELXPLC financial statements should be read in conjunction
with the Group consolidated financial statements and notes
presented on pages 117 to 164, which are also presented as the
RELXPLC consolidated financial statements. See the Basis of
preparation of the consolidated financial statements on page 122.

The RELXPLC financial statements are prepared on a going
concern basis, as explained on page 171.

As permitted by section 408 of the Companies Act 2006, and in
compliance with The Companies, Partnerships and Groups
(Accounts and Reports) Regulations 2015, the company has not
presentedits own profitand loss account but has presented the
net profit for the year on the statement of financial position.

The RELXPLC accounting policies under FRS 101 are set out below.

Investments

Fixed assetinvestments are stated at cost, less provision, if
appropriate, foranyimpairmentinvalue. The fair value of the
award of share options and conditional shares over RELXPLC
ordinary sharesto employees of the Group are treated as a
capital contribution.

Otherassets and liabilities are stated at historical cost, less
provision, if appropriate, forany impairmentinvalue.

Shares heldintreasury

The consideration paid, including directly attributable costs, for
sharesrepurchasedis recognised as shares held in treasuryand
presented as a deduction from total equity. Details of share capital
and sharesheld intreasuryare set outin note 26 of the Group
consolidated financial statements.

Foreign exchange translation
Transactions entered intoin foreign currencies are recorded at
the exchange rates applicable at the time of the transaction.

Taxation
Refertonote 10 on pages 134-135 of the consolidated financial
statements for the taxation accounting policies.
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Notes to the RELX PLC financial statements

1 Investments

Subsidiary Joint

undertaking venture Total

£m £m £m

At 1January 2016 77 3,023 3,100
Equityinstruments granted to employees of theGroup - 2 2

At 1January 2017 77 3,025 3,102
Impairment (77) - (77)
Equityinstruments granted to employees of theGroup - 2 2

At 31 December 2017 - 3,027 3,027

Thejointventureis setoutinnote 3.

2 Related partytransactions

Alltransactionswith jointventures, subsidiaries and the Group’s employees, which are related parties of RELXPLC, arereflected inthese
financial statements. Transactions with key management personnelincluding share based remuneration costs are set outin note 28 of the
Group consolidated financial statements and details of the Directors’ remuneration are included in the Directors’ Remuneration Reporton
pages83to 102.

3 Jointventure as at 31 December 2017

% holding as at
31 December

RELXGroup plc

Incorporated and operatingin Great Britain

1-3 Strand 63,226 ordinaryvoting shares 50%
London WC2N5JR 15,487 non-voting E shares -
RELX Group plcis aholding company for group financing activities and 21,287 non-voting Rshares 100%
operating businessesinvolved in scientificand medical, risk and business Equivalenttoa52.9% equityinterestanda

analytics, legal markets and organisation of trade exhibitions 50% interestin the voting shares

4 Contingent liabilities

There are contingent liabilities in respect of borrowings of joint ventures guaranteed by RELX PLC as follows:

2017 2016
£m £m
Guaranteed jointly and severally with RELXNV 4,644 4,643

Financialinstruments disclosuresinrespect of the borrowings covered by the above guarantees are givenin note 19 of the Group’s
consolidated financial statements.

5 Subsequent events

Assetouton page 3, asetof measures thatwill further simplify the RELX Group corporate structure into a single parent company have
been proposed. The simplification is subject to the approval of both RELXNVand RELX PLC shareholders. We expect a circularto be sent
toshareholdersinthe second quarter of 2018, with implementation in the third quarter of 2018, subject to various conditions including
shareholderapproval. Animplementation of the proposal would resultin the merger of RELXNV's assets and liabilities into RELX PLC.
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Report of the Board

The Non-Executive and Executive Directors present their joint
report, together with the financial statements of the Group and
of RELXNV (the Company]), for the year ended 31 December 2017.

RELXPLCand RELXNV are separate, publicly-listed holding
companies. RELXPLC’s ordinary shares are traded onthe London
and New York stock exchanges, and RELXNV's shares are traded
onthe Amsterdam and New York stock exchanges. RELXPLC

and RELXNV have equalvoting rightsin RELX Group plc, which
holds all of RELX Group’s operating businesses, subsidiaries and
financing activities. RELXPLC, RELXNV, RELX Group plcand its
subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures are together known

as 'RELX Group'or 'the Group'.

This Report of the Board and the company financial statements
should be read in conjunction with the consolidated financial
statements and other reports set outon pages 2to 165, whichare
incorporated by reference herein. Summary consolidated financial
informationineurosis setout on page 184. The consolidated
financial statements on pages 106 to 164 are to be considered as
partof the notes to the statutory financial statements. The Annual
Report of RELX NV within the meaning of article 2:391 of the
Dutch Civil Code consists of pages 175 to 182 and, incorporated by
reference, pages 2to 165and the Corporate Governance Statement
of RELXNV dated 14 February 2018 which is published on the
RELX Group website (www.relx.com)isincorporated by reference
hereininaccordance with the Besluitinhoud bestuursverslag .

Principalactivities

RELXNVisaholding company. Its principalinvestmentisits
direct 47.1% shareholdingin RELX Group plc. RELX Group plc
isaglobal provider of information and analytics for professional
and business customers across industries. The remaining
shareholdingin RELX Group plcis held by RELXPLC. Afull
descriptionis setout on page 71.

Financial statement presentation

Underthe Governing Agreement between RELXPLC and RELXNV,
one RELXPLC ordinary share confers an equivalent economic
interesttoone RELXNVshare. Therefore all shareholders can
beregardedas havinginterestsinasingle economic entity.
Accordingly, the Group forms a single reporting entity for the
presentation of consolidated financial statements. The Group
consolidated financial statements represent the interests of both
sets of shareholders and are presented by both RELXPLC and
RELXNVastheirrespective consolidated financial statements.
Areview of the Group’s performance during the yearis setouton
pages 7to39,asummary of the principal risks facing the Group is
setouton pages 60to 63, and the Group statement on corporate
responsibilityis set out on pages 41to 51.

The shares of RELXPLC and RELXNV are regarded as two
separate classes of share which together form the consolidated
issued share capital of the Group. In calculating earnings per
share of the Group, the earnings for each company are calculated
on afully distributed basis. The Group’s usual practiceis foronly a
portion of earnings to be distributed by way of dividends. Dividends
paidto RELXPLC and RELXNV shareholders are, other thanin
special circumstances, equalised at the gross leveland reported
earnings per share have the same value foreach RELXNV and
RELXPLC share.

In addition to the reported figures, adjusted profit figuresare
presented as additional performance measures used by
management. These exclude the Group’s share of amortisation of
acquiredintangible assets, acquisition-related costs, taxin joint
ventures, disposal gains and losses and other non-operating
items, related tax effects, and movements in deferred taxation
assetsand liabilities related to acquired intangible assets and
include the benefit of tax amortisation where available on
acquired goodwilland intangible assets.

Parent company financial statements

Inaccordance with article 2:362(1) of the Dutch Civil Code, the
individual company financial statements of RELX NV (presented
on pages 179 to 182) were prepared under Financial Reporting
Standard 101 (FRS 101).

The profit attributable to the shareholders of RELXNVwas €819m
(2016: €869m) and net assets as at 31 December 2017, principally
representing the investmentin RELX Group plc under the
historical cost method and loans to their subsidiaries were €4,370m
(2016: €4,318m). Freereserves as at 31 December 2017 were
€4,095m (2016: €4,046m), comprising reserves and paid-in
surplus lessshares heldintreasury.

Dividends

The Boardis recommending a final dividend of €0.316 per ordinary
share. This gives total ordinary dividends for the year of €0.448
(2016:€0.423), (up 6%). The final dividend will be paid on 22 May 2018.
Payment of this final dividend remains subject to approval of the
Company’'s shareholders atits 2018 Annual General Meeting.

Details of dividend cover and dividend policy are set out on page 58.
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Share capital
Allissued shares are fully paid up and carry no additional
obligations or special rights.

During 2017, 2,067,694 ordinary sharesin RELXNVwereissued
as follows:

= underconvertible debentures at prices between €5.099
and €18.470

= underexecutive share option schemes at prices between
€5.403and€16.723

Information regarding shares outstanding at 31 December 2017
isshowninnote 26 to the consolidated financial statements. At

31 December 2017, the total shares held intreasurywere 52,563,100.
Another 3,775,905 shares were held by the Employee Benefit Trust.

Atthe 2017 Annual General Meeting, the shareholders approved
the reduction of the capital of RELXNV by the cancellation of up
to 50 million of its shares held in treasury. On 27 December 2017,
22 million ordinary shares held in treasury were cancelled on the
basis of this authorisation.

Substantial holdings

Asat 14 February 2018, based on the public database of and on
notification received from the Netherlands Authority for the
Financial Markets, the Companyis aware of interests in the capital
andvoting rights of the issued share capital of the Company of at
least 3% by the following persons or organisations:

= RELXNV

= JanusHenderson Group Plc

= BlackRock, Inc.

= The Bank of New York Mellon Corporation

= Jupiter Asset Management Ltd.

= Massachusetts Financial Services Company
= FILLimited

Authority to purchase shares

Atthe 2017 Annual General Meeting, shareholders passed a
resolution delegating authority to the Board to acquire sharesin
RELXNVfora period of 18 months from the date of the Annual
General Meeting up toandincluding 18 October 2018, for the
maximum amount of 10% of the issued capital. During the year,
21 million shares were purchased under this and the previous
delegation of authority. Asat 31 December 2017 there were
52,563,100 shares held intreasury, representing 5.26% of the
issued shares. Afurther 2.9 million shares were purchased
between 2 January 2018 and the date of this report.

Aresolutiontorenewthe delegation of the authorityis to be put
tothe 2018 Annual General Meeting, together with a proposal
forapproval of the reduction of RELXNV’s capital by cancellation
of accumulated shares held in treasury.

Corporate Governance

RELXNVis subject to the Dutch Corporate Governance Code
issuedin December 2016 (the Dutch Code). The Dutch Code
replacesthe former Code (issued in 2008) and is applicable to
financialyears starting on or after 1 January 2017. For further
information on the application of the Dutch Code, see the
Corporate Governance Statement of RELXNV published on the
RELX Group website, www.relx.com, whichisincorporated into
this Report of the Board by reference.

Significant agreements - change of control

The Governing Agreement between RELXNVand RELXPLC states
thatupon a change of control of RELX NV (for these purposes,

the acquisition by a third party of 50% or more of the issued share
capital having voting rights), should there not be a comparable
offer from the offeror for RELXPLC, RELX PLC may serve notice
upon RELXNVvarying certain provisions of the Governing
Agreement, including the governance and the standstill provisions.

There areanumber of borrowing agreements including credit
facilities thatin the event of a change of control of both RELXNV
and RELXPLC and, in some cases, a consequential credit rating
downgrade to sub-investment grade may, at the option of the
lenders, require repayment and/or cancellation as appropriate.

Financial statements and accounting records

The financial statements provide a true and fair view of the state
of affairs of the Company and the Group as of 31 December 2017
and of the profitorlossin 2017. In preparing the financial statements,
the Board ensures that suitable accounting policies, consistently
applied and supported by reasonable judgements and estimates,
have been used and applicable accounting standards have been
followed. The Boardis responsible for keeping properaccounting
records, which disclose with reasonable accuracy atany time the
financial position of the company and enable them to ensure that
the financial statements comply with the law. The Board has
generalresponsibility for taking reasonable steps to safeguard
the assets of the company and to preventand detect fraud and
otherirregularities.

Internal control

Asrequired under sections 1.4.2and 1.4.3 of the Dutch Code, the
Board has reviewed the effectiveness of the systems of internal
controland risk managementduring the last financialyear. The
objective of these systemsis to manage, rather than eliminate,
the risk of failure to achieve business objectives. Accordingly, they
canonly provide reasonable, but not absolute, assurance against
material misstatementor loss. The outcome of this review has
beendiscussed with the external auditors.

The Board confirmed that this report provides sufficientinsights
into the functioning of the risk management and control systems
assetouton pages 78-79 and that with regards to financial
reporting the risk managementand control systems provide
reasonable assurance against materialinaccuracies or loss.
They further confirmed that based on the current state of affairs,
itisjustified that the financial reporting is prepared onagoing
concern basis; and thattheannual report describes those
materialrisks and uncertainties thatare relevant to the
expectation of the Company’s continuity for the period of twelve
months after the preparation of the report.
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Corporate Simplification

As setouton page 3, aset of measures that will further simplify
the RELX Group corporate structure into a single parent company
have been proposed. The simplification is subject to the approval
of both RELXNVand RELXPLC shareholders. We expecta circular
to be senttoshareholdersinthe second quarter of 2018, with
implementationin the third quarter of 2018, subject tovarious
conditionsincluding shareholder approval. Animplementation of
the proposalwould resultin the merger of the Company’s assets
and liabilitiesinto RELXPLC.

Directors’ responsibility statement
Each of the Directors whose names and roles can be found on
pages 66 to 67 confirms that to the best of their knowledge that

= theconsolidated financial statements, preparedinaccordance
with International Financial Reporting Standards as issued by
the International Accounting Standards Board and as adopted
by the European Unionand Part 9 of Book 2 of the Dutch Civil
Code, give atrue and fairview of the financial position and profit
or loss of the Group;

= theindividual companyfinancial statements preparedin
accordance with Financial Reporting Standard 101 'Reduced
Disclosure Framework' (FRS 101) and Part 9 of Book 2 of the
Dutch CivilCode, give atrue and fair view of the assets, liabilities,
financial position and profit or loss of the Company; and

= the Reportofthe Boardincludes a fair review of the
developmentand performance of the business during the
financialyearand the position of the Group as at 31 December
2017 together with a description of the principal risks and
uncertainties thatit faces.

Neither the Company nor the Directors accept any liability to
any personinrelation tothe Annual Report except to the extent
that such liability arises under Dutch law.

Disclosure of information to auditors

As part of the process of approving the RELX NV 2017 financial
statements, the Board has taken steps to ensure that all relevant
information was provided to the Company's auditors and, so far
asthe Boardisaware, thereis norelevantauditinformation of
which the Company's auditors are unaware.

Going concern

The Directors’ statement on the appropriateness of adopting the
going concern basis of accounting is set out on page 79, whichis
incorporated into this Report of the Board by reference.

Long-termviability statement

The Directors’ statementregarding the long-term viability of
the Group asrequired by the UK Corporate Governance Codeis
setouton page 80, whichisincorporated into this Report of the
Board by reference.

Auditors

Resolutions for the re-appointment of Ernst & Young Accountants
LLPasthe Company's auditors and to authorise the Board to
determine their remuneration will be submitted to the forthcoming
Annual General Meeting on 18 April 2018.

Signed by:

Non-Executive Directors Executive Directors
AHabgood E Engstrom
(Chairman) (Chief Executive Officer)
W Hauser N Luff
(SeniorIndependent Director)  (Chief Financial Officer)
AHennah

Mvan Lier Lels

R MaclLeod

C Mills

L Sanford

BvanderVeer
SWood (appointed 26 September 2017)

Registered office
Radarweg 29

1043 NXAmsterdam
The Netherlands

Chamber of Commerce Amsterdam
Register file No: 33155037
14 February 2018
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RELX NV statement of comprehensive income

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017 2016

Administrative expenses

Operating profit )
Dividends received from joint ventures 800 850
Financeincomefromjointventures 27 27
Profitbeforetax 825 875
B XN L (6]
Net profit for the year 2 819 869

Other comprehensive income - -
Total comprehensive income for the year

RELX NV statement of financial position

before appropriation of profit

AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2017 2016
Note €m €m

Non-currentassets

Investmentsinjointventures b 4180 4178

Currentassets

Amountsdue fromjointventures - funding 4 279 230

Amountsduefromjointventures—other b 7 2
S 286 235

Totalassets 4,466 4,413

Currentliabilities

Taxation 35 36

Other payables S 58 59
S 93 .95

Netassets 2 4,373 4,318

Capitalandreserves

Share capital

Paid-in surplus
Sharesheldintreasury
Otherreserves
Reserves

Net profit
Shareholders’ equity
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RELX NV statement of changes in equity

Shares
Share Paid-in heldin Other
capital surplus™”  treasury reserves”?  Netprofit®? Reserves® Total
€m €m €m €m €m €m €m
Balance at 1 January 2016 73 2,304 (948) 199 787 1,803 4,218
Total comprehensive income for the year - - - - 869 - 869
Dividends paid« - - - - - (399) (399)
Repurchase of shares - - (386) - - - (386)
Cancellation of shares (2) - 462 - - (460) -
Issue of shares, net of expenses - 14 - - - - 14
Equity instruments granted to employees of the Group - - - 2 - - 2
Transferof netprofittoreserves e T T T8I TBT T
Balance at 1 January 2017 7 2,318 (872) 201 869 1,731 4,318
Total comprehensive income for the year - - - - 819 - 819
Dividends paid @ - - - - - (412) (412)
Repurchase of shares - - (375) - - - (375)
Cancellation of shares (1) - 353 - - (352) -
Issue of shares, net of expenses - 21 - - - - 21
Equity instruments granted to employees of the Group - - - 2 - -
Transferof netprofittoreserves e T o T T BOI) L BE9 T
Balance at31 December 2017 70 2,339 (894) 203 819 1,836 4,373

(1) Within paid-in surplus, anamount of €2,186m (2016: €2,165m] is free of tax.
(2) Otherreservesrelate to equity instruments granted to employees of the Group under share based remuneration arrangements.

Otherreserves do not form part of free reserves.

(3) Freereservesofthe companyat31 December 2017 were €4,100m (2016: €4,046m), comprising net profit reserves and paid-in

surplus less shares held in treasury.

(4) Refertonote 14 of the RELX Group consolidated financial statements on page 141 for further dividend disclosure.

RELX NV accounting policies

Basis of preparation

The RELXNV financial statements have been prepared on the
historical cost basis. As permitted by 2:362 subsection 1 of the
Dutch Civil Code for companies with international operations, the
RELXNVfinancial statements have been preparedinaccordance
with FRS 101 and inaccordance with Part 9 of Book 2 of the Dutch
CivilCode.

RELXNV meets the definition of a qualifying entity under FRS 100
(Financial Reporting Standard 100) issued by the Financial
Reporting Council, the standard setting body in the UK.
Accordingly, the financial statements are preparedin accordance
with FRS 101 (Financial Reporting Standard 101) ‘Reduced
Disclosure Framework’ asissued by the Financial Reporting
Council, incorporatingthe Amendments to FRS 101 issued by

the FRCin July 2015.

As permitted by FRS 101, the company has taken advantage of
the disclosure exemptions available under that standard in
relations to share based payments, financialinstruments,
capital management, presentation of comparative informationin
respect of certain assets, presentation of a cash flow statement,
standards not yet effective, impairment of assets and related
partytransactions.

The RELXNV financial statements have been prepared on the
historical cost basis.

Unless otherwise stated, the financial statements are in millions
of euros.

The RELXNVfinancial statements and notes should be read in
conjunction with the Group consolidated financial statements and
notes presented on pages 117 to 164, which are also presented as
the RELXNV consolidated financial statements. See the Basis of
preparation of the RELX Group consolidated financial statements
on page 122.

The RELX NV financial statements are prepared onagoing
concern basis, as explained on page 79.

The RELXNVaccounting policies under FRS 101 are set out below.

Investments

Fixed assetinvestments are stated at cost, less provision,

if appropriate, forany impairmentinvalue. The fairvalue of the
award of share options and conditional shares over RELXNV
ordinary shares to employees of the Group are treated as a
capital contribution.

Otherassetsand liabilities are stated at historical cost, less
provision, if appropriate, forany impairmentinvalue.
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Shares heldintreasury

The amount of consideration paid, including directly attributable
costs, for sharesrepurchased is recognised as shares held in
treasuryand presented as a deduction from total equity. Details
of share capitaland shares held in treasury are set outin note 26
of the Group consolidated financial statements.

Foreign exchange translation
Transactions entered intoin foreign currencies are recorded
atthe exchange rates applicable at the time of the transaction.

Taxation
Refertonote 10 on pages 134to 135 of the RELX Group consolidated

financial statements for the taxation accounting policies.

Notes to the RELX NV financial statements

1 Other payables

Other payablesinclude €6m (2016: €6m) of the Group’s employee convertible debenture loans with a weighted average interest rate
0f 0.5% (2016: 0.8%). Depending on the conversion terms, the surrender of €200 par value debenture loans qualifies for 50 RELXNV
ordinary shares.

2 RELX NV and consolidated financial statements

YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017 2016

€m €m
RELXNV profit attributable to shareholders 819 869
RELXPLC profit attributable to shareholders 931 875
Consolidated net profit attributable to RELX PLC and RELX NV shareholders 1,891 1,416

The difference between the RELXNVand RELX Group consolidated net profitarises as the RELXNV profitand loss accounts include
dividends from RELX Group plc and otherintra-group transactions (which are eliminated on a consolidated basis) whereas the RELX
Group consolidated net profitincludes the consolidated net profit of the Group’s subsidiaries and the Group’s share of the results of its
jointventures and associates.

AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2017 2016

€m €m
RELXNVshareholders’ funds 4,373 4,318
RELXPLC shareholders' funds 3,555 3,641
Consolidated shareholders’ equity 2,635 2,714

The difference between the RELXNVand RELX Group consolidated shareholders’ funds arise as the RELXNV shareholders’ funds
includes the investmentin RELX Group plc held at cost less any provision forimpairment, and other intra-group transactions, such
asintra-group funding, which eliminate on consolidation, whereas the RELX Group consolidated equity includes the investment in

subsidiaries and the assets and liabilities (including external borrowings) of the Group as awhole.

3 Related party transactions

Alltransactions with joint ventures and the Group’s employees, which are related parties of RELX NV, are reflected in these financial
statements. Jointventures are setoutinnote 4.

Transactions with key management personnelincluding share based remuneration costs are set out in note 28 to the Group consolidated
financial statements and details of the Directors’ remuneration are included in the Directors’ Remuneration Report on pages 83 to 102.
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Notes to the RELX NV financial statements

4 Jointventure as at 31 December 2017

% holdingasat
31December

RELX Group plc

Incorporated and operating in Great Britain

1-3 Strand 63,226 ordinaryvoting shares 50%
London WC2N 5JR 15,487 non-voting E shares 100%
RELX Group plcis aholding company for group financing activities and 21,287 non-voting Rshares -
operating businesses involved in scientificand medical, risk and business Equivalenttoa47.1% equity interestand a

analytics, legal markets and organisation of trade exhibitions 50% interestinthevoting shares

Investments in joint ventures include equity instruments granted to the Group’s employees of €2m (2016: €2m)

5 Contingent liabilities

There are contingent liabilities in respect of borrowings of joint ventures guaranteed by RELX NV as follows:

2017 2016
€m €m
Guaranteed jointly and severally with RELXPLC 5,202 5,432

Financialinstrumentsdisclosuresinrespect of the borrowings covered by the above guarantees are givenin note 19 of the Group’s
consolidated financial statements.

6 Auditors' remuneration

Information on the auditand non-audit fees paid by RELX Group to Ernst & Young Accountants LLP and its associatesis set outin note 4
tothe Group’s consolidated financial statements.

7 Subsequent events

As setouton page 3, aset of measures that will further simplify the RELX Group corporate structure into a single parent company have
been proposed. The simplification is subject to the approval of both RELXNVand RELX PLC shareholders. We expecta circular to be
sentto shareholdersinthe second quarter of 2018, with implementation in the third quarter of 2018, subject to various conditions
including shareholderapproval. Animplementation of the proposal would resultin the merger of the Company’s assets and liabilities
into RELXPLC.

8 Approval of financial statements

The RELXNV financial statements were signed and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 14 February 2018.

A JHabgood N L Luff
Chairman of the Board Chief Financial Officer

Additional information (unaudited)

Profitallocation

The Articles of Association provide that distributions of dividend may only be made insofar as the company’s equity exceeds the

amount of the paid-in capital, increased by the reserves which must be kept by virtue of the law and may be made in cash orin shares,
atthe proposal of the Board. Distribution of dividends on ordinary shares shall be made in proportion to the nominalvalue of each share.
The Board may resolve whatamount of dividend shall be paid on each ordinary share. Distribution of dividends on ordinary shares are
subjecttoapproval atthe General Meeting of Shareholders. Details of dividends proposed in relation to the financialyearare in note 14
tothe consolidated financial statements.

OVERVIEW OF PROFIT FOR THE YEAR AND DIVIDENDS PAID 2017 2016 2015
€m €m €m
Finaldividend on ordinary shares for prior financial year 287 281 283
Interim dividend on ordinary shares for financial year 125 118 14
SUT DS O N AT e 407 470 390

Total 819 869 787
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Summary financial informationin euros

Basis of preparation
The Group’s consolidated financialinformation is presented in sterling. The summary financialinformation is a simple translation
of the Group’s consolidated financial statements into euros at the stated rates of exchange.

EXCHANGE RATES FOR TRANSLATION Statement of
Income statement financial position
2017 2016 2015 2017 2016
Eurotosterling 1.14 1.22 1.38 1.12 117

Consolidated income statement

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017 2016 2015
€m €m €m
Revenue 8,385 8,412 8,240
Operating profit 2,172 2,084 2,066
Profit before tax 1,977 1,797 1,811
Net profit attributable to RELXPLC and RELXNV shareholders o189 1416 1,391
Adjusted operating profit 2,604 2,579 2,514
Adjusted profit before tax 2,415 2,359 2,303
Adjusted net profit attributable to RELXPLC and RELX NV shareholders 1,864 1,815 1,760
Adjustedearningsperordinaryshare €0923  €0880  €0835
Basic earnings perordinary share
RELXPLC €0.936 €0.687 €0.640
RELXNY €0936  €0687  €0682
Net dividend per ordinary share paidin the year
RELXPLC €0.426 €0.397 €0.364
RELXNY €0.433 €040 €0.400
Net dividend per ordinary share paid and proposed in relation to the financial year
RELXPLC €0.449 €0.439 €0.410
RELXNV €0.448 €0.423 €0.403

Consolidated statement of cash flows

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017 2016 2015
€m €m €m
Net cash from operating activities 2,107 2,052 1,942
Net cash used ininvesting activities (481) (815) (582)
Netcashusedinfinancingactivities ) (1,677)  (1,226)  [1,552)
(Decrease)/increase in cash and cash equivalents (51) 1 (192)

Movementin cash and cash equivalents

Atstartofyear 190 166 356
(Decreasel/increase in cash and cash equivalents (51) " (192)
Exchangetranslationdifferences ns) 18 2.
A N O YA 124 190 166
Adjusted cash flow 2,499 2,460 2,363

Consolidated statement of financial position

AS AT 31 DECEMBER

Non-current assets
Currentassets

ets

nt liabilities
Non-current liabilities
Liabilities associated with assets held for sale

Netassets
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Summary financial informationin US dollars

Basis of preparation

The Group’s consolidated financialinformationis presented in sterling. The summary financial information is a simple translation of
the Group’s consolidated financial statementsinto US dollars at the stated rates of exchange. It does not represent a restatement under
US GAAP whichwould be differentin some significant respects.

EXCHANGE RATES FOR TRANSLATION Statement of
Income statement financial position
2017 2016 2015 2017 2016
US dollarstosterling 1.29 1.36 1.53 1.35 1.23
Consolidated income statement
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017 2016 2015
Us$m Us$m US$m
Revenue 9,488 9,377 9136
Operating profit 2,457 2,323 2,290
Profit before tax 2,237 2,003 2,007
Net profitattributable to RELXPLC and RELXNV shareholders 2140 1,679 1,542
Adjusted operating profit 2,946 2,875 2,788
Adjusted profit before tax 2,732 2,630 2,554
Adjusted net profit attributable to RELXPLC and RELXNV shareholders 2,109 2,024 1,951
Adjusted earnings per American Depositary Share (ADS) ~ $1.044  $0.982  $0.926
Basicearnings per ADS
RELXPLC (Each ADS comprises one ordinary share) $1.060 $0.766 $0.710
RELXNV(Each ADS comprises one ordinary share) | $1.060  $0766  $0.756
Net dividend per ADS paidin the year
RELXPLC $0.482 $0.443 $0.404
RE L N $0.490  $0.457  $0.444
Netdividend per ADS paid and proposed in relation to the financial year
RELXPLC $0.508 $0.489 $0.437
RELXNV $0.507 $0.472 $0.439
Consolidated statement of cash flows
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017 2016 2015
Us$m Us$m US$m

Net cash from operating activities 2,384 2,287 2,153
Net cash usedininvesting activities (544) (908) (646)
Netcashusedinfinancingactivities (1,898) (1367 (1,720
(Decrease)/increase in cashand cash equivalents (58) 12 (213)
Movement in cash and cash equivalents
At start of year 199 179 431
(Decreasel/increasein cash and cash equivalents (58) 12 (213)
Exchangetranslationdifferences 9 8. .. (39)
Atendofyear
Adjusted cash flow 2,828 2,742 2,619
Consolidated statement of financial position
AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2017 2016

Us$m UsS$m
Non-current assets 13,667 13,493
Currentassets 2,915 2,887
Assets held for sale - 7
Total assets
Current liabilities 6,110 6,524
Non-current liabilities 7,267 6,957
Liabilities associated withassetsheldforsale - 6
Total liabilities 13,377 13,487

Netassets 3,205 2,900
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Reconciliation of adjusted to GAAP measures

The Group uses adjusted figures, which are not defined by generally accepted accounting principles ("GAAP”) such as IFRS, as additional
performance measures. These measures are used by management, alongside the comparable GAAP measures, in evaluating the business

performance. The measures may not be comparable to similarly reported measures by other companies.

Areconciliation of non-GAAP measures to relevant GAAP measuresis as follows:

YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017 2016
£m £m
Operating profit 1,905 1,708
Adjustments:
Amortisation of acquired intangible assets 314 346
Acquisition-related costs 56 51
Reclassification of taxin joint ventures 10 10
........ Reclassification of finance income injointventures S L
Adjusted operating profit 2,284 2,114
Profit before tax 1,734 1,473
Adjustments:
Amortisation of acquired intangible assets 314 346
Acquisition-related costs 56 51
Reclassification of taxin joint ventures 10 10
Netinterest on net defined benefitschemes 15 14
........ Disposals and other non-operatingitems B
Adjusted profit before tax 2,118 1,934
Taxcharge (67) (304)
Adjustments:
Deferred tax movements on goodwill and acquired intangible assets 42 18
Tax on acquisition-related costs (13) (13)
Reclassification of tax in jointventures (10) (10)
Taxon netintereston net defined benefit schemes (4) (4)
Tax ondisposals and other non-operating items 16 (34)
Other deferred tax credits fromintangible assets* (93) (91)
........ Exceptionaltaxcredit** (Bae) -
Adjusted tax charge (475) (438)
Net profitattributable to RELX PLC and RELX NV shareholders 1,659 1,161
Adjustments (post tax):
Amortisation of acquired intangible assets 356 364
Acquisition-related costs 43 38
Netinterest on net defined benefit obligation 11 10
Disposals and other non-operating items 5 6
Other deferred tax credits from intangible assets* (93) (91)
........ Exceptionaltaxcredit** T
Adjusted net profit attributable to RELXPLC and RELX NV shareholders 1,635 1,488
Cash generated from operations 2,445 2,236
Adjustments:
Dividends received from joint ventures and associates 38 4t
Purchases of property, plantand equipment (51) (51)
Proceeds on disposals of property, plant, and equipment 1 1
Expenditure oninternally developed intangible assets (303) (282)
........ Paymentsin relation to acquisition-related costs/other .82 .68
Adjusted cash flow 2,192 2,016

* Movements on deferred tax liabilities arising on acquired intangible assets that do not qualify for tax amortisation.
**One-off non-cash credit from a deferred tax adjustmentarising from the US Tax Cuts and Jobs Act.
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Shareholder information

Annual Reports and Financial Statements 2017

The RELX Group Annual Reports and consolidated Financial
Statements for RELXPLC and RELXNV for the year ended

31 December2017,and the Corporate Governance Statement
of RELXNV are available on the Group’s website, and from the
registered offices of the respective parent companies shown
on page 190. Additional financialinformation, including the
interim and full-year results announcements, trading updates
and presentations, is also available on the Group’s website,
(=) www.relx.com

The consolidated financial statements set out in the Annual
Reports and Financial Statements are expressedin sterling,
with summary financialinformation expressed in euros and

US dollars. The financial statements of RELXPLC and RELXNV
areexpressedinsterlingand euros respectively.

Share price information
RELXPLC'sordinary shares are traded on the London Stock
Exchange.

PLC
Tradingsymbol S
ISIN . GB00B2BODGYY :
RELXNV’'sordinary shares are traded on the Euronext
Amsterdam Stock Exchange.

NV
Tradingsymbol o REND
ISIN . NLO000&14495 |

The RELXPLC and RELXNV ordinary shares are traded on the
New York Stock Exchange in the form of American Depositary
Shares (ADSs), evidenced by American Depositary Receipts
(ADRs).

PLCADRs : NVADRs
Ratioto ordinary shares A ‘|1
Trading symbol o RELX:  RENX
CUSIP code 759530108 75955B102

The RELXPLC and RELXNVordinary share prices and the ADR
prices may be obtained from the Group’s website, other online
sources and the financial pages of some newspapers.

@ For furtherinformationvisit the ‘Investor Centre’ section
of the Group’s website www.relx.com/investorcentre

Information for RELXPLC ordinary
shareholders

Shareholder services

The RELXPLC ordinary share registeris administered by Equiniti
Limited. Equiniti provides a free online portal for shareholders at
www.shareview.co.uk. Shareview allows shareholders to monitor
thevalue of their shareholdings, view their dividend payments and
submit dividend mandate instructions. Shareholders canalso
submit their proxy votinginstructions ahead of company meetings,
aswellas update their personal contact details. Shareview
Dealing provides a share purchase and sale facility. Equiniti’s
contact details are shown on page 190.

Electroniccommunications

While hard copy shareholder communications continue to be
available tothose shareholders requesting them, inaccordance
with the Companies Act 2006 and the Company's articles of
association, RELXPLC usesthe Group's website as the main
method of communicating with shareholders. By registering their
details online at Shareview, shareholders can be notified by email
when shareholder communications are published on the Group’s
website. Shareholders can also use the Shareview website to
appointa proxy to vote on their behalf at shareholder meetings.

Shareholderswho hold their RELXPLC shares through CREST
may appoint proxies for shareholder meetings throughthe CREST
electronic proxy appointment service by using the procedures
describedinthe CREST manual.

Dividend mandates

Shareholdersare encouraged to have their dividends paid
directlyintoa UK bank or building society account. This method
of paymentreduces the risk of delay or loss of dividend cheques
inthe postand ensures the accountis credited on the dividend
payment date. Adividend mandate form can be obtained online
atwww.shareview.co.uk, or by contacting Equiniti at the address
shown on page 190.

Equiniti has established a service for overseas shareholders
inover 90 countries, which enables shareholders to have their
dividends automatically converted from sterling and paid
directly into their nominated bank account. Further details

of thisservice, and the fees applicable, are available at
www.shareview.co.uk/info/ops or by contacting Equiniti
atthe address shown on page 190.

Dividend Reinvestment Plan

Shareholders can choose to reinvest their RELXPLC dividends
by purchasing further shares through the Dividend Reinvestment
Plan (DRIP) provided by Equiniti. Furtherinformation

concerning the DRIP facility, together with the terms and
conditions and an application form can be obtained online at
www.shareview.co.uk/info/drip or by contacting Equiniti at the
address shown on page 190.
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Share dealing service

Atelephone andinternetdealing service is available through
Equiniti, which provides a simple way for UK resident shareholders
tobuyorsell RELXPLC shares. For telephone dealing call
0345603 7037 between 8.30am and 5.30pm (UK time), Monday

to Friday (excluding public holidays in England and Wales), and
forinternet dealing log on to www.shareview.co.uk/dealing.

You will need your shareholder reference number shown on

your dividend confirmation.

ShareGift

The Orr Mackintosh Foundation operates a charity share donation
scheme for shareholders with small parcels of shares whose
value makesituneconomic to sell them. Details of the scheme
can be obtained from the ShareGift website at www.sharegift.org,
or by telephoning ShareGift on 020 7930 3737.

Sub-division of ordinary shares and share consolidation

On 28 July 1986, each RELXPLC ordinary share of £1 nominal
value was sub-divided into four ordinary shares of 25p each.
On2May 1997, each 25p ordinary share was sub-divided into two
ordinary shares of 12.5p each. On 7 January 2008, the ordinary
shares of 12.5p each were consolidated on the basis of 58 new
ordinary shares of 145%116p nominalvalue for every 67 ordinary
shares of 12.5p each held.

Capital gains tax

The mid-market price of RELXPLC's £1 ordinary shares on
31 March 1982 was 282p. Adjusting for the sub-divisions and
share consolidation referred to above results in an equivalent
mid-market price of 40.72p for each existing ordinary share
of 145"416p nominal value.

Warning to shareholders -
unsolicited investment advice

= Fromtimetotime shareholders may receive unsolicited
callsfrom fraudsters

= Fraudstersuse persuasive and high-pressure tactics to lure
investorsinto scams, sometimes known as boiler room scams

= Theymay offerto sell shares that turn out to be worthless or
non-existent, orto buy shares ataninflated price in return for
anupfront payment

= While high profits are promised, ifyou buy or sell sharesin
this way you will probably lose your money

= Thousands of people contact the Financial Conduct Authority
aboutinvestment fraud each year, with victims losingan
average of £32,000

How to avoid share fraud and boiler room scams
The Financial Conduct Authority (FCA) hasissued some guidance
on howtorecognise and avoid investment fraud:

= Legitimate firms authorised by the FCA are unlikely to contact
you unexpectedly with an offer to buy or sell shares

= Ifyoureceiveanunsolicited phone call,do notgetintoa
conversation, note the name of the person and firm contacting
you and then end the call

= ChecktheFinancial Services Registeravailable at
https://register.fca.org.uk/to seeifthe personand firm
contactingyou is authorised by the FCA. If you wish to call
the person or firm back, only use the contact details listed
onthe Register

= Callthe FCAon 0800 111 6768 if the firm does not have any
contact details onthe Register, orif you are told that they
areoutof date

= Searchthe list of unauthorised firmsto avoid at
https://www.fca.org.uk/consumers/unauthorised-firms-
individuals#list

= Ifyoudobuyorsellsharesthroughanunauthorised firm,
you will not have access to the Financial Ombudsman Service
orthe Financial Services Compensation Scheme

= Considerobtainingindependent financialand professional
advice before you hand overany money. If it sounds too good
tobetrueitprobablyis.

Howtoreportascam

Ifyou are approached by fraudsters, please tellthe FCA using
the share fraud reporting form at www.fca.org.uk/consumers/
report-scam-unauthorised-firm, where you can find out more
aboutinvestment scams. You can also call the FCA Consumer
Helpline on 0800 111 6768.

Ifyou have already paid money to share fraudsters, you should
contact Action Fraud on 0300 123 2040 or use their online tool:
http://www.actionfraud.police.uk/report_fraud
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Shareholder information and contacts

Information for RELX NV ordinary
shareholders

Shareholder services

Enquiries from holders of RELXNVregistered ordinary shares
inrelation to share transfers, dividends, change of address and
bank accounts should be directed to the Company Secretary of
RELXNV, atthe registered office address shown below.

Dividends

Dividends on RELXNV ordinary shares are declared and paid in
euros. Registered shareholdersin RELXNVwill receive dividends
from the Company by transmission to the bank account which they
have notified to the Company. Dividends on sharesin bearer form
are paid through the intermediary of a bank or broker.

Dividend Reinvestment Plan

Byinstructing their bank orintermediary, shareholders can
choose toreinvest their RELXNV dividends by purchasing further
sharesthrough the Dividend Reinvestment Plan (DRIP) provided
by ABN AMRO Bank NV. Further information concerning the DRIP
facility can be obtained online at www.securitiesinfo.com.

Consolidation of ordinary shares

On7January 2008, the RELX NV ordinary shares of €0.06 each
were consolidated on the basis of 58 new ordinary shares of
€0.07 each forevery 67 ordinary shares of €0.06 each held.

Contacts

RELXPLC

Head Office and Registered Office
1-3 Strand

London WC2N 5JR

United Kingdom

Tel: +44(0)20 7166 5500
Fax: +44 (012071665799

Auditors
Ernst & Young LLP
1More London Place
London SE12AF
United Kingdom

Registrar

Equiniti Limited
Aspect House
Spencer Road
Lancing BN99 6DA
West Sussex
United Kingdom

@ www.shareview.co.uk

Tel: 03713842960 (UK callers)
Tel: +44 121 4157047 (callers outside the UK)

Information for RELX PLC and RELX NV
ADR holders

ADRshareholder services
The RELXPLC and RELXNVADR Depositaryis Citibank NA.

Enquiries concerning RELXPLC and RELXNVADRs should be
addressed to the ADR Depositary at the address shown below.

Dividends
Dividend paymentson RELXPLC and RELXNV ADRs are
convertedinto US dollars by the ADR Depositary.

Annual Reporton Form 20-F

The RELX Group Annual Reporton Form 20-F is filed electronically
with the United States Securities and Exchange Commission.

A copy of the Form 20-F is available on the Group’s website, or
fromthe ADR Depositary atthe address shown below.

RELXNV

Head Office and Registered Office
Radarweg 29

1043 NXAmsterdam

The Netherlands

Tel: +31(0)20 4852222
Fax:+31(0)20 4852032

Auditors

Ernst & Young Accountants LLP
Antonio Vivaldistraat 150

1083 HP Amsterdam

The Netherlands

Listing/paying agent
ABNAMRO Bank NV

GustavMahlerlaan 10
1082 PP Amsterdam

The Netherlands

@ www.securitiesinfo.com

RELXPLCand RELXNV ADR Depositary
Citibank Depositary Receipt Services

PO Box 43077

Providence, R102940-3077

USA

@ www.citi.com/dr

Email: citibank@shareholders-online.com
Tel:+1877 2484327
+1781575 4555 (callers outside the US)
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2018 financial calendar
E.
15February Resultsannouncementfortheyearended31December2017
18 April Trading update issuedinrelation to the 2018 financialyear
18 April RELXNVAnnual General Meeting - The Grand Hotel, Oudezijds Voorburgwal 197, 1012 EXAmsterdam, The Netherlands
19 April RELXPLC Annual General Meeting - Millennium Hotel, Grosvenor Square, London W1K 2HP
26 April Ex-dividend date - 2017 final dividend, RELXPLC and RELX NV ordinary shares and ADRs
27 April Record date - 2017 finaldividend, RELXPLC and RELXNV ordinary shares and ADRs
22 May Payment date - 2017 final dividend, RELXPLC and RELX NV ordinary shares
25 May Payment date - 2017 final dividend, RELXPLC and RELXNV ADRs o
26 July Interim resultsannouncement for the six months to 30 June 2018 G
2 August* Ex-dividend date - 2018 interim dividend, RELXPLC and RELX NV ordinary sharesand ADRs §
3 August* Record date - 2018 interim dividend, RELXPLC and RELXNV ordinary sharesand ADRs 5
24 August*  Paymentdate - 2018 interim dividend, RELXPLC and RELX NV ordinary shares =
29 August* Paymentdate -2018 interim dividend, RELXPLC and RELXNV ADRs 2
*These dates remain provisionaland subject to change.
Dividend history
The following tables set out dividends paid (or proposed] in relation to the three financial years 2015-2017.
ORDINARY SHARES pence per PLCordinaryshare €perNVordinaryshare Paymentdate
Finaldividend for 2017** 27.70 0.316 22May 2018
Interim dividend for 2017 11.70 0.132 25 August 2017
Finaldividend for 2016 25.70 0.301 22 May 2017 g
Interim dividend for 2016 10.25 0.122 26 August 2016 3.
Finaldividend for 2015 22.30 0.288 20May 2016 nf
Interim dividend for 2015 7.40 0.115 28 August 2015 %
**Proposed dividend, to be submitted forapproval at the respective Annual General Meetings of RELXPLC and RELXNVin April 2018. =
ADRS $per PLCADR $per NVADR Paymentdate
Finaldividend for 2017 ok ok 25May 2018
Interim dividend for 2017 0.15085 0.15659 30 August 2017
Finaldividend for 2016 0.33387 0.33817 25May 2017
Interim dividend for 2016 0.13452 0.13645 31 August 2016
Finaldividend for 2015 0.32348 0.32247 25May 2016
Interim dividend for 2015 0.11356 0.12836 2September 2015 o
*** Paymentwill be determined using the appropriate £/US$ and €/US$ exchange rate on 22 May 2018. %
Notes: %
Thedividend rates shown for RELXNV ordinary shares and ADRs are gross dividend rates before the deduction of Dutch withholding tax.
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Cautionary note

This Announcement does not constitute or form part of any offer
tosellor subscribe for or any invitation to purchase or subscribe
forany securities or the solicitation of any vote or approvalin any
jurisdiction pursuant to the simplification. It does not constitute
aprospectus or prospectus equivalent documentand investors
should not make any investmentdecisionin relation toany shares
referredtointhis Announcement. No offer of securities shall be
made except by means of a prospectus meeting the requirements
of the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, and applicable
Europeanrulesand regulations. A prospectus is expected to

be made available to shareholders on RELX Group’s website
(www.relx.com]in due course.

Important additionalinformation will be filed with the SEC
Inaddition to the prospectus to be made available to shareholders,
RELXPLC will file with the U.S. Securities and Exchange
Commission (the “SEC”) a registration statement on Form F-4
thatwillinclude the prospectus. RELXPLC plans to mail the
prospectus to the holders of American Depositary Shares of
RELXN.V.and U.S. holders of ordinary shares of RELXN.V.
(collectively, "RELX NV U.S. Shareholders”) in connection with the
Simplification. RELXN.V.U.S. SHAREHOLDERS ARE URGED TO
READ THE PROSPECTUSAND OTHER RELEVANT DOCUMENTS
FILEDORTOBEFILEDWITH THE SEC CAREFULLYWHEN
THEYBECOME AVAILABLE BECAUSE THEY WILL CONTAIN
IMPORTANT INFORMATION ABOUT RELXPLC, RELXN.V.,
THESIMPLIFICATION AND RELATED MATTERS. RELXN.V. U.S.
Shareholderswill be able to obtain free copies of the prospectus
and other documents filed with the SEC by RELXPLC and RELXN.V.
through the website maintained by the SEC at www.sec.gov.
Inaddition, RELXN.V. U.S. Shareholders will be able to obtain
free copies of the prospectus and other documents filed by
RELXPLC with the SEC by contacting RELX Investor Relations
at1-3Strand, London WC2N 5JR or by calling +44 207166 5634.
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